АКТУАЛЬНІ ПРОБЛЕМИ СУЧАСНОЇ МЕДИЦИНИ:

ТОМ 18, ВИПУСК 3 (63), 2018

ВІСНИК Української медичної стоматологічної

НАУКОВО-ПРАКТИЧНИЙ ЖУРНАЛ	Заснований в 2001 році
Виходить 4 рази на рік	

Contents

INCIDENCE STUDY OF GASTROINTESTINAL DISEASES IN STUDENTS AND
GUIDELINES FOR THEIR PREVENTION7
Adamovych I.V., Vovk K.V., Litvin O.I., Nikolenko E.Ya., Bakumenko M.G., Dergachova A.V.
IMMEDIATE RESULTS OF X-RAY ENDOVASCULAR INTERVENTIONS IN PATIENTS
WITH ACUTE MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION
Aksenov E.V., Gumenyuk B.M
PATHOGENETIC FEATURES OF THE COURSE OF NON-ALCOHOLIC
STEATOHEPATITIS WITH COMORBIDITIES OF OBESITY AND CHRONIC KIDNEY
DISEASE9
Antoniv A. A9
ECHOGRAPHIC AND DOPPLER INDICATORS IN EVALUATING PREGNANCY
COURSE IN WOMEN WITH THREATENED MISCARRIAGE IN EARLY TERMS
Akhundova G. I., Shamkhalova I. A11
DYNAMIC CHANGES OF PLACENTAL HORMONES IN PREGNANT WOMEN WITH
MODERATE AND SEVERE PREECLAMPSIA
Babayeva A. H., Rzakulieva L. M
ANALYSIS OF THE OCULAR LAYER RIGIDITY AND THE STATE OF EYE
HYDRODYNAMICS IN MYOPIA 14
Bezkorovayna I.M., Nakonechnyi D.O 14
INCIDENCE OF DISABILITY DUE TO OCCUPATIONAL DISEASES IN THE
DNIPROPETROVSK REGION
Borisova I. S., Abramenkova N. O., Kontsur V. M
LEVELS OF SERUM C-REACTIVE PROTEIN AND INTERLEUKIN-6 AS PREDICTORS

Veremchuk S. F., Marunyak S. P., Dzyuba D. A, Loskutov O. A	16
CHARACTERISTCS OF THE COURSE OF PREGNANCY AND LABOR IN WOMEN WIT	ſΗ
ENDOMETRIOSIS	18
Vorobii V. D.	18
A STUDY OF THE TIME-BASED CHARACTERISTICS OF PHENOMENOLOGY (ЭF
POST-STROKE FATIGUE OVER THE FIRST YEAR AFTER STROKE OCCURRENCE	19
Delva I.	19
Ukrainian Medical Stomatological Academy, Poltava	19
ASSESSMENT OF THERAPEUTIC EFFECTIVENESS OF CHONDROPROTECTORS FO)R
PATIENTS WITH COMORBID DISEASES	24
Zhdan V. M., Lebid' V. G.	24
OCCUPATION AND SMOKING PREVALENCE AMONG PARENTS WHOSE CHILDRE	EN
HAVE DISEASES OF URINARY SYSTEM	26
Ivanova A.A., Sorokina I.V., Myroshnychenko M.S., Omelchenko O.A	26
HORMONAL BACKGROUND IN WOMEN WITH INFERTILITY AND PSYCHOSOMAT	IC
DISORDERS	28
Kaminsky A.V	28
PSYCHO-HYGIENIC SIGNIFICANCE OF PERSONALITY TRAITS OF ADOLESCEN	ΓS
WITH VISION DISORDERS	29
Korobchansky V.O., Sasina O.S.	29
CHARACTERISTICS OF CLINICAL COURSE OF EXTERNAL GENITA	4L
ENDOMETRIOSIS IN PATIENTS WITH HYPOTHYROIDISM	30
Lysenko B. M., Habrat B. V., Litvak Ye. O.	30
STUDY OF QUALITY OF LIFE IN PATIENTS WITH ACUTE MYELOID LEUKAEM	IA
DURING INDUCTION ANTHRACYCLINE-BASED CHEMOTHERAPY	32
Lymanets T.V	32
DOPPLER ASSESSMENT OF UTERINE BLOOD FLOW IN WOMEN WITH THE THREA	\ Τ
OF PREGNANCY LOSS IN THE SECOND TRIMESTER	33
Magerramov N. S., Shamhalova I. A.	33
EFFECTS PRODUCED BY BETARGIN AND QUERCETIN THERAPY COMPLEX O)N
CLINICAL COURSE, CHRONIC SYSTEMIC INFLAMMATION AND ENDOTHELIA	٩L
DYSFUNCTION IN PATIENTS WITH STABLE CORONARY HEART DISEASE AN	١D
CONCOMITANT NON-ALCOHOLIC FATTY LIVER DISEASE	35
Manusha Yu.I	35
MECHANISM OF DEVELOPMENT of inner ear EXTERNAL CILLIARY CELL dysfunction	on
AND its correlation with AUTOIMMUNE TYROIDItIS	37
Naumenko A.N., Deeva Yu.V., Tarasenko M.V.	37
SONOGRAPHIC ASSESSMENT OF WOMEN WITH RETROCHORIAL HEMATOMA	IN
THE FIRST TRIMESTER OF PREGNANCY	38
Orujeva P. F., Shamhalova I. A	38
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COURSE OF CEREBRO-CRANIAL INJURY IN CHILDRE	EN
WITH CONNECTIVE TISSUE DYSPLASIA	40
Petrenko V. N	40

PECULIARITIES OF COLORECTAL PHENOTYPE OF CARCINOMA OF UNKNOWN
PRIMARY ORIGIN
Poslavska O. V., Shponka I. S., Hrytsenko P. O41
ANTI-HELICOBACTER PYLORI THERAPY OPTIMIZATION IN PATIENTS WITH
CHRONIC GASTRITIS AND CONCOMITANT DIABETES MELLITUS TYPE 2
Radionova T.O
PECULIARITIES OF THE EXPRESSION OF ESTROGEN AND PROGESTERONE
RECEPTORS IN OVARIAN TUMOUR
Savchenko O.A., Shponka I.S., Savchenko P.V
CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND COURSE OF THE FIRST TRIMESTER OF
GESTATION IN WOMEN WITH POLYCYSTIC OVARY SYNDROME AND METABOLIC
DISORDERS OR WITHOUT THEM
Suleymanova N. M
COMPARATIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF THE NATURE AND FREQUENCY OF
INTRAOPERATIVE, EARLY AND LATE POSTOPERATIVE COMPLICATIONS AFTER
APPLYING VARIOUS TECHNIQUES OF CATARACT SURGICAL TREATMENT
Steblovska I. S., Bezkorovaina I.M
PECULIARITIES IN MANAGING ELDERLY FEMALE PATIENTS WITH
OSTEOARTHRITIS AND COMORBIDITIES
Lebid' V. G., Haimenova G. S
THE EFFICIENCY OF L-CARNITINE AND MELDONIUM DIHYDRATE IN THE
THERAPY OF NON-ALCOHOLIC STEATOHEPATITIS AND COMORBID OBESITY AND
CORONARY HEART DISEASE
Khukhlina O. S., Kuzminska O. B., Antoniv A. A., Kotsiubiichuk Z.Ya., Mandryk O.Ye 50
INVESTIGATION OF RISK FACTORS AND CRITERIA OF ALGORITHM PREDICTING
PSORIASIS AT THE STAGE OF PRIMARY MEDICAL CARE
Cherkashina L.V
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN HEALTH STATUS OF PRIMARY-SCHOOL CHILDREN OF
THE POLTAVA REGION
Chetverikova O.P
IMPROVEMENT IN THE MANAGEMENT OF PATIENTS WITH NON-ALCOHOLIC
STEATOHEPATITIS AND ATHEROGENIC DYSLIPIDEMIA
Shcherbak O.V
CHANGES IN BLOOD PLASMA ELECTROLYTE CONTENT IN PATIENTS WITH
GASTROESOPHAGEAL REFLUX DISEASE
Y akhnitska M.M
CONSIDERATION OF THE SERIES OF MORPHOFUNCTIONAL VALUES IN FEMALE
ATHLETES OF YOUNG AGE, ENGAGED BY LIGHT ATHLETICS
Bugaevsky K.A., Bila A.A., Dovgan' A.V., Petrenko O.V., Abramov K.V.
PECULIARITIES OF CYTOCHEMICAL STATUS OF BLOOD LYMPHOCYTES IN
ISCHEMIA-KEPERFUSION LIVER INJURY
Garayev G. Sn., Shanmamedova S. U
PLAINING OF ABDUMINUPLASTY IS FRUM THE PUINT OF VIEW OF

BIOMECHANICS AND MORPHOLOGICAL DESCRIPTIONS TISSUES OF FRONT
ABDOMINAL WALL
Drabovskiy V.S
INFLUENCE OF AP-1 TRANSCRIPTION FACTOR INHIBITOR ON FREE-RADICAL
OXIDATION AND ANTIOXIDANT PROTECTION IN PERIODONTAL TISSUES OF RATS
EXPOSED TO SYSTEMIC ADMINISTRATION OF SALMONELLA TYPHI
LIPOPOLISACCHARIDE
Yelins'ka A.M., Kostenko V.O61
OBESITY: ANALYSIS OF LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH AND CONCOMITANT
PATHOLOGIES BASED ON AUTOPSY CASE PROTOCOL
Mazur O., Kuzyk Yu 62
STUDY OF MACRO- AND MICROELEMENT COMPOSITION OF SKELETAL MUSCLES
OF THE RATS WITH CHRONIC HYPERGLYCEMIA
Rtail R., Tkach G64
STATUS OF FREE-RADICAL PROCESSES AND ANTIOXIDANT PROTECTION SYSTEM
OF THE PARODONTIUM CONNECTIVE TISSUE IN RABBITS WITH HYDROCORTISONE
PERIODONTITIS
Cheremysna V.F., Jemela O.D., Gychenko G.P
ANGIOGENESIS IN HIGH GRADE DIFFUSE ASTROCYTIC TUMORS
Chertenko T
MELATONIN IMPROVES MITOCHONDRIAL FUNCTION AND DECREASES
OXIDATIVE STRESS IN GUMS OF DIABETIC RATS
Yaremii I.M., Kushnir O.Yu., Khlus K.M
CONSERVATIVE TREATMENT OF PULPITIS BY USING CITRATE BUFFER
Bublij T.D., Kostyrenko O.P. Kotelevskaya N.V, Moshel T.N
CHARACTERISTICS OF GUM SHAPERS
Zaporozhchenko IV, Toncheva KD, Kasyanova VG, Korol DM74
ELECTROMYOGRAPHIC RESEARCH OF CHEWING MUSCLES FUNCTIONING IN
DYSFUNCTIONAL DISORDERS OF TEMPOROMANDIBULAR JOINT
Kostiuk T.M75
CHARACTERISTICS OF MORPHOLOGICAL STRUCTURE OF SCAR TISSUE AFTER
SURGICAL TREATMENT OF NECK CYSTS OF EMBRYOLOGICAL ORIGIN AT 6TH, 9TH
AND 12TH MONTHS OF POSTOPERATIVE PERIOD
Krinichko L.R
EFFICIENCY OF INTEGRATION TREATMENT OF GENERALIZED CATARRHAL
GINGIVITIS IN ADOLESCENTS WITH CHRONIC GASTRODUODENITIS
Lisetska I.S., Rozhko M.M
EFFECTIVENESS OF INITIAL CARIES TREATMENT USING OZONE AND ENAMEL-
HARDENING GEL 'TOOTH MOUSSE'
Oliynyk R.P., Rozhko M. M
BIOPHYSICAL ASPECTS OF DETERMINING THE TRANSMITTANCE OF SOLID
TISSUES AND THE SURFACE TENSION OF BIOPHYSICAL ASPECTS IN DETERMINING
TRANSMITTANCE COEFFICIENT OF HARD TISSUES AND SURFACE TENSION OF

ANTISEPTIC SOLUTIONS IN DENTAL ROOT CANAL SYSTEM	80
Sidash Yu. V	80
INVESTIGATION OF BIOFILM-FORMING AND ADHESIVE PROPERTIES OF CLINIC	CAL
STRAINS KOCURIA SPP	81
Faustova M.O.	81
CLINICAL EFFICACY OF TREATMENT OF INFLAMMATORY AND DYSTROP	HIC
DISEASES OF PERIODONTITIS OF WOMEN WITH BACTERIAL VAGINOSIS IN 7	ГНЕ
NEAREST TERMS OF OBSERVATION	82
Shulzhenko A.D.	82
ІНТЕГРАТИВНІ МЕХАНІЗМИ ПАТОЛОГІЧНИХ ПРОЦЕСІВ:	ΒΙД
ЕКСПЕРИМЕНТАЛЬНИХ ДОСЛІДЖЕНЬ ДО КЛІНІЧНОЇ ПРАКТИКИ	83
PATHOPHYSIOLOGICAL COMPARISON OF BLEEDING IN OBSTETRIC A	AND
SURGICAL PRACTICE	83
Vastyanov R. S., Savitsky I. V., Rusnak S. V., Ostapenko I.O., Nagovitsin O.P	84
INFLUENCE OF EXOGENOUS MELATONIN ON ACUTE KIDNEY INJURY INDU	CED
BY ACETAMINOPHEN	85
Dudka Ye. A., Shchudrova T. S., Petriuk A. Ye., Zamorskii I. I	85
MORPHOLOGICAL CHANGES IN SKIN OF GUINEA PIGS IN ERYTHEMATIC PER	IOD
AFTER THE EXPOSURE TO LOCAL UV-IRRADIATION IN APPLYING OINTM	ENT
CONTAINING THIOTRIAZOLINE AND SILVER NANOPARTICLES	86
Zvyagintseva T.V., Myronchenko S.I., Naumova O.V	86
CORRECTION OF PROXIMAL NEPHRON DAMAGE DURING IRRITABLE BOV	NEL
SYNDROME	88
Rohovyi Yu. Ye., Bilooka Yu. V., Bilookiy V. V	88
TRANSFORMATION OF THE MENTAL HEALTH CARE SYSTEM	90
Makarenko O.M., Flaherti M., Demydchuk A.S.,	90
THE APPROACHES TO IMPROVE PRACTICAL SKILLS AT THE DEPARTMENT	OF
OBSTETRICS AND GYNAECOLOGY	92
Pakharenko L.V	92
STUDENTS' SCIENTIFIC SOCIETY IN FOSTERING AND SECURING HUM	1AN
RESOURCES IN MEDICAL UNIVERSITY	93
Petryniv V. B	93
SCIENTIFIC APPROACHES TO STRUCTURING THE CONTENT OF EDUCATION	NAL
MATERIAL FOR MEDICINE DISCIPLINES	93
Tovstiak M. M., Holovanova I. A.	94
ОГЛЯДИ ЛІТЕРАТУРИ	95
MODERN VIEWS ON IDENTIFYING PRESCRIPTION OF DEATH COMING	IN
PRACTICE OF FORENSIC MEDICINE (LITERATURE REVIEW)	95
Bachinsky V.T., Vanchulyak O.Ya., Sarkisova Yu.V., Kolacheva A.Yu	95
EVALUATION OF TECHNIQUES AND CONTEMPORARY STATE OF SURGI	CAL
TREATMENT OF CHRONIC DACRYOCYSTITIS	97
Bezega N.M., Ryadnova V.V.	97
EPIDEMIOLOGICAL AND AETIOLOGICAL FACTORS OF FOOD ALLERGIES	101

Bubyr L. M
TREATMENT OF CHRONIC PERIODONTITIS IN CASE OF ACQUIRED WIDE-OPEN
ROOT APEX (LITERATURE REVIEW)
Han I.V
ETIOLOGICAL AND PATHOGENETIC ASPECTS OF INTRAUTERINE GROWTH
RETARDATION
Gromova A. M., Berezhna V. A 10
IMPAIRMENT OF REPRODUCTIVE FUNCTION IN BENIGN UTERINE PATHOLOGIE
Huseynova Z. S
OBESITY AS A COMORBID STATE UNDER PSORIASIS
Yemchenko Ya11
PATHOGENETIC FEATURES OF ENDOTHELIAL DYSFUNCTION UNDER
HEMOSTASIS IMBALANCE
Kotiuzhynska S. G., Umanskiy D.O., Pogulych Yu. V., Lyhodid O. M11
SOME ASPECTS OF THYROID IMPACT ON THE BODY STATE IN NORMAL ANI
PATHOLOGY CONDITIONS
Ryabukha O.I
THE ROLE OF CELL CYCLE REGULATORY GENES IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF
STOMACH CANCER
Chernobay A. V., Chernobay M. A 12
TYPES OF DYSFUNCTIONAL CONDITIONS OF TEMPOROMANDIBULAR JOINT BY
ETIOLOGY AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THEIR PATHOGENESIS
Yatsenko P.I
ПОГЛЯД НА ПРОБЛЕМУ
SOME ASPECTS OF TITANIUM APPLICATION IN DENTAL TREATMENT 13
Bachanek Teresa, Zimenkovsky Andrzej, Szybinsky Volodimir, Pitura Karolina, Hendze
Barbara, Wolańska Ewa, Samborski Dariusz, Borowicz Janusz, Tymczyna-Borowicz Barbara 137
КЛІНІЧНИИ ВИПАДОК 13'
HEART VALVE ABNORMALITIES IN NOONAN SYNDROME: LITERARY REVIEW
AND CASE STUDY
Zhdan V.M., Katerenchuk O.I
TYPE BI THYMOMA ASSOCIATED WITH MYASTHENIA: A CASE REPORT
Filenko B.N., Starchenko I.I., Roiko N.V., Cherniak V.V., Novoseltseva T.V

INCIDENCE STUDY OF GASTROINTESTINAL DISEASES IN STUDENTS AND GUIDELINES FOR THEIR PREVENTION

Adamovych I.V., Vovk K.V., Litvin O.I., Nikolenko E.Ya., Bakumenko M.G., Dergachova A.V.

Key words: incidence rate, students, gastrointestinal diseases, prevention, balanced nutrition.

This article deals with the issue on the susceptibility of the student population to gastrointestinal diseases. The incidence and prevalence rates of gastrointestinal diseases were investigated in students studying at Kharkiv higher educational institutions and based on the data provided by the Kharkiv Municipal Student Hospital for 2016-2017. We carried out a comparative analysis of values showing incidence and prevalence of this pathology between the students and the general population over 18 based on the data given by the Kharkiv Municipal Clinic № 26 for the same period. Nutritional guidelines for balanced diet were elaborated for students with reference to this analysis. The authors paid special attention to the necessity of introducing preventive measures into practice in order to combat the negative trends in growing prevalence of these diseases among students. High incidence of gastrointestinal pathology in this group of population can be explained by students' indifference to their health, their unwilling to adhere to the day regimen and healthy diet. It has been noticed that students often consume food containing a large amount of fats and easily digestible carbohydrates, salt; many of them do not eat enough fruit, vegetables and whole grains as major sources of nutritional fibres. A lot of students combine their education with work, and, unfortunately it is often a night work. Consequently, many students do not adhere to the wellbalanced meals, and their usual snacks are coffee and bakery products. It should be pointed out that the diseases of the gastrointestinal tract contribute much in deteriorating the quality of human life, thus preventing the occurrence of this pathology hinders the decline in life quality. Preventive measures are very important in controlling these diseases among young people. Compliance with the dietary patterns and balanced nutrition are among the important factors for primary and secondary prevention of gastrointestinal diseases on which we can have an impact. Strategic directions in solving this problem should be based on large-scale population education through lectures on rational nutrition and healthy dietary habits to foster awareness and personal responsibility for the health and wellbeing.

References

1. Galiakberova AR. Faktory riska, klinicheskie osobennosti i puti profilaktiki zabolevaniy organov pischevareniya u lits prizyvnogo vozrasta [Risk factors, clinical features and ways of preventing diseases of the digestive system in persons of conscript age] [extended abstract of dissertation]. Chelyabinsk, Bashkir State Medical University; 2009. 22 p. [Russian].

2. Wirth H-P, Yang M. Different Pathophysiology of Gastritis in East and West? A Western Perspective. Inflamm Intest Dis. 2016; 1(3):113-22. doi:10.1159/000446300.

3. Tsugane S. Salt, salted food intake, and risk of gastric cancer: epidemiologic evidence. Cancer Sci. 2005; 96(1):1-6. doi: 10.1111/j.1349-7006.2005.00006.x.

4. Wang XQ, Paul D Terry, Hong Yan. Review of salt consumption and stomach cancer risk: Epidemiological and biological evidence. World J Gastroenterol. 2009; 15 (18):2204-13. doi: 10.3748/wjg.15.2204.

5. Correa P, Schmidt BA. The relationship between gastric cancer frequency and the ratio of gastric to duodenal ulcer. Alimentary Pharmacology & Therapeutics. 1995; 9 (suppl 2):13-9.

6. Kato I, Vivas J, Plummer M, Lopez G, Peraza S, Castro D, et al. Environmental factors in Helicobacter pylori-related gastric precancerous lesions in Venezuela. Cancer Epidemiol Biomarkers Prev. 2004; 13:468-76.

7. Joossens JV, Hill MJ, Elliott P, Stamler R, Lesaffre E, Dyer A, et al. Dietary salt, nitrate and stomach cancer mortality in 24 countries. Int J Epidemiol. 1996; 25:494-504.

8. Freedman ND, Subar AF, Hollenbeck AR, Leitzmann MF, Schatzkin A, Abnet CC. Fruit

and vegetable intake and gastric cancer in a large United States prospective cohort study. Cancer Causes Control. 2008 Jun;19(5):459-67. doi: 10.1007/s10552-007-9107-4.

9. Bradbury KE, Appleby PN, Key TJ. Fruit, vegetables, and fiber intake in relation to cancer risk: findings from the European Prospective Investigation into Cancer and Nutrition (EPIC). Am J Clin Nutr. 2014 Jul;100:394S-8S. doi: 10.3945/ajcn.113.071357.

10. Tsugane S, Kabuto M, Imai H, Gey F, Tei Y, Hanaoka T, et al. Helicobacter pylori, dietary factors, and atrophic gastritis in five Japanese populations with different cancer mortality. Cancer Causes Control. 1993 Jul;4:297-305.

11. Moyer CA, Fendrick A.M. Measuring Health-Related Quality of Life in Patients with Upper Gastrointestinal Disease. Dig Dis. 1998 Sep-Oct;16(5):315-24.

12. Peery AF, Crockett SD, Barritt AS, Dellon ES, Eluri S, Gangarosa LM, et al. Burden of Gastrointestinal, Liver, and Pancreatic Diseases in the United States. Gastroenterology. 2015 Dec;149(7):1731-41. doi: 10.1053/j.gastro.2015.08.045.

13. Wang XQ, Terry PD, Yan H. Review of salt consumption and stomach cancer risk: epidemiological and biological evidence. World J Gastroenterol. 2009 May;15(18):2204-13. doi: 10.3748/wjg.15.2204.

14. Yacavone RF, Locke 3rd GR, Provenzale DT, Eisen GM. Quality of life measurement in gastroenterology: what is available? Am J Gastroenterol. 2001 Feb;96(2):285-97.

15. Belyaeva YN. Rol' terapii psykhosomaticheskogo syndroma v kompleksnom lechenii boleznei organov pyshchevareniya [Influence of psychosomatic syndrome in complex treatment of gastro-intestinal tract diseases]. Poliklinika . 2014;5:36-9. (Russian).

16. Talley NJ. Dyspepsia: management guidelines for the millennium. Gut. 2002 May;50(Suppl 4):iv72–iv78. doi: 10.1136/gut.50.suppl_4.iv72.

17. Kharchenko NV. Obzor aktualnykh voprosov gastroenterologii v 2014 gody [Review of topical issues of gastroenterology in 2014]. Medychna gazeta «Zdorovia Ukrainy». 2015;2(351):11. (Ukrainian).

18. Chesnokova MG, Blynova EG. Vuyavlenie kyshechnogo dysbioza u studentov vuzov s boleznymi organov pyshchevareniya [Identification of intestinal dysbiosis in university students with diseases of the digestive system]. Fundamentalnye issledovaniya. 2012;2:163-65. (Russian).

19. Healthy diet. World Health Organization. Fact sheets, 2015 [Internet]. Available from: http://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/healthy-diet.

IMMEDIATE RESULTS OF X-RAY ENDOVASCULAR INTERVENTIONS IN PATIENTS WITH ACUTE MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION

Aksenov E.V., Gumenyuk B.M.

Key words: bypath, coronary arteries, acute myocardial infarction.

This paper describes the study aimed at presenting the immediate angiographic results in patients with acute myocardial infarction (AMI). The survey included 626 patients with AMI who underwent diagnostic and therapeutic interventional procedures for this pathology on the basis of the Angiographic Department of the N. Amosov National Institute of Cardiovascular Surgery, National Academy of Medical Sciences of Ukraine. The average age of the patients was $66,96\pm1,81$ years, average body weight was $86,5\pm1,44$ kg. The area of left ventricular myocardial damage in calculating the QRS-index made up $20,4\pm1,2\%$. On admission, 438 pa-tients (69,97%) had a second functional class of heart failure by T. Killip. 332 patients underwent initial bal-loon angioplasty in early MI, and 294 patients underwent stenting of the infarction-related coronary artery (CA) with a simultaneous stent implantation. The result obtained have demonstrated that the CA atheroscle-rotic lesions caused the development of AMI are most often detected in the anterior interventricular branch (49% of cases) and in the right CA (28,2% of cases). At the same time, 74,1\% of stenoses

are classified as a type "C", including occlusions (53,6%). The immediate (technical) angiographic success of balloon angio-plasty of the infarction associated CA was registered in 90,4% of cases. Favourable angiographic outcomes by stenting were achieved in 96,6% of cases. At the same time, the procedural success in view of repeated interventions was achieved in 91,5%, and good clinical results were found out in 86,7% of patients. The largest average degree of residual constriction was noted after the angiographic bypath in stenoses of type "C", and the smallest one was observed in cases of type "B" lesions.

References

1. Go AS, Mozaffarian D, Roger VL, Benjamin EJ, Berry JD, Borden WB, Bravata DM, et al. Executive summary: heart disease and stroke statistics – 2013 update: a report from the American Heart Association. Circulation. 2013;127(1):143-52.

2. Gandzyuk VA. Analiz zakhvoryuvanosti na ishemichnu khvorobu sertsya v Ukrayini [Analysis of the incidence of coronary heart disease in Ukraine]. Ukrayinskyy kardiologichnyy zhurnal. 2014;3:45-52. [Ukrainian]

3. Kovalenko VM, Kornatskyy VM. Regionalni medyko-sotsialni problemy khvorob systemy krovoobigu. Dynamika ta analiz [Re-gional medical and social problems of circulatory system diseases. Dynamics and analysis]. Kyiv: MOZ Ukrayiny, DU «UISD MOZ Ukrayiny»; 2013. 239 s. [Ukrainian]

4. Shchorichna dopovid pro stan zdorov'ya naselennya, sanitarno-epidemichnu sytuatsiyu ta rezultaty diyalnosti systemy okhorony zdorov'ya Ukrayiny. 2014 rik [Annual report on the health status of the population, the sanitary and epidemiological situation and the results of the health care system of Ukraine. 2014 year]. Ed by Kvitashvili OM. K: MOZ Ukrayiny, DU «UISD MOZ Ukrayiny»; 2013. 460 p. [Ukrainian]

5. Roger VL, Go AS, Lloyd-Jones DM, et al. Heart disease and stroke statistics - 2011 update: A report from the American Heart Association. Circulation. 2011;123(4):18-209.

6. Patel VG, Michael TT, Mogabgab O, Fuh E, Banerjee A, Brayton KM, et al. Clinical, angiographic, and procedural predictors of periprocedural complications during chronic total occlusion percutaneous coronary intervention. J Invasive Cardiol. 2014;26(3):100-5.

PATHOGENETIC FEATURES OF THE COURSE OF NON-ALCOHOLIC STEATOHEPATITIS WITH COMORBIDITIES OF OBESITY AND CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE

Antoniv A. A.

Key words: non-alcoholic steatohepatitis, chronic kidney disease, pathogenesis, bacterial endotoxin.

The purpose of this study was to determine the pathogenetic role of the bacterial endotoxin content in the blood on the hepatocyte damage markers, the severity of steatosis and liver fibrosis in patients with non-alcoholic steatohepatitis and comorbid obesity, depending on the form and stage of chronic kidney disease, and its progression. Materials and methods. 170 patients with non-alcoholic steatohepatitis aged 40-55 years were examined. All patients were distributed as follows: group 1 included 70 patients with non-alcoholic steatohepatitis and concomitant obesity of the 1st degree; group 2 involved 100 patients with non-alcoholic steatohepatitis, obesity of the 1st degree and comorbid chronic kidney disease of I-II st. (chronic pyelonephritis). We examined 30 healthy persons (HPs), who by their age and sex were not significantly different from the main group and the comparison group. The article provides the theoretical generalization of the features of the microbial status of the colon content (MSCC) during the course of non-alcoholic steatohepatitis and comorbidities of obesity and chronic kidney disease of the I-III stages that is characterized by the

development of marked dysbiosis (II-III st.) manifested with the occurrence and growing prevalence of pathogenic microflora, an increase in the number of opportunistic bacteria and yeasts of the genus Candida, a probable deficiency of representatives of normal microbiota as lactobacilli, bifidobacteria, bacteroids. Conclusion. The study has demonstrated the blood bacterial endotoxin content is of a high predictive clinical value as a marker showing the progression of non-alcoholic steatohepatitis against the background of chronic kidney disease and obesity with a growth above 0.23 EO / ml (sensitivity makes up 87.1%, specificity makes up 91.6%).

References

1. Babanyn AA, Zakharova AN, Tovazhnjanskaja EL, y dr. Byokhymycheskye markery oksydantnogho stressa pry endotoksynovom porazhenyy pecheny [Biochemical markers of oxidative stress at the endotoxic defeat of liver]. Eksperymentaljna i klinichna medycyna. 2012; 1(54):44-7. [Russian]

2. Katerenchuk IP, Jarmola TI. Korekcija kyshkovogho dysbiozu jak skladova antyghomotoksychnoji terapiji u kompleksnomu likuvanni khvorykh na khronichnu khvorobu nyrok – pijelonefryt [A correction of intestinal dysbiosis as constituent of antygomotoxical therapy is in the holiatry of patients with chronic illness of buds - pyelonephri-tis] Ukr terapevtychnyj zhurnal. 2007; 3:81-5. [Ukrainian]

3. Kolesnyk MO, Gholubchykov MV, Sajdakova NO, ta in. Klasyfikacija khvorob sechovoji systemy ta vedennja reghionaljnykh ta nacionaljnogho rejestriv khvorykh z khronichnoju khvoroboju nyrok [Classification of illnesses of the urinary system and conduct of regional and national registers sick with chronic illness of kidneys]: Metod rekomendaciji MOZ Ukrajiny, AMN Ukrajiny, Ukr Centr naukovoji med. informaciji i patentno-licenzijnoji roboty. Kyiv. 2006. 24 s. [Ukrainian]

4. Lazebnyk LB, Zvenyghorodskaja LA, Nylova TV, Cherkashova EA. Rolj metabolytov kyshechnoj mykroflorы v dyaghnostyke nealkogholjnoj zhyrovoj bolezny pecheny [A role of метаболитов of intestinal microflora is in diagnostics of unalcoholic fatty illness of liver]. Experyment y klyn ghastroэnterologhyja. 2012; 11:124-32. [Russian]

5. Rymarenko NV. Riven endotoksynu kyshkovogho pokhodzhennja v syrovatci krovi u VILinfikovanykh ditej z bakterialjnymy anghinamy i kandydoznym urazhennjam rotoghlotky [Level of endotoxin of intestinal origin in the serum of blood for the HIV- infected children with bacterial quinsies and candida defeat of guttur]. Tavrycheskyj medyko-byologhycheskyj vestnyk. 2009; 12(1(45)):92-5. [Ukrainian]

6. Tytov VN, Dughyn SF. Syndrom translokacyy, lypopolysakharydy bakteryj, narushenye byologhycheskykh reakcyj vospalenyja y arteryaljnogho davlenyja [Syndrome of translocation, lipopolysaccharides of bacteria, violation of biological reactions of inflammation and arteriotony]. Klyn labor dyaghnostyka. 2010; 4:21-37. [Russian]

7. Fadeenko GD, Boghun LV. Dysbyoz kyshechnyka v praktyke vracha-ynternysta [Dysbiosis of bowels in practice of doctor- internist]. Suchasna ghastroenterologhija. 2013; 1(69):89-96. [Russian]

8. Khomjak IV, Rotar OV, Petrovsjkyj GG, ta in. Endotoksynova aghresija pry syndromi enteraljnoji nedostatnosti u khvorykh na ghostryj nekrotychnyj pankreatyt [Endotoxic aggression at the syndrome of enteral insufficiency for patients with a sharp necrotizing pancreatitis.]. Khirurghija Ukrajiny. 2016; 2:51-5. [Ukrainian]

9. Khukhlina OS, Kornijchuk IJu, Mandryk OJe. Nealkogholjna zhyrova khvoroba pechinky, metabolichnyj syndrom i syndrom nadmirnogho bakterialjnogho rostu: klinichni osoblyvosti perebighu, patoghenetychni mekhanizmy vzajemoobtjazhennja ta pidkhody do likuvannja [Unalcoholic fatty illness of liver, metabolic syndrome and syndrome of excessive bacterial height : clinical features of motion, nosotropic mechanisms of mutual burden and going near treatment]: Monoghrafija. Chernivci, 2013. 245 s. [Ukrainian]

10. Bakker GJ, Zhao J, Herrema H, Nieuwdorp M. Gut microbiota and energy expenditure in

health and obesity. J Clin Gastroenterol. 2015; 49 (Suppl 1): S13-9.

11. Caitriona M, Guinane CM, Cotter PD. Role of the gut microbiota in health and chronic gastrointestinal disease: understanding a hidden metabolic organ. Ther Adv Gastroenterol. 2013; 6:295–308.

12. Chassaing B, Gewirtz AT. Has provoking microbiota aggression driven the obesity epidemic? BioEssays. 2016; 38:122–8.

13. Dorofeyev A, Koliada A, Syzenko G, et al. Association between body mass index and Firmicutes/Bacteroidetes ratio in an adult Ukrainian population. BMC Microbiology. 2017; 17(120):1-6.

14. Festi D, Schiumerini R, Eusebi LH, Marasco G, Taddia M, Colecchia A. Gut microbiota and metabolic syndrome. World J Gastroenterol. 2014; 20:16079–94.

15. Gérard P. Gut microbiota and obesity. Cell Mol. Life Sci. 2016; 73:147–62.

16. Kwo PY, Cohen MS, Lim JK. ACG Practice Guideline: Evaluation of Abnormal Liver Chemistries. Am. J. Gastroenterol advance online publication. 2016. 20 Dec:1-18. 10.1038/ajg.2016.51.

17. Million M, Angelakis E, Maraninchi M, et al. Correlation between body mass index and gut concentrations of Lactobacillus reuteri, Bifidobacterium animalis, Methanobrevibacter smithii and Escherichia coli. Int J Obes. 2013; 37:1460–6.

18. Tang R, Wei Y, Li Y, et al. Gut microbial profile is altered in primary biliary cholangitis and partially restored after UDCA therapy. Gut. 2018; 67(3):534–41.

19. Vernon G, Baranova A, Younossi ZM. Systematic review: the epidemiology and natural history of non-alcoholic fatty liver disease and non-alcoholic steatohepatitis in adults. Aliment Pharmacol Ther. 2011; 34:274–85.

20. Webb M, Yeshua H, Zelber-Sagi S, et al. Diagnostic value of a computerized hepatorenal index for sonographic quantification of liver steatosis. Am J Roentgenol. 2009; 192(4):909–14.

ECHOGRAPHIC AND DOPPLER INDICATORS IN EVALUATING PREGNANCY COURSE IN WOMEN WITH THREATENED MISCARRIAGE IN EARLY TERMS

Akhundova G. I., Shamkhalova I. A.

Key words: pregnancy, I trimester, threatened miscarriage, ultrasonography, hematoma, Doppler. The aim of this study was to evaluate ultrasonographic parameters and systolic-diastolic ration in patients with threatened miscarriage in the early gestation period. Material and methods. The study included 104 pregnant women at the gestation period of 5-12 weeks. The main group included 84 pregnant women with the threat of early miscarriage; the control group covered 20 women with physiological pregnancy without signs of the threatened miscarriage. In the control group, the mean age was 25.24 ± 1.0 years, in the main group the mean age was 26.8 ± 1.07 years. During the investigation we applied clinical techniques, ultrasound and dopplerometric imaging techniques. Ultrasound (US) and Doppler scanning were carried out by the device "Aloka-1400" and "Aloka-1700" (Japan), operating in the mode of gray scale and real time scale with the help of a convex abdominal and vaginal sensors with a frequency of 3.5 and 5 MHz. Dopplerometry was used to assess the systolic-diastolic ratio (S/D) in both uterine arteries. Results. In the group of the patients with the threat of miscarriage, primigravidae made up 22.6%, secundigravidae made up 77.4%; respectively, in the control group there were 25.0% of primigravidae and 75.0% of secundigravidae. There were 30 (35,7%) primigravidae and in 9 (45%) secundigravidae in the control group. Preterm labour occurred in 11.9% of cases in the main and in 5.0% of cases in the control group. Reproductive losses manifested by early spontaneous miscarriages were observed to be significantly more frequent in the main group (p<0.01), and late spontaneous miscarriages were observed only in the main group in 14.3% of cases. Among gynaecological pathology, inflammatory diseases (endometritis, adnexitis) were significantly more frequent, and made up 38.1%. Ultrasound-detected hematomas of various localization were observed in 98.8% of cases, myometrium hypertonicity was registered in 57.1%, and the disruption of the corpus luteum was registered in 48.8% of cases. In 54.8% of cases all these three signs were found out. In 66.7% of pregnant women, the volume of intrauterine hematoma did not exceed 9 cm3. In the main group, chorion was more often detected in the area of external orifice of uterus (40.5%), while in the control group chorion was most often detected along the anterior wall (40.0%). In the main group of SDS in the right uterine artery compared with the control indicator was reduced by 27.0% (p<0.05), in the left uterine artery – by 23.7%. Conclusion. The first trimester (up to 12 weeks of gestation) US scan should be implemented into the pregnancy management as it enables to detect risks associated with possible miscarriages. Our findings clearly demonstrate the value of the US scan.

References

1. Sidelnikova VM, Sukhikh GT. Nevynashivanie beremennosti [Unmaturing of pregnancy]. Moskva; 2010. 534 s. [Russian]

2. Ivanov II, Cheripko MV, Mogilevskaya AA, i dr. Etiologicheskie aspekty reproduktivnykh poter [Etiologic aspects of reproductive losses]. Tavricheskiy mediko-biologicheskiy vestnik. 2013; 16(2/62):181-7. [Russian]

3. Apolikhina IA, Shneyderman MG, Teterina TA, Gorbunova EA. Prichiny nevynashivaniya beremennosti [Reasons of unmaturing of pregnancy]. Ginekologiya, 2013; 15(5):60–5. [Russian]

4. Radzinskiy VE, Orazmuratova AA. Rannie sroki beremennosti [Early terms of pregnancy]. Pod red. V.E. Radzinskogo. 2-e izd., ispr. i dop. Moskva: Status Praesens, 2009. 480 s. [Russian]

5. Sotiriadis A, Papatheodorou S, Kavvadias A, Makrydimas G. Transvaginal cervical length measurement for prediction of preterm birth in women with threatened preterm labor: a meta-analysis. Ultrasound Obstet Gynecol. 2010; 35:54–64. http:// doi: 10.1002/uog.7457

6. Sugiura-Ogasawara M, Ozaki Y, Suzumori N. Management of recurrent miscarriage. J Obstet Gynaecol Res. 2014; 40(5):1174–9. http://doi: 10.1111/jog.12388.

7. Sugiura-Ogasawara M, Suzuki S, Ozaki Y, Katano K, Suzumori N, Kitaori T. Frequency of recurrent spontaneous abortion and its influence on further marital relationship and illness: The Okazaki Cohort Study in Japan. J Obstet Gynaecol Res. 2012; 39(1):126–31. http://doi: 10.1111/j.1447-0756.2012.01973.x.

8. Jeve YB, Davies W. Evidence-based management of recurrent miscarriages. J Hum Reprod Sci. 2014; 7(3):159–69. http://doi:10.4103/0974-1208.142475

9. Dobrokhotova YuE, Zubarev AR, Zalesskaya SA, Zubareva EA, Saprykina LV, Demidova AK. Otsenka formiruyushchegosya matochno-platsentarnogo krovotoka u patsientok s ugrozov preryvaniya na fone defitsita progesterone v I trimester beremennosti [Estimation of the formed fallopian-platsentarian blood stream for patients with the threat of breaking on a background the deficit of progesteron in I trimester of pregnancy]. Akusherstvo i ginekologiya. 2016; 6:54-60. DOI:https://dx.doi.org/10.18565/aig. [Russian]

10. Volkov AE. Ultrazvukovaya diagnostika v akusherstve i ginekologii [Ultrasonic diagnostics is in obstetrics and gynaecology]: prakt. ruk-vo. Rostov n/D: Feniks, 2007. p. 34–35. [Russian]

11. Celen S, Dover N, Seckin B, Goker U, Yenicesu O, Danisman N. Utility of First Trimester Ultrasonography before 11 Weeks of Gestation: A Retrospective Study. ISRN Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2012; Article ID 308759: 6 pages. http://dx.doi.org/10.5402/2012/308759

12. Orlov VI, Botasheva TL, Kuzin VF, Orlov AV, Gilyanovskiy MYu, Zamanskaya TA. Kardiotokografiya i dopplerometriya v sovremennom akusherstve [Cardiotokography and dopplerography in modern obstetrics]. Rostov n/D: YuNTs RAN, 2007. 288 s. [Russian]

13. Benyuk VA, Maydannik IV, Ropotan AG. Dopplerometriya matochnykh arteriy kak sostavlyayushchaya perinatalnogo monitoringa beremennykh gruppy vysokogo riska [Dopplerometry of fallopian arteries as a constituent of the perinatal monitoring of pregnant of high high-risk group]. Perinatologiya i pediatriya. 2016; 2(66):86-8. [Russian] http://doi 10.15574/PP.2016.66.86

14. World Medical Association Declaration of Helsinki Ethical Principles for Medical Research Involving Human Subjects. JAMA. 2013; 310 (20):2191-4.

15. Aoki S, Inagaki M, Kurasawa K, Okuda M, et al. Retrospective study of pregnant women placed under expectant management for persistent hemorrhage. Arch Gynecol Obstet. 2014; 289:307-11. http:// doi: 10.1007/s00404-013-2972-z.

DYNAMIC CHANGES OF PLACENTAL HORMONES IN PREGNANT WOMEN WITH MODERATE AND SEVERE PREECLAMPSIA

Babayeva A. H., Rzakulieva L. M.

Key words: pregnant women, preeclampsia, severity, placental hormones, therapy.

The aim of the study was to provide a comparative assessment of the dynamic state of placental hor-mones in pregnant women with preeclampsia (PE) of varying severity. Material and methods. 76 pregnant women (mean age 27.7±2.6 years) were examined. Aged primiparas made up 44.7%, multiparas made up 55,3%. Depending on the severity of PE, the patients were divided into 2 groups: group I included 52.6% of pregnant women with moderate PE, group II included 47.4% of pregnant women with severe PE. The sever-ity of PE was evaluated by the Wittlinger scale. The content of hormones was evaluated starting from 33-35 weeks of gestation. Placental hormones estriol (est), progesterone (PG), placental lactogen (PL) and human chorionic gonadotropin (HCG) were evaluated in venous blood by ELISA. Results. In terms of gestational age of 33-35 weeks, there was a decrease in placental hormones lasted up to 38-40 weeks in both groups. Depending on the therapy received, each group was divided into 2 subgroups: a comparison subgroup that received conventional therapy and a main subgroup receiving conventional therapy supplemented with anti-oxidants. The inclusion of antioxidants enabled us to slow down the decrease in placental hormones in the blood, especially placental lactogen by 23.6%; in severe PE, chorionic gonadotropin decrease was slowed by 44.2% (p<0.05) and placental lactogen by 57.9% (p<0.01). Conclusion. Assessment the level of these hormones is of an important clinical significance in the early diagnosis of preeclampsia, and can also be an indicative of the severity of the disease.

References

1. Lykhachev VK. Gormonalnaya dyagnostyka v praktyke akushera-gynekologa: Rukovodstvo dlya vrachey [Hormonal diagnostics in the practice of an obstetrician-gynecologist: A guide for doctors]. Kyev; 2012. 166 s. [Russian]

2. Preeklampsyya [Preeclampsia]. Pod red GT Sukhykh, LE Murashko. M: GEOTAR-Medya; 2010. 576 s. [Russian]

3. Açıkgöz S, Bayar UO, Can M, Güven B, Mungan G, Doğan S, Sümbüloğlu V. Levels of oxidized LDL, estrogens, and progesterone in placenta tissues and serum paraoxonase activity in preeclampsia. Mediators Inflamm. 2013; 2013:862-982.

4. Berkane N, Liere P, Oudinet J-P, Hertig A, LefèvreNicola Pluchino G, Schumacher M, Chabbert-Buffet N. From Pregnancy to Preeclampsia: A Key Role for Estrogens. Endocrine Reviews. 2017; 38(2):123–44. https://doi.org/10.1210/er.2016-1065

5. Catarino C, Santos-Silva A, Belo L, Rocha-Pereira P, Rocha S, Patrício B, Quintanilha A, Rebelo I. Inflammatory disturbances in preeclampsia: relationship between maternal and umbilical cord blood. J Pregnancy. 2012; 2012:1–10.

6. Göhner C. Placental particles in pregnancy and preeclampsia: A comparative investigation of the function of syncytiotrophoblast microvesicles versus exosomes during pregnancy and preeclampsia. University of Groningen; 2016. 159 p.

7. Hansson SR, Nääv Å, Erlandsson L. Oxidative stress in preeclampsia and the role of free

fetal hemoglobin. Front Physiol. 2014; 5:516. doi: 10.3389/fphys.2014.00516

8. Jobe SO, Tyler CT, Magness RR. Aberrant synthesis, metabolism, and plasma accumulation of circulating estrogens and estrogen metabolites in preeclampsia implications for vascular dysfunction. Hypertension. 2013; 61(2):480–7. doi: 10.1161/HYPERTENSIONAHA.111.201624.

9. Keikkala E, Vuorela P, Laivuori H, Romppanen J, Heinonen S, Stenman UH. First trimester hyperglycosylated human chorionic gonadotrophin in serum - a marker of early-onset preeclampsia. Placenta. 2013; 34(11):1059-65.

10. Khan KS, Wojdyla D, Say L, Gülmezoglu AM, Van Look PFA. WHO analysis of causes of maternal death: a systematic review. Lancet. 2006; 367:1066–74. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(06)68397-9

11. Kumar P, Magon N. Hormones in pregnancy. Niger Med J. 2012; 53(4):179-83. doi: 10.4103/0300-1652.107549

12. Mueller JW, Gilligan LC, Idkowiak J, Arlt W, Foster PA. The regulation of steroid action by sulfation and desulfation. Endocr Rev. 2015; 36(5):526–63. doi: 10.1210/er.2015-1036.

13. Mujawar SA, Patill VW, Daver RG. Serum Human Chorionic Gonadotropin as a Biochemical Marker of Adverse Pregnancy Outcome in Severe Preeclampsia. American Journal of Biochemistry. 2018; 8(1):13-7. DOI: 10.5923/j.ajb.20180801.03

14. Ribeiro Salles AM, Freire Galvao T, Tolentino Silva M, Domingues Motta LC, Gomes Pereira M. Antioxidants for Preventing Preeclampsia: A Systematic Review. The Scientific World Journal. 2012, ID 243476, 10 pages http://dx.doi.org/10.1100/2012/243476

15. Yin G, Zhu X, Guo C, Yang Y, Han T, Chen L, Yin W, Gao P, et al. Differential expression of estradiol and estrogen receptor α in severe preeclamptic pregnancies compared with normal pregnancies. Mol Med Rep. 2013; 7(3):981–5. doi: 10.3892/mmr.2013.1262

ANALYSIS OF THE OCULAR LAYER RIGIDITY AND THE STATE OF EYE HYDRODYNAMICS IN MYOPIA

Bezkorovayna I.M., Nakonechnyi D.O.

Key words: myopia, sclera rigidity, elasto-tonography, myopia progression

Introduction. The issues on elasticity and rigidity of the outer eye layer and the diagnosis of the myopia progression based on the findings obtained by elasto-tonography are posing a great scientific and clinical interest. The aim of the study was to estimate the rigidity of the outer eye layer using the applanation elasto-tonography and to examine the effect of their changes on the myopia progression. Materials and methods. We examined 84 patients (168 eyes), aged 16 to 38 years. Among them, 138 eyes were with medium spherical equivalent (from -3,25D to -20,0D) and 30 eyes were with emmetropia (control group). All patients passed through the applanation elastotonography to obtain the findings on the rigidity of the outer eye lay-ers in myopia and to assess the myopia progression. Results. It has been found out that compared with the moderate and high degrees myopia, when comparing the survey with the parameters in the emmetropia group, there is an additional criterion to assess the myopia progression, and this is the analysis of the rigidity of the outer eye layer by the applanation elasto-tonography. This technique, in contrast with the previously used to the study the myopic eyes, allows us to investigate the elasticity of the scleral eye capsule more fully, since it can detect the accumulation of residual sclera deformations by fibrils after the compression and can reveal hidden rigidity disturbances. The shortening of the post-compression elastic rise by 1.5 mm indicates the myopia progression. There is a direct strong correlation between the magnitude of the post-compression elastic rise shortening and the magnitude of myopic refraction. Correlation coefficient equal to 0,97 is reliable with probability of error-free prediction p>99%. Conclusion. An additional diagnostic criterion to assess the myopia progression is the

analysis of the rigidity of the ocular layers by using elasto-tonography. The shortening of the postcompression elastic rise more than 1.5 mm in comparison to the previous results indicates the myopia progression because it characterizes the impairment in the rigidity of the eye layers (r = 0.97 - probability of error-free prediction p> 99%).

References

1. 1.Venher HE, Venher LV, Burdeiniy SY. Sovremennie vzglyadi na patohenez prohressyruiushchei myopyy i vozmozhnosty ie lecheniya [Modern inserts on the pathogenesis of progressive myopia and the possibility of its treatment]. Odessa. 2012. P.25-29 (Ukrainian)

2. 2.Koshyts YN Svetlova OV, Huseva MH. Adaptatsyonnaia myopyia. Chast 1. Yspolnytelnie mekhanizmi rosta optycheskoi osy hlaza v teoryy yzmenenyia retynalnoho defokusa [Adaptive myopia. Part 1. Executive mechanisms of growth of the optical axis of eyes in the theory of change of retinal defocus]. Oftalmolohichnyi zhurnal. 2016; 6 (473): 45–54.

3. Koshyts YN Svetlova OV. Mekhanizm formirovaniya adekvatnoi dlini hlaza v norme i metabolicheskaya teoriya patoheneza pryobretennoi myopyy [The mechanism of the formation of adequate eye length in the normal and metabolic theory of pathogenesis acquired myopia]. Oftalmolohichnyi zhurnal. 2011; 5: 4 - 23.

4. 4.Bezkorovaina I. M. Stan zorovykh funktsii u studentiv medychnoho vuzu [The state of visual functions in students of a medical university] Visnyk problem biolohii i medytsyny. 2013. 4 (1):108 – 110.

5. 5.Lybman ES, Vervelskaia VM, Rusakovych OA. Blyzorukost. Patohenez, profylaktyka prohressyrovanyia i oslozhnenyi [Pathogenesis, prophylaxis of progression and complications] Materyal mezhdunarodnoho sympozyuma . 1990. 225-227. (Russian)

6. Tao Y, Pan M, Liu S. cAMP level modulates scleral collagen remodeling, a critical step in the development of myopia. PLoS One. 2013. 8(8):e71441.

7. Kalfa S.F. Tonohrafyia, ee klynycheskoe znachenye i vozmozhnosty v svete teoryy i praktyky applanatsyonnoi tonometryy s elastotonometryy [Tonomography, its clinical significance and possibilities in light of the theory and practice of appendage tonometry and elastotometry]. Oftalmolohycheskyi zhurnal. 1962. 4: 195-200.

8. Clinical tonography [Internet] Avaliable from: https://zreni.ru/1868-klinicheskaya-tonografiya.html

9. 9.Kalfa SF, Pliushko DH, Radkovskaia A.Y. Klynycheskoe znachenye obyoma smeshchennoi krovi pry tonohrafyy [Clinical significance of displaced blood volume in tonography]. Oftalmolohycheskyi zhurnal. 1974. 2: 101-105.

10. Nesterov AP, Vurhaft MB. Kalybrovochnie tablytsi dlia elastonometra Fylatova–Kalfa [Gauge tables for the Filatov-Calf elastometer]. 1972. 2: 20-25.

INCIDENCE OF DISABILITY DUE TO OCCUPATIONAL DISEASES IN THE DNIPROPETROVSK REGION

Borisova I. S., Abramenkova N. O., Kontsur V. M.

Key words: occupational diseases, disability indicators, medical and social expertise.

The study aimed at analyzing the dynamic changes in disability incidence due to occupational diseases in the Dnipropetrovsk region for 2015-2017. A retrospective study of the dynamics of disability resulted from occupational diseases was based on the data provided by the municipal hospital "Regional Clinical Centre for Medical and Social Expertise of the Dnepropetrovsk Regional Council" for the period from 2015 to 2017. Medical and social cases and referrals to medical and social expertise (Form 088/y) of patients passed through the examination by doctors of

specialized occupational medical and social settings were studied. It has been shown that the number of people with disabilities resulting from occupational diseases is increasing in the Dnepropetrovsk region. The ways to overcome this unfavourable trend should be supported by governmental measures and aimed at improving regulatory and legal documents that will lead to consistency between various government institutions and monitoring the compliance of sanitary and hygienic conditions at hazardous industrial enterprises.

References

 1. Vsemyrnyy doklad ob ynvalydnosty, 2011. World Report on Disability. World Health Organization.
 Available
 from:

 http://apps.ukba.int/irig/bitatroom/10665/70670/7/WHO_NIMH_VIP_11_04_rus.ndfbug=1
 2011

http://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/10665/70670/7/WHO_NMH_VIP_11.04_rus.pdf?ua=1. 2011. [Russian]

2. Griban VG, Negodchenko OV. Okhorona pratsi [Labor protection]. Tsentr uchbovoï literaturi; 2011. 280 p. [Ukrainian]

3. Maleeva TM, Vasin SA, GolodetsOYu, Besfamil'naya SV. Ynvalydy v Rossyy: prychyny y dynamyka ynvalydnosty, protyvorechyya y perspektyvy sotsyalnoy polytyky. Byuro ekonomycheskogo analyza [Persons with disabilities in Russia: causes and dynamics of disability, contradictions and prospects of socialpolicy. Bureau of Economic Analysis]. M: ROSSPEN; 1999. 368 p. [Russian]

4. Nakaz MOZ Ukrainu 05.06.2012 № 420, zareestrovano v ministerstvi Yustucii Ukrainu 16.08.2012 p., № 1388/21700. Kryteriyi vstanovlennya stupenya stiykoyi vtraty profesiynoyi pratsezdatnosti u vidsotkakh pratsivnykam, yakym zapodiyano ushkodzhennya zdorov'ya, pov'yazane z vykonannyam trudovykh obov'yazkiv [Criteria for determining the degree of permanent loss of professional ability to work as a percentage of employees who suffered damage to health is associated with the performance of labor duties]. [Ukrainian]

5. Kundiev YuI, Nagorna AM. Profesiyna zakhvoryuvanist v Ukrayini u dynamitsi dovgostrokovogo sposterezhennya [Occupational morbidity in Ukraine in the dynamics of long-termo bservation]. Ukr zhurn z probl meditsinipratsi. 2005; 1: 3-11. [Ukrainian]

6. Naumenko LYu, ta in. Osnovy medyko-sotsialnoyi ekspertyzy i reabilitatsiyi khvorykh ta invalidiv [Fundamentals of medical and social examination and rehabilitation of patients and invalids]. Ch. I. Dnipropetrovsk; 2016. 327 p. [Ukrainian]

7. Ipatov AV, ta in. Osnovni pokaznyky invalidnosti ta diyalnosti medyko-sotsialnykh komisiy Ukrayiny za 2017 rik: analityko-informatsiynyy dovidnyk [Basic indicators of disability and activity of medical and social commissions of Ukraine for 2017: analytical and informational directory]. Ed by SI Chernyak. Dnipropetrovsk: Royal-Prynt; 2018. 167 c. [Ukrainian]

8. Mikhaylova YuV, Ivanova AE. Sotsyalno-ekonomycheskye aspekty ynvalydnosty [Socioeconomic aspects of disability]. M: Energoatomizdat. 1988. 427 p. [Russian],

LEVELS OF SERUM C-REACTIVE PROTEIN AND INTERLEUKIN-6 AS PREDICTORS OF ACUTE CORONARY SYNDROME SEVERITY

Veremchuk S. F., Marunyak S. P., Dzyuba D. A, Loskutov O. A.

Key words: ischemic heart disease, acute coronary syndrome, acute myocardial infarction, unstable angina, cardiogenic shock.

The work is devoted to the study of the role of C-reactive protein (CRP) and interleukin-6 (IL-6) as serum markers for assessing the plaque instability in patients with acute coronary syndrome (ACS) under endovas-cular coronary revascularization (CR). The study included 81 patients (18 patients in the control group (CG) without signs of coronary heart disease, 20 patients with stable angina (SA), 20 patients with unstable an-gina (UA), and 23 patients with acute myocardial

infarction (AMI)). The surveyed groups were comparable by sex, age, and type of conducted CR. The average age was 67.4 ± 4.2 years. Among them there were 57 men and 24 women. Concentrations of CRP and IL-6 were assessed after collecting all samples, and simultane-ously lipidograms, blood glucose and other concomitant indices were being performed. The obtained data showed that in the group of patients with AMI the level of CRP was higher than the similar values recorded in CG approximately by $85,59\pm3,9\%$, in the group of patients with SA the index studied was higher by $77,54\pm2,7\%$, and in the group of the patients with UA it was higher by $33.85\pm1.8\%$. At that, the value of IL-6 were higher than the relevant values recorded in the CG approximately by $74,9\pm2,4\%$; the value of IL-6 com-pared with the SA group was higher by $67,03\pm3,1\%$ and exceeded this index in patients with UA on average by $24,85\pm1,8\%$. We observed a direct correlation between the values of CRP and IL-6 in patients with AMI in the first day of their hospital staying. The results of the study have shown that serum levels of CRB and IL-6 can be used to assess the stability of the plaque and are relevant in the ACS development that confirms the significant value of these indicators in predicting ACS.

References

1. Ilashchuk TO, Tashchuk VK. Gostryy koronarnyy syndrom, uskladnenyy syndromom sertsevoyi nedostatnosti: predyktory nespryyatlyvykh podiy ta suchasni algorytmy likuvannya [Acute coronary syndrome, complicated by heart failure syndrome: predictors of adverse events and modern treatment algorithms]. Novosty medytsyny y farmatsyy. Kardyologyya. 2010; 314; 22-5. [Ukrainian]

2. Li JJ. Inflammation in coronary artery diseases. Chin Med J (Engl). 2011; 124(21): 3568-75.

3. Kashiwagi M, Tanaka A, Kitabata H, et al. Relationship between coronary arterial remodeling, fibrous cap thickness and high-sensitivity C-reactive protein levels in patients with acute coronary syndrome. Circ J. 2009; 73(7): 1291-5.

4. Nakachi T, Kosuge M, Hibi K, et al. C-reactive protein elevation and rapid angiographic progression of nonculprit lesion in patients with non-ST-segment elevation acute coronary syndrome. Circ J. 2008; 72(12): 1953-9.

5. Rus HG, Vlaicu R, Niculescu F. Interleukin-6 and interleukin-8 pro-tein and gene expression in human arterial atherosclerotic wall. Atherosclerosis. 1996; 127(2): 263-71.

6. De Gennaro L, Brunetti ND, Montrone D, et al. Subacute inflammatory activation in subjects with acute coronary syndrome and left ventricular dysfunction. Inflammation. 2012; 35(1): 363-70.

7. Mazzone A, De Servi S, Vezzoli M, et al. Plasma levels of interleukin 2, 6, 10 and phenotypic characterization of circulating T lymphocytes in ischemic heart disease. Atherosclerosis. 1999; 145(2): 369-74.

8. Verma S, Li SH, Badiwala MV, et al. Endothelin antagonism and interleukin-6 inhibition attenuate the proatherogenic effects of C-reactive protein. Circulation. 2002; 105(16): 1890-6.

9. Müller KA, Chatterjee M, Rath D, et al. Platelets, inflammation and anti-inflammatory effects of antiplatelet drugs in ACS and CAD. Thromb Haemost. 2015; 114(3): 498-518.

10. Ambrose JA, Singh M. Pathophysiology of coronary artery disease leading to acute coronary syndromes. F1000Prime Rep. 2015; 7: 1-5.

11. Aggarwal A, Schneider DJ, Terrien EF, et al. Increase in interleu-kin-6 in the first hour after coronary stenting: an early marker of the inflammatory response. J Thromb Thrombolysis. 2003; 15(1): 25-31.

CHARACTERISTCS OF THE COURSE OF PREGNANCY AND LABOR IN WOMEN WITH ENDOMETRIOSIS

Vorobii V. D.

Key words: endometriosis, pregnancy, labour, pathology.

Introduction. Genital endometriosis is a type of the gynaecological pathology, which often leads to com-plications during the gestational period and affects the state of the fates and newborn. The aim of this study was to analyze the characteristics of the course of pregnancy and labour in women with genital endometriosis. Materials and methods. The study was based on the analysis of the course of pregnancy and labour in 103 pregnant women with histories of genital endometriosis, which made up the basic group. 30 healthy pregnant women without this diagnosis made up the control group. Results. The average age of women in the control group was 28.57±0.76 years, and in the basic one this was 30.58±0.51 years. By studying the anamnesis of pregnant women with endometriosis, one can note the wide spread of other gynaecological diseases, among which the chronic inflammatory processes of the uterine appendages ($\gamma 2 = 11.22$, p<0.001) and infertility ($\chi 2=14.87$, p<0.001) prevailed. It is necessary to point out that there is a significantly increased percentage of operative procedures on reproductive organs in persons with endometriosis, as well as high rate of artificial and spontaneous abortions. The commonest complications that occur during the gestation in the basic group include the pathology of fetoplacental complex – placental dysfunction ($\chi 2=13.77$, p<0.001), oligo- and polyhydramnios ($\chi 2=4.49$, p=0.03), foetal growth retardation and the threatened miscarriages. However, it should be stressed that the assessment of the functional state of the foetoplacental complex in 18-20 weeks of gestation revealed the early signs of compensatory changes of the foetus and placenta state in 14 (13.59 %) pregnant women of the basic group. The women of the basic group against the background of the high prenatal risk and the high rate of pregnancy complications were diagnosed to have the high frequency of foetal distress in labor ($\chi 2=3.77$, p=0.05), caesarean section ($\chi 2=8.24$, p=0.04) and during operative delivery ($\chi 2=12.84$, p<0.001). Conclusion. Thus, the results of scrutinizing the clinical signs of the pregnancy, labour and state of newborns demonstrated that pregnant women with endometriosis in their medical history are at high risk to develop the foetoplacental complex disorders, such as placental dysfunction, oligo- and polyhydramnios, as well as foetal distress in labour and operative delivery.

References

1. Order # 319 of Ministry of Health of Ukraine. 06.04.2016. "Management of patients with endometriosis". [Electronic resource] – Way of access: URL: http://moz.gov.ua/ua/portal/dn 20160406 0319.html. – Title from the screen.

2. Exacoustos C, Manganaro L, Zupi E. Imaging for the evaluation of endometriosis and adenomyosis. Best Prac Res Clin Obstet Gynaecol. 2014; 28 (5):655–81. doi: 10.1016/j.bpobgyn.2014.04.010.

3. Carassou-Maillan A, Pouly JL, Mulliez A, Dejou-Bouillet L, Gremeau AS, Brugnon F, Janny L, Canis M. Adverse pregnancy outcomes after Assisted Reproduction Technology in women with endometriosis. Gynecol Obstet Fertil. 2014 Apr; 42 (4): 210–5. doi:10.1016/j.gyobfe.2014.01.012.

4. Li H, Zhu HL, Chang XH, Li Y, Wang Y, Guan J, Cui H. Effects of Previous Laparoscopic Surgical Diagnosis of Endometriosis on Pregnancy Outcomes. Chin Med J (Engl). 2017 Feb; 130(4):428–433. doi: 10.4103/0366-6999.199840.

5. Berlac JF, Hartwell D, Skovlund CW, Langhoff-Roos J, Lidegaard Ø. Endometriosis increases the risk of obstetrical and neonatal complications. Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand. 2017 Jun;96(6):751–60. doi: 10.1111/aogs.13111.

6. Harada T, Taniguchi F, Onishi K, Kurozawa Y, Hayashi K, Harada T; Japan Environment & Children's Study Group. Obstetrical Complications in Women with Endometriosis: A Cohort Study

in Japan. PLoS One. 2016 Dec; 11 (12):e0168476. doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0168476.

7. Order # 417 of Ministry of Health of Ukraine. 15.07.2011. "About the organization of ambulatory obstetric and gynecological care in Ukraine". [Electronic resource] – Way of access: URL: http://old.moz.gov.ua/ua/portal/dn 20110715 417.html. – Title from the screen.

8. Amalinei C, Păvăleanu I, Lozneanu L, Balan R, Giușcă SE, Căruntu ID. Endometriosis – insights into a multifaceted entity. Folia Histochem Cytobiol. 2018; 1(2):61–82. doi: 10.5603/FHC.a2018.0013.

9. Augoulea A, Alexandrou A, Creatsa M, Vrachnis N, Lambrinoudaki I. Pathogenesis of endometriosis: the role of genetics, inflammation and oxidative stress. Arch Gynecol Obstet. 2012; 286(1):99–103. doi: 10.1007/s00404-012-2357-8.

UDC 616.831-005.1-036.86

A STUDY OF THE TIME-BASED CHARACTERISTICS OF PHENOMENOLOGY OF POST-STROKE FATIGUE OVER THE FIRST YEAR AFTER STROKE OCCURRENCE

Delva I.

Ukrainian Medical Stomatological Academy, Poltava

Post-stroke fatigue (PSF) is a common medical and social problem. Aim: to analyze time-based characteristics of PSF over the first year after stroke event. Material and methods. Patients were examined through definite time slots: during hospital staying (234 cases), in 1 month (203), in 3 months (176), in 6 months (156), in 9 months (139) and in 12 months (128 cases) after stroke. PSF was measured by fatigue assessment scale (FAS) and multidimensional fatigue inventory-20. (MIF-20) We conditionally divided all PSF cases into early PSF group (presented only within the 1st month after stroke), persistent PSF (presented within the 1st post-stroke month and later) and late PSF (appeared only in 3rd month observation or later). Results. Having analyzed all PSF cases according to FAS, we found out 15 PSF cases (16,0%) were assessed as early PSF, 51 (54,2%) assessed as persistent PSF and 28 (29,8%)- as late PSF. For all time-based types of PSF domains, according to MIF-20, the similar pattern of distribution was observed: early PSF domains - from 16,3% to 20,3%, persistent PSF domains - from 54,15 to 59,8%, late PSF domains - from 23,9% to 26,0%. All domains of early PSF, according to MIF-20, were statistically more intensive than all corresponding domains of persistent PSF and late PSF, whereas intensities of all persistent PSF domains and all late PSF domains were much or less similar. Conclusions. 1. About 20% of all PSF cases are early PSF, 25% are late PSF and slightly more than half of all cases is persistent PSF. 2. Proportions of all domains of early PSF, late PSF and persistent PSF are practically similar. 3. Significant differences between severities of early PSF and persistent PSF as well as late PSF can be as indirect evidences that all time-based PSF types are quite distinctive entities.

Key words: post-stroke fatigue, time characteristics, intensity.

The research described in this paper was performed within the framework of research plan of Neurological Department with Neurosurgery and Medical Genetics at Ukrainian Medical Stomatological Academy "Clinical and pathogenetic optimization of diagnosis, prognosis, treatment and prevention of complicated central nervous system's disorders and neurological impairments due to therapeutic pathologies" (state registration number 0116U004190).

Introduction

Nowadays there is an accelerating growth of modern society diseases and their vascular complications, in particular stroke that can be explained to some extent by the consequences of urbanization and significant lifestyle changes [1]. For the last decade much attention of researchers

has been paid to a variety of non-functional long-term complications of stroke. One of these, so called «silent» complications, is post-stroke fatigue (PSF). PSF is a common medical and social problem, which often affects post-stroke patients [2, 3]. It is well known that PSF negatively affects rehabilitation, recovery and survival rate after the cerebral event [4, 5].

For recent years PSF has being considered as evolutionary process. Five longitudinal studies devoted to PSF course in individual patients found that more than one third of patients had PSF at the initial assessment (usually within the first 3 months after stroke) [6-10]. Among patients with PSF at the initial assessment, about two thirds of them had PSF at a later stage of follow-up (usually over 1 year after stroke), and nearly one third of them had recovered by that time. Among patients without PSF at the initial assessment, PSF developed in 12% to 58% of them during the course of the follow-up [6-10]. These findings were grounds for the development of conceptual model for PSF, which reveals three patterns of temporal course of PSF after stroke, that is, early onset PSF, persistent PSF, and late onset PSF [11]. At the same time up to now there are no in-depth studies aimed to study the temporal course and characteristics of early, persistent and late PSF. However for better understanding the nature of PSF management it is very important to determine time-related aspects of this pathological entity. The aim pf this study was to analyze time-based characteristics of PSF over the first year after stroke event.

Material and methods

The study included patients who had an acute stroke (ischemic or hemorrhagic), agreed to participate in the study and were able to provide informed consent. Exclusion criteria were major medical illness that could cause secondary fatigue (oncological, hematological diseases, cardiac, liver, kidney and respiratory insufficiency, progressive angina pectoris, acute myocardial infarction), alcohol abuse, consciousness impairments, insufficient cognitive ability (Mini-Mental State Examination scores less than 24) [12], depressive and anxious disorders (Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale scores more than 10 for both pathologies) [13], impaired speech function to participate (severe dysphasia or dysarthria), impaired language or written ability to complete the study questionnaires, severe functional disabilities (modified Rankin scale scores \geq 4).

Patients' characteristics were evaluated in definite time slots: during hospital staying (234 cases), in 1 month (203), in 3 months (176), in 6 months (156), in 9 months (139) and in 12 months (128 cases) after stroke.

PSF was measured by two self-report questionnaires: fatigue assessment scale (FAS) and multidimensional fatigue inventory-20 (MFI-20). FAS included 5 questions about mental components and 5 questions about the physical part of fatigue. The score \geq 22 indicates fatigue presence [14]. MFI-20 is a 20-item multidimensional questionnaire, which covers global, physical, mental, motivational and activity-related fatigue domains. A cut-off of 12 out of 20 for every subscale has been suggested to apply fro people with stroke [15].

Distributions of continuous variables were checked by Shapiro-Wilk test. Parametric variables were represented as mean \pm standard deviation, non-parametric – as mediana (Me) and interquartile (25%-75%) range (Q1-Q3). Intensity of each PSF domain was measured at time of initial detection. For determination differences between severities of certain PSF domains Mann-Whitney U test was used. A p-value <0,05 was considered as statistically significant.

Results and discussion

Patients' age ranged from 43 to 79 years $(63,3\pm8,4 \text{ years})$. Initially there were 112 (47,9%) males and 122 (52,1%) females. 201 (85,9%) patients had ischemic strokes, and 33 (14,1%) had hemorrhagic strokes in their histories.

Table 1

Numbers of PSF cases, according to FAS, over the first year after stroke event

Time slots after stroke	Number of PSF	Increase compared with	Decrease compared with
evetn	cases	previous time slot, n (%)	previous time slot, n (%)

stay in hospital	65	-	-
1 month	63	14 (33,3%)	8 (34,8%)
3 months	76	26 (61,9%)	7 (30,4%)
6 months	69	1 (2,4%)	3 (13,0%)
9 months	54	1 (2,4%)	4 (17,4%)
12 months	58	0	1 (4,4%)

The table 1 demonstrated that the significant dynamics of PSF (both increase and decrease) was observed within the first 3 months after stroke event. Increase in PSF number was especially noticeable within the period between 1st and 3rd months after stroke (that made up almost two third of all new PSF cases), while within the period between 3rd and 9th post-stroke months, only 2 new PSF cases were registered.

Literature sources about longitudinal characteristics of PSF are quite limited and somewhat controversial. Sone studies reported that about two thirds of patients with PSF in a month after stroke (according to FAS) had become non-fatigued by the 6 month and most of them remained non-fatigued at the 12 month [6]. Accoording to other studies, PSF measured by Fatigue Severity Scale was found at admission, at the 6 month and in a year of post-stroke life in 37,7% of the patients and was absent at all in 17,4% of the patients, whereas the remaining 44,9% of the patients had variable course of PSF during the first post-stroke year [7]. PSF, according to Fatigue Severity Scale, was found at the time of discharge from inpatient rehabilitation departments and also in 24 weeks later in 40,5% of the patients, whereas about a quarter of the patients reported no PSF at either measurement and rest of patients had PSF only at one observation [9]. Among the patients who reported PSF (due to Fatigue Assessment Instrument) at the 6 month of the follow up had a minor stroke, 77,3% still reported PSF at the 12 month of the follow-up and 11,6% were newly diagnosed cases, when patients reported about PSF later on [10].

Thus, according to our results, between 1st and 3rd months after stroke there was upsurge of PSF numbers. How to interpret this phenomenon? From the positions of the evolutionary concept of PSF by Wu S. et al [11], it can be assumed that just in this time interval (exactly, between 1st and 3rd months after stroke event) some dramatical changes of PSF nature with corresponding clinical manifestations occur. Based on above mentioned time-based PSF characteristics and according to evolutionary concept of PSF, we conditionally divided all PSF cases into early PSF group (PSF found out only within the 1st month after stroke and disappeared at the 3rd month of the follow-up), persistent PSF (presented within the 1st post-stroke month and later) and late PSF (appeared only at 3rd month of follow-up or later).

Proceeding from the time-based concept of PSF, throughout all PSF diagnoses, according to FAS, 15 PSF cases (16,0%) were found as early PSF, 51 PSF cases (54,2%) were assessed as persistent PSF and 28 PSF cases (29,8%) – as late PSF.

Number of all PSF domains, according to MFI-20, at each post-stroke time slot was comparable to the amounts of PSF, according to FAS. Therefore, we consider it is unnecessary to present the data about number of each PSF domain within the observation period.

Table 2

Changes in number of PSF domains according to MFI-20, compared with previous time point over the first year after stroke event

Time	PSF domain									
point after stroke	Glo	obal	Physical		Mental		Activity-related		Motivational	
occurrence	+	-	+	-	+	-	+	-	+	-

	N, (%)	n, (%)								
1 month	5 (38%)	9 (32%)	16 (39%)	9 (32%)	15 (38%)	8 (30%)	13 (37%)	7 (26%)	13 (41%)	8 (33%)
3 months	24 (60%)	8 (29%)	24 (59%)	9 (32%)	25 (62%)	9 (33%)	22 (63%)	8 (30%)	19 (59%)	7 (30%)
6 months	1 (2%)	4 (14%)	1 (2%)	3 (11%)	0	7 (26%)	0	8 (30%)	0	7 (30%)
9 months	0	4 (14%)	0	6 (21%)	0	0	0	2 (7%)	0	1 (3%)
12 months	0	3 (11%)	0	1 (4%)	0	3 (11%)	0	2 (7%)	0	1 (3%)

Table 3

Table 4

Number and frequencie of time-based types of PSF domains over the first year after stroke event

PSF domain	Time-based type of PSF		
	Early	Persistent	Late
global	17 (17,7%)	54 (56,3%)	25 (26,0%)
physical	18 (17,8%)	58 (57,4%)	25 (24,8%)
mental	17 (17,5%)	55 (56,7%)	25 (25,8%)
activity-related	15 (16,3%)	55 (59,8%)	22 (23,9%)
motivational	15 (20,3%)	40 (54,1%)	19 (25,6%)

Table 2 shows that all PSF domains, according to MIF-20, have the similar dynamics of evolution as global PSF. There is an intense increase in the number of new PSF cases (no matter of PSF domain) within the first 3 post-stoke months with subsequent zero dynamics during the next 9 months. Also, just within the first 3 post-stroke months there is a significant reduction of PSF cases (likewise, no matter of PSF domain).

In the same manner, on the basis of time-based pattern, we conditionally divided all PSF domains into three types – early PSF, persistent PSF and late PSF.

Table 3 demonstrates that for all time-based types of PSF domains the similar pattern of distribution is observed: about one-fifth of the patients were diagnosed to have early PSF, about a quarter of them had late PSF, and all the rest cases were assessed as persistent PSF.

PSF domain	,	Time-based type of PSF		
	Early	Persistent	late	
global	15 (14; 16)* **	14 (13; 14)	14 (13; 14)	
physical	15 (14; 16)* **	14 (13; 14)	14 (13; 14)	
mental	15 (14; 16)* **	14 (13; 14)	14 (13; 14)	
activity-related	15 (15; 16)* **	14 (13; 14)	14 (13; 15)	
motivational	14 (14; 15)*	14 (13; 14)	14 (13; 15)	

Intensities of time-based types of PSF domains over the first year after stroke occurrence

* - significant differences (p<0,05), according to Mann-Whitney U test, between early PSF and persistent PSF;

** - significant differences (p<0,05), according to Mann-Whitney U test, between early PSF and late PSF.

As it can be seen in the table 4, all domains of early PSF are statistically more intensive than corresponding domains of persistent PSF and late PSF (exception is motivational domain of late PSF). Significant difference between severities of early PSF and late PSF can also be as indirect evidence that early PSF and late PSF are quite different entities, which have, probably, their own special etiopathogenetic peculiarities. Moreover, significant weakening of early PSF during its transition into persistent PSF can also be a confirmation that early PSF and persistent PSF are quite distinctive entities, each with its peculiar nature.

At the end of the paper, it is necessary to underscore that our findings are quite important for clinical practice because the understanding of PSF development peculiarities is the ground for adequate PSF management. For example, based on our results, PSF prevention must be dealt as early as possible after stroke but just within the first 3 months after stroke (precisely during this period occur majority of new PSF cases), whereas in 3 months after stroke event or later preventive measures should be nearly ineffective and clinicians should focus on PSF treatment issues.

Conclusions

1. According to time-based PSF concept, about 20% of all PSF cases are early PSF, 25% of the cases are late PSF and slightly more than half of all cases are persistent PSF.

2. Proportions of all domains of early PSF, late PSF and persistent PSF are practically similar.

3. Intensities of all domains of early PSF are significantly higher than intensities of the corresponding domains of persistent PSF and late PSF.

Future investigations in this field should be directed toward the identification of sociodemographic, personal, neurological, neuroimaging and other factors associated with early PSF, persistent PSF and late PSF as well as with certain domains of time-based PSF types. These findings could help to understand ethiopathogenetic peculiarities of time-based types of PSF.

Literature

- 1. Kaydashev IP. Izmeneniye obraza zhizni, narusheniye energeticheskogo metabolizma i sistemnoye vospaleniye kak faktory razvitiya bolezney tsivilizatsii [Change in lifestyle, violation of energy metabolism and systemic inflammation as factors in the development of the diseases of civilization]. Ukraí nskiy Medichniy Chasopis. 2013; 5(97):103-8. (Russian).
- 2. Delva I, Lytvynenko N, Delva M. Post-stroke fatigue and its dimensions within first 3 months after stroke. J. Wiadomosci Lekarskie. 2017; 1: 43-7.
- 3. Delva I, Lytvynenko N, Delva M. Factors associated with post-stroke fatigue within the first 3 month after stroke. J. Georgian Medical News. 2017; 6(267): 38-42.
- 4. Glader E, Stegmayr B, Asplund K. Poststroke fatigue: a 2-year follow up study of stroke patients in Sweden. J. Stroke. 2002; 33:1327–1333.
- 5. Van de Port I, Kwakkel G, Schepers V. Is fatigue an independent factor associated with activities of daily living, instrumental activities of daily living and health-related quality of life in chronic stroke? J. Cerebrovascular Diseases. 2007; 23:40–5.
- Duncan F, Greig C, Lewis S. Clinically significant fatigue after stroke: A longitudinal cohort study. Journal of Psychosomatic Research. 2014; 77:368–73. Doi: 10.1016/j.jpsychores.2014.06.013.
- Schepers V, Visser-Meily A, Ketelaar M. Poststroke fatigue: course and its relation to personal and stroke-related factors. J. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 2006; 87:184– 8. Doi: 10.1016/j.apmr.2005.10.005.
- 8. Snaphaan L, Van der Werf S, De Leeuw F. Time course and risk factors of post-stroke fatigue: a prospective cohort study. European Journal of Neurology. 2011; 18: 611–7.
- 9. Van Eijsden H, Van de Port I, Visser-Meily J. Poststroke fatigue: who is at risk for an increase in fatigue? J. Stroke Research and Treatment. 2012: 863978. Doi: 10.1155/2012/863978.
- 10. Radman N, Staub F, Aboulafia-Brakha T. Poststroke fatigue following minor infarcts: a prospective study. J. Neurology. 2012; 79:1422–7. Doi: 10.1212/ WNL.0b013e31826d5f3a.

- 11. Wu S, Mead G, Macleod M. Model of understanding fatigue after stroke. J.Stroke. 2015; 46 (3): 893–8. DOI: 10.1161/STROKEAHA.114.006647.
- 12. Folstein M, Folstein S, McHugh P. Mini-mental state: A practical method for grading the cognitive state of patients for the clinician. Journal of Psychiatric Research. 1975; 12:189-98.
- 13. Zigmond A, Snaith R. The hospital anxiety and depression scale. J. Acta Psychiatrica Scandinavica. 1983; 67(6):361-70.
- Michielsen H, De Vries J, Van Heck G. Psychometric qualities of a brief self-rated fatigue measure: The Fatigue Assessment Scale. Journal of Psychosomatic Research. 2003; 54(4): 345-52.
- 15. Smets E, Garssen B, Bonke B. The multidimensional fatigue inventory (MFI) psychometric qualities of an instrument to assess fatigue. Journal of Psychosomatic Research. 1995; 39:P. 315–25.

ASSESSMENT OF THERAPEUTIC EFFECTIVENESS OF CHONDROPROTECTORS FOR PATIENTS WITH COMORBID DISEASES

Zhdan V. M., Lebid' V. G.

Key words: osteoarthritis, comorbidity, chondroprotectors, combined therapy.

Introduction. Osteoarthritis is one of the most common connective tissue diseases. The prevalence of osteoarthritis in Ukraine is 643 cases per 10 000 population, the incidence is 49-52 cases per 10 000 popula-tion, the rate of primary disability resulted from the diseases is 0,8 cases per 10 000 population. Osteoarthri-tis refers to diseases with high comorbidity and is accompanied with arterial hypertension, atherosclerosis, and ischemic heart disease. At present, one of the urgent tasks is searching the most effective comprehen-sive treatment for osteoarthritis and concomitant comorbidities. The aim of this study is to evaluate the scheme of integrated therapy of patients (men and women) with OA and comorbidities by using chondroprotectors including chondroitin sulphate (Arthrida, France), glucosamine sulphate (Synarta, Ukraine), glucosamine hydrochloride in combination with chondroitin sulphate (Artiflex plus, Ukraine) and vasar /losartan, Omega-3, fenibut, trisipin, rosarta. Materials and methods. A prospective multicenter study on the basis of the Department of Family Medicine and Therapy in the Rheumatologic Department of the M.V. Sklifosovsky Poltava Regional Clinical Hospital included 50 outpatient and inpatient women and men aged 54-76 years with primary gonarthrosis of II-III radiological stages by Kellgren and Lawrence and comorbid diseases, the commonest of which were hypertension, coronary artery disease, diffuse cardiosclerosis. During the study, there was found out a significant clinical effect of chondroitin sulphate and glucosamine sulphate in patients with OA and comorbid pathology that was manifested by the improvement of clinical parameters such as the Leken's functional index and WOMAC scale parameters. After 6 months following the treatment, there was a significant decrease in the total Leken's functional index $(11,46 \pm 2,11)$ (p <0,0001) in the patients in the main group receiving chondroitin sulphate and glucosamine sulphate (p < 0.0001), compared with the relevant indicator of the control group $(12,26 \pm 2,15)$. A significant decline in the Leken's index in the main group was also observed in 12 months after the start of the study (p = 0,0006), pointing out a long-term effect after the onset of chondroitin sulphate and glucosamine sulphate therapy in the main group. The total score by the WOMAC scale was significantly lower (p <0,0001) in 6 months after the beginning of the therapy in the main group $(678,02 \pm 201,63)$ compared with the control group $(741,24 \pm 174,72)$. This indicator in 12 months in the main group $(762,84 \pm 184,34)$ was also significantly lower (p = 0,0004) than in the control group ($879,04 \pm 196,04$). The above-mentioned dynamics according to the WOMAC questionnaire indicates a significant clinical effect in the combination of chondroitin sulphate with glucosamine sulphate in the main group. Improvement due to the proposed combined therapy was observed in 91,2% of patients in the main group. The therapy described had a marked positive effect on relieving pain, improving atricular mobility, reducing difficulty in performing daily routines, reducing manifestations of synovitis confirmed by US scans, as well as on positive dynamics of laboratory parameters, improvement of the quality of life (normal blood pressure, pain relief in the area of the heart and joints, decrease in the need for NSAIDs and antihypertensive drugs).

References

1. Bortkevich OP. Efektivnist' preparatu Piaskledin 300 u hvorih na pervinnij osteoartroz kolinnih ta kul'shovih suglobiv [The efficacy of Piscledin 300 in patients with primary osteoarthrosis of the knee and hip joints]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2016; 4(66):46-50. (Ukrainian).

2. Voloshina LO, Smiyan SI. Osteoartroz, poli- ta komorbidnist': vikovi, genderni, prognostichni j likuval'no-profilaktichni aspekti: dani tririchnogo prospektivnogo doslidzhennya [Osteoarthritis, polycomorbidity: age, gender, prognostic and therapeutic and prophylactic aspects: data from a three-year prospective study]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2016; 4(66):51-57. (Ukrainian).

3. Zhdan VM, Lebid' VG, Babanina MYU. Osoblivosti kompleksnoï terapiï pacientiv hvorih na osteoartrit v poednanni z komorbidnoyu patologieyu v praktici simejnogo likarya [Features of complex ther-apy for patients with osteoarthritis in combination with comorbid pathology in the practice of a family doctor]. Aktual'ni pitannya vnutrishn'oï medicini. Vid klinichnih doslidzhen' do klinichnoï praktiki:Tezi naukovih dopovidej naukovo-praktichnoï konferenciï. Dnipro, 2017, 17-18 May:118-119. (Ukrainian).

4. Kovalenko V.M. Komorbidnist' i shlyahi racional'noï farmakoterapiï v revmatologiï [Comorbidity and ways of rational pharmacotherapy in rheumatology]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2014;2(56):12–13. (Ukrainian).

5. Kovalenko VM, Shuba NM, Kazimirko VK. Nacional'nij pidruchnik z revmatologii [National textbook on rheumatology]. K: MORION. 2013:671. (Ukrainian).

6. Fadeenko GD, Gridnev OC, Nesen AO. Komorbidnist' i visokij kardiovaskulyarnij rizik – klyuchovi pitannya suchasnoï medicini [Comorbidity and high cardiovascular risk. Key issues of modern medicine]. Ukraïns'kij terapevtichnij zhurnal. 2013;1:102-107. (Ukrainian).

7. Solomenchuk TM, Skibchik VA. Arterial'na gipertenziya u post menopauzi: osoblivosti perebigu ta farmakoterapii [Arterial hypertension in menopause: features of course and pharmacotherapy]. Zdorov'ya Ukraïni: Kardiologiya. Revmatologiya (tematichnij nomer). 2011;4(19):52-53. (Ukrainian).

8. Suhorebs'ka MYA, YAcishin RI. Klinichni osoblivosti perebigu ta optimizaciya likuvannya osteoartrozu v poednanni z abdominal'nim ozhirinnyam [Clinical features of the course and optimization of the treatment of osteoarthritis in combination with abdominal obesity]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2015;3 (61):73-78. (Ukrainian).

9. Fadeenko GD, Nesen AO. Komorbidnist' ta integrativna rol' terapiï vnutrishnih hvorob [Comorbidity and integrative role of therapy of internal disease]. Ukraïns'kij terapevtichnij zhurnal. 2015;2:7-15. (Ukrainian).

10. Hajmenova G.S. Suchasni metodi terapiï po¢dnanoï patologiï [Modern methods of therapy of combined pathology]. Materiali Vseukraïns'koï naukovo-praktichnoï konferenciï «medichna nauka v praktiku ohoroni zdorov'ya. Poltava, 2015:32-33. (Ukrainian).

11. Hajmenova G.S. Prignichennya autoimunnogo procesu u hvorih na osteoartritu[Inhibition of the autoimmune process in patients with osteoarthritis]. Naukovo-praktichna konferenciya za mizhnarodnoyu uchastyu «Zdorov'ya Ukraïnciv v rukah simejnogo likarya». Kiïv, 08-09 grudnya 2016: 45-47. (Ukrainian).

12. SHuba NM, Tarasenko TM. Vivchennya vplivu hondroïtin sul'fatu-4,6 na shchil'nist' kistkovoï tkanini ta jogo efektivnosti u hvorih na osteoartroz kolinnih suglobiv [Study of the effect

of chondroitin sulfate-4,6 on the density of bone tissue and its efficacy in patients with knee osteoarthrosis]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2013;3(53):7-10. (Ukrainian).

13. Andrievskaya SA, Bessmertnaya AA. Kombinirovannaya terapiya ishemicheskoj bolezni serdca Armadinom i Trizipinom – eshche odin variant ili unikal'naya vozmozhnost'? [Combined Therapy for Coronary Artery Disease by Armastin and Trizipine is another option or unique opportunity?] Arterial'naya gipertenziya. 2017;4 (54):34-40. (Ukrainian).

14. Bob H, Sun MD, Christopher W. New developments in osteoarthritis. Rheum. Dis. Clin. N. Am. 2017;33:135-148.

15. Health Status Measurement Systems for Ostheoarthritis. URL: http://www.womac.org/ womac/ index.htm

16. Wallance E, Salisbury C, Guthrie B. Managing patients with multimorbidity in primary care. BMJ, January. 2015; 15:27-30.

OCCUPATION AND SMOKING PREVALENCE AMONG PARENTS WHOSE CHILDREN HAVE DISEASES OF URINARY SYSTEM

Ivanova A.A., Sorokina I.V., Myroshnychenko M.S., Omelchenko O.A.

Key words: urinary system diseases, children, Kharkiv region, risk factors.

Diseases of the urinary system in children are still remaining an urgent problem nowadays due to their high prevalence that dictates the necessity to implement large-scale measures aimed at preventing the oc-currence of this pathology by eliminating risk factors. The purpose of the study was to analyze the occupa-tional factors and smoking prevalence among parents whose children are diagnosed to have diseases of urinary system and live in Kharkiv region. The material of the study was the information obtained through interviewing parents about their professional activity and smoking habits. The respondents surveyed were divided into two groups: I group included 662 children hospitalized at the Kharkiv Regional Children Clinical Hospital with various pathologies of the urinary system; II group included 73 healthy children, who were registered in the Izyum Central City Hospital. The study demonstrates that among the significant risk factors for the development of the diseases of the urinary system in children of the Kharkiv region there are high smoking prevalence and unemployment of parents. The identified regional risk factors allow clinicians to implement timely measures in order to prevent the development of urinary system diseases in children.

References

1. Shafrans'kij VV, editor. Shhorichna dopovid' pro stan zdorov'ja naselennja, sanitarnoepidemichnu situaciju ta rezul'tati dijal'nosti sistemi ohoroni zdorov'ja Ukrai'ny. 2015 rik [Annual report on the health status of the population, the sanitary and epidemiological situation and the results of the health care system of Ukraine. 2015 year]. Kyiv: DU «Ukraïns'kij institut strategichnih doslidzhen'»; 2016. 452p. (Ukrainian).

2. Ognev VA, Galicheva NA, Sokol KM. Social'naja medicina i organizacija zdravoohranenija [Social medicine and health care or-ganization]. Har'kov: HNMU; 2016. 26 p. (Russian).

3. Mashina NS, Galaktionova MJ. Sostojanie zdorov'ja detej pervogo goda zhizni i opredeljajushhie ego factory [Health status of infants and its determining factors]. Sibirskoe medicinskoe obozrenie. 2015; 2: 26-31. (Russian).

4. Balakiryeva OM, Bondar TV, Pavlova DV. Pokazniki ta social'nij kontekst formuvannja zdorov'ja pidlitkiv [Indicators and social con-text for the formation of teenage health]. Kyiv, JuNISEF, Ukrai'ns'kyj instytut social'nyh doslidzhen' im. O. Jaremenka; 2014. 156 p. (Ukrainian).

5. Shhorichna dopovid' pro stan zdorov'ja naselennja, sanitarno-epidemichnu situaciju ta

rezul'tati dijal'nosti sistemi ohoroni zdorov'ja Ukrai'ny. 2016 rik [Annual report on the health status of the population, the sanitary and epidemiological situation and the results of the health care system of Ukraine. 2015 year]. Kyiv: DU «Ukraïns'kij institut strategichnih doslidzhen'»; 2017. 516 p. (Ukrainian).

6. Sorokina I, Miroshnichenko M, Kapustnik N. Patologija organov mochevoj sistemy u detskogo naselenija Ukrainy: ee proshloe, nastojashhee i budushhee [Pathology of the urinary system organs in children population of Ukraine: its past, present and future]. Re-gional Innovations. 2017; 4: 35-42. (English).

7. Inogamova VV, Gijasova ZS. Faktory riska zabolevanij pochek i mochevyvodjashhih putej v sovremennyh uslovijah [Risk factors for kidney and urinary tract diseases in modern conditions]. Molodoj uchenyj. 2016; 10 (114): 486-490. (Russian).

8. Ostrovskij IM, Prohorov EV, Narizhnyj MJu. Zdorov'e detej po rezul'tatam anketirovanija roditelej [Health of children based on the results of parents' questionnaires]. 2017; 62 (3): 105-111. (Rus-sian).

9. Aslanov DI. Faktory i uslovija, opredeljajushhie formirovanie zdorov'ja cheloveka [Factors and conditions that determine the formation of human health]. Upravlenec. 2011; 3-4 (19-20): 68-71. (Russian).

10. Voronenko JuV, Moskalenko VF, editors. Social'na medicina ta organizacija ohoroni zdorov'ja [Social medicine and healthcare or-ganization]. Ternopil; Ukrmedkniga. 2000. 680 p. (Ukrainian).

11. Zaprudnov AM, Grigor'ev KI, Haritonova LA, Bogomaz LV. Sovremennye aspekty profilaktiki zabolevanij organov pishhevarenija u detej [Modern aspects of the prevention of diseases of the digestive system in children]. Jeksperimental'naja i klinicheskaja gastrojenterologija. 2013; 1: 3-14. (Russian).

12. Luchaninova VN, Pogodaeva TV, Bykova OG, Koval'chuk VK, Semeshina OV. Faktory riska i regional'nye prichiny zabolevanij organov mochevoj sistemy u detej v Primorskom krae [Risk factors and regional causes of urinary system diseases in children in Primorye]. Nefrologija. 2012; 16 (3) (2): 54-60. (Russian).

13. Kozlov AP, Popov NN. Medicinskaja demografija [Medical demog-raphy]. Har'kov : Izdatel'skij centr HNU; 2006. 20 p. (Russian).

14. Hajdarova TS. Intensivnost' tabakokurenija sredi zhenshhin v Kazahstane [Intensity of smoking among women in Kazakhstan]. Izvestija Nacional'noj akademii nauk Respubliki Kazahstan. Serija biologicheskaja i medicinskaja. 2017; 2: 67-70 p. (Russian).

15. Zadorozhnjuk NA, Volosozhar JaS, Chekan LV. Problemy zanjatosti i bezraboticy v Ukraine [Problems of employment and unem-ployment in Ukraine]. Ekonomika ta upravlinnja nacional'nym go-spodarstvom. 2018: 21: 154-158 p. (Ukrainian).

16. Rusinova NL, Safronov VV. Vlijanie bezraboticy na zdorov'e v stranah Evropy: znachenie social'nogo gosudarstva [Impact of un-employment on health in European countries: the importance of the social state]. Sociologicheskij zhurnal. 2017: 23(2). 28-50 p. (Rus-sian).

17. Markovskij VD, Sorokina IV, Miroshnichenko MS, Adejemi AA. Morfologicheskie osobennosti pochek u potomstva krys, podvergshihsja vlijaniju hronicheskoj vnutriutrobnoj, ostroj postnatal'noj i smeshannoj gipoksii [Morphological features of the offspring kidneys rats affected by chronic intrauterine, acute post-natal and mixed hypoxia]. Jakutskij medicinskij zhurnal. 2015; 2 (50): 94-97 p. (Russian).

18. Miroshnichenko MS, Markovskij VD, Sorokina IV. Vlijanie hronicheskoj vnutriutrobnoj gipoksii na morfofunkcional'nye osobennosti organov mochevydelitel'noj sistemy plodov i novorozhdennyh [Influence of chronic intrauterine hypoxia on the morphofunctional features of the urinary system of fetuses and newborns]. Morfologija. 2013; 7(2): 57-60 p. (Russian).

HORMONAL BACKGROUND IN WOMEN WITH INFERTILITY AND PSYCHOSOMATIC DISORDERS

Kaminsky A.V.

Key words: infertility, psychosomatics, gonadotropic hormones, sex hormones, colpocytological investigation.

Psychosocial stress induced by social conditions contributes to the impairment of reproductive function. The development or deterioration of the course of endocrine diseases adversely affects the mental state as well. Objective of this study was to determine the specificity of hormonal changes in women with infertility and psychosomatic disorders. 93 women with tubal-peritoneal factor of infertility (main group) were exam-ined. The control group consisted of 30 fertile women with children born. Following the survey conducted and psychologist consultations, the patients of the main group were divided into following groups: the 1 group included 61 women with severe psychosomatic disorders; the 2 group included 32 women without such disorders. Radio immunological methods were used to determine the content of pituitary and steroid hormones in the peripheral blood serum. In the follicular phase of the menstrual cycle, the concentration of luteinizing hormone in the patients of the 1 group was increased (8.70 ± 0.11 vs. 6.35 ± 0.23 and 5.03 ± 0.15 IU / 1 in the women of the 2 and the control group, p $\Box 0.05$). Marked increase in the ratio of luteinizing hormone and follicle-stimulating was detected as well. The level of prolactin was increased in patients of the 1 group compared to women in the control group (9.23 \pm 0.14 vs. 8.25 ± 0.17 ng / ml, p $\square 0.05$). On the 5th day of the menstrual cycle, a significantly increased level of estradiol was registered, and on the 21st day, a reduced level of progesterone was found, respectively, the progesterone / estradiol ratio was lowered. A significantly higher level of testosterone was also revealed (2.21 \pm 0.10 vs. 1.95 \pm 0.12 and 1.61 \pm 0.11 ng / ml, p \Box 0.05). According to colpocytogram, anovulatory menstrual cycle of the hyperestrogenic type with luteal phase insufficiency was diagnosed in 62.5% and 40.7% of the patients in the 1 and the 2 groups. The women with infertility and psychosomatic disorders demonstrated an imbalance of gonadotropic and sex hormones that was manifested by relative progesterone deficiency, signs of hyperestrogenia, hyperandrogenism and hyperprolactinemia and confirmed by colpocytological studies. The data obtained open up prospects for the application of psycho-correction methods in the treatment of infertility.

References

1. Van den Akker OBA. Reproductive Health Psychology. John Wiley & Sons, Ltd, Chichester, UK, 2012. 368p. doi: 10.1002/9781119968382.

2. Sharma R, Biedenharn KR, Fedor JM, Agarwal A. Lifestyle factors and reproductive health: taking control of your fertility. Reprod Biol Endocrinol., 2013,11: 66-81.

3. Mitsi C, Efthimiou K. Infertility: psychological-psychopathological consequences and cognitive-behavioural interventions. Psychiatriki. 2014 Oct-Dec;25(4):293-302.

4. Crawford NM. Infertility women who screen positive for depression are less likely to initiate fertility treatments. Human reproduction, 2017 March. 1;32(3): 582-587.

5. Lopes V. Are patients at risk for psychological maladjustment during fertility treatment less willing to comply with treatment? Results from the Portuguese validation of the screen IVF. Human reproduction, 2014. Feb; 29(2): 293-302

6. Peterson BD. Are severe depressive symptoms associated with infertility-related distress in individuals and their oartners? Human reproduction, 2014. Jan; 29 (1): 76-82

7. Sharma R, Biedenharn KR, Fedor JM, Agarwal A. Lifestyle factors and reproductive health: taking control of your fertility. Reprod Biol Endocrinol., 2013, 11: 66-81.

8. Bazarganipour F, Ziaei S, Montazeri A, Foroozanfard F, Kazemnejad A, Faghihzadeh S. Psychological investigation in patients with polycystic ovary syndrome. Health Qual Life

Outcomes, 2013, 11 (1): 141-150.

9. Kuznetsova IV, Konovalov VA. Narusheniya menstrualnogo tsikla i ih gormonalnaya korrektsiya v kontekste stressozavisimyih psihovegetativnyih rasstroystv [Disorders of the menstrual cycle and their hormonal correction in the context of stress-related psycho-vegetative disorders]. Meditsinskiy sovet, 2014; 9: 12-16. (Russian).

10. Lyichkova AE, Puzikova AM. Prolaktin i serotonin [Prolactin and serotonin]. Vestnik RAMN. 2014; 1–2. 38–45. (Russian).

11. Kuznetsova IV, Ragimov AA. Beregis hronicheskogo stressa! Funktsionalnaya giperprolaktinemiya u molodyih zhenschin [Watch out for chronic stress! Functional hyperprolactinemia in young women]. Status Praesens, 2015; 12: 56-61. (Russian).

PSYCHO-HYGIENIC SIGNIFICANCE OF PERSONALITY TRAITS OF ADOLESCENTS WITH VISION DISORDERS

Korobchansky V.O., Sasina O.S.

Key words: adolescents with vision impairment, personality traits, multivariate questionnaire by R. Cattell, psychodiagnosis, psycho hygiene.

The article outlines the results of research of the personality traits of adolescents with vision impairment. It is generally known that the defect of vision is not an isolated condition. It negatively affects the develop-ment of the emotional sphere of a young person. Vision impaired persons, especially children and adoles-cents are at significantly greater risk to develop mental disorders than their peers with the normal vision. The described full-scale psychodiagnostic experiment was aimed at analyzing the prevalence of conditions known as predecessors of mental disorders and, namely, personality accentuations by emotional, volitional and communicative properties as criteria for prenosological diagnosis of mental disorders in adolescents with vision impairment. Analysis of personality traits carried out by using R. Cattell's questionnaire, suggests the connections between the personality traits and the adaptive abilities of adolescents with vision disorders as well as points out the necessity of individual registration of certain psychological indicators to maintain and promote the health of children enrolled to specialized educational institutions. Poor vision leaves imprint s on the development of the child, can cause a deviation in all types of cognitive activity and affects the formation of the child's personal and emotional-volitional spheres. Therefore, the main psycho-hygienic measures to foster and develop a child with visual impairment will be directed towards the correction and the formation of compensatory processes that must begin in the early childhood.

References

1. Lisovy VM, Kapustnik VM, Korobchansky VA. Medytsyna hranychnykh staniv: teoriya i praktyka donozolohichnoyi diahnostyky [Medicine of boundary states: the theory and practice of pre-nosological diagnostics]. Naukovyy zhurnal MOZ Ukrayiny. 2013; 2 (3): 49-60.

2. Polka NS, Sergeta IV. Aktualni problemy psykhohihiieny ditei i pidlitkiv: shliakhy ta perspektyvy yikh vyrishennia (ohliad literatury i vlasnykh doslidzhen) [Actual problems of psychohygiene of children and adolescents: ways and perspectives for their solution (review of literature and own research]. Zhurnal NAMN Ukrayiny. 2012; 18(2):223-236.

3. Sergeta IV, Osadchuk NI. Uzahalnenyi pokaznyk harmoniinosti fizychnoho rozvytku shkoliariv m. Vinnitsi [A generalized indicator of the harmony of physical development of schoolchildren in the city of Vinnitsa]. Biomedical and Biosocial Antropology. 2009; 12:11-15.

4. Korobchanskyi VA. Hihiienichna psykhodiahnostyka donozolohichnykh staniv u pidlitkovomu ta yunatskomu vitsi [Hygienic psychodiagnosis of pre-natal states in adolescence and

adolescence]. KDMU. 2005; 192 p.

5. Pérez-Pereira M, Resches M. (2008) Pragmatic analysis of conversations between blind children and their mothers and the issue of maternal directivity. Infancia y Aprendizaje, 31, 425–447.

6. Farahnaz K. Farahmand, Kathryn E. Grant, Antonio J. Polo, Sophia N. Duffy School-Based Mental Health and Behavioral Programs for Low-Income, Urban Youth: A Systematic and Meta-Analytic Review / Clinical Psychology: Science and Practice. 2011; 18(4):372–390.

7. Korobchanskyi VA, Vorontsov MP, Mikheiev VV. Hihiienichni aspekty optymizatsii navchannia pidlitkiv u navchalnykh zakladakh riznoho typu [Hygienic aspects of optimizing the education of adolescents in educational institutions of different types]. Hihiiena naselenykh mists. 2008; 42:326-330.

8. Vinter A, Fernandes V, Orlandi O. () Definitions of familiar objects in blind children reflect their peculiar perceptual experience. Child: care, health and development. 2012;2:1-8. doi:10.1111/cch.12002.

9. Sanchez M T, Faber P, D'Angiulli A. () The depiction of wheels by blind children: preliminary studies on pictorial metaphors, language, and embodied imagery. Imagination, Cognition and Personality. 2011; 31:113–128.

10. Korobchanskyi VA, Subotina NI, Karasov VI. Psykhohihiienichna kharakterystyka funktsionalnoho stanu starshoklasnykiv z vadamy slukhu [Psychohygienic characteristic of the functional state of high school students with hearing impairments]. 2008; 4:41-45.

11. Kolupaieva AA. Pedahohichni osnovy intehruvannia shkoliariv z osoblyvostiamy psykhofizychnoho rozvytku v zahalnoosvitni navchalni zaklady [Pedagogical bases of integration of pupils with peculiarities of psychophysical development in general educational institutions]. Pedahohichna dumka. 2007:458p.

12. Coluccia E, Mammarella IC, Cornoldi C. () Centred egocentric, decentred egocentric, and allocentric spatial representations in the peripersonal space of congenital total blindness. Perception. 2009; 38:679–693.

13. Serheta IV. Donozolohichni zrushennia u stani psykhichnoho zdorovia: suchasni psykhohihiienichni pidkhody do tlumachennia, diahnostyky ta otsinky [Donosological changes in the state of mental health: modern psycho-hygienic approaches to interpretation, diagnosis and evaluation]. Naukovyi zhurnal MOZ Ukrayiny. 2013; 3(4):34-38.

14. Korobchanskyi VO, Bohachova OS, Vasylchenko IO, Veremiienko OV. Medytsyna hranychnykh staniv: 30-richnyi dosvid psykhohihiienichnykh doslidzhen: monohrafiia [Medicine of boundary states: 30 years of experience in psycho-hygienic research: monograph]. Odesa: Preskur`ier. 2016. 259p.

15. Serheta IV, Zaitseva KA, Osadchuk NI, Serheta DP. Suchasni pidkhody do zdiisnennia kompleksnoi otsinky stanu zdorovia ditei, pidlitkiv ta molodi v khodi provedennia hihiienichnykh doslidzhen [Modern approaches to the comprehensive assessment of the health status of children, adolescents and young people in the course of hygienic research]. Biomedical and Biosocial Antropology. Vinnytsia: VNMU im. M.I.Pyrohova. 2009; 13:15-18.

CHARACTERISTICS OF CLINICAL COURSE OF EXTERNAL GENITAL ENDOMETRIOSIS IN PATIENTS WITH HYPOTHYROIDISM

Lysenko B. M., Habrat B. V., Litvak Ye. O.

Key words: clinic, diagnostics, conservative treatment, operative intervention with external genital endometriosis, hypothyroidism, thyroid gland, infertility, reproductive age, prevention of recurrence of genital endometriosis.

This work aimed at investigating clinical features of the clinical course of external genital

endometriosis (EGE) in patients with hypothyroidism (HT). Processing of the data obtained demonstrated that the presentations of HT, especially of its manifest stage in patients under the study were the following: limb oedema, obesity, decreased body temperature, speech retardation, hoarse voice, drowsiness, sluggishness, paresthesia, memory loss, hair loss, hyperkeratosis of the skin of the elbows, anaemia, biliary dyskinesia and depression. The analysis of the clinical symptoms characteristic of EGE showed that constant dull non-menstrual pelvic pain was observed to be significantly more frequent (p <0.05) in patients with comorbidity of EGE and HT. The study also revealed that oligomenorrhea (30%) was significantly more frequent (p <0.05) when combined with EGE and HT, especially in patients with subclinical HT (p <0.05). The results obtained studies showed that infertility is one of the commonest clinical manifestations of EGE in patients with comorbid HT that is often the chief and only complaint presented by these patients. The number of patients with infertility in the group under the study made up 36.7% that was significantly higher (p <0.05) than in the group of patients with EGE without thyroid pathology (20%).

It should be noted that in women with EGE and subclinical HT, infertility occurred in 23.3% of cases, while in women with EGE and HT in its manifest stage, infertility was observed in 50% of cases, i.e. it nearly doubled. There was a significant increase in the number of infertile women with combined pathology compared with patients with EGE, but having no any endocrine pathology (p <0.001). According to our own observations, when there is a comorbidity of EGE and HT, the incidence of anaemia is significantly higher: 25% of cases compared to the group of patients (10%) who had no comorbidity, (p < 0.05). There is a significant increase in the detection of benign hyperplastic endometrial processes in women suffering from EGE and comorbid autoimmune thyroid pathology (by 15% more), in comparison with a group of patients without thyroid pathology (4%, p <0.05). Own studies revealed that among the patients with combined pathology (group 2), 71.7% of women were infected with herpes virus infection, 41.7% of women had urea plasma infection that was significantly more common (p < 0.05) compared with the patients having only EGE. Analysis of the symptoms of sexually transmitted infections (STIs) in patients of the 2nd group revealed some features of the clinical course: in women with HT and EGE, urea plasma infection was significantly more often (p<0.05) detected compared with the results obtained in the 1st group of the patients (8%). As for herpes virus infection, it was found in all patients of the 2nd group with common forms of EGE. It is important to focus an attention on the findings regarding anamnesis information on spontaneous abortion: the number of spontaneous early miscarriages in group 2 was higher (58.1%) than in the group of women suffering from EGE, but having no endocrine pathology (group 1) (28.57%, p<0.05). Moreover, a greater risk of abortion was detected in patients with EGE and subclinical HT (38.7%, p<0.05). It should be specially noted that in 32.3% of women of the group 2 miscarriages occurred in early gestation that was significantly (p < 0.05) more frequent compared to the patients suffering from EGE without any pathology of the thyroid glands (10.7%). Conclusions. Consequently, comorbid course of EGE and HT is characterized by significantly common occurrence of moderate anaemia, by various forms of infertility and miscarriage in early gestation compared with similar values in the group of women with EGE without comorbidity. Sexually transmitted infections, and, in particular, urea plasma infection was significantly more often detected (p <0.05) in women with HT and ENE (26.7%) compared with the results obtained in patients (8%) with EGE without thyroid pathology (4%, p < 0.05); hyperplastic endometrial processes are observed significantly higher in women with HT and EGE compared with patients with EGE without thyroid pathology (4%, p < 0.05).

References

1. Ventskivska IB, Kuzmuk LP. Dyferentsiyne likuvannya giperplastychnykh protsesiv endometriyu na foni vnutrishnogo endometriozu [Differential treatment of endometrial hyperplastic processes on the background of internal endometriosis]. Zdorove zhenshchyny. 2010; 9:129–33. [Ukrainian]

2. Vykhlyaeva EM. Endometryoz: Rukovodstvo po endokrynnoy hynekolohyi [Endometriosis:

Guide to Endocrine Gynecology]. MYA. 2010; 4:487–570. [Russian]

3. .Davydova YuV, Zelynskaya NB, Fyrsova NA. Shchytovydnaya zheleza u beremennykh v norme y patology [Thyroid gland in preg-nant women is normal and pathologists]. Zdorove zhenshchyny. 2010; 9:64-5. [Russian]

4. Zaporozhan VM, Hladchuk IZ, Rozhkovska NM, Neporada SM. Likuvannya khvorykh na zovnishniy endometrioz: analiz desyatyrichnoho dosvidu [Treatment of patients with external endometriosis: an analysis of a ten-year experience]. II Ukrainskyi konhres po minimalniy invazyvniy khirurhiyi. 2011; 5(3):34. [Ukrainian]

5. Pankiv VI. Yododefitsytni zakhvoryuvannya: diagnostyka, profilaktyka, likuvannya [Iodine deficiency diseases: diagnosis, prevention, treatment]. Probl endokr patologiyi. 2012; 2:75–86. [Ukrainian]

6. Petrova GA. Profilaktyka akusherskykh ta perynatalnykh uskladnen u zhinok, operovanykh na shchytovydniy zalozi pid chas vagitnosti: avtoref. dis. ... kand. med. nauk, Abstr. PhDr. (Med). Kyyiv, 2015. 18 s. [Ukrainian]

7. Romanenko TG, Chayka OY. Profylaktyka akusherskykh y perynatalnykh oslozhnenyy u yunykh pervorodyashchykh na fone patology shchytovydnoy zhelezy [Prophylaxis of obstetric and peri-natal complications in young primiparas on the background of thy-roid pathologies]. Pediatriya, akusherstvo ta ginekologiya. 2014; 78(3/4):88-95. [Russian]

8. Solskyy YaP, Tatarchuk TF. Pryntsypy prymenenyya polovykh steroydnykh gormonov v klynycheskoy praktyke y ykh systemnye effekty [Princi-ples of the use of sex steroid hormones in clinical practice and their systemic effects]. Endokrynnaya gynekologyya. K, 2013:254–71. [Russian]

9. Tatarchuk TF, Mamonova TO, Mamonov OV. Sostoyanye shchytovydnoy zhelezy y reproduktyvnaya systema zhenshchyn [Thyroid status and reproductive system of women]. Zhurnal praktychnogo likarya.2009; 5:32–7. [Russian]

10. Allan G, Campen C, Hodgen G, et al. Identification of genes with differential regulation in primate endometrium during the proliferative and secretory phases of the cycle. Endocr Res. 2015; 29:53–65.

11. Berube S, Marcoux S, Maheux R. Characteristics related lo the prevalence of minimal or mild endometriosis in infertile women. Canadian Collaborative Group on Endometriosis. Epidemiology. 2015; 9:504-10.

STUDY OF QUALITY OF LIFE IN PATIENTS WITH ACUTE MYELOID LEUKAEMIA DURING INDUCTION ANTHRACYCLINE-BASED CHEMOTHERAPY

Lymanets T.V.

Key words: acute myeloid leukaemia, anthracycline cardiotoxicity, quality of life.

The study of life quality in patients with acute myeloid leukaemia during induction chemotherapy is an ex-tremely important issue in modern oncochematology. The aim of this work was to assess the quality of life in patients with acute myeloid leukaemia during induction chemotherapy with the inclusion of anthracycline antibiotics. Materials and methods.

The study included 56 patients with newly diagnosed acute myeloid leukaemia, 32 (57.1%) women and 24 (42.9%) men, aged 33 to 72 years old. The general health condition of patients assessed by ECOG was found out to be within I-II scores, and according to the Karnovsky index is was assessed as of 60-80%. All patients received standard courses of induction chemotherapy according to the schemes "7+3" or "5+2". In a comparative aspect, the assessment of the condition of patients was done twice: at baseline, before the beginning of specific treatment, and after induction chemotherapy, when remission was achieved. To study the quality of life, the Short Form

Medical Outcomes Study (SF-36) questionnaire was used. Results. At reaching remission in patients the physical activity indexes increased in 1.2 times (p<0.05); the role of physical problems in limiting life – in 1.4 times (p<0.05); the general state of health improved in 1.2 times (p<0.05); vital activity – in 1.5 times (p<0.05); the role of emotional problems in limiting life increased in 1.5 times (p<0.05); mental health improved in 1.6 times (p<0.05). Statistically significant changes in the quality of life of patients after two courses of remission induction were recorded in improving the mental status by 1.5 times (p<0.05); while the physical status of patients according to the summary scale scores did not significantly changed. Compared to the data of practically healthy respondents, the life quality indicators of patients with acute myeloid leukaemia remained significantly low. Conclusions. Acute myeloid leukaemia plays a crucial role in worsening the quality of life of patients, especially in the debut of the disease. During remission induction indices reflecting the improvement in the quality of life of patients with acute myeloid leukaemia are noted to be slightly better.

References

1. Goryainova NV, Basova OV, Tretyak NM, Anoshina MU, Koval AI. Yakist' zhuttia hvoryh na gostru mieloidnu leykemiiu pry zastosuvanni riznyh program himioterapii [Quality of life of acute myeloid leukemia using different chemotherapy programs]. Hematologiia i perelyvannia krovi. 2015; 38: 114–25. (Ukrainian).

2. Korol EE, Wang S, Johnson K, Ravandi-Kashani F, Levis M, Van Nooten F. Health-related quality of life of patients with acute myeloid leukemia: a systematic literature review. Oncol Ther. 2017; 5: 1-16.

3. Lymanets T, Skrypnyk I, Maslova G, Gusachenko I. Quality of life in acute leukemia patients with comorbid ischemic heart disease. Abstract Book of the 23rd EHA Congress; 2018 Jun 14-17; Stockholm. HemaSphere. 2 (S1); 2018. p.452.

4. Maruish ME, editor. User's manual for the SF-36v2 Health Survey (3rd ed.). Lincoln, RI: QualityMetric Incorporated; 2011. 330 p.

5. Oliva EN, Nobile F, Alimena G. Quality of life in elderly patients with acute myeloid leukemia: patients may be more accurate than physicians. Haematologica. 2011; 96: 696–702.

DOPPLER ASSESSMENT OF UTERINE BLOOD FLOW IN WOMEN WITH THE THREAT OF PREGNANCY LOSS IN THE SECOND TRIMESTER

Magerramov N. S., Shamhalova I. A.

Key words: pregnancy, II trimester, spontaneous miscarriages, Doppler assessment, uterine blood flow.

The aim of the research was to study the hemodynamic changes of uterine vessels in women with the threat of pregnancy loss in the II trimester. Material and methods. The study included 101 pregnant women with the threat of spontaneous abortion in the II trimester; their average age was 28.7 ± 4.06 years. Primigra-vidae made up 36.6%, secundigravidae made up 63,4%, primiparas made up 62,4%, and secundiparas made up 37,6%. All pregnant women passed through the procedure of history taking, studying their extra genital diseases, general clinical examination, ultrasound scanning and Doppler assessment. Ultrasound scanning was performed by the device "Flex Focus 1202" (firm "B-K Medical ApS", Denmark). Doppler as-sessment of blood flow in uterine arteries was performed starting from 21-22 weeks of gestation. The sys-tolic-diastolic ratios (SDR), pulsation index (PI) and resistance index (RI) were determined. Results. The age when women of the main and control groups had their menarche onset was approximately 12.6 ± 0.33 and 12.4 ± 0.2 years, respectively. In the main group, the menstrual cycle was described as irregular in 13.9% of cases. Among somatic diseases, the most common were chronic gastritis diagnosed in 19.8% of the

patients of the main group, and in 4.0% of the patients of the control group; neurocirculatory dystonia was diagnosed in 32 (31.7%) patients of the main group, chronic tonsillitis was detected in 33 of the main group (32.7% vs. 4.0% in the control group). The prevalence of gynaecological diseases was as follows: chronic inflammatory diseases of the genitals (42.6%), chronic adnexitis (33.7%), and cervical erosion (33.7% vs. 8.0% in the control). Frequency of medical abortions was also higher in the main group: 66.3% of cases (p<0.01) vs. 24.0% in the control group. Spontaneous miscarriages were observed in 21 (20.8%, p<0.01) women of the main group, while in the control group spontaneous miscarriages were observed in 2 (8.0%) women. In 22 (21.8 percent) of the 64 secundiparas women there was a history of preterm birth. 48 (47.5%) and 33 (32.7%) patients in the main group and 1 (4.0%) and 2 (8.0%) women in the control group com-plained of abdominal and lower back pain. Bloody vaginal discharge, chill, shortness of breath, increased uterine tone was noted by women with the threat of pregnancy loss in 20.8, 7.9, 7.9 and 9.9% of cases, respectively. On average, SDR in the main group exceeded the control value by 32.6% (p<0.05), IR did by 46.4% (p<0.01) and PI was higher by 24.0% (p<0.05). Disorders of uteri-placental blood flow were detected in 85.1% of pregnant women. Uterine blood flow disorders were detected in all 48.5% of patients with placental insufficiency, in 21.8% of women with acute genital infections and in 14.8% with gestational pyelonephritis. During the second trimester there was a decrease in uterine blood flow in both groups of the study. Hemodynamic disorders in the uterine artery in most patients were detected in the period of 27-28 weeks of gestation. Conclusion. The maximum frequency of hemodynamic disorders is observed in the period of 27-28 weeks. Doppler assessment of uterine blood flow allows clinicians to evaluate the functional state of the uterus-placenta system in the II trimester of pregnancy more objectively.

References

1. Arkhipova MP, Khamoshina MB, Chotchaeva AI, i dr. Reproduktivnyy potentsial Rossii: statistika, problemy, perspektivy uluchsheniya [Genesial capacity of Russia: statistics, problems, prospects of improvement]. Doktor. Ru. 2013; 1(79): 70-4. (Russian)

2. Glants St. Mediko-biologicheskaya statistika [Medicobiological statistics]. Per s angl. Pod red NE Buzikashvili, DV Samoylova. Moskva: Praktika; 1999. 200 p. (Russian)

3. Kaptilnyy VA, Berishvili MV, Krasilshchikov IM. Narusheniya matochno-platsentarnoy perfuzii kak prediktor infektsionnogo oslozhneniya beremennosti [Disturbances of uteroplacental perfusion as predictor of an infectious complication of pregnancy]. Interaktivnaya nauka (Cheboksary). 2016; 1: 33-41. (Russian)

4. Sidelnikova VM. Nevynashivanie beremennosti sovremennyy vzglyad na problemu [Pregnancy Not incubation a modern view on a problem]. Rossiyskiy vestnik akushera-ginekologa. 2007; 2: 62–4. (Russian)

5. Chotchaeva A.I. Profilaktika oslozhnennogo techeniya beremennosti vo vtorom trimestre [Prophylaxis of the complicated course of pregnancy in the second trimester] [dissertation]. Moskva;2013. 24 p. (Russian)

6. Alijotas-Reig J, Garrido-Gimenez C. Current concepts and new trends in the diagnosis and management of recurrent miscarriage. Obstet Gynecol Surv. 2013; 68 (6): 445–66.

7. Barati M, Shahbazian N, Ahmadi L, Masihi S. Diagnostic evaluation of uterine artery Doppler sonography for the prediction of adverse pregnancy outcomes. J Res Med Sci. 2014; 19(6): 515–9.

8. Ebrashy A, Ibrahim M, Marzook A, Yousef D. Usefulness of aspirin therapy in high-risk pregnant women with abnormal uterine artery Doppler ultrasound at 14–16 weeks' pregnancy: randomized controlled clinical trial. Croat Med J. 2005; 46 (5): 826–31.

9. Li N, Ghosh G, Gudmundsson S. Uterine artery Doppler in high-risk pregnancies at 23–24 gestational weeks is of value in predicting adverse outcome of pregnancy and selecting cases for more intense surveillance. Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand. 2014; 93(12): 1276–81.

10. Mark A, Edelman A, Borgatta L. Second-trimester postabortion care for ruptured

membranes, fetal demise, and incomplete abortion. Int J Gynecol Obstet. 2015; 129(2): 98–103. doi: 10.1016/j.ijgo.2014.11.011

11. Mentula M, Heikinheimo O. Risk factors of surgical evacuation following second-trimester medical termination of pregnancy. Contraception. 2012; 86(2): 141–6. doi: 10.1016/j.contraception.2011.11.070

12. McNamee KM, Dawood F, Farquharson RG. Mid-trimester pregnancy loss. Obstet Gynecol Clinics North America. 2014; 41(1): 87–102. doi: 10.1016/j.ogc.2013.10.007

13. Michels TC, Tiu AY. Second trimester pregnancy loss. Am Fam Physician. 2007; 76 (9): 1341–6.

14. Oloyede OA, Iketubosin F. Uterine artery Doppler study in second trimester of pregnancy. Pan Afr Med J. 2013; 5(15): 87. doi: 10.11604/pamj.2013.15.87.2321.

15. Wildschut H, Both MI, Medema S, Thomee E, Wildhagen MF, Kapp N. Medical methods for mid-trimester termination of pregnancy. Cochrane Database Syst Rev.2011 Jan 19; 1: CD005216. doi: 10.1002/14651858.CD005216.pub2

EFFECTS PRODUCED BY BETARGIN AND QUERCETIN THERAPY COMPLEX ON CLINICAL COURSE, CHRONIC SYSTEMIC INFLAMMATION AND ENDOTHELIAL DYSFUNCTION IN PATIENTS WITH STABLE CORONARY HEART DISEASE AND CONCOMITANT NON-ALCOHOLIC FATTY LIVER DISEASE

Manusha Yu.I.

Key words: coronary heart disease, non-alcoholic fatty liver disease, chronic systemic inflammation, endothelial dysfunction, central hemodynamics, blood flow in the portal and hepatic veins

Introduction. Coronary heart disease and non-alcoholic fatty liver disease are urgent present day prob-lems in Ukraine and throughout the world. The pathogenetic basis for the development of coronary heart disease is atherosclerosis of the coronary vessels. Chronic systemic inflammation is considered as the trigger mechanism of atherosclerosis and it is accompanied by dyslipidemia, endothelial dysfunction, lipid peroxidation. Functional disorders of the liver enhance the development and progression of coronary heart disease. Recent scientific achievements prove the effectiveness of betargin and quercetin in the presence of this comorbid pathology. The aim of the research was to study the effects of comprehensive therapy of betargin with quercetin on the clinical course of stable coronary heart disease and non-alcoholic fatty liver disease, indicators of chronic systemic inflammation (TNFa, IL-6, IL-10, expression of kappa-B-inhibitor alpha gene), endothelial dysfunction (circulating endothelial CD32 and CD40 microparticles), central hemodynamics and blood flow velocity in the veins of the liver. Materials and methods. The clinical study included 70 people aged 40-69 years with the confirmed diagnosis of stable coronary heart disease: stable exertional angina, functional class I-II, CH 0-I and concomitant non-alcoholic fatty liver disease (steatohepatosis). 2 months following the protocol therapy, the patients were divided into 2 groups: the study group (n=27) and the comparison group (n=43). We performed comprehensive examination of patients before and after the treatment: echo-doppler-cardiography, ultrasound scan of the liver, identification of serum cytokine concentrations: TNFa, IL-6 and IL-10 by enzyme-immunoassay and polymerase chain reaction to determine the expression of kappa-Binhibitor alpha gene. Using the method of flow cytoflowmetry, we established the number of circulating endothelial CD32 and CD40 microparticles. Patients of the study group were prescribed to take betargin and quercetin along with the standard therapy, and the patients of the comparison group continued to receive the baseline therapy. The treatment results were evaluated in 2 months. Improvement of the general condition and clinical course of this comorbidity has been found out that is confirmed by the reduced endothelial dysfunction indices of circulating endothelial CD32 CD40 microparticles, reduced blood flow rate in the portal and hepatic veins and enhanced central

hemodynamic parameters, thus proving the expressed endothelial protective properties of betargin and quercetin treatment complex. Furthermore, the anti-inflammatory effect was observed by lowering the TNF α , IL-6 cytokines and IkB α mRNA expression in mononuclear cells. Conclusions. Thus, the combination of betargin and quercetin during standard protocol therapy in patients with stable coronary heart disease and non-alcoholic fatty liver disease demonstrates a positive impact on the clinical course due to marked endothelial protective and moderate anti-inflammatory effects.

References

1. Shi A, Tao Z, Wei P, & Zhao J. Epidemiological aspects of heart. Exp Ther Med diseases. 2016;12(3):1645–1650

2. Drapkina OM. Nealkogol'naya zhirovaya bolezn' pecheni kak komponent metabolicheskogo sindroma [Non-alcoholic fatty liver disease as a component of the metabolic syndrome]. Rossiyskiye meditsinskiye vesti. 2010;2: 72-78 (Russian)

3. Hashizume M & Mihara M. Atherogenic effects of TNF- α and IL-6 via up-regulation of scavenger receptors. Cytokine. 2012; 58(3): 424–430

4. Kaidashev IP. Aktivaciya yadernogo faktora kB kak molekulyarnoj osnovy patogeneza metabolicheskogo synroma [Activation of the nuclear factor kB as the molecular basis of the pathogenesis of the metabolic syndrome]. Pathol Physiol and Experim Ther. 2013; (3): 65-72 (Russian)

5. Martin RDe, Hoeth M, Hofer-Warbinek R. The transcription factor NF-kappa B and the regulation of vascular cell function. Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol. 2000;20(11): 83-88

6. Vakalyuk II, Virstyuk NH. Perebih stabil'noyi ishemichnoyi khvoroby sertsya na tli nealkohol'noyi zhyrovoyi khvoroby pechinky v reabilitatsiynomu periodi pislya revaskulyaryzatsiynykh vtruchan' [The course of stable ischemic heart disease combined with nonalcoholic fatty liver disease in the rehabilitation period after revascularization interventions]. Visnyk naukovykh doslidzhen'. 2016; 4: 23-25 (Ukrainian)

7. Kharchenko NV, Anokhina HA, Kharchenko VV. Pechinkovi ta pozapechinkovi efekty likuval'noho kompleksu z L-arhininom ta betayinom u khvorykh iz metabolichnym syndromom [Hepatic and extrahepatic effects of the treatment complex with L-arginine and betaine in patients with metabolic syndrome]. Suchasna hastroenterolohiya. 2015;3(83): 42-49 (Ukrainian)

8. Kolesnikova YeV. Sovremennyy patsiyent s zabolevaniyem pecheni i patologiyey serdechno-sosudistoy sistemy: kakoy vybor sdelat'? [A modern patient with liver disease and cardiovascular pathology: what choice should I make?]. Suchasna gastroyenterologiya. 2014;2 (76):85-94 (Russian)

9. Icksoo Lee. Betaine is a positive regulator of mitochondrial respiration. Biochemical and Biophysical Research Communications. 2015; 456: 621-625

10. Stepanov YuM. Arginin v meditsinskoy praktike [Arginine in medical practice]. Suchasna gastroyenterologíya. 2005;4: 121 – 127 (Russian)

11. Prysyazhnyuk VP, Voloshyn OI. Osoblyvosti vykorystannya kvertsetynu v patsiyentiv iz nealkohol'noyu zhyrovoyu khvoroboyu pechinky riznykh vikovykh hrup [Features of using quercetin in patients with non-alcoholic fatty liver disease of different age groups]. Visnyk naukovykh doslidzhen'. 2015; 1: 23-25 (Ukrainian)

12. Chekalina Nataliya, Burmak Yurii, Petrov Yeugen, Borisova Zinaida, Manusha Yulija, Kazakov Yurii, Kaidashev Igor. Quercetin Reduces the Transcriptional Activity of NF-kB in Stable Coronary Artery Disease. India Heart Journal. 2018; doi.org/10.1016/j.ihj.2018.04.006

13. Kovalevs'ka IV. Vyznachennya fizyko-khimichnykh kharakterystyk kvertsetynu [Determination of physical and chemical characteristics of quercetin]. Farmakohnoziya ta khimiya pryrodnykh spoluk. 2014;1(14):9–11 (Ukrainian)

14. Strutynskiy AV. Ekhokardiohrama: analiz i interpretatsiya [Echocar-diography: analysis and interpretation]: Moskva: MED; 2001: 208p. (Russian)

15. Unifikovaniy klinichnyy protokol pervynnoyi, vtorynnoyi (spetsializovanoyi) ta tretinnoyi
(visokospetsializovanoyi) medychnoyi dopomohy. Stabil'na ishemichna khvoroba sertsya [Unified clinical protocol, secondary (specialized) and third (highly specialized) medical care. Stable ischemic heart disease.]. Novyny medytsyny i farmatsiyi. Kardiolohiya i revmatolohiya (tematychnyy nomer). 2016; 572: 27-60 (Ukrainian)

16. Sennikov SV, Silkov AN. Metody opredeleniya tsitokinov [Methods of cytokine detection]. Tsitokiny i vospaleniye. 2005; 1(4): 22-27 (Russian)

17. Kutsenko NL, Savchenko LG, Kaydasheva EI, Kutsenko LA, Solochina IL & Kaydashev IP. Determination of circulating CD32+ CD40+- microparticles — modification of degradation assessment of endothelial cells. Clinical Laboratory Diagnostics. 2011;7: 20-23

18. Manusha YUI, Kazakov YUM, Mamontova TV, Shlykova OA, Chekalina NI. Zastosuvannya betarhinu v likuvanni stabil'noyi ishemichnoyi khvoroby sertsya ta nealkohol'noyi zhyrovoyi khvoroby pechinky [Application of betargin in the treatment of sta-ble ischemic heart disease and non-alcoholic fatty liver disease]. Visnyk problemy biolohiyi ta medytsyny. 2018; 2: 44-47 (Ukrainian)

19. Lutay YAM, Parkhomenko OM, Ryzhkova NO, Havrylenko TI, Irkin OI, Kozhukhov SM, Stepura AO, Bilyy DO. Vplyv terapiyi vnutrishn'ovennym inhibitorom 5-lipoksyhenazy kvertsetynom na funktsiyu endoteliyu, vyrazhenist' systemnoho zapalennya ta prooksydantnoho stresu pry hostromu infarkti miokarda z elevatsiyeyu sehmenta ST [Influence of therapy with intravenous inhibitor of 5-lipoxygenase quercetin on endothelial function, sys-temic inflammation and prooxidant stress in acute myocardial in-farction with elevation of segment of ST]. Medytsyna neotlozhnykh sostoyanyy. 2016; 1(72): 111-119 (Ukrainian)

MECHANISM OF DEVELOPMENT of inner ear EXTERNAL CILLIARY CELL dysfunction AND its correlation with AUTOIMMUNE TYROIDItIS

Naumenko A.N., Deeva Yu.V., Tarasenko M.V.

Key words: autoimmune thyroiditis, otoacoustic emission, Prestin, antibodies to thyroglobulin, thyroid peroxidase antibodies, statistical analysis.

This article focuses on the prevalence of dysfunction of the inner ear structures in individuals with auto-immune thyroiditis in the state of euthyroidism. The hormonal functioning and intensity of autoimmune proc-ess in the thyroid gland were investigated. We determined the level of Prestin protein, a specific biochemical parameter for an internal. The hearing was assessed by recording the otoacoustic emission at the distortion products frequency. Subsequent multifaceted statistical analysis revealed reliable data of the function disruption of external cilliary cells of the inner ear, the increasing of Prestin protein levels in autoimmune thyroiditis group compared with healthy individuals. In addition, the results allow us to outline the main links in the mechanism of hearing impairment development in autoimmune thyroiditis and prove the reliability of the relationship between increased autoimmune activity in the thyroid gland and hearing function impairment.

References

1. Gawron W, Pospiech L, Noczenski A, Erendors-Raczkowska K. Electrophysiological tests of the hearing organ in Hashimoto's disease. Journal of Pediatric Endocrinology&Metabolism. 2004; 17: 27-32.

2. Arduc A, Isık S, Allusoglu S. Evaluation of hearing function in patients with euthyroid Hashimoto's thyroiditis. Endocrine. 2015. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/25963023.

3. Zheng J, Shen W, He DZ, Long KB, Madison LD, Dallos P. Prestin is the motor protein of cochlear outer hair cells. Nature. 2000 May 11; 405(6783): 149-55.

4. Keller JP, Homma K, Duan C, Zheng J, Cheatham MA, Dallos P. Functional regulation of

the SLC26-family protein prestin by calci-um/calmodulin. The Journal of neuroscience. 2014 Jan 22; 34(4): 1325-32.

5. Koga T, Kawakami A. The role of CaMK4 in immune responses. Modern rheumatology. 2018 Mar; 28(2): 211-4.

6. Zhou Y, Takahashi S, Homma K, Duan C, Zheng J, Cheatham MA, Zheng J. The susceptibility of cochlear outer hair cells to cyclodextrin is not related to their electromotile activity. Acta Neuropathol Commun. 2018 Sep 24; 6(1): 98.

7. Alvan G, Berninger E, Gustafsson LL, Karlsson KK, Paintaud G, Wakelkamp M. Concentration-Response Relationship of Hearing Impairment Caused by Quinine and Salicylate: Pharmacological Similarities but Different Molecular Mechanisms. Basic Clin Pharmacol Toxicol. 2017 Jan; 120(1): 5-13.

8. Hakizimana P, Fridberger A. Effects of salicylate on sound-evoked outer hair cell stereocilia deflections. Pflugers Arch. 2015 Sep; 467(9): 2021-9.

9. Santos-Sacchi J, Song L. Chloride and salicylate influence prestin-dependent specific membrane capacitance: support for the area motor model. J Biol Chem. 2014 Apr 11; 289(15): 10823-30.

SONOGRAPHIC ASSESSMENT OF WOMEN WITH RETROCHORIAL HEMATOMA IN THE FIRST TRIMESTER OF PREGNANCY

Orujeva P. F., Shamhalova I. A.

Key words: pregnancy, the first trimester, retrochorial hematoma, ultrasound, Doppler, blood flow.

The aim of this study is to determine dopplerometric and ultrasound parameters in women with retro-chorial hematoma in the first trimester of pregnancy. Methods. 65 pregnant women with the threat of preg-nancy termination and RHG in the period of 7-13 gestational weeks aged from 20 to 36 years (average age was 27.6±1.48) years were examined. The control group consisted of 22 pregnant women without the threat of pregnancy loss, whose average age was 28.2±1.0 years. The examined pregnant women underwent his-tory taking procedure, general clinical examination, ultrasound scanning and Doppler assessment by using the "Siemens sonoline G40" (Germany) Imaging techniques included standard investigation proce-dures: trans-vaginal device. ultrasonography and transabdominal scan with a full bladder using a transvaginal trans-ducer of 6.5 MHz, convex probes of 3,5 and 5 MHz in the two-dimensional Doppler ultrasound pulsed and colour modes. We determined the systolic-diastolic ratio (SDR), resistance index (RI) and pulsation index (PI). Indices were calculated using the following formulas: SDR = S/D, the ratio of the maximum systolic phase to the minimum value in the diastole phase; IR = (S-D)/S, where C and D respectively, the maximum rate of the systole and the rate of the diastole of the vascular blood flow; SP=(s-D)/M, where M is the aver-age value of the blood flow rate. Body mass index is calculated by the Quetelet formula. Results. 24 (36.9%) of patients were in their 7-10 week gestation period, the rest 41 (63.1%) of the patients were in their 11-13 week. The body mass index averaged 22.82±1.06 kg / m2 and 26.40±0.9 kg/m2 in pregnant women with RHG and in the control group respectively. In the structure and frequency of gynaecological diseases (cervi-cal ectopia, inflammatory diseases, scar deformation, endometrial hyperplasia, etc.) of the patients with PCG, cervical ectopia and inflammatory diseases were prevalent. According to the history, menarche age ranged from 12 to 15 years and averaged 13.9±0.53 years, in the control group it was 12.3±0.28 years. In general, menstrual cycle disorders were observed in 62 patients (95.4%), while in the control group disorders were observed in 2 (9.1%). Menorrhagia was the most frequent in 43.1% of cases vs. 0% in the control, al-gomenorrhea was diagnosed in 33.8% of cases vs. 9.1% in the control, (p<0.01). The 40.0% of secundigra-vidae had the second pregnancy in, 24.6% of the

secundigravidae had the third pregnancy, 7.7% of them had the fourth pregnancy, and the fifth pregnancy was observed in 3.1% ofsecundigravidae. History of abortions was found in 27.7% patients of the main group vs 9.1% in the control group, (p < 0.01), miscarriages were registered in the 16.9% of the main group vs 0% in the control. Lower abdominal pain was noted by 23.1%. In 41.5% of cases there was a combination of pain and bleeding. In 50.8% of the cases, a pole was determined, 49.2% of the cases - the parietal location of the hematoma. According to dopplerometry data, the average indices of SDO, IR, and PI of spiral arteries in patients with PCG in the first trimester of pregnancy were increased relative to the control group. In patients with RHH, the SDO value was increased by an average of 2.5 times (p<0.01), and IR - 1.5 times (p<0.05).In colour Doppler mapping, single color loci or intermittent vascularisation were detected in 7.7%, multiple – in 66.2% of cases and in 6.1% of cases of color loci were not observed. In women with the threat of termination of pregnancy, complicated by PCG, the determination of the location and magnitude of the hematoma, the assessment of the yolk SAC volume is important. Women with RHG can be attributed to a high risk of spontaneous miscarriage and other complications of pregnancy and functional disorders of the foetus, in particular fetoplacental insufficiency and foetal delay syndrome. Conclusion. The use of echographic criteria for assessing the development of the yolk SAC and the development of fetoplacental hemodynamic changes in the first trimester of pregnancy, especially in patients with a habitual loss, will determine the risk of adverse course and outcome of gestation, as well as timely select the appropriate pathogenetic treatment.

References

1. Bushtyreva IO, Kuznetsova NB, Zayats SS, Pelogeina EI, Dmitrieva MP. Retrokhorialnaya gematoma, prediktory neblagopoluchiya [Retrochorial hematoma, trouble predictors]. Kubanskiy nauchnyy meditsinskiy vestnik. 2015; 4(153): 39-44. (Russian)

2. Lan Xiang, Zhaolian Wei, Yunxia Cao. Symptoms of an Intrauterine Hematoma Associated with Pregnancy Complications: A Systematic Review. PLoS One. 2014; 9(11): e111676. doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0111676

3. Mantoni M, Pedersen JF. Intrauterine haematoma an ultrasonic study of threatened abortion. Br J Obstet Gynaecol. 1981; 88: 47–51.

4. van Oppenraaij RH, Jauniaux E, Christiansen OB, Horcajadas JA, Farquharson RG, et al. Predicting adverse obstetric outcome after early pregnancy events and complications: a review. Hum Reprod Update. 2009; 15: 409–21.

5. Torchinov AM, Umakhanova MM, Doronin GL, Mazurkevich MV, Ron MG. Vliyanie retrokhorialnoy gematomy na iskhod beremennosti pri privychnom nevynashivanii [Influence of a retrochorial hematoma on the result of pregnancy at habitual not incubation]. Problemy reproduktsii. 2014; 5: 82-6. (Russian)

6. Tower CL, Regan L. Intrauterine haematomas in a recurrent miscarriage population. Hum Reprod. 2001; 16: 2005–7.

7. Pearlstone M, Baxi L. Subchorionic hematoma: a review. Obstet Gynecol Surv. 1993; 48: 65-8.

8. Tuuli MG, Norman SM, Odibo AO, Macones GA, Cahill AG. Perinatal outcomes in women with subchorionic hematoma: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Obstet Gynecol. 2011; 117: 1205–12.

9. Norman SM, Odibo AO, Macones GA, Dicke JM, Crane JP, et al. Ultrasound-detected subchorionic hemorrhage and the obstetric implications. Obstet Gynecol. 2010; 116: 311–5.

10. Whitworth M, Bricker L, Neilson JP, Dowswell T. Ultrasound for fetal assessment in early pregnancy. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2010; 4: CD007058.

11. Salomon LJ, Bernard JP, Duyme M, et al. Revisiting first-trimester fetal biometry. Ultrasound Obstet Gynecol. 2003; 22: 63–66.

12. Strizhakov AN, Ignatko IV, Timokhina TF, Lvova AG. Klinicheskoe znachenie ultrazvukovogo issledovaniya embriona i ekstraembrionalnykh struktur v prognozirovanii iskhodov

beremennosti u zhenshchin s nevynashivaniem [Clinical value of ultrasonic examination of an embryo and extraembrionary structures in forecasting of result of pregnancy at women with not incubation]. Voprosy ginekologii, akusherstva i perinatologii. 2003; 2 (2):5-12. (Russian)

13. Torchinov AM, Umakhanova MM, Doronin GL, Ron MG. Beremennost malogo sroka i retrokhorialnaya gematoma: diagnostika, lechenie i prognozy na sovremennom etape razvitiya akusherstva [Pregnancy of small term and retrochorial hematoma: diagnostics, treatment and forecasts at the present stage of development of obstetrics]. Molodoy uchenyy. 2013; 4: 659-662. (Russian)

14. Soldo V, Cutura N, Zamurovic M. Threatened miscarriage in the first trimester and retrochorial hematomas: sonographic evaluation and significance. Clin Exp Obstet Gynecol. 2013; 40(4): 548-50.

15. Volkova EV, Gaydamakina LF, Demidova AI, i dr. Techenie beremennosti, oslozhnennoe retrokhorialnoy gematomoy v pervom trimestre [The course of pregnancy complicated by a retrochorial hematoma in the first trimester]. Farmateka. 2016; 12 (325): 53-5. (Russian)

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COURSE OF CEREBRO-CRANIAL INJURY IN CHILDREN WITH CONNECTIVE TISSUE DYSPLASIA

Petrenko V. N.

Key words: children, connective tissue dysplasia, cerebrocranial injury, urine, oxyproline.

Cerebrocranial injuries in children are one of the most serious and urgent problems of modern medicine and national health care due to their high incidence rate and severe consequences, which often lead to high mortality and disability. Over past decades researchers have reported about the growth of syndromal pathology resulted from connective tissue dysplasia that can considerably influence on the course of the disease. The purpose of this work is to identify characteristics of the course of cerebrocranial injury in children with evidence of connective tissue dysplasia. The total number of inspected children who have had cerebrocranial injury is 50; their age varies from 3 to 7 years old. The distribution of the patients into groups by the clinical forms of cerebrocranial injury showed the following: 54% of children had brain concussion, 26 % of patients had moderate brain contusion brain contusion, and 20 % of children had severe brain contusion. We have revealed based on the findings obtained that brain injuries are found out to ne more frequent among boys than among girls (66% vs. 34%). Severity of brain injury in children correlates with the presence of such clinical syndromes as vestibule-ataxical, epileptical, motor impairment, liquor hypertension and high level of oxyproline in urine. The results suggest that the presence of connective tissue dysplasia signs in children often correlates with more severe cerebrocranial injury that can be explained by accelerated collagen disintegration and, consequently, by higher instability of bone and cartilage tissue and walls of blood vessels.

References

1. Mazurin AV, Vorontsov IM. Propedevtika detskih bolezeney [Propaedeutics of child's diseases]. Moskva: Medicina; 1985. 430 p. (Russian).

2. Pobedenniy A. Rasprostranennost` i struktura cherepno-mozgovoiy travmy v krupnom promishlennom regione [Prevalence and structure of brain injury at large industrial cities]. Ukrainskiy neirohirurgycheskiy gurnal. 2011; 3: 32-35. (Russian)

3. Veyn AM. Vegetativnie rasstroystva [Vegetal abnormality]. Moskva: Medicinskoe informirovannoe agenstvo; 2000. 749 p. (Russian)

4. Kadikova AS, Manvelova MS, Shvedkova VV. Practicheskaya nevrologiya [Practical neurology]. Moskva: Geotar – Media; 2011. 446 p. (Russian)

5. Demenko VD, Suhonosova OU. Osobennosti kliniki, diagnostiki i lecheniya

travmaticheskoy bolesni golovnogo mozga u detey [Specialities of symptoms, diagnosis and curing of traumatic disease of kid's brains]. Har'kov: Uchebno-metodicheskoe posobie; 1999. 37 p. (Russian)

6. Hobzey N, Pedachenko E, Golik V. Epidemiologiya invalidnosti v sledstvii cherepnomozgovih travm v Ukraine [Epidemiology of disability as a consequence of brain injury in Ukraine]; Gurnal Ukraina, Zdorovia nacii. 2011; 3(19): 30-34. (Russian)

7. Evtushenko SK, Lisovoy EV, Evtushenko OS. Lisplazia soedinitel`noy tkani v nevrologii i pediatrii [Connective tissue dysplasia in neurology and pediatrics]. Doneck: Zaslavskiy izdatelskiy dom; 2009. 361 p. (Russian)

8. Kadurina TI, Gorbunova VN. Displazia soedinitelnoy tkani [Connective tissue dysplasia]. Sanct-Peterburg: ELBI-SPb; 2009. 702 p. (Russian)

9. Arsent'ev VG, Baranov VS, Shabalov NP. Nasledstvennie zabolevania soedinitel'noy tkani kak konstitucional'naya prichina poliprgannih narusheniy u detey [Heritable desiases of connective tissue as constitutional reason of multisystemic kids' irregularities]. Sankt-Peterburg: SpecLit; 2015. 230 p.

PECULIARITIES OF COLORECTAL PHENOTYPE OF CARCINOMA OF UNKNOWN PRIMARY ORIGIN

Poslavska O. V., Shponka I. S., Hrytsenko P. O.

Key words: carcinoma of unknown primary origin, colorectal cancer, CK20, CDX2, CK7.

Among cancers of unknown primary origin, adenocarcinomas are traditionally the most common histo-logical type of tumours. Carcinoma of a colorectal phenotype (CK20 +, CK7-, CDX2 +) has a relatively more favourable prognosis due to a more efficient system of procedures developed over the past two decades for colon cancer treatment. Accurate verification of metastases of colorectal carcinomas can be difficult due to the similarity of metastases of primary gastrointestinal, pancreatic-biliary or mucinous carcinomas of female reproductive system, simulating the characteristics of primary colon cancer and vice versa. The aim of this work is to investigate the complex of morphological, morphometric and immunohistochemical characteristics of colorectal carcinomas metastases in comparison with primary colon tumours in order to improve diagnostic algorithms. Materials and methods. A retrospective analysis was based on the biopsy material of 37 patients (29 women and 8 men) aged 28 to 81 years (mean age 58.46 ± 12.28 , median 58) with metastases produced by cancers of unknown primary origin, which were later confirmed by the immunohistochemical study as colorectal carcinomas and on 41 follow-up postoperative material of patients with primary colon cancer in 24 women and 17 men aged from 27 to 76 years (mean 60.56 \pm 12.81, median 64). The analysis of the distribution of metastatic carcinoma distribution revealed a typical affection of the female reproductive system: 18 out of 37 (48.65%), and in 13 of those cases (35.13%) ovaries were affected). Morphologically these changes developed the features of papillary serous moderately differentiated carcinomas. The age of women with primary intestinal adenocarcinoma (mean 60.54±12.25, median 65) was slightly higher than in women with metastatic invasion of the reproductive system (mean 59.26±13.40, median 60), and than in women with colorectal carcinoma metastases detected to localized in other regions (mean 57.2±12.16; median 58.2) (all p>0.05). Conclusions. Carcinomas of colorectal phenotype CK20 + / CDX2 + / CK 7 depending on a decrease in the degree of their differentiation can develop CK7 + status in individual tumours patterns that when taking into account the high percentages among female patients and the prevalence in metastatic ovarian affection, requires the elaboration of the immunohistochemical panel by exclusion markers (e.g. CA-125, estrogenic receptor).

References

1. Pavlidis N, Pentheroudakis G. Cancer of unknown primary site. The Lancet. 2012; 379(9824):1428-1435. doi: 10.1016/S0140-6736(11)61178-1.

2. Choi J, Nahm JH, Kim SK. Prognostic clinicopathologic factors in carcinoma of unknown primary origin: a study of 106 consecutive cases. Oncotarget. 2017; 8(37): 62630–62640. doi: 10.18632/oncotarget.16021.

3. Clinical practice guidelines in oncology of the National Comprehensive Cancer Network. Colon cancer (version I.2018 – January 18, 2018). [Internet]. Available from: https://www.nccn.org/about/news/ebulletin/ebulletindetail.aspx?ebulletinid=1359.

4. Vajdic CM, Goldstein D. Cancer of unknown primary site. Aust Fam Physician. 2015; 44(9):640-643.

5. Lin F, Haiyan Liu. Immunohistochemistry in Undifferentiated Neoplasm / Tumor of Uncertain Origin. Arch Pathol Lab Med. 2014;138:1583-1610. doi: 10.5858/arpa.2014-0061-RA.

6. Greco FA. Molecular diagnosis of the tissue of origin in cancer of unknown primary site: useful in patient management. Curr Treat Options Oncol. 2013;14(4):634-642. doi: 10.1007/s11864-013-0257-1.

7. Poslavska OV. Vyznachennia liniinykh rozmiriv ta ploshch okremykh morfolohichnykh obiektiv na mikrofotohrafiiakh za dopomohoiu prohramy ImageJ. [Determination of linear dimensions and square surfaces areas of morphological objects on micrographs using ImageJ software]. Morphologia. 2016;10(3):377-81. (Ukrainian).

8. Poslavska OV, Shponka IS, Gritsenko PO, Alekseenko OA. Morfometrychniy analis pancitokeratyn-negatyvnykh neoplastychnykh uragen limfatychnykh vusliv shii [Morphometric analysis of pancytokeratin-negative neoplastic damages of the lymphatic nodes of the neck]. Medicni perspektivi. 2018;23(1):30-37. (Ukrainian).

ANTI-HELICOBACTER PYLORI THERAPY OPTIMIZATION IN PATIENTS WITH CHRONIC GASTRITIS AND CONCOMITANT DIABETES MELLITUS TYPE 2

Radionova T.O.

Key words: diabetes mellitus type 2, chronic gastritis, small intestinal bacterial overgrowth, Helicobacter pylori, Bacillus infantis.

Prevalence of Helicobacter pylori in diabetic patients is still remaining unclear, as well as the role of gut microbiota in the progression of gastric pathology that can influence the effectiveness of patients' manage-ment. The goal of this study was to improve the treatment efficiency of chronic Helicobacter pylori-associated gastritis in patients with diabetes mellitus type 2 by intestine microbiocenosis correction. Design and methods. 28 patients with Helicobacter pylori-positive chronic gastritis and concomitant diabetes mellitus type 2 passed through filling in questionnaire, Helicobacter pylori faecal antigen test and hydrogen breath test with lactulose. Depending on prescribed therapy the patients were divided into two groups: I (n=14) – took Pantoprazole 40 mg, Amoxicilline 1000 mg and Clarithromycin 500 mg; II (n=14) – received Pantoprazole 40 mg, Amoxicilline 1000 mg, Clarithromycin 500 mg and probiotic B. infantis. Fisher's F-criterion was used for statistical analysis. Results. On the 28-th day the rate of small intestinal bacterial overgrowth among the patients of the I group was higher than before the treatment (78%, n=11 vs. 57%, n=8). At the same time, it decreased in the patients of the II group (7%, n=1 vs. 36%, n=5; $(\phi=4,342; p<0.05))$. The efficiency of Helicobacter pylori eradication made up 71% (n=10) and 88% (n=12) (φ =0,934; p>0,05) among the patients of the I and II groups respectively. Conclusions. Prescription of B. infantis promotes symptomatic improvement by preventing small intestinal bacterial overgrowth in patients with chronic gastritis and concomitant diabetes mellitus type 2.

References

1. Радіонова TO. Chastota ta kharakter urazhen' shlunku u khvorykh na tsukrovyy diabet v zalezhnosti vid yoho typu [Frequency and character of gastric lesions in patients with diabetes mellitus depending on its type] Akt probl such med. 2018;18(2):95-8. (Ukrainian)

2. Adeghate E, Ponery AS, Sharma AK, El-Sharkawy T, Donáth T. Diabetes mellitus is associated with a decrease in vasoactive intestinal polypeptide content of gastrointestinal tract of rat. Arch Physiol Biochem. 2001;109(3):246-51. doi: 10.1076/apab.109.3.246.11587.

3. Bonfigli AR, Boemi M, Festa R, Bonazzi P, Brandoni G, Spazzafumo L, Olivieri F, Ceriello A, Genovese S, Testa R. Ran-domized, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial to evaluate the effect of Helicobacter pylori eradication on glucose homeostasis in type 2 diabetic patients. Nutr Metab Cardiovasc Dis. 2016;26(10):893-8. doi: 10.1016/j.numecd.2016.06.012.

4. Brownlee M. Glycation products and the pathogenesis of diabetic complications. Diabetes Care. 1992;15(12):1835-43.

5. Forbes JM, Cooper ME. Mechanisms of diabetic complications. Physiol Rev. 2013;93(1):137-88. doi: 10.1152/physrev.00045.2011.

6. Giacco F, Brownlee M. Oxidative stress and diabetic complications. Circ Res. 2010;107(9):1058-70. doi: 10.1161/CIRCRESAHA.110.223545.

7. Han X, Li Y, Wang J, Liu B, Hu H, Li X, Yang K, Yuan J, Yao P, Wei S, Wang Y, Liang Y, Miao X, Zhang X, Guo H, Yang H, Wu T, He M. Helicobacter pylori infection is associated with type 2 diabetes among a middle- and old-age Chinese population. Diabe-tes Metab Res Rev. 2016;32(1):95-101. doi: 10.1002/dmrr.2677.

8. Horikawa C, Kodama S, Fujihara K, Hirasawa R, Yachi Y, Suzuki A, Hanyu O, Shimano H, Sone H. High risk of failing eradication of Helicobacter pylori in patients with diabetes: a metaanalysis. Dia-betes Res Clin Pract. 2014;106(1):81-87. doi: 10.1016/j.diabres.2014.07.009.

9. Huang Y, Sun J, Wang X, Tao X, Wang H, Tan W. Asymptomatic chronic gastritis decreases metformin tolerance in patients with type 2 diabetes. J Clin Pharm Ther. 2015;40(4):461-5. doi: 10.1111/jcpt.12290.

10. Khoshbaten M, Madad L, Baladast M, Mohammadi M, Aliasgarzadeh A. Gastrointestinal signs and symptoms among per-sons with diabetes mellitus. Gastroenterol Hepatol Bed Bench. 2011;4(4):219-23. doi: 10.12691/ajnr-3-3-1.

11. Latorre R, Sternini C, De Giorgio R, Greenwood-Van Meerveld B. Enteroendocrine cells: a review of their role in brain-gut communi-cation. Neurogastroenterol Motil. 2016;28(5):620-30. doi: 10.1111/nmo.12754.

12. Mawe GM, Hoffman JM. Serotonin signalling in the gut functions, dysfunctions and therapeutic targets. Nat Rev Gastroenterol Hepatol. 2013;10(8):473-86. doi: 10.1038/nrgastro.2013.105.

13. Ogurtsova K, da Rocha Fernandes JD, Huang Y, Linnenkamp U, Guariguata L, Cho NH, Cavan D, Shaw JE, Makaroff LE. IDF Diabetes Atlas: Global estimates for the prevalence of diabetes for 2015 and 2040. Diabetes Res Clin Pract. 2017;128:40-50. doi: 10.1016/j.diabres.2017.03.024.

14. Ordög T. Interstitial cells of Cajal in diabetic gastroenteropathy. Neurogastroenterol Motil. 2008;20(1):8-18. doi: 10.1111/j.1365-2982.2007.01056.x.

15. Shuhaimi M, Yazid AM, Ali AM, Ghazali MH, Zaitun H, Nur Atiqah NA. Antibacterial activity, antimicrobial susceptibility and adherence properties of Bifidobacterium infantis G4. Pak J Biol Sci. 1999;2(4):1231-1235. doi: 10.3923/pjbs.1999.1231.1235.

16. Stanciu OG, Trifan A, Sfarti C, Cojocariu C, Stanciu C. Helicobacter pylori infection in patients with diabetes mellitus. Rev Med Chir Soc Med Nat Iasi. 2003;107(1):59-65.

17. Tamura T, Morita E, Kawai S, Sasakabe T, Sugimoto Y, Fukuda N, Suma S, Nakagawa H, Okada R, Hishida A, Naito M, Hamajima N, Wakai K. No association between Helicobacter pylori infection and diabetes mellitus among a general Japanese population: a cross-sectional study. Springerplus. 2015;4:602. doi: 10.1186/s40064-015-1371-2.

18. Vaarala O, Atkinson MA, Neu J. The "perfect storm" for type 1 dia-betes: the complex interplay between intestinal microbiota, gut permeability, and mucosal immunity. Diabetes. 2008;57(10):2555–62. doi: 10.2337/db08-0331.

19. Vaishnav BT, Shaikh SR, Bamanikar AA, Kakrani AL, Tambile RR. Diagnostic upper gastrointestinal endoscopy and prevalence of Helicobacter Pylori infection in dyspeptic type 2 diabetes mellitus patients. J Dig Endosc. 2018;9(2):53-60. doi: 10.4103/jde.JDE_10_18.

20. Yale JF. Oral antihyperglycemic agents and renal disease: new agents, new concepts. J Am Soc Nephrol. 2005;16(3):7-10. doi: 10.1681/ASN.2004110974.

PECULIARITIES OF THE EXPRESSION OF ESTROGEN AND PROGESTERONE RECEPTORS IN OVARIAN TUMOUR

Savchenko O.A., Shponka I.S., Savchenko P.V.

Key words: epithelial tumours, granulo-cellular tumours, metastasis of mucinous adenocarcinoma, ER, PGR.

Differential diagnosis of ovarian tumours is still remaining a topical issue today. Epithelial ovarian tumours occur in 55-60% of all neoplasias of this localization, granulo-cellular ovarian tumours occur in 2-5% of cases, and metastatic lessons of ovaries make up 3-15%. More accurate diagnosis and prognosis have become possible due to the use of immunohistochemical method. The aim is of this study is to investigate the complex of morphological and immunohistochemical characteristics of the hormonal status of epithelial, granulo-cellular tumours and metastatic ovarian lesions caused by adenocarcinomas in order to improve ex-isting diagnostic algorithms. Materials and methods. The study was based on the retrospective analysis of the biopsy material taken from 40 women aged from 27 to 78 years (mean 58.46 ± 12.28 , median 58) with ovarian tumours of which there were 31 epithelial tumours, 8-granulocytic tumours of adult type and 1 metas-tasis of mucinous colon adenocarcinoma invaded into the ovary with primary colonic tumour. Results. Analysis of all these cases of epithelial ovarian tumours revealed a correlation between increased expression of estrogen receptors and progesterone markers and a decrease in the level of differentiation of ovarian neoplasms (all p < 0.05). In all the cases of adult-type granulo-cellular ovarian tumours no correlation was found between the increase in expression of the receptors of these markers. Conclusions. Epithelial ovarian tumours of different histological variants with a decrease in the degree of differentiation and granulo-cellular ovarian tumours predominantly have a positive status for the estrogen and progesterone re-ceptors, and the metastasis of mucinous intestinal adenocarcinoma into the ovary is of zero status that requires expansion of the immunohistochemical panel (eg CA-125 markers, vimentin and calretinin).

References

1. Jordania KI, Kerzhkovskaya NA, Pajanidi Yug, Anurova OA, Lyubimova NV. Granulezokletochnyye opukholi yaichnikov. Diagnostika i lecheniye [Granulosa cell tumors of the ovaries. Diagnosis and treatment]. Oncogynecology. 2014; 2: 33-42. (Russian).

2. Adult granulosa cell tumors of the ovary: a retrospective study of 30 cases with respect to the expression of steroid synthesis enzymes. Sachiko Kitamura, Kaoru Abiko, Noriomi Matsumura et al. Journal of Gynecologic Oncology. 2017; 28(4):31-39.

3. Fletcher CDM. Diagnostic histopatology of tumors. Vol 1. PA : Elsevier. 2013. p. 658-688.

4. Hanahan D, Weinberg RA. Hallmarks of cancer: the next genera-tion. Cell. 2011; 4:646-674.

5. Mills SE, Carter D, Greenson JK. Diagnostic surgical pathology. Wolters Kluwer. 2010. Vol 2. p. 2278-2308.

6. Seromucinous component in endometrioid endometrial carcinoma as a histological predictor

of prognosis. Morikazu Miyamoto, Masashi Takano, Tadashi Aoyama et al. Journal of Gynecologic Oncology. 2018; 29(2):20-27.

7. The molecular mechanism of ovarian granulosa cell tumors. Li Jiaheng, Bao Riqiang, Peng Shiwei et al. Journal of Ovarian Re-search. 2018; 11:13-20.

8. Tummala M, McGuire W. Recurrent ovarian cancer. Clinical Ad-vances in Hematology and Oncology. 2005; 3:723-736.

9. WHO Classification of tumors of female reproductive organs. RJ Kurman, ML Carcangiu, CS Herrington et al. 4th ed. Lyon: IARC. 2014. p. 307.

10. William JM, McDonnel AC. Roles of the ovarian surface epithelium in ovulation and carcinogenesis. Reproduction. 2002; 123:743–750.

CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND COURSE OF THE FIRST TRIMESTER OF GESTATION IN WOMEN WITH POLYCYSTIC OVARY SYNDROME AND METABOLIC DISORDERS OR WITHOUT THEM

Suleymanova N. M.

Key words: pregnant women, PCOS, history, pregnancy, obesity, miscarriage.

The aim of the study was to evaluate clinical indicators and features of pregnancy in patients with poly-cystic ovary syndrome (PCOS) with concomitant metabolic disorders or without them. Material and methods. 145 pregnant women with PCOS were examined at 8-14 weeks of gestation. All women were divided into 3 groups: group I (main group) included 72 pregnant women with PCOS and metabolic disorders; group II (comparison group) was made up of 53 pregnant women diagnosed with PCOS, but without metabolic disorders; group III (control) involved 20 pregnant women without PCOS and metabolic disorders. A conventional examination, including the history taking, objective physical examination, instrumental examination was carried out. Ultrasound scanning was performed by using the Aloka-SSD-1700" (Japan) device with a 3.5 MHz transabdominal sensor. Results. The age of pregnant women ranged from 20 to 35 years (average age was 28.3 ± 1.2 years). In the main group, women aged 20 - 25 years and diagnosed to have PCOS made up by 55.6% (p<0.05) less compared with the control group, and the women of the comparison group made up by 32.0% less. On the contrary, in the older age group including 31-35 year old patients of the main group and the comparison group, PCOS was diagnosed by 57.3% (p<0.01) and 25.7% (p<0.05) significantly more frequent than in the control group, respectively. The average age of the examined pregnant women in the main group was 29.1±1.74 years, while in the comparison group it was 28.5 ± 1.27 years and in the control group -27.9 ± 0.88 years. Among infectious diseases the patients had had in their childhood, measles was most often mentioned: nearly the equal share of the patients, 19.4% in the main group and 20.7% in the comparison group had measles, while in the control group only 5% had this disease. High frequency of acute respiratory viral infectious diseases (ARVIs) was also detected in the women with PCOS: it was reported by 38 (52.8%) patients of the main group, by 24 (45.3%) patients of the comparison group, while the control group demonstrated lower value – only 5 (25.0%) women. Moreover, women with PCOS had ARVIS 2 and 3 times a year. The examined women were diagnosed to have a number of extragenital diseases before pregnancy. In the patients of the main group and the comparison group, the most common disorder was fat metabolism disorder manifested by overweight or obesity, and mostly the abdominal type of obesity was observed. In the main group and in the comparison group, the number of women with impaired fat metabolism is 13.9 times and 10.6 times (p<0.001) significantly higher than in the control group (p<0.001), respectively. The diseases following the mentioned above by their occurrence were diseases of the cardiovascular system (CVS) manifested by arterial hypertension and neurocirculatory dystonia and found in 30 (41.7%) pregnant women with PCOS and metabolic disorders and in 20 (37.7%) pregnant women with PCOS only. At the

same time, cardio-vascular diseases were not observed in pregnant women of the control group. Tonsillitis, pharyngitis and chronic bronchitis were significantly frequent in 25 (34.7%, 7.0 times more than in the control group, p < 0.001) pregnant women of the main group, in 15 (28.3%, 3.0) times more often than in the control group, p<0.01) women of the comparison group and 1 (5.0%) pregnant of the control group had pharyngitis. Cystitis, pyelonephritis, urolithiasis were detected only in pregnant women with PCOS. According to the data obtained, excessive hair loss occurred in 56 (77.8%) patients of the main group and in 42 (79.2%) patients of the comparison group. The hirsute number by the Ferriman-Hollway scale in pregnant women of the main group equalled 27.60±0.77 and in the comparison group it was 27.8±0.80. Most patients with PCOS were diagnosed to have infertility, mostly primary. The high percentage of infertility in the groups (in the main it made up 94.3%, and in the comparison group it made up 95.8%) is due to the main pathology, PCOS. In the main group and in the comparison group, the number of women with impaired fat metabolism was significantly higher than in the control group in 13.9 times (p<0.001) and in 10.6 times (p<0.001), respectively. Cardiovascular diseases were found in 41.7% of pregnant women with PCOS and metabolic disorders and in 37.7% of pregnant women with PCOS. Vomiting of varying severity in the pregnant women of the main group and of the comparison group was observed, respectively, 3.2 times (p < 0.01) and 3.0 times (p < 0.01) more often than in the control group. Conclusion. Pregnant women with PCOS and comorbid metabolic disorders or without them are obese, prone to an unfavourable risk profile of cardiovascular diseases and have a risk of pregnancy loss. Threatening miscarriages were observed in 79.2% and 71.7% of pregnant women of the main group and in the comparison group, respectively.

References

1. Guriev TD. Sindrom polikistoznykh yaichnikov [Syndrome of polycystic ovaries]. Akusherstvo, ginekologiya i reproduktsiya. 2010; 2: 10-5. (Russian)

2. Araki T, Elias R, Rosenwaks Z, Poretsky L. Achieving a Successful Pregnancy in Women with Polycystic Ovary Syndrome. Endocrinol Metab Clin N Am. 2011; 40: 865–94.

3. Teede H, Deeks A, Moran L. Polycystic ovary syndrome: a complex condition with psychological, reproductive and metabolic manifestations that impacts on health across the lifespan. BMC Med. 2010; 8: 41. http://doi: 10.1186/1741-7015-8-41.

4. Alieva EA. Sindrom polikistoznykh yaichnikov u zhenshchin reproduktivnogo vozrasta [Syndrome of polycystic ovaries for the women of reproductive age] [dissertation]. Moskva; 1991. 366 p. (Russian)

5. Alieva EA, Ovsyannikova TV, Pshenichnikova TYa. Besplodie, obuslovlennoe sindromom polikistoznykh yaichnikov [Sterility conditioned by the syndrome of polycystic ovaries]. Akush i gin. 1991; 6: 59-62. (Russian)

6. Alieva EA, Fanchenko ND, Parshutin NP. Effekt snizheniya massy tela u bolnykh s sindromom polikistoznykh yaichnikov [Effect of decline of body weight for patients with the syndrome of polycystic ovaries]. Akush i gin. 1993; 3: 33-6. (Russian)

7. Dedov II, Melnichenko GA. Sindrom polikistoznykh yaichnikov: Rukovodstvo dlya vrachey [Syndrome of polycystic ovaries : Guidance for doctors]. Moskva: OOO «Meditsinskoe informatsionnoe agentstvo»; 2007: 335 p. (Russian)

8. Dubrovina SO. Sindrom polikistoznykh yaichnikov: strategiya obsledovaniya I lecheniya [Syndrome of polycystic ovaries: strategy of inspection and treatment]. Problemy reproduktsii. 2014; 6: 10-6. (Russian)

9. Podzolkova NM, Koloda YuA. Sovremennye predstavleniya o sindrome polikistoznykh yaichnikov [Modern ideas of a syndrome of polycystic ovaries]. Farmateka. 2016; 3: 8-15. (Russian)

10. Shestakova IG, Ryabinkina TS. SPKYa: novyy vzglyad na problemu. Mnogoobrazie simptomov, differentsialnaya diagnostika i lechenie SPKYa [Syndrome of polycystic ovaries: a new view on a problem. Variety of symptoms, differential diagnostics and treatment of syndrome of

polycystic ovaries]. Informatsionnyy byulleten. Pod red. V.E. Radzinskogo. Moskva: Redaktsiya zhurnala StatusPraesens; 2015. 24 p. (Russian)

11. Dhesi AS, Murtough KL, Lim JK, Schulkin J, McGovern P, Power M, Morelli S. Metabolic screening in patients with polycystic ovary syndrome is largely underutilized among obstetrician-gynecologists. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2016; 215 (5): 579.e1–579.e5.

12. World Medical Association Declaration of Helsinki Ethical Principles for Medical Research Involving Human Subjects. JAMA. 2013; 310 (20): 2191-4.

13. Rausch ME, Legro RS, Barnhart HX, Schlaff WD, Carr BR, Diamond MP. et al. Predictors of Pregnancy in Women with Polycystic Ovary Syndrome. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2009; 94 (9): 3458–66.

14. Rosenfield RL, Bordini B. Evidence that obesity and androgens have independent and opposing effects on gonadotropin production from puberty to maturity. Brain Res. 2010; 1364: 186–97.

15. Dunaif A, Fauser BC. Renaming PCOS--a two-state solution. The Journal of clinical endocrinology and metabolism 2013; 98: 4325-8. http://doi: 10.1210/jc.2013-2040

COMPARATIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF THE NATURE AND FREQUENCY OF INTRAOPERATIVE, EARLY AND LATE POSTOPERATIVE COMPLICATIONS AFTER APPLYING VARIOUS TECHNIQUES OF CATARACT SURGICAL TREATMENT

Steblovska I. S., Bezkorovaina I.M.

Key words: cataract, complications, phacoemulsification, femtosecond-assissted phacoemulsification.

The use of femtosecond laser allowed clinicians to reduce the frequency of intraoperative and early and late postoperative complications after cataract removal. The study on the dynamics of the structure and prevalence of ophthalmic diseases in Ukraine for 10 years has shown an increase in the specific weight of cataracts from 14.7 to 15.9%. The purpose of this study was to identify and compare the nature and fre-quency of intraoperative, early and late postoperative complications after applying various techniques of surgical treatment of age-related cataracts. Materials and methods. The study involved 558 patients (558 eyes) diagnosed to have cataract of I-III degree of the nucleus density by Burato. Patients were divided into two groups depending on the techniques applied during the surgical treatment: traditional cataract phacoemulsification (group I) and femtosecond-assissted phacoemulsification (group II). Results. Performing conventional cataract phacoemulsification is accompanied by operational complications (nicrohyphema, local detachment of descemets membrane, thermal burns of the cornea, anterior capsule tear, posterior capsule rupture, zonular dialysis, floppy iris syndrome) and postoperative (corneal oedema, microhyphema, exudative inflammatory reaction, transient hypertension, macular oedema, secondary cataract, and intraocular lens decentration). Femtosecond-assissted phacoemulsification can cause the following complications as surgical ones (anterior capsule rupture, postoperative capsule rupture) and postoperative (corneal oedema, exudative-inflammatory reaction, transient hypertension, macular oedema, secondary cataract).

References

1. Bezkorovaina IM, Voskresenska LK, Riadnova VV, Steblovska IS Zminy morfolohii sitkivky v zalezhnosti vid vydu likuvannia nabriaku makuliarnoi dilianky pislia fakoemulsyfikatsii [Changes in the retinal morphology, depending on the type of treatment of edema of the macular area after phacoemulsification]. Visnyk problem biolohii ta medytsyny. 2017; 2:323-326 p. (Ukrainian)

2. Bykbov MM, Burkhanov HL. Usubov Femtolazer assystyrovannaia khyrurhyia katarakty

[Femtosis assisted cataract surgery] Medytsynskyi vestnyk Bashkortostana. 2014; 6: 116-119 p. (Rus-sian)

3. Conrad-Hengerer I. Effect of femtosecond laser fragmentation on effective phacoemulsification time in cataract surgery. J Refract Surg. 2012;28(12):879-83.

4. Oakley C. Incidence of cystoid macular edema in femtosecond laser-assisted cataract surgery compared with manual cataract surgery. J Cataract Refract Surg. 2015; 41:1332.

5. Roberts TV. Capsular block syndrome associated with femtosecond laser-assisted cataract surgery J Cataract Refract Surg. 2011; 11:2068-70.

6. Tsilimbaris MK, Tsika C, Diakonis V. Macular Edema and Cataract Surgery. In: Zaidi FH, editor. Cataract surgery. London: InTech; 2013. p. 323-336.

PECULIARITIES IN MANAGING ELDERLY FEMALE PATIENTS WITH OSTEOARTHRITIS AND COMORBIDITIES

Lebid' V. G., Haimenova G. S.

Key words: osteoarthritis, anti-inflammatory effect, comorbidity, combined treatment.

Introduction. Osteoarthritis is the most prevalent age-related disease of muscular-skeletal system charac-terised by high level of comorbidity as it is associated with cardiovascular and cerebrovascular diseases. Clinicians face the challenge in choosing more effective way of managing this pathology for post-menopausal women, taking into account polypragmasia and possible side effects of pharmacological agents. The aim of this study is to evaluate a new combination of drugs in complex management of women suffering from osteoarthritis associated with comorbid conditions by including chondroprotectors: chondroitine sulphatis (Chondrosat, Ukraine), glucosamine sulfatis (Glucosat, Ukraine), glucosamine hydrochlorid in combination with chondroitine sulfatis (Artiflex Plus, Ukraine) and Vasar, Moxonidine, Trizipin, Armadin, Rosart, Cephavora. Material and methods. The prospective multicentre study was performed on thre basis of the Department of Family Medicine and Therapy of Ukrainain Medical Stomatological Academy, Rheumatology Department of M.V. Sklifosovskyi Poltava Regional Clinical Hospital. The study enrolled 48 female in- and out-patients aged 52-74 years diagnosed to have primary gonarthrosis (II-III X-Ray stage by Kellgren and Lawrence classification) and comorbidities including arterial hypertension, coronary arteries disease, diffuse cardiosclerosis. Follow-up period lasted 12 months. Results. By analyzing the effectiveness of combined treatment during 12-months period in aged women with osteoarthrosis and comorbidities it has been found out that better results were obtained in the patients receiving parenteral and peroral forms of chondroprotectors. During the study, the patients with comorbidities demonstrated clinically significant effects by using chondroprotectors that was confirmed by the improvement of such clinical parameters as Lequesne index and WOMAC. After the 6-month treatment period we reached a clinically significant decrease in summary functional Lequesne index (10,28±2,15, p<0,0001) in patients with osteoarthritis treated by chondroprotectors compared with the control group $(12,01\pm2,10)$. Statistically significant decrease in Lequesne index was observed in 12 months since the beginning of the therapy (p<0,0006) that suggests the presence of long-time post-treatment effect of the combined therapy. The patients of both groups reported pain relief at rest and at movement, improvement of daily routine activity assessed by using WOMAC questionnaire achieved in 6month period of the treatment, but these values were significantly higher in the patients of the experimental group. Total result by using WOMAC questionnaire after the 6-month period of the therapy in the experimental group (702,02±203,65) was lower (p<0,0001) compared with the control group (831,52±179,78). This parameter was lower after 12-month period in the experimental group (786,94 \pm 189,32) (p<0,0004) compared with the control group (933,05 \pm 210,06).

References

1. Bortkevich OP. Efektivnist' preparatu Piaskledin 300 u hvorih na pervinnij osteoartroz kolinnih ta kul'shovih suglobiv [The efficacy of Piscledin 300 in patients with primary osteoarthrosis of the knee and hip joints]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2016; 4(66):46-50 (Ukrainian).

2. Voloshina LO, Smiyan SI. Osteoartroz, poli- ta komorbidnist': vikovi, genderni, prognostichni j likuval'no-profilaktichni aspekti: dani tririchnogo prospektivnogo doslidzhennya [Osteoarthritis, polycomorbidity: age, gender, prognostic and therapeutic and prophylactic aspects: data from a three-year prospective study]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2016; 4(66):51-57. (Ukrainian).

3. Zhdan VM, Lebid' VG, Babanina MYU. Osoblivosti kompleksnoï terapiï pacientiv hvorih na osteoartrit v poednanni z komorbidnoyu patologieyu v praktici simejnogo likarya [Features of complex ther-apy for patients with osteoarthritis in combination with comorbid pathology in the practice of a family doctor]. Aktual'ni pitannya vnutrishn'oï medicini. Vid klinichnih doslidzhen' do klinichnoï praktiki:Tezi naukovih dopovidej naukovo-praktichnoï konferenciï. Dnipro, 2017, 17-18 May:118-119. (Ukrainian).

4. Kovalenko V.M. Komorbidnist' i shlyahi racional'noï farmakoterapiï v revmatologiï [Comorbidity and ways of rational pharmacotherapy in rheumatology]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2014;2(56):12–13. (Ukrainian).

5. Fadeenko GD, Gridnev OE, Nesen AO. Komorbidnist' i visokij kardiovaskulyarnij rizik – klyuchovi pitannya suchasnoï medicini [Comorbidity and high cardiovascular risk. Key issues of modern medicine]. Ukraïns'kij terapevtichnij zhurnal. 2013;1:102–107. (Ukraïnian).

6. Solomenchuk TM, Skibchik VA. Arterial'na gipertenziya u post menopauzi: osoblivosti perebigu ta farmakoterapiï [Arterial hypertension in menopause: features of course and pharmacotherapy]. Zdorov'ya Ukraïni: Kardiologiya. Revmatologiya (tematichnij nomer). 2011;4(19):52-53. (Ukrainian).

7. Fadeenko GD, Nesen AO. Komorbidnist' ta integrativna rol' terapiï vnutrishnih hvorob [Comorbidity and integrative role of therapy of internal disease]. Ukraïns'kij terapevtichnij zhurnal. 2015;2:7-15. (Ukrainian).

8. Hajmenova G.S. Suchasni metodi terapiï po¢dnanoï patologiï [Modern methods of therapy of combined pathology]. Materiali Vseukraïns'koï naukovo-praktichnoï konferenciï «medichna nauka v praktiku ohoroni zdorov'ya. Poltava, 2015:32-33. (Ukrainian).

9. Hajmenova G.S. Prignichennya autoimunnogo procesu u hvorih na osteoartritu[Inhibition of the autoimmune process in patients with osteoarthritis]. Naukovo-praktichna konferenciya za mizhnarodnoyu uchastyu «Zdorov'ya Ukraïnciv v rukah simejnogo likarya». Kiïv, 08-09 grudnya 2016: 45-47. (Ukrainian).

10. Shuba NM, Tarasenko TM. Vivchennya vplivu hondroïtin sul'fatu-4,6 na shchil'nist' kistkovoï tkanini ta jogo efektivnosti u hvorih na osteoartroz kolinnih suglobiv [Study of the effect of chondroitin sulfate-4,6 on the density of bone tissue and its efficacy in patients with knee osteoarthrosis]. Ukraïns'kij revmatologichnij zhurnal. 2013;3(53):7-10. (Ukrainian).

11. Andrievskaya SA, Bessmertnaya AA. Kombinirovannaya terapiya ishemicheskoj bolezni serdca Armadinom i Trizipinom – eshche odin variant ili unikal'naya vozmozhnost'? [Combined Therapy for Coronary Artery Disease by Armastin and Trizipine is another option or unique opportunity?] Arterial'naya gipertenziya. 2017;4 (54):34-40. (Ukrainian).

12. Health Status Measurement Systems for Ostheoarthritis. URL: http://www.womac.org/ womac/ index.htm (USA).

13. Wallance E, Salisbury C, Guthrie B. Managing patients with multimorbidity in primary care. BMJ, January.2015:27-30. (USA).

THE EFFICIENCY OF L-CARNITINE AND MELDONIUM DIHYDRATE IN THE THERAPY OF NON-ALCOHOLIC STEATOHEPATITIS AND COMORBID OBESITY AND CORONARY HEART DISEASE

Khukhlina O. S., Kuzminska O. B., Antoniv A. A., Kotsiubiichuk Z.Ya., Mandryk O.Ye.

Key words: non-alcoholic steatohepatitis, coronary heart disease, obesity, dyslipidemia, oxidative stress, insulin resistance.

The aim of the study was to investigate the influence of L-carnitine and meldonium on the course of NASH with comorbid obesity and coronary heart disease (CHD), functional state of the liver, the state of the lipid peroxidation system and antioxidant protection, lipid profile of the blood, degree of insulin resistance. Materials and methods. The study involved 60 patients with NASH and comorbid obesity of I-II degree and CHD (stable angina pectoris of I-II FC) and 30 healthy individuals (PHP). To assess the efficacy of the ther-apy, 3 groups of patients were randomized according to age, sex, degree of obesity, and degree of the cytolytic syndrome markedness. The control group (I) (n=20) received hypocaloric diet, baseline treatment of CHD, alpha-lipoic acid for 30 days. The second group (II) (n=20), in addition to the standard therapy, re-ceived L-carnitine for 30 days. The third group (III) (n=20e) received additional L-carnitine and meldonium for 30 days. The average age of patients was 56.6 ± 2.74 years. The statistical processing of the results ob-tained was carried out by using parametric (t-criterion Student, Fisher's F-criterion) and non-parametric methods (Mann-Whitney U-criterion, Wilcoxon T-criterion) of variation statistics. The study has found out that the therapy with L-carnitine and meldonium is effective for patients with NASH with comorbid CHD; it re-duces clinical symptom presentation, reduces the intensity of cytolytic and mesenchymal-inflammatory syn-dromes, cholestasis, eliminates atherogenic dyslipidemia, reduces the index of atherogenicity, decreases the metabolic intoxication syndrome by reducing the intensity of lipid peroxidation processes and restoring antioxidant protection, as well as has marked membranoprotective effects.

References

1. Babak OYa, Kolesnikova EV, Syitnik KA. Profilakticheskie meropriyatiya pri nealkogolnoy zhirovoy bolezni pecheni: suschestvuet li sposob snizit risk razvitiya zabolevaniya? [Preventive measures for non-alcoholic fatty liver disease: is there a way to reduce the risk of the disease?]. Suchasna gastroenterol. 2016; 3(71): 103-9. (Russian).

2. Khukhlina OS, Drozd VIu. Optymizatsiia likuvannia nealkoholnoho steatohepatytu u khvorykh na ozhyrinnia ta ishemichnu khvorobu sertsia. [Optimization of treatment of nonalcoholic steatohepatitis in obese patients and coronary heart disease]. Liky Ukrainy. 2016; 9(205): 46-52. (Ukrainian).

3. Khukhlina OS, Mandryk OIe. Nealkoholnyi steatohepatyt ta hipertonichna khvoroba: osoblyvosti komorbidnoho perebihu, optymizovani pidkhody do likuvannia: Monohraffia [Non-alcoholic steatohepatitis and hypertension: features of the comorbid course, optimized approaches to treatment: Monograph] Chernivtsi; 2014. 204 p. (Ukrainian).

4. Pankiv VI. Izuchenie effektivnosti preparata Vazonat v kompleksnom lechenii bolnyih saharnyim diabetom 2-go tipa [The study of the effectiveness of Vasonate in the complex treatment of patients with diabetes of 2nd type]. Mizhnar. endokrynol. Zhurnal. 2016; 4(76): 80-4. (Ukrainian).

5. Samorodskaya IV. Meldoniy: obzor rezultatov issledovaniy. [Meldonium: review of research results]. RMZh. 2013; 36:1818. (Russian).

6. Brea A, Puzo J. Non-alcoholic fatty liver disease and cardiovascular risk. Int. J. Cardiol. 2013; 167: 1109-17. doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijcard.2012.09.085

7. Colak Y, Senates E, Yesil A. Assessment of endothelial function in patients with nonalcocholic fatty liver desease. Endocrine. 2013; 43(1): 103-7. doi: 10.1007/s12020-012-9712-1.

8. Kowdley K. Advances in the diagnosis and treatment of nonalcoholic steatohepatitis.

Gastroenterol. Hepatol. 2014; 10(30): 184-6.

9. Sakai Y, Nishikawa H, Enomoto H, Yoh K, Iwata Y, Hasegawa K et al. Effect of L-Carnitine in Patients With Liver Cirrhosis on Energy Metabolism Using Indirect Calorimetry: A Pilot Stud. J Clin Med Res. 2016 Dec; 8(12): 863-9.

10. Somi MH, Fatahi E, Panahi J, Havasian MR, Judaki A. Data from a randomized and controlled trial of L-carnitine prescription for the treatment for Non-Alcoholic Fatty Liver Disease. Bioinformation. 2014 Sep 30; 10(9): 575-9. doi: 10.6026/97320630010575.

INVESTIGATION OF RISK FACTORS AND CRITERIA OF ALGORITHM PREDICTING PSORIASIS AT THE STAGE OF PRIMARY MEDICAL CARE

Cherkashina L.V.

Key words: general practice (family medicine), psoriasis, prognostic criteria, prediction algorithm.

A comparative analysis of the frequency, diagnostic informativeness and prognostic value of risk factors was carried out on 110 patients with psoriasis and 110 healthy patients selected by the paired-comparison method. Informative criteria for predicting psoriasis at the stage of primary medical care (provided in the rank sequence) were determined: a high level of personal anxiety, disharmonic distribution of body weight, myopia / astigmatism or hyperopia, adherent ear lobe (or its absence), impaired posture / hypermobility of joints, hernias of different localization, the presence of ventricular or atrial extrasystoles, the tendency to the formation of hematomas, shortened nail plates / impaired growth, the functional ability of the patient to roll up the tongue. The articles provides the grounds for the prediction algorithm and the visual analogue scale for assessing the personalized risk of psoriasis based on a complex of the most informative constitutional biological and visceral markers of undifferentiated connective tissue dysplasia, the use of which enables clinicians to form dynamic observation groups of patients with the disease. Three main syndromes have been identified in patients with psoriasis: psychosocial dysadaptation syndrome, syndrome.

References

1. Gubler EV. Ynformatyka v patologyy, klynycheskoy medytsyne y pedyatryy [Informatics in pathology, clinical medicine and pediatrics]. Lenyngrad: Medytsyna; 1990. 176 s. [Russian]

2. Informatsiynyy lyst MOZ Ukrayiny №256-2017 «Pro novovvedennya v systemi okhorony zdorov`ya. Metodyka vyznachennya ta algorytm otsinky ontogenetychnoyi garmoniynosti m'yazovoyi komponenty masy tila» [Method of determination and algorithm of estimation of ontogenetic harmonicity of muscular component of body mass] / Shklyar SP, Frolova TV, Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar AS, Barchan GS, Bondarenko LV. Ukrmedpatentinform. 2017; 11: 4 s. [Ukrainian]

3. Informatsiynyy lyst MOZ Ukrayiny №258-2017 «Pro novovvedennya v systemi okhorony zdorov`ya. Metodyka vyznachennya ta algorytm otsinky ontogenetychnoyi garmoniynosti zhyrovoyi komponenty masy tila»[Method of determination and algorithm of estimation of ontogenetic harmonicity of fat component of body mass] / Shklyar SP, Frolova TV, Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar AS, Barchan GS. Ukrmedpatentinform. 2017; 11; 4 s. [Ukrainian]

4. Frolova TV, Okhapkina OV, Shcherbakov YuV, Cherkashyna LV, Rybakova VV, Shklyar SP. Konstytutsiyno-biologichni faktory ta stygmy dysembriogenezu u prognozuvanni systemnoyi dysplaziyi spoluchnoyi tkanyny. [Constitutional-biological factors and stigmata of disembriogenesis in prediction of systemic dysplasia of connective tissue]. Metodychni rekomendatsiyi MOZ Ukrayiny. Kyiv; 2008. 16 s. [Ukrainian]

5. Mavrov II, Savenkova VV, Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar SP. Metodyka vyvchennya regionalnoyi poshyrenosti dermatoziv z urakhuvannyam faktoriv dovkillya [Methodology for studying the regional prevalence of dermatoses based on environmental factors]. Reyestr galuzevykh novovveden MOZ ta AMN Ukrayiny. 2009; 30-31. Galuzeve novovvedennya №73/30/09. [Ukrainian]

6. Mavrov II, Shklyar SP, Savenkova VV, Cherkashyna LV. Poshyrenist systemnykh zakhvoryuvan spoluchnoyi tkanyny (z perevazhnym urazhennyam shkiry) u Kharkivskomu regioni zalezhno vid faktoriv dovkillya [The prevalence of systemic connective tissue diseases (with predominant skin damage) in the Kharkiv region, depending on environmental factors]. Dermatologiya ta venerologiya. 2009; 1: 3-18. [Ukrainian]

7. Patent 78523 Ukraine, MPK (2013.01) A61V 5/00, A61V 5/107 (2006.01). Sposib otsinky ontogenetychnoyi dysgarmoniynosti kistkovoyi komponenty tila u ditey ta pidlitkiv [Method of evaluation of ontogenetic disharmonicity of bone component of the body in children and adolescents] / Barchan GS, Omelchenko LI, Khvysyuk OM, Shklyar AS, Tsodikova OA, Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar SP. (UA); zayavnik i vlasnik patent KhMAPO (UA). № 2012095807; zayavl 06.08.2012; opubl 25.03.2013. Byul. № 6. [Ukrainian]

8. Serdyuk AY, Mykhaylov BV, Korop AF, Chugunov VV. Metodyka obektyvyzatsyy effektyvnosty psykhoterapyy somatycheskykh bolnykh [Method of objectivization of the effectiveness of psychotherapy of somatic patients]: Metodycheskye rekomendatsyy. Kharkov; 1998. 28 s. [Russian]

9. Sotsialna medytsyna ta organizatsiya okhorony zdorov'ya [Social medicine and healthcare organization]. Pidruchnyk. Ed by VM Moskalenko, YuV Voronenko. Ternopil; 2002: 50-75. [Ukrainian]

10. Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar SP, Bilovol AM. Vilnoradykalne okyslennya pry systemnykh dermatozakh: stan ta patogenetychna korektsiya pry psoriazi [Free radical oxidation in systemic dermatosis: state and pathogenetic correction in psoriasis]. Kharkiv: FOP Shlyomych SF; 2008. 184 c. [Ukrainian]

11. Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar AS, Sazonova ON, Barchan GS, Babyy LM. Estimation methods and rate of ontogenetically disharmonic fat component of human body mass in various age and gender groups. Vestnyk Almaatynskogo gos ynstytuta usovershenstvovanya vrachey. 2015; 1: 75-8.

12. Cherkashyna LV, Shklyar AS. Estimation methods and rate of ontogenetically disharmonic bone component of human body mass in various age and gender groups. Aktualni problemy suchasnoyi medytsyny: Visnyk Ukrayinskoyi medychnoyi stomatologichnoyi akademiyi. 2016; 16(55): 124-8.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN HEALTH STATUS OF PRIMARY-SCHOOL CHILDREN OF THE POLTAVA REGION

Chetverikova O.P.

Key words: school-age children, posture disorders, scoliosis.

The protection of children's health is a priority in modern medicine worldwide. Health status of the chil-dren, and especially its largest share, school-age children, is one of the most important issues of the national healthcare. During the school period, healthcare professionals typically face the dynamics in the development of health disorders, premorbid conditions and chronic diseases. Such factors as the lack of physical activity, poorly organized daily routine and inadequate nutrition, growing intensity of the educational activity, social stresses and age-related physiological characteristics have a significant impact on the health of school-age children. The purpose of the study is to analyze the health status of the children by evaluating certain indicators, demonstrating the occurrence rate of so-called "school diseases", and namely the development of disorders of the

musculoskeletal system and impaired visual acuity in children in the Poltava region. The children of the Poltava region show trends in the health status deterioration, a rapid growth of musculoskeletal disorders among schoolchildren. Among the factors contributing to the occurrence of "school diseases" (posture disorders, scoliosis, vision acuity loss), there are leading ones including the absence of the latest child-appropriate furniture and school infrastructure, and insufficient illumination.

References

1. Pol'ka NS, Gozak SV. Sistema profilaktichno-ozdorovchih zahodiv z pidgotovki ditej starshogo doshkil'nogo viku do navchannya u zagal'noosvitnih navchal'nih zakladah [System of prophylactic-health measures on preparation of children of senior preschool age to the studies in general educational establishments]. Metodichni rekomendacii. DU "Institut gigieni ta medichnoi ekologii im. O. M. Marzeeva AMN Ukraini". 2011; 23:186-90 (Ukrainian).

2. Pol'ka NS, Berdnik OV. Suchasni naukovi doslidzhennya z gigicni ditinstva i ih znachennya dlya praktiki [Contemporary research on childhood hygiene and their implications for practice]. Naukovij visnik nacional'nogo medichnogo universitetu imeni O.O. Bogomol'cya. 2013; 19(2):226-235 (Ukrainian).

3. Rudenko SA, Nedil'ko VP, Kamins'ka TM, Skiban GV, Pinchuk LP. Problemi zdorov'ya ditej shkil'nogo viku [Problems of health of children of school age] // Visnik Cherkas'kogo universitetu. 2010; 180:70-76 (Ukrainian).

4. DSanPiN 5.5.2.008-01» Derzhavni sanitarni pravila i normi vlashtuvannya, utrimannya zagal'noosvitnih navchal'nih zakladiv ta organizaciï navchal'no-vihovnogo procesu [State sanitary rules and norms of placement, maintenance of general educational institutions and organization of educational process], 2001; 396p. (Ukrainian).

5. Berdnik OV. Osnovni zakonomirnosti formuvannya zdorov'ya dityachogo naselennya, scho prozhivać v regionah z riznoyu ekologichnoyu situacićyu [The basic patterns of the formation of the health of the child population living in regions with different ecological conditions]. Institut gigićni ta medichnoï ekologiï im. O. M. Marzećva AMN Ukraïni.2003; 35:134-8. (Ukrainian).

6. Sargosh OD, Chetverikova OP, Katrushov OV. Analiz stanu zdorovya ditej shkil'nogo viku [Analysis of the health of school-age children]. UMSA, Materiali Vseukraïns'koï naukovopraktichnoï konferenciï molodih uchenih "medichna nauka v praktiku zdorov"ya" Poltava, 9 grudnya 2016 r.; Poltava; 2016:53-54 (Ukraïna).

7. Schorichna dopovid' pro stan zdorov'ya naselennya, sanitarno-epidemichnu situaciyu ta rezul'tati diyal'nosti sistemi ohoroni zdorov'ya Ukraïni [Annual report on the health status of the popula-tion, the sanitary and epidemiological situation and the results of the health care system of Ukraine. 2016 year]. MOZ Ukraïni. 2017. 36p. (Ukrainian).

IMPROVEMENT IN THE MANAGEMENT OF PATIENTS WITH NON-ALCOHOLIC STEATOHEPATITIS AND ATHEROGENIC DYSLIPIDEMIA

Shcherbak O.V.

Key words: non-alcoholic steatohepatitis, atherogenic dyslipidemia, ursodeoxycholic acid, levocarnitine, Rosuvastatin.

Atherogenic dyslipidemia is an important pathogenetic mechanism of the development of nonalcoholic fatty liver disease, which requires timely treatment in order to prevent possible complications. The aim of this study is to assess the efficacy of the therapy with ursodeoxycholic acid and levocarnitine supported by the median therapeutic doses of rosuvastatin in patients with non-alcoholic steatohepatitis and concomitant atherogenic dyslipidemia. Materials and methods. 42 patients whose average age of patients was 54.3 ± 5.7 years were examined for having diagnosis of non-alcoholic steatohepatitis and concomitant atherogenic dyslipidemia. The lipid profile and functional state of the liver were evaluated. Two groups were identified: I (n=20) included patients who received rosuvastatin in a dose of 20 mg per day, ursodeoxycholic acid in a dose of 15 mg/kg/day, and levocarnitine in a dose of 2 g per day for 3 months; II (n=22) included patients who received rosuvastatin in a dose of 20 mg per day, ursodeoxycholic acid in a dose of 15 mg/kg/day for 3 months. Results. The patients of group I through the course of therapy were found out to have decreased activity of alanine aminotransferase in 2.1 times, aspartate aminotransferase – in 2.1 times, gamma glutamyl transpeptidase – in 2.4 times that was accompanied by the lipid profiles normalization. Conclusions. The combination of ursodeoxycholic acid and levocarnitine in the integrated therapy may be recommended to manage patients with non-alcoholic steatohepatitis with atherogenic dyslipidemia.

References

1. Dolzhenko MN, Bazilevich AYa. Osobennosti gipolipidemicheskoi terapii u bol'nykh s ishemicheskoi bolezn'yu serdtsa v sochetanii s nealkogol'nym steatogepatitom. Suchasna ghastroenterologhija [Peculiarities of the hypolipidemic therapy in patients with ischemic heart disease in combination with the non-alcoholic steatohepatitis]. 2010;2(52):65-9. (Russian).

2. Zhuravleva LV, Krivonosova EM. Primenenie ursodezoksikholevoi kisloty v kompleksnoi terapii metabolicheskogo sindroma [The use of ursodeoxycholic acid in the complex therapy of metabolic syndrome]. Suchasna ghastroenterologhija. 2014;4(78):19-23. (Russian).

3. Skrypnyk IM, Dubrovinsjka TV. Optymaljnyj vybir statynoterapiji z pozycij bezpechnosti [Optimal choice of statin therapy from the position of safety]. Ukrajinsjkyj terapevtychnyj zhurnal. 2013;4:71-7. (Ukrainian).

4. Skrypnyk IM, Maslova GhS, Shherbak OV. Vplyv patoghenetychnogho likuvannja na procesy peroksydaciji u khvorykh na ishemichnu khvorobu sercja z komorbidnym nealkogholjnym steatoghepatytom [The influence of pathogenetic treatment on peroxidation in patients with ischemic heart disease and comorbid nonalcoholic steatohepatitis]. Ljvivsjkyj klinichnyj visnyk. 2017;4(20):25-9. (Ukrainian).

5. Skrypnyk IM, Maslova GhS, Shherbak OV. Osoblyvosti porushenj stanu oksydu azotu u khvorykh na ishemichnu khvorobu sercja v pojednanni z nealkogholjnym steatoghepatytom u dynamici patoghenetychnogho likuvannja [Specific acpect of nitric oxide state violations in patients with ischemic heart disease in combination with nonalcoholic steatohepatitis in the dynamics of pathogenic treatment]. Ukrajinsjkyj terapevtychnyj zhurnal. 2017;3:20-5. (Ukrainian).

6. Skrypnyk IM, Shherbak OV, Maslova GhS, Vesnina LE, Mamontova TV. Rolj L-karnitynu v patoghenezi ateroghennoji dyslipidemiji za umov pojednannja ishemichnoji khvoroby sercja ta nealkogholjnogho steatoghepatytu [The role of L-carnitine in pathogenesis of atherogenic dyslipidemia in case of combination of the ischemic heart disease and non-alcoholic steatohepatitis]. Suchasna ghastroenterologhija. 2017;5(97):18-23. (Ukrainian).

7. Tkach SM, Dorofeev AE. Klinicheskaya effektivnosť ursodezoksikholevoi kisloty pri nealkogoľnom steatogepatite [Clinical efficacy of ursodeoxycholic acid at non-alcoholic steatohepatitis]. Suchasna ghastroenterologhija. 2017;1(93):85-90. (Russian).

8. Unifikovanyj klinichnyj protokol «Nealkogholjnyj steatoghepatyt» [Nonalcoholic steatohepatitis]. Nakaz MOZ Ukrajiny # 826 vid 06.11.2014 r. (Ukrainian).

9. Shherbak OV. Rolj L-karnitynu u pidvyshhenni efektyvnosti likuvannja khvorykh na ishemichnu khvorobu sercja u pojednanni z nealkogholjnym steatoghepatytom [In advancement of therapeutic efficiency in patients with ischemic heart disease and comorbid nonalcoholic steatohepatitis]. Aktualjni problemy suchasnoji medycyny: Visnyk Ukrajinsjkoji medychnoji stomatologhichnoji akademiji. 2016;16(vyp.4(56).Ch.3):187-92. (Ukrainian).

10. Shherbak OV. Vplyv ghipolipidemichnoji terapiji na prooksydantno-antyoksydantnyj status khvorykh na ishemichnu khvorobu sercja [Influence of hypolipidemic therapy on prooxidative-antioxidative state in patients with ischemic heart disease]. Aktualjni problemy suchasnoji

medycyny: Visnyk Ukrajinsjkoji medychnoji stomatologhichnoji akademiji. 2018;2(62):141-6. (Ukrainian).

11. Ballantyne CM, Bertolami M, Hernandez Garcia HR, Nul D, Stein EA, Theroux P, et al. Achieving LDL cholesterol, non-HDL cholesterol, and apolipoprotein B target levels in high-risk patients: Measuring Effective Reductions in Cholesterol Using Rosuvastatin therapy (MERCURY) II. Am Heart J. 2006;151(5):975.

12. Cabezas GR. Efecto del acido ursodesoxicolico combinado con estatinas para el tratamiento de la hipercolesterolemia: ensayo clinico prospective. Rev Clin Esp. 2004;1:632-5.

13. Collhoun HM, Betteridge DJ, Durrington PN, Hitman GA, Neil HA, Livingstone SJ, et al. Primary prevention of cardiovascular disease with atorvastatin in type 2 diabetes in the Collaborative Atorvastatin Diabetes Study (CARDS): multicentre randomised placebo-controlled trial. Lancet. 2004;364(9435):685-96.

14. EASL-EASD-EASO Clinical Practice Guidelines for the management of non-alcoholic fatty liver disease. Journal of Hepatology. 2016;64:1388-1402.

15. Goldenberg N, Glueck C. Efficacy, effectiveness and real life goal attainment of statinsin managing cardiovascular risk. Vasc Health Risk Manag. 2009;5:369-76.

16. Malaguanera M, Gargante MP, Russo C, Antic T, Vacante M, Malaguanera M, et al. L-carnitine supplementation to diet: a new tool in treatment of nonalcoholic steatohepatitis – a randomized and controlled clinical trial. Am J Gastroenterology. 2010;105:1338-45. doi: 10.1038/ajg.2009.719.

17. Okazaki S, Yokoyama T, Miyauchi K, Shimada K, Kurata T, Sato H, et al. Early Statin Treatment in Patients With Acute Coronary Syndrome. Demonstration of the Beneficial Effect on Atherosclerotic Lesions by Serial Volumetric Intravascular Ultrasound Analysis During Half a Year After Coronary Event: The ESTABLISH Study. Circulation. 2004;110(9):1061-8.

CHANGES IN BLOOD PLASMA ELECTROLYTE CONTENT IN PATIENTS WITH GASTROESOPHAGEAL REFLUX DISEASE

Yakhnitska M.M.

Key words: gastroesophageal reflux disease, plasma blood, electrolytes.

Calcium, magnesium, sodium and potassium are essential macro-elements for normal functioning of a human body that mainly depends on their concentration and ratio in body fluids. The metabolism of electro-lytes mentioned above is interrelated and interdependent, thus their balance in the cellular and intercellular space maintains the body homeostasis. Modern studies point out a statistically significant decrease in the level of some electrolytes in saliva in patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease in comparison with healthy individuals. Therefore, it is important to investigate the concentration of calcium, magnesium, sodium and potassium in the blood plasma. The purpose of this work was to study the levels of plasma electrolytes (calcium, sodium, magnesium, potassium) in patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease. Materials and methods. 43 patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease (16 women and 27 men, the average age was $37.7 \pm$ 1.9 years) passed through the comprehensive examination including history taking, endoscopic examination of the upper divisions of the gastrointestinal tract. In addition, the concentration of calcium, magnesium, potassium, and sodium in the blood plasma was determined: calcium photometric method with arsenazo III; magnesium and sodium-colorimetric method with Mg2 + ions uranyl acetate and magon sulphonamide respectively; potassium - with tetraphenylborate ions turbidimetrically without deproteination. Statistical processing of the material was carried out. Results. The blood plasma calcium concentration in the patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease was 2.08 ± 0.04 mmol / l, and 28% of them demonstrated a statistically significant tendency towards hypocalcemia, 11.6% of the patients tended to have hypercalcemia. The blood plasma magnesium content was $0.87 \pm 0.03 \text{ mmol} / \text{L}$, and in 11.6% of patients, it deviated from the normal values. The blood plasma sodium content was $132.37 \pm 2.32 \text{ mmol} / \text{L}$, and 51.1% of the examined patients had the lower level of sodium compared with standard statistical indices. Potassium content was $7.37 \pm 0.54 \text{ mmol} / \text{l}$, and 44.2% of patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease experienced a tendency to hyperkalemia. Conclusions. The average indices of blood plasma electrolytes in patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease correspond to the normal values, however, a statistically significant trend is observed toward hypocalcaemia, hyponatremia and hyperkalemia. The changes in magnesium metabolism demonstrate almost equal probability towards hyper and / or hypoconcentration.

References

1. Smith RG, Craig P, Bird EJ, Boyle AJ, Isery LT, Jacobcon SD, Myers GB. Spectrochemical values for sodium, potassium, iron, magnesium and calcium in normal human plasma. American Journal Clinic Pathology. 1950 Mar; 20(3):263-72. Available from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/15432307

2. Afridi HI, Kazi TG, Talpur FN, Kazi N, Naeemullah FS, Arain SS, Brahman KD. Evaluation of calcium, magnesium, potassium and sodium in biological samples of male human immunodeficiency virus patients with tuberculosis and diarrhea compared to healthy control subjects in Pakistan. Clinic Laboratory. 2013;59(5-6):539-50. Available from:https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/23865352?report=docsum

3. Michel LY, Hoenderop JG, Bindels RJ. Towards Understanding the Role of the Na²⁺-Ca²⁺ Exchanger Isoform. Physiology Biochemical Pharmacology. 2015;168:31-57. Available from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/25851230

4. Trautvetter U, Ditscheid B, Jahreis G, Glei M. Calcium and Phosphate Metabolism, Blood Lipids and Intestinal Sterols in Human Intervention Studies Using Different Sources of Phosphate as Supplements-Pooled Results and Literature Search. Nutrients. 2018;10(7). Available from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/30037054

5. Watson WS, Hilditch TE, Horton PW, Davies DL, Lindsay R. Magnesium metabolism in blood and the whole body in man using 28magnesium. Metabolism. 1979;28(1):90-95. Available from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/104125

6. Kvashnini LV. Subklinichna hipokaltsiiemiia ta yii vplyv na formuvannia zdorovia ditei shkilnoho viku [Subclinical hypocalcemia and its impact on the formation of the health of school-age children.]. Zdorovia Ukrainy. 2007; 18:13-17. (Ukrainian)

7. Takaya J, Kaneko K. Fetus and magnesium. Clinica Calcium. 2005 Nov;15(11):105-10. vailable from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/16272620

8. Adrogué HJ, Madias NE. The impact of sodium and potassium on hypertension risk. Semin Nephrology. 2014;34(3):257-72. Available from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/25016398

9. Grigus YaI, Mikhaylova OD, Gorbunov AyU, Vakhrushev YaM. Znachenie magniya v fiziologii i patologii organov pischevareniya [Significance of magnesium in phisiology and pathology of the digestive system]. Eksperimental'naya i klinicheskaya gastroenterologiya. 2016;118(6):89-94. (Russian)

10. Kvashnini L.V. Subklinichna hipokaltsiiemiia ta yii vplyv na formuvannia zdorovia ditei shkilnoho viku [Subclinical hypocalcemia and its impact on the formation of the health of school-age children.]. Zdorovia Ukrainy. 2007;18: 13-17 (Ukrainian)

11. Bardou O, Trinh NT, Brochiero E. K+ channels and lung epithelial physiology. Medical Science (Paris). 2009;25(4). Available from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/19409192

12. Bychkov MA. Osoblyvosti vmistu kaltsiiu u shlunkovomu soku khvorykh na hastroezofahealnu refliuksnu khvorobu [Features of calcium content in gastric juice in patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease]. Likarska sprava. 2014;11:142–146. (Ukrainian)

13. Bychkov MA, Yakhnytska MM. Osoblyvosti vmistu elektrolitiv u shlunkovomu soku khvorykh na hastroezofahealnu refleksnu khvorobu[

Features of the content of electrolytes in gastric juice in patients with gastroesophageal reflex disease]. Ukraina. Zdorovia natsii . 2016;1-2(37-38):16-18. (Ukrainian)

14. Bychkov MA, Yakhnytska MM Osoblyvosti elektrolitnoho obminu u slyni u khvorykh na hastroezofahealnu refliuksnu khvorobu [Features of electrolyte exchange in saliva in patients with gastroesophageal reflux disease]. Zbirnyk naukovykh prats spivrobitnykiv NMAPO imeni P.L.Shupyka. 2016;25: 40-45. (Ukrainian)

CONSIDERATION OF THE SERIES OF MORPHOFUNCTIONAL VALUES IN FEMALE ATHLETES OF YOUNG AGE, ENGAGED BY LIGHT ATHLETICS

Bugaevsky K.A., Bila A.A., Dovgan' A.V., Petrenko O.V., Abramov K.V.

Key words: female athletes, athletes, adolescence, pubertal age, menstrual cycle, puberty, canoeing and kayaking.

The article presents the study results of determining the characteristics of the menstrual cycle and the stage of puberty and adolescence in female kayakers and canoeists. It was found out that in both age groups, there were various disorders in the dynamics of its developing and in the course of menstrual cycle, as well as the stage of puberty. All the female kayakers and canoeists of pubertal age, who started going in for this sport before the onset of menarche, had numerous combined violations of CMC with the active formation of their clinical manifestations of hypomenstrual syndrome, on the background of premenstrual syndrome. It was also determined that 14 (73.68%) canoeists, and 12 (75.00%) kayaks, from both age groups, had premenstrual syndrome, with its clinical somatic, autonomic and psychological manifestations, often very pronounced. These athletes had numerous, often combined, disruptions in the process of puberty, with a pronounced delay in menarche, telarche and puartha. Thus, 60% of kayak athletes, and 80% of female canoeists, of both age categories, had a delayed telerhea. 80% of kayakers and 100% of canoeists, both of puberty and adolescence age, had a delay in puartha. In addition, the study results showed that kayakers of both age groups had more pronounced violations of the CMC and the process of puberty than canoeists. There was a pronounced presence of hypomenstrual syndrome in all female kayakers and canoeists, clinically fixed secondary amenorrhea with somatically and vegetatively expressed phenomena of premenstrual syndrome. In our opinion, revealed changes in this series of reproductive indicators, with years of intense rowing and significant physical and psycho-emotional loads, can be regarded as a result of intensive adaptations occurring in the bodies of athletes of both age groups.

References

1. Belyk SN, Podgornyy YV, Mozhynskaya YuV. Vlyyanye sportyvnoy deyatelnosty na reproduktyvnoe zdorove devushek [Influence of sports activity on reproductive health of girls]. Sbornyky konferentsyy NYTs Sotsyosfera. 2014; 33: 103–11. [Russian]

2. Bugaevskyy KA, Mykhalchenko MV. Osobennosty menstrualnogo tsykla y ryada reproduktyvnykh pokazateley u sportsmenok, zanymayushchykhsya tkhekvondo [Features of the menstrual cycle and a number of reproductive indicators in athletes engaged in taekwondo]. Aktualni problemy suchasnoyi medytsyny: Visnyk ukrayinskoyi medychnoyi stomatologichnoyi akademiyi. 2017; 2(58): 18–22. [Russian]

3. Bugaevskyy KA. Narushenyya menstrualnogo tsykla, gyperandrogenyya y zanyatyya sportom [Violations of the menstrual cycle, hyperandrogenism and exercise]. Medyko-fyzyologycheskye osnovy adaptatsyy y sportivnoy deyatelnosty na Severe: sbornyk tezysov Vserossyyskoy, s mezhdunarod uchastyem, nauchno-praktycheskoy konferentsyy. Syktyvkar, 6-9 oktyabrya 2015 g. 2015: 13–5. [Russian]

4. Vasyn SG. Osobennosty trenyrovochnogo protsessa zhenshchyn s uchyotom protekanyya ovaryalno-menstrualnogo tsykla [Features of the training process of women taking into account the course of the ovarian-menstrual cycle]. Ynnovatsyonnaya nauka. 2016; 8-3: 114–6. [Russian]

5. Korneeva ES, Zamchyy TP. Stanovlenye y protekanye menstrualnoy funktsyy u zhenshchyn, zanymayushchykhsya pauerlyftyngom [The formation and flow of menstrual function in women involved in powerlifting]. Yzvestyya Tulskogo gosudarstvennogo unyversyteta. Fyzycheskaya kultura y sport. 2015; 3:131–5. [Russian]

6. Oleynyk EA. Zhenshchyny, sport, zdorove. Konstytutsyonalnye osobennosty, sostoyanye zdorovya y obraz zhyzny zhenshchyn-sportsmenok [Women, sport, health. Constitutional features, health status and lifestyle of female athletes]. Monografyya. Saarbrücken Deutschland: LAP LAMBERT Academic Publishing; 2013. 163 s. [Russian]

7. Osipov V. Do pytannya vplyvu intensyvnykh fizychnykh navantazhen na menstrualnu funktsiyu sportsmenok [The question of the effect of intense physical activity on the menstrual function of athletes]. Teoriya ta metodyka fizychnogo vykhovannya. 2012; 5: 42–5. [Ukrainian]

8. Davydov VYu, Shantarovych VV, Zhuravskyy AYu, Prygodych DN. Otbor devochek dlya zanyatyy grebley na baydarkakh y kanoe na osnove morfofunktsyonalnykh pokazateley v peryod polovogo sozrevanyya [Selection of girls for kayaking and canoeing on the basis of morphofunctional indicators during puberty]. Yzvestyya TulGU. Fyzycheskaya kultura. Sport. 2017; 4: 136–44. [Russian]

9. Rybyna YL, Nekhvyadovych AY, Zubovskaya ET. Osobennosty gormonalnykh yzmenenyy u sportsmenok v greble akademycheskoy v zavysymosty ot peryoda podgotovky s uchetom faz ovaryalno-menstrualnogo tsykla [Features of hormonal changes in athletes in rowing academic, depending on the period of preparation, taking into account the phases of the ovarian-menstrual cycle]. Nauchnye trudy NYY fyzycheskoy kultury y sporta Respublyky Belarus. 2006; 6: 230–5. [Russian]

10. Terzy KG. Praktycheskoe prymenenye teoretycheskykh znanyy ob OMTs v trenyrovochnom protsesse tyazheloatletok gruppy sovershenstvovanyya sportyvnogo masterstva [Practical application of theoretical knowledge about CMC in the training process of weightlifters of the group improving sports skills]. Symvol nauky. 2016; 5-2(17): 193–6. [Russian]

11. Bugaevsky KA, Zharska NV. Consideration of Peculiarities of the Menstrual Cycle in Athletes Engaged in Pankration. JMBS. 2017; 2(7): 80–5.

12. Charniga B, Solonenko O. The training of the female weightlifter and the menstrual cycle. Sportivny Press Olymp. 2014; 3: 28–9.

13. Jurczyk M, Borawska A. Ocena wpływu wysiłku fizycznego na zaburzenia cyklu menstruacyjnego u sportsmenek i pozostałych kobiet. Gin Prakt. 2010; 1: 20–2.

PECULIARITIES OF CYTOCHEMICAL STATUS OF BLOOD LYMPHOCYTES IN ISCHEMIA-REPERFUSION LIVER INJURY

Garayev G. Sh., Shahmamedova S. O.

Key words: ischemia-reperfusion injury, liver, succinate dehydrogenase, acidic phosphatase, glycogen.

The aim of this study was to investigate the metabolic alterations in lymphocytes in ischemiareperfusion liver injury. The study was carried out on 50 white rats of both sexes. All procedures with animals were performed in accordance with international rules and regulations (86/09 EEC and LINESCO (Paris), adopted by the European Society of Bioethics). Under inhalation ether anaesthesia, a median abdominal incision was performed on and live ischemia was induced by occluding the portal inflow vessels (portal vein and artery) with an atraumatic vascular loop for 5, 10, 15 min. Reperfusion was modelled by loosing the loop in 5, 10, 15 min. Peripheral blood of the test animals was taken to investigate glycogen (Gl), succinate dehydrogenase (SDH) and acidic phosphatase (AP) activity by cytochemical methods. The SDH activity was assessed by the counting the average number of formazan granules in a lymphocyte (gr/l) per 50 cells, and the activity of acidic phosphatase (AP) and SDH were calculated by using the mean cytochemical index. When compared with the data of the control group, the changes occurring in the cytochemical status of lymphocytes of the main groups (I, II, III) are multidirectional. In lymphocytes of the 1st group of test animals there was a significant increase in the SDH activity (p 0,01), a moderate increase in Gl (p0,05) and a statistically significant decrease in AP (p 0,01). These changes depending on the duration of ischemia had a phase character. In the 1st group after short-term ischemia (5 min), the LDH activity doubled compared to the control, while the II and III groups after 10 min and 15 min ischemia demonstrated pronounced lowering of the abovementioned values (p 0.01). The changes in the AP activity were unidirectional; the decrease in enzymatic activity was determined by the time of ischemia. These changes in the IA subgroup were being aggravated in dynamics. All subgroups (A, B, C), II and III groups showed a statistically significant decrease in the AP activity. Marked depression of enzymatic activity was established in III group, where AP values were 3-4 times lower than those of the control group. In the comparative analysis of cytochemical data of rats of the main group the most informative values were demonstrated by SDH. It should be noted that SDH, being a cardinal cytochemical index of peripheral blood lymphocytes and the criterion of the main energy metabolism of mitochondria, reflects the state of the body as a whole. Thus, the cytochemical parameters of lymphocytes are informative markers reflecting the state of metabolic processes in the body under ischemic reperfusion liver damage. Changes in mitochondrial and lysosomal enzymatic activity of lymphocytes were interrelated and the nature of the phase depended on the duration of ischemia and the duration of reperfusion. Relatively high values of glycogen under which these changes occurred indicate intracellular activation of glyconeogenesis.

References

1. Jaeschke H, Woolbright BL. Current strategies to minimize hepatic ischemia-reperfusion injury by targeting reactive oxygen species. Transplant Rev. 2012; 26(2): 103-14.

2. Khodosovskyy MN. Korrektsyya okyslytelnykh povrezhdenyy pry syndrome yshemyyreperfuzyy pecheny [Correction of oxidative damage in ischemia-reperfusion liver syndrome]. Zhurnal Grodnenskogo gosudarstvennogo medytsynskogo unyversyteta. 2016; 4: 20-5. [Russian]

3. Zweier JL, Talukder MA. The role of oxidants and free radicals in reperfusion injury. Cardiovascular Research. 2006; 70(2): 181–90.

4. Weigand K. Ischemia/Reperfusion injury in liver surgery and transplantation: pathophysiology. HPB Surg. 2012; 2012 ID 176723: 1-8.

5. Suyavaran A. Preconditioning methods in the management of hepatic ischemia reperfusioninduced injury: Update on molecular and future perspectives. Hepatol Res. 2017; 47(1): 31-48.

6. Semenova GF, Komarova EV, Potapov AS, y dr. Ynformatyvnost osnovnogo energoobmena mytokhondryy lymfotsytov peryferycheskoy krovy u detey s khronycheskymy zaporamy [Informativeness of the main energy exchange of mitochondria of peripheral blood lymphocytes in children with chronic constipation]. Voprosy sovremennoy pedyatryy. 2007; 6(3): 48-52. [Russian]

PLANNING OF ABDOMINOPLASTY IS FROM THE POINT OF VIEW OF BIOMECHANICS AND MORPHOLOGICAL DESCRIPTIONS TISSUES OF FRONT ABDOMINAL WALL

Drabovskiy V.S.

Key words: abdominoplasty, skin biomechanics, anterior abdominal wall

Abdominoplasty is the most popular method of operative correction of cosmetic defects of anterior ab-dominal wall. Plenty of factors among which and biomechanics parameters of pull of tissues influence on the results of abdominoplasty. The purpose of our research was to investigate hystoarchitektonic of superficial tissues of anterior abdominal wallon the different stages of deformation. For gaining end the results of hystotopography researches of 62 preparations of tissues of different layers of anterior abdominal wallfrom hypogastric area are analysed on the different stages deformations after abdominoplasty. At research of skin within the limits of flowage found out the insignificant morphological changes of epidermis, in form dystrophy of multi-layered epithelium of different degree, diminishing of amount of ceratinocytes depending on age. Epidermal mews were unhomogeneous on sizes and form with dense intercellular connections and rare intraepithelial lymphocytes. The papillary layer of derma was more thinned, fibred, homogeneously eosinofilic. The surplus amount of capillar is educed in the superficial departments of papillary layer of derma. At the estimation of hypodermis on the stages of the plastic loading the presence of monomophs is educed uniadipocytes, homogeneous in a due form and to the sizes, with the different amount of layers of the fibrotic changed connecting tissue. At research of tissues of anterior abdominal wall at supraplastic deformations, the expressed destructives pathological changes are described. Marked the expressed atrophy of multi-layered layer of epithelium of skin, diminishing of amount of ceratinocytes. Quite often there was a different hyperkeratinization and parakeratosis with the single intraepithelial lymphocytes. Differentiation of derma on layers was washed out, papillary layer fibred, homogeneous, eosinophylic. The presence of greater amount of vessels of capillary type is established in the superficial departments of papillary layer of derma. Reticulated layer of derma at superdeformations, placed thinned and uneven with the various location of collogen structures. In a hypoderma, under influence of supraplastic deformation, there were plural layers of fibrotic connecting tissue with the hearths of angiomatosis. Microstructure changes of tissues of superficial layers of anterior abdominal wall on the different stages of deformation, reflect the initial process of atrophy-sclerotic changes of skin, hypodermis, with a tendency to progression of development of changes depending on the increase of parameters of tension of tissues. Character of the educed violations within the limits of flowage, testifies to maintenance of ability of tissues to the reparation processes and expediency of account of this morpho-biomechanic factors at the choice of methods of getting up and mobilization of dermicfatty flaps at implementation of abdominoplasty.

References

1. Adamjan AA, Velichenko RE, Gogija BSh. Hirurgicheskaya korrektsiya deformatsiy konturov peredney bryushnoy stenki [Surgical correction of deformities of the contours of the anterior abdominal wall]. Annalyi plast. rekonstr. i estet. hirurgii. 1999;1:57-63. (Russian).

2. Pinchuk VD, Timofey OV, Tkach OS. Ogranichennaja (modifitsirovannaja) abdominoplastika [Limited (modified) abdominoplasty]. Plasticheskaya hyrurgia i kosmetologia. 2014;2:25–35. (Russian).

3. Malyk SV, Drabovskyi VS. Shliakhy udoskonalennia rezultativ plastychnorekonstruktyvnykh operatsii na perednii cherevnii stintsi [Ways of improvement of the results of plastic-reconstructive operations on the anterior abdominal wall]. Svit medytsyny ta biolohii. 2016;2(56):146-51. (Ukrainian).

4. Kurek MF, Anichkin VV. Konturnaya plastika: problem i reshenija (obzor literatury) [Contour plastics: problems and solutions (literature review)]. Problemu zdorovja i ekologii. 2012;1(31):12-7. (Russian).

5. Parvizi D, Friedl H, Wurzer P. A multiple regression analysis of postoperative complications after bodycontouring surgery: a retrospective analysis of 205 patients: regression analysis of complications. Obes. Surg. 2015;25(8):1482-90.

6. Pereira LH, Sterodimas A. Composite body contouring. Aesthetic Plastic Surgery. 2009;33(4):616-24.

7. Ahmad J. The American Society for Aesthetic Plastic Surgery (ASAPS) survey: current trends in liposuction. Aesthetic Surgery Journal. 2011;31(2):214.

INFLUENCE OF AP-1 TRANSCRIPTION FACTOR INHIBITOR ON FREE-RADICAL OXIDATION AND ANTIOXIDANT PROTECTION IN PERIODONTAL TISSUES OF RATS EXPOSED TO SYSTEMIC ADMINISTRATION OF SALMONELLA TYPHI LIPOPOLISACCHARIDE

Yelins'ka A.M., Kostenko V.O.

Key words: transcription factor AP-1, lipopolysaccharide-induced systemic inflammatory response, free radical processes, oxidative-nitrosative stress, periodontium.

This study is aimed at investigating the effect of the inhibitor of the transcription factor AP-1 SR 11302 on free radical oxidation and antioxidant defense in rat periodontal tissues during the experimental systemic inflammatory response (SIR) induced by the introduction of the lipopolysaccharide (LPS) Salmonella typhi (in a dose of 0.4 µg/kg body wt, 3 times for the 1 week and once a week through the next 7 weeks). SR 11302 introduction in a dose of 1 mg/kg 3 times a week, starting from the 30th day of the LPS experiment, was accompanied by a significant decrease in the rate of production of superoxide anion radical by NADPH-dependent electron transport chains (by 15.0%), by the mitochondrial respiratory chain (by 16.3%) and by leukocyte NADPHoxidase (by 16.2%) compared with the findings in the group subjected to the SIR reproduction. Under these conditions the total activity of NO-synthase (by 32.1%) and nitrate reductase (by 17.6%) decreased. The content of peroxinitrite ions yielded to the value of the group exposured to SIR simulation by 14.8%. The introduction of SR 11302 during SIR conditions was accompanied with lower concentration of secondary products of lipid peroxidation and its increase during incubation in a prooxidant buffer solution. The activity of superoxide dismutase and catalase exceeded the findings of the groups with SIR reproduction by 33.3% and 53.3%, respectively. It has been concluded that applying the inhibitor of AP-1 SR 11302 during SIR condition is an effective means to correct free radical processes in periodontal tis-sues.

References

1. Papoudou-Bai A, Hatzimichael E, Barbouti A, Kanavaros P. Expression patterns of the activator protein-1 (AP-1) family members in lymphoid neoplasms. Clin Exp Med. 2017 Aug;17(3):291-304.

2. Ye N, Ding Y, Wild C, Shen Q, Zhou J. Small molecule inhibitors targeting activator protein 1 (AP-1) miniperspective. J Med Chem. 2014 Aug 28; 57(16): 6930-48.

3. Zolotukhin P, Kozlova Y, Dovzhik A, Kovalenko K, Kutsyn K, Aleksandrova A, Shkurat T. Oxidative status interactome map: towards novel approaches in experiment planning, data analysis, diagnostics and therapy. Mol Biosyst. 2013 Aug;9(8):2085-96.

4. Belanova AA, Lebedeva UA, Kuzminova ON, Zolotukhin PV, Chmykhalo VK, Korinfskaya SA, Makarenko MS, Aleksandrova AA. Activator protein 1: structure, functioning and roles in oxidative status in humans. Sci Pract J Health Life Sci. 2014;(3):11-20. (Russian).

5. Kook SH, Jang YS, Lee JC. Involvement of JNK-AP-1 and ERK-NF-κB signaling in tension-stimulated expression of type I collagen and MMP-1 in human periodontal ligament fibroblasts. J Appl Physiol. 2011 Dec;111(6):1575-83.

6. Kim H, Kim MB, Kim C, Hwang JK. Inhibitory effects of panduratin A on periodontitisinduced inflammation and osteoclastogenesis through inhibition of MAPK pathways in vitro. J Microbiol Biotechnol. 2018 Feb 28;28(2):190-198.

7. Yelins'ka AM, Kostenko VO. Influence of AP-1 transcription factor inhibitors on the

protein depolimerization in periodontal connective tissue of rats under systemic inflammatory response. Aktual'ni problemy suchasnoyi medytsyny: Visn. Ukrayins'koyi med. stomatol. akademiyi. 2018; 18(2):335-9. (Ukrainian).

8. Sun Y, Lin Z, Liu CH, Gong Y, Liegl R, Fredrick TW, Meng SS, Burnim SB, Wang Z, Akula JD, Pu WT, Chen J, Smith LEH. Inflammatory signals from photoreceptor modulate pathological retinal angiogenesis via c-Fos. J Exp Med. 2017; 214(6):1753-67.

9. Yelins'ka AM, Shvaykovs'ka OO, Kostenko VO. Sources of production of reactive oxygen and nitrogen species in tissues of periodontium and salivary glands of rats under modeled systemic inflammation. Problemy ekologii ta medytsyny. 2017; 21(3-4):51-4.

10. Kostenko VO, Tsebrzhins'kii OI. Production of superoxide anion radical and nitric oxide in renal tissues sutured with different surgical suture material. Fiziol Zh. 2000; 46(5):56-62. (Ukrainian).

11. Akimov O Ye, Kostenko VO. Functioning of nitric oxide cycle in gastric mucosa of rats under excessive combined intake of sodium nitrate and fluoride. Ukr Biochem J. 2016; 88(6):70-5.

12. Methods of clinical and experimental research in medicine (Ed. IP Kaidashev). – Poltava; 2003. (Ukrainian).

13. Nitric Oxide: Biology and Pathobiology. (Eds LJ Ignarro, B Freeman); 3rd ed. – Academic Press; 2017. 434 p.

14. Yelins'ka AM, Shvaykovs'ka OO, Kostenko VO. Influence of ammonium pyrrolidine dithiocarbamate on the production of reactive oxygen and nitrogen species in tissues of periodontium and salivary glands in rats exposed to Salmonella typhi lipopolisaccharide. Fiziol Zh. 2018;64(5):58-64. (Ukrainian).

15. Kostenko VA., Solov'eva NV, Kovalenko AV. Mechanisms of nitric oxide autoregulation in mammals and their disturbances in pathologic processes. Aktual'ni problemy suchasnoyi medytsyny: Visn. Ukrayins'koyi med. stomatol. akademiyi. 2011; 11(3):150-4. (Ukrainian).

16. Ratajczak-Wrona W, Jablonska E, Garley M, Jablonski J, Radziwon P, Iwaniuk A. Role of AP-1 family proteins in regulation of inducible nitric oxide synthase (iNOS) in human neutrophils. J Immunotoxicol. 2013 Jan-Mar;10(1):32-9.

17. Zenz R, Eferl R, Scheinecker C, Redlich K, Smolen J, Schonthaler HB, Kenner L, Tschachler E, Wagner EF. Activator protein 1 (Fos/Jun) functions in inflammatory bone and skin disease. Arthritis Res Ther. 2008;10(1):201.

18. Yelins'ka AM, Kostenko VO. Lipid peroxidation and antioxidant protection in periodontal tissues of rats under the action of local pathogenic factor on gums in rats exposed to modeled systemic inflammatory response. Problemy ekologii ta medytsyny. 2017; 21(5-6):62-4.

OBESITY: ANALYSIS OF LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH AND CONCOMITANT PATHOLOGIES BASED ON AUTOPSY CASE PROTOCOL

Mazur O., Kuzyk Yu.

Key words: obesity, comorbidity, death cause, autopsy.

Numerous reports have confirmed the leading role of obesity in developing various diseases. Therefore, the purpose of this study was to carry out retrospective analysis and to evaluate the prevalence of obesity in the Lviv region according to autopsy protocols with further identifying morbidity and mortality structure in deceased patients with obesity. The authors analyzed 4835 autopsy cases during the period of 2011-2015 on the basis of the Lviv Regional Pathology Bureau – obesity, without verified diabetes, was detected in 266 cases (5.5%). Among the deceased patients there were 164 (61.7%) women and 102 (38.4%) men. The average age of deceased women was 68.6 ± 1.7 years, and the average age of men was 58.6 ± 1.8 years. Women aged 60 to 70 years predominated in deceased patients with obesity. The analysis of obesity cases has been carried out

according to two criteria: identifying the main cause of death and identifying concomitant pathology. According to the results obtained, during the last five years there has been an increase in the number of deceased patients with obesity. Thus, in 2011 it made up 4,2%, whereas in 2015 this value reached 6% of the total autopsy number. On average, the number of deceased patients with obesity increased by 1% every year. The similar tendency has been observed towards the number of deceased individuals with obesity: for instance, their number in 2011 made up 0.9% of all autopsy cases, while in 2015 the percentage was 2.9%. In obese patients the leading causes of death were identified as follows: diseases of the cardiovascular system, malignant neoplasms and diseases of the digestive system. Among the concomitant pathology, almost half of patients have been diagnosed to have chronic bronchitis. Diseases of the digestive, cardiovascular systems and thyroid gland were commonly found as well. The prevalence of obesity and the number of obese people increased with each passing year, as well as the diversity of obesity-associated diseases.

References

1. Bessen DG, Kushner R. Izbitochnyy wes i ozhyreniye. Profilaktika, diagnostika i lecheniye. [Overweight and obesity. Prevention, diagnostics and treatment]. Moscow; 2006. 240 p. (Russian)

2. Lenzer J, Obesity related illness consumes a sixth of US healthcare budget. BMJ. 2010; 341: 6014.

3. Obesity and overweight. WHO Fact sheet N°311 [Internet]; 2015 January. Available from: http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs311/en.

4. Yakist zhyttya u Lvivskiy oblasti. Statystychnyy zbirnyk [Quality of life in Lviv region. Statistics data]. [Internet]; 2016. Available from: https://www.lv.ukrstat.gov.ua/ukr/publ/2017/ZB2320170101.pdf (Ukrainian)

5. Watanabe H, Tanabe N, Watanabe T, Darbar D, Roden DM, Sasaki S, et al. Metabolic syndrome and risk development of atrial fibrilation. The Niigata preventive medicine study. Circulation. 2008; 117: 1255-66.

6. Mozaffarian D, Kamineni A, Prineas RJ, Siscovick DS. Metabolic syndrome and mortality in older adults: the Cardiovascular Health Study. Arch Intern Med. 2008; 168: 969-78.

7. Hubert HB, Feinleib M, McNamara PM, Castelli WP. Obesity as an risk factor for cardiovascular disease: a 26 year follow up of participants in the Framinghem heart study. Circulation. 1983; 67: 968-77.

8. Otani K, Ishihara S, Yamaguchi H, Murono K, Yasuda K, Nishikawa T, Tanaka T, Kiyomatsu T, Hata K, Kawai K, Nozawa H, Watanabe T. Adiponectin and colorectal cancer. Surgery Today. 2017; 47(2): 151-8.

9. Marchesini G, Moscatiello S, Di Domizio S, et al. Obesity-associated liver disease. Semin Liver Dis. 2008 Nov; 28(4): 360-9.

10. Malhi H, Geros JG. Molecular mechanism of lipotoxity in nonalcoholic liver disease. JCEM. 2008; 11(1): 74.

11. Lazebnik LB, Zvenigorodskaya LA, Egorova EG. Metabolichnyi syndrom: tochka zory gastroenterologa [Metabolic syndrome: a gastroenterologist's viewpoint]. Rus Med Z. 2005; 13(26): 1706-12.

12. Mukhin NA, Fomin VV, Rodina AV, Ermakov NV, Severova MM, Saginova EA, Gallyamov MG, Surkova OA. The role of leptin, adiponectin and insulin resistance markers in the development of early stages of chronic renal disease and coronary artery atherosclerosis in patients with obesity. Ter Arh – Terapeutic Archive. 2006; 5: 1619-22.

13. Kutyrina IM, Mukhin NA, Moiseev SV, Gitel' EP, Fomin VV, Samokhodskaya LM, Minakova EG, Saginova EA, Fedorova EY. Renal irritation formation in obese patients. Ter Arh – Terapeutic Archive. 2006; 5: 36-42.

14. Rexford S. Linking adiponectin to proteinuria. J Clin Invest. 2008; 118(5): 1619-22.

15. Thoenes M, Reil J-C, Khan BV, Bramlage P, Volpe M, Kirch W, Michael B. Abdominal obesity is associated with microalbuminuria and an elevated cardiovascular risk profile in patients

with hypertension. Vasc Health Risk Manag. 2009; 5: 577-85.

16. Sood A. Obesity, airway hyperresponsiveness, and inflammation. App Physiol. 2010; 108(3): 735-43.

17. Rabes C, Ramos PL, Veale D. Complicaciones respiratorias de la obesidad. Archivos de Bronconeumologia. 2011; 47(5): 252-61.

18. Mustafina SV, Rymar OD, Simonova LV. Tyreoyidnyy status u lits s ozhyreniyem [Thyroid status in obese individuals]. Klinicheskaya eksperementalnaya tireodologiya. 2011; 7(2): 61. (Russian)

STUDY OF MACRO- AND MICROELEMENT COMPOSITION OF SKELETAL MUSCLES OF THE RATS WITH CHRONIC HYPERGLYCEMIA

Rtail R., Tkach G.

Key words: skeletal muscles, chronic hyperglycemia, macroelements, microelements.

To date, there is a small number of works devoted to the study of the role of trace elements in the development of chronic hyperglycemia and diabetes, wherein the results are often controversial. This circumstance prompted us to conduct our own experiment to study the concentration of K, Na, Ca, Mg, Fe, Zn, Cu in skeletal muscles of rats with chronic hyperglycemia. 12 Wistar male rats were used for experiment. Animals were divided into control and experimental subgroups (6 in each group). The chronic hyperglycemia in the experimental group was modeled by two-week of 10% fructose solution loading with followed single intraperitoneal administration of streptozotocin 40 mg/kg. Triceps surae muscle was used for study. Determination of macro- and microelements content was carried out by atomic absorption spectrometry methods with electrothermal and flame atomization. The statistical analysis was performed using the SPSS-15 electronic package. Determination of the reliability of the differences between control and experimental groups was performed using Student's criterion (t). It was revealed that concentration of K (P <0.001), Ca (P <0.001), Fe (P = 0.001), Zn (P = 0.001) and Cu (P = 0.038) in striated muscles of animals with chronic hyperglycemia was significantly lower compared to rats of control group. There were no differences between the contents of Na and Mg in comparison groups (P = 0.101 and P = 0.374, respectively). The results of the present study showed a significant difference between the content of macro- and microelements in skeletal muscles of rats with chronic hyperglycemia and control animals, indicating possible differences in the accumulation of elements in tissues under the condition of normal- and hyperglycemia.

1. Alves R, Chaleil R, Sternberg M. Evolution of enzymes in metabolism: a network perspective. J Mol Biol. 2002;320(4):751-70.

2. Boullata J. Trace elements in critically ill patients. J Infus Nurs. 2013;36(1):16-23. doi: 10.1097/NAN.0b013e3182787504.

3. Blair M. Diabetes Mellitus Review. Urol Nurs. 2016;36(1):27-36.

4. Kharroubi A, Darwish H. Diabetes mellitus: The epidemic of the century. World J Diabetes. 2015; 6(6): 850-867. doi: 10.4239/wjd.v6.i6.850.

5. Barbagallo M, Dominguez L. Magnesium and type 2 diabetes. World J Diabetes. 2015; 6(10): 1152–1157.

6. Haenni A, Berglund L, Reneland R, Andersson P, Lind L, Lithell H. The alterations in insulin sensitivity during angiotensin converting enzyme inhibitor treatment are related to changes in the calci-um/magnesium balance. Am J Hypertens. 1997; 10: 145-151.

7. Zargar A, Shah N, Masoodi S, Laway B, Dar F, Khan A, Wani A. Copper, zinc, and magnesium levels in non-insulin dependent diabetes mellitus. Postgrad Med J 1998; 74: 665-668.

8. Faure P, Lafond J, Coudray C, Rossini E, Halimi S, Favier A, Blache D. Zinc prevents the structural and functional properties of free radical treated-insulin. Biochim Biophys Acta. 1994; 1209:260-264.

9. Diwan A, Pradhan A, Lingojwar D, Krishna K, Singh P, Almelkar S. Serum zinc, chromium, and magnesium levels in type-2 diabetes. Int J Diabet Dev Countries 2006; 26: 122-123

10. Meksawan K, Sermsri U, Chanvorachote P. Zinc supplementation improves anticancer activity of monocytes in type-2 diabetic pa-tients with metabolic syndrome. Anticancer Res 2014; 34: 295-299.

11. Presley T, Duncan A, Jeffers A, Fakayode S. The variation of macro- and micro-minerals of tissues in diabetic and non-diabetic rats. J Trace Elem Med Biol. 2017;39:108-115. doi: 10.1016/j.jtemb.2016.08.009

12. Wilson R, Islam M. Fructose-fed streptozotocin-injected rat: an alternative model for type 2 diabetes. Pharmacol Rep. 2012;64(1):129-39.

13. Praveeena S, Sujatha P, Sameera K. Trace Elements in Diabetes Mellitus. J Clin Diagn Res. 2013; 7(9): 1863–1865. i: 10.7860/JCDR/2013/5464.3335

14. Siddiqui K, Bawazeer N, Salini S. Variation in Macro and Trace El-ements in Progression of Type 2 Diabetes. ScientificWorldJournal. 2014;2014:461591. doi: 10.1155/2014/461591.

STATUS OF FREE-RADICAL PROCESSES AND ANTIOXIDANT PROTECTION SYSTEM OF THE PARODONTIUM CONNECTIVE TISSUE IN RABBITS WITH HYDROCORTISONE PERIODONTITIS

Cheremysna V.F., Jemela O.D., Gychenko G.P.

Key words: rabbits, hydrocortisone periodontitis, peroxide oxidation of lipids, antioxidant system, catalase, ceruloplasmin, malondialdehyde.

The article presents the results of studying the status of lipid peroxidation and the activity of enzyme systems in hydrocortisone periodontitis in rabbits, both in serum and in the periodontal mandibular homogenate. Increased intake of xenobiotics, depletion of depot antioxidants, unbalanced nutrition and other negative factors promotes the development of an oxidative stress characterized by imparing the prooxidant and antioxidant balance, and the development of oxidative damage. Object. To analyze the status of free-radical processes in hydrocortisone periodontitis in rabbits. Materials and methods. The research was conducted on Chinchilla breeds, which were subjected to modeled periodontitis. Results. Unidirectional changes of lipid peroxidation (LP) and antioxidant enzyme systems in both serum and mandibular periodontal tissue homogenate were found out. The study demonstrated the activation of lipid peroxidation and antioxidant defense in serum. Conclusions. Increase in the activity of lipid peroxidation processes plays an important role in the pathogenesis of numerous pathological processes, including inflammatory lesions of periodontal tissues. Changes in the indicators of the lipid peroxidation system serve as markers for identifying the severity of the inflammatory process and the effectiveness of the treatment. In hydrocortisone periodontitis in rabbits we observe the activation of lipid peroxidation and decrease in the activity of antioxidant enzyme systems. Shifts occurring in the secondary LP products, catalase and ceruloplasmin confirm the inflammatory nature of periodontium pathology in rabbits.

References

1. Armstrong D. Oxidative stress biomarkers and antioxidant protocols. Totowa, New Jersey: Humana Press Inc. 2002. 186 p.

2. Bayburina G. Influence of free radical oxidation on level of corticosteroid receptors in livers of animals depending on initial sensitivity to hypoxia in dynamics of postresuscitation period. International Research Journal. 2018. 1(67):30–4.

3. Kantarci A. Animal models for periodontal regeneration and per implant responses.

Periodontal. 2000. 1:66-82.

4. Marnett L. Lipid peroxidation-DNA damage by malondiaaldehyde. Mutat. 1999. 424(1-2):83-95.

5. Seto H, Okuda T, Takesue T. Reaction of Malonaldehyde with Nucleic Acid. Formation of Fluorescent Pyrimido[1,2-a]purin-10(3H)-one Nucleosides. Bulletin of the Chemical Society of Japan. 1983. 56(6):1799–1802.

6. Bereznjakova A. I. Stan nefermentnogo antyoksydantnogo gomeostazu u shhuriv z alergichnym dermatytom [Rats have the state of unenzymic antioxidant homoeostasis with an allergodermia]. Fiziologichnyj zhurnal = Physiology magazine. 2014, 4(60): 50–5. (In Ukr.)

7. Gevkaljuk N. O. Dejaki pokaznyky stanu oksydantno-antyoksydantnoi' systemy pry grypoznomu stomatyti u ditej [Some indicators of the oxidation-antioxidant system in children with flu-like stomatitis]. Medychna himija = Medical chemistry. 2013, 2(15): 60–3. (In Ukr.)

8. Kamyshnykov V. S. Metody klynycheskoj laboratornoj dyagnostyky [Methods of clinical laboratory diagnostics]. M.: MEDpress-ynform = The MEDpress-inform. 2013, 736 p. (In Russ.)

9. Kolesnikova L. I., Darenskaja M.A., Kolesnikov S.I. Svobodnoradikal'noe okislenie: vzgljad patofiziologa [Free-radical oxidization: look of physiopathology]. Bjulleten' sibirskoj mediciny = Bulletin of Siberian medicine. 2017,4:16–29. (In Russ.)

10. Koroljuk M. A., Ivanova L. I., Majorova I. G. Metod opredelenija aktivnosti katalazy [Method for the determination of catalase activity]. Laboratornoe delo = Laboratory work. 1988,1: 16–9. (In Russ.)

11. Lapach S. N., Chubenko A.V., Babich P.N. Statisticheskie metody v mediko-biologicheskih issledovanijah s ispol'zovaniem Exel [Statistical methods in biomedical research using Exel]. K.: MORION, 2000. 320 p. (In Russ.)

12. Levyckyj A. P., Stupak E.P., Furdychko A.Y. Byohymycheskye yzmenenyja v parodonte krыs s alloksanovыm dyabetom y yh korrekcyja lyzocymom [Biochemical changes in the periodontium of rats with alloxan diabetes and their correction by lysozyme]. Aktual'ni problemy suchasnoi' medycyny: Visnyk ukrai'ns'koi' medychnoi' stomatologichnoi' akademii' = Actual problems of modern medicine: Bulletin of the Ukrainian Medical Stomatological Academy. 2013, 2 (42): 42–6. (In Russ.)

13. Mozgovaja L.A. Rol' citokinov v patogeneze vospalitel'nyh zabolevanij parodonta [The role of cytokines in the pathogenesis of inflammatory periodontal diseases]. Materialy Nauchnoj sessii 2007 goda (Perm') = Materials of the Scientific Session of 2007 (Perm). 2007. 81-2 p. (In Russ.)

14. Obshhie jeticheskie principy jeksperimentov na zhivotnyh: materialy I Nacional'nogo kongressa po biojetike [General ethical principles of experiments on animals: Proceedings of the I National Congress on Bioethics]. K.: NANU = K .: NASU. 2001. 16 p. (In Russ.)

15. Putilina F. E. Svobodno-radikal'noe okislenie: uchebno-metod [Free-radical oxidation: the teaching method]. Posobie. SPb. : Izd. SPb. un. = Allowance SPb.: Ed. SPb. Un. 2008. 161 p. (In Russ.)

16. Stal'naja I. D., Gorishvili T.D. Metod opredelenija malonovogo dial'degida s pomoshl'ju tiobarbiturovoj kisloty. Sovremennye metody v biohimii [Method for the determination of malonic dialdehyde using thiobarbituric acid. Modern methods in biochemistry]. M.: Medicina = M .: Medicine. 1977. 66–8 p. (In Russ.)

ANGIOGENESIS IN HIGH GRADE DIFFUSE ASTROCYTIC TUMORS

Chertenko T.

Key words: glioblastoma, anaplastic astrocytoma, angiogenesis in malignant diffuse astrocytic tumors, VEGF, CD34, EGFR, recurrences of high grade diffuse astrocytic tumors

Angiogenesis plays the key role in tumor progression. It is mentioned in some scientific reports that the evaluation of the expression such vascular markers as CD34 and VEGF could be used for

diagnostic and prognostic purposes. Moreover, VEGF expression should be evaluated in cases when specifically targeted chemotherapy is needed e.g. in relapsed tumors. It was well described the fact that the growth of a number of epidermal growth factor receptor (EGFR) in tumor tissue is one of the triggers that stimulate the synthesis of VEGF. Nevertheless, the prognostic impact of this phenomenon for diffuse astrocytic tumors is still under discussion. There is a lack of studies that are focused on the angiogenesis in a complex with scoring a proliferative activity of endothelium and its features varying from tumor morphology. The number of research reports that describe angiogenesis in relapsed anaplastic astrocytomas and glioblastomas is also insufficient, although this information could be helpful for the development of an effective therapeutic strategy. The aim of this study was a complex analysis of angiogenesis in diffuse astrocytic tumors grade III-IV through the routine histological investigation and contemporary immunohistochemical method. Materials and methods. The recent study included 3 groups of tumor specimens (the total number of observations was 45 tumor samples). The first and the second groups included samples of anaplastic astrocytomas and glioblastomas, but patients from the 1st group, in comparison to patients from the 2nd group, experienced a recurrence within 1 year after the surgery. The third group was composed of relapses of the tumors from the patients in the 1st group. Immunohistochemistry with primary antibody CD34, VEGF and EGFR were used in our study. The index of vascularisation was independently calculated in every case. The index was calculated as the ratio of the microvascular density scored with VEGF to the microvascular density scored with CD34. Kruskal-Wallis H and Mann-Whitney U tests were performed for comparison of quantitative parameters between groups. Chi-squared test was used when it was needed. Results. The average index of vascularisation was slightly higher in the group of tumors, that relapsed within 1 year after the surgery (0.825 ± 0.13) in comparison with the group of tumors without relapse $(0,67\pm0,39)$. But this difference was statistically insignificant. The index of vascularisation was significantly higher (p<0,01) in primary tumors with cysts (0.97 ± 0.06) compared to primary solid tumors (0.52 ± 0.16) . The thick-walled vessels are significantly more often found in relapsed diffuse astrocytic tumors (Chi-squared test=14,014, p < 0.01). Probably, it could be a result of microvessel transformation caused by radiation and chemotherapy. The significant elevation of the index of vascularization was associated with elevation of EGFR expression in tumor tissue (Kruskal-Wallis H (2, N=45)=34,19 (p < 0.0001)). Conclusions. 1. The thick-walled vessels are significantly more often found in relapsed diffuse astrocytic tumors compared to primary tumors (Chi-squared test=14,014, p<0,01). 2. The index of vascularisation was significantly higher (p<0,01) in primary tumors with cysts compared to primary solid tumors. 3. There were no significant differences in the index of vascularization in the group of tumors, that relapsed within 1 year after the surgery and the group without relapse (p > 0.05). 4. The significant elevation of the index of vascularization was associated with elevation of EGFR expression in tumor tissue (Kruskal-Wallis H (2, N=45)=34,19 (p<0,0001) and Mann-Whitney U test in a pairwise comparison of groups p<0,01 for each pair).

References

1. Louis DN, Ohgaki H, Wiestler OD et al. WHO Classification of Tumours of the Central Nervous System. Lyon: IARC; 2007. 312 p.

2. Louis D, Perry A, Reifenberger G, von Deimling A, Figarella-Branger D, Cavenee W, Ohgaki H, Wiestler O, Kleihues P, Ellison D. The 2016 World Health Organization Classification of Tumors of the Central Nervous System: a summary. Acta Neuropathologica. 2016; 131(6):803-820. https://doi.org/ 10.1007/s00401-016-1545-1

3. Fletcher C. editor. Diagnostic histopathology of tumors. Edinburgh: Churchill Livingstone; 2013. 2296 p.

4. Kong, X, Guan J, Ma W, Li Y, Xing B, Yang Y, Wang Y, Gao J, Wei J, Yao Y, Xu Z, Dou W, Lian W, Su C, Ren Z and Wang R. CD34 Over-expression is associated with gliomas' higher WHO grade. Medicine. 2016; 95(7):28-30. https://doi.org/ 10.1097/MD.00000000002830.

5. Yoo H, Sohn S, Lee SH. The expressions of carbonic anhydrase 9 and vascular endothelial

growth factor in astrocytic tumors predict a poor prognosis. International Journal of Molecular Medicine. 2010; 26(1):3-9 https://doi.org/10.3892/ijmm 00000427

6. Jain R, di Tomaso E, Duda D, Loeffler J, Sorensen A. and Batchelor T. Angiogenesis in brain tumors. Nature Reviews Neuroscience. 2007; 8(8):610-22. https://doi.org/ 10.1038/nrn2175

7. Ellis L, Hicklin D. VEGF-targeted therapy: mechanisms of anti-tumor activity. Nature Reviews Cancer. 2008; 8(8):579-591. https://doi.org/ 10.1038/nrc2403

8. Goldman C, Kim J, Wong W, King V, Brock T, Gillespie G. Epidermal growth factor stimulates vascular endothelial growth factor production by human malignant glioma cells: a model of glioblastoma multiforme pathophysiology. Molecular Biology of the Cell. 1993; 4(1):121-33.

9. Minder P, Zajac E, Quigley J, Deryugina E. (2015). EGFR Regulates the Development and Microarchitecture of Intratumoral Angiogenic Vasculature Capable of Sustaining Cancer Cell Intravasation. Neoplasia. 2015; 17(8):634-649. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neo.2015.08.002.

10. Dabbs D. editor. Diagnostic Immunohistochemistry. London: Elsevier Health Sciences; 2013. 848 p.

11. Chen L, Lin Z, Lin G, Zhou C, Chen Y, Wang X, Zheng Z. Classification of microvascular patterns via cluster analysis reveals their prognostic significance in glioblastoma. Human Pathology. 2015; 46(1):120-8. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.humpath.2014.10.002

12. Birlik B, Canda S, Ozer E. Tumour vascularity is of prognostic significance in adult, but not paediatric astrocytomas. Neuropathology and Applied Neurobiology. 2006; 32(5):532-38. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neo.2015.08.002.

13. Rahmah N, Sakai K, Li Y, Sano K, Hongo K. Comparison of manual and digital microvascular density counting of RECK expression in glioma. Neuropathology. 2011; 32(3):245-51. https://doi.org/ 10.1111/j.1440-1789.2011.01265.x

14. Nana A, Yang P, Lin H. Overview of Transforming Growth Factor β Superfamily Involvement in Glioblastoma Initiation and Progression. Asian Pacific Journal of Cancer Prevention. 2015; 16(16): 6813-23. <u>http://dx.doi.org/10.7314/APJCP.2015.16.16.6813</u>

UDC] 577.175:577.151:616.379 - 008.64] - 092.9

MELATONIN IMPROVES MITOCHONDRIAL FUNCTION AND DECREASES OXIDATIVE STRESS IN GUMS OF DIABETIC RATS

Yaremii I.M., Kushnir O.Yu., Khlus K.M.

Higher education institution in Ukraine

«Bukovinian State Medical University», Chernivtsi, Ukraine

It is known that melatonin not only carries out control of circadian and seasonal biorhythms in the human body, but also helps to maintain oxidative antioxidant homeostasis and normoglucemia in the body. The purpose of the study was to determine the effect of melatonin on the content of reduced glutathione and the activities of glutathione peroxidase, catalase and superoxide dismutase, as well as the content of TBC reactive compounds and protein carbonyl content in the cytosol, and the activities of succinate dehydrogenase and H+-ATP-ase in the mitochondria of the gums of rats with alloxan diabetes mellitus. Research methods. Animals were divided into 5 groups: 1) control; 2) rats with apparent diabetes – basal glycemia levels \geq 8.0 mmol / l; 3) rats with apparent diabetes who, from day 5 after administration of aloxane, received daily melatonin 10 mg / kg of weight during 7 days daily at 8:00 per os; 4) rat with impaired glucose tolerance - basal glycemia level \leq 6.9 mmol / l; 3) rats with impaired glucose tolerance, which were similarly administered within 7 days of melatonin. Results and discussion. In gingival tissues of rats with apparent diabetes, reduction in the content of reduced glutathione by 30% and increased activity of glutathione peroxidase by 32% were observed, respectively, when compared with control rats. The activity of catalase and superoxide dismutase decreased by 18% and 46% in the group of diabetic rats than in

the control group. In the group of animals with impaired glucose tolerance, the activity of catalase was 25% higher than control. The content of TBC reactive compounds increased in groups of diabetic rats and with impaired glucose tolerance by 65% and 36% respectively, while the level of oxidized proteins in animals with diabetes increased by 52% compared to control. In the mitochondrial fraction of gum cells, decrease in the activity of succinate dehydrogenase and H + - ATPase in animals with diabetes was found to be 68% and 41%, respectively, as compared to control. Weekly daily administration to rats with apparent diabetes melatonin at a rate of 10 mg / kg contributed to the normalization of the glutathione system and basal glycemia we studied. Conclusion: These results demon-strate that melatonin supplementation prevents gingival mitochondrial dysfunction induced by diabetes in as-sociation with decreased oxidative stress.

Key words: antioxidative system, mitochondria, aloxane diabetes, gums, melatonin, rats.

Completed in accordance with the planned research work "Stressed morphofunctional and biochemical changes in the structures of chronoperiodical and hepatorenal systems in mammals" 0114 U002472 – Fundamental.

Introduction

Diabetics and experimental animal models ex-hibit high oxidative stress due to persistent and chronic hyperglycemia, thereby deplete the activity of the antioxidative defense system and thereby promote the generation of free radicals [6]. The metalloproteins SOD, CAT, and GPx provide the first line of antioxidant defense against reactive ox-ygen species through enzyme-catalyzed dismutation of O2- to H2O2, which is further reduced to oxygen and water [11].

Melatonin, a hormone secreted by the pineal gland, has remarkable antioxidant properties [13].

Diabetic gingivitis [8] is a diabetic complication related to the metabolic alterations featur-ing diabetes. Diabetes is characterized by in-creased lipid peroxidation, altered glutathione redox status, exacerbated levels of ROS, and mitochondrial dysfunction.

Succinate dehydrogenase (SDH) or succinate-coenzyme Q reductase (SQR) or respiratory Complex II is an enzyme complex, found in many bacte-rial cells and in the inner mitochondrial membrane of eukaryotes. It is the only enzyme that partici-pates in both the citric acid cycle and the electron transport chain [9]. ATPases in mitochondria are the prime producers of ATP, using the proton gra-dient generated by oxidative phosphorylation [5].

Taking this into consideration, the aim of this work was to evaluate the effects of melatonin intake in gingival mitochondrial function and cytosolic oxidative status in alloxan-induced diabetic rats.

The aim was to determine the influence of mela-tonin on basal levels of glucose (BG) in the blood, levels of protein carbonyl content and thiobarbituric acid reactive compounds (TBCRC), reduced gluta-thione (GSH), activities of glutathione peroxidase [EC 1.11.1.9] (GPx), superoxiddysmutase [EC 1.15.1.1] (SOD) and catalase [EC 1.11.1.6] (CAT) in cytosolic fraction of gums, activities of succinate dehydrogenase [EC 1.3.5.1] (SDH) and H+-ATP-ase [EC 3.6.1.3] in gingival mitochondria of alloxan diabetic rats.

Materials and methods

Research performed in compliance with the Rules of the work using experimental animals (1977) and the Council of Europe Convention on the Protection of Vertebrate Animals used in exper-iments and other scientific purposes (Strasbourg, 1986), according to directions of International Committee of Medical Journals Editors (ICMJE), as well as "Bioethical expertise of preclinical and other scientific research conducted on animals" (Kyiv, 2006). Diabetes was induced in male Wistar rats by single i.p. injection of alloxan (170 mg/kg) [7]. Four days after diabetes induction, rats were divided into diabetic (untreated) and melatonin-diabetic group (10 mg/kg, daily and orally for one week). Among diabetic rats were rats with preserved normoglycemia (impaired glucose tolerance – IGT) and rats with diabetes mellitus (DM) $BG \ge 8,0$ mmol/l. Blood was taken from the tail vein evaluate the BG level with the use of OneTouchUltra (LifeScan, USA). Rats were sacrificed at the twelfth day from the beginning of the experiment accord-ance with the ethical

treatment of animals. The gin-gival tissue was quickly removed, rinsed in saline, blotted, weighed and homogenized. The homoge-nate, 5% in ice-cold 0,25 mM tris-HCl-buffer (pH 7,4), was made using a homogenizer. The superna-tant of the homogenate, prepared by ultracentrifu-gation for 10 min at 3000g/min was used for meas-urement of activities of enzymes. Gingival cytosolic oxidant status was assessed by measuring of GSH level, SOD, CAT, and GPx activities. Determinations of the enzymes activities were by standard methods [12].

In the process of oxidative modification of pro-teins in the radicals of the aliphatic amino acid resi-dues, aldehyde and ketone groups are formed. They interact with 2,4-dinitrophenylhydrazine (2,4-DNPH) to form 2,4-dinitrophenylhydrazones with a specific absorption spectrum. Aldehydeand keto-derivatives which are neutral in nature are deter-mined at a wavelength of 370 nm [2]. The method of TBCRC determination is based on a spectropho-tometric determination of the trimetinic colored complex formed from the TBCRC interaction with thiobarbituric acid [1].

Mitochondria were isolated by differential cen-trifugation in the isolation buffer [14]. Energy func-tion of mitochondria was estimated by determina-tion of succinate dehydrogenase activity [3] and H+-ATP-ase [4].

Statistical analysis was performed using Statistica 10 StatSoft Inc. To determine an ade-quate method of statistical estimation of the aver-age difference between the study groups held preliminary check distribution quantities in samples. According to the criteria Shapiro-Wilk, which is used to assess the normality of distribution in the sample volume n \leq 50, all samples not received data on deviation of the distribution of samples from normal (p>0,05). Given these data, the use of Mann-Whitney test was considered sufficient for valid conclusions. Differences were considered to be statistically significant at p \leq 0,05.

Results and Discussion

Insertion of melatonin for 7 days helped to re-duce 1.9 times compared with the baseline, basal glucose level in the group of animals with overt dia-betes, indicating its hypoglycemic action.

Diabetics and experimental animal models ex-hibit high oxidative stress due to persistent and chronic hyperglycemia, thereby deplete the activity of the antioxidative defense system and thereby promote the generation of free radicals [6].

To access the protein oxidation mediated by glycation process, the levels of protein carbonyl content (tabl. 1) were measured. The level of pro-tein carbonyl groups was significantly increased in DM by 52% compared with control, whereas mela-tonin treatment significantly suppressed an increase in protein carbonyl content. When compar-ing with index of diabetic rats, the percentage reduction of carbonyl content by melatonin was found to be 19%.

The biochemical function of GPx is to reduce li-pid hydroperoxides to their corresponding alcohols and to reduce free hydrogen peroxide to water. Glutathione neutralizes ROS, both directly and through GPx. We have found the level of GSH decreases by 30% and activity of GPx increases by 32% in DM group of animals compared with control. Reduced content of GSH in gums under DM, presumably due to both inhibition of its synthesis and enhanced use by GPx to neutralize hydrogen peroxide and other hydroperoxides, formed due to increased free radical oxidation of lipids and biopolymers in gum tissue. The activities of CAT and SOD were found to be lesser on 18% and 46% in DM group of rats than in control. In group of animals with IGT activity of CAT was on 25% higher than control possible due to absence of hyperglycemia. Melatonin injections was helpful for normalization this index under study.

TBCRC are formed as a result of lipid peroxida-tion that can be used to measure lipid peroxides after reacting it with thiobarbituric acid. The level of TBCRC was found to be higher on 65% in DM group and on 36% in IGT group respectively than in control. So, the lipid peroxidation was increased in diabetic gums. Melatonin partly prevented diabetes-induced increase in TBCRC in gingival tissues.

According to the results obtained, it may be postulated that melatonin inhibits glycation by reducing the generation of reactive carbonyl or dicarbonyl groups either from fructosamine or glucose, probably due to stimulation of glucose transport to cells [1] and preventing of ROS

formation in conditions of hyperglycemia.

Reduced levels of the mitochondrial enzyme SDH (tabl. 2), the main element of complex II of electron transport chain, were observed in gingival mitochondria of DM rats which were on 68% less than control. Energy metabolism defects have been identified according decrease of the H+-ATP-ase activity on 41% compared with control. Melatonin injections was helpful for normalization this index under study.

Melatonin, as it is known [10], stimulates the uti-lization of glucose by tissues, it promotes an increase in the tissues of ATP concentration, the res-toration of disturbed under diabetes mellitus oxidant-antioxidant homeostasis. A week daily admin-istration to rats with DM melatonin at a rate of 10 mg / kg contributed to a decrease in basal glycemia and normalization of all of our indices.

Table 1 Changes of the antioxidant defence in gums of diabetic rats, (n=6, $x\pm S x$)

Indexes Groups G-SH, µmol/g GPx, CAT, mmol/min×mg SOD, OD/min×mg µmol/min×mg TBCRC, µmol/g of tissue Protein carbonyl (370нм), mmol/g protein 1.Control group 93.0±3.5 437±31 103.2±3.54 0.25 ± 0.012 21.5±1.09 2.04 ± 0.08 2. DM 65.3±4.2a p=0.0032 574±28a p=0.014 84.5±5.27a p=0.015 0.14±0.009a p=0.00093 35.4±2.28a p=0.0024 3.11±0.19a p=0.003 3. DM + melatonin 94.4±3.8b p=0.0031 448±38b p=0.024 93.3±4.19 0.18±0.011b p = 0.01927.8±1.23b p=0.015 2.52±0.18 a. b p=0.035 p=0.048 4. IGT 97.8±5.0b p=0.0034 461±34b p=0.028 129.0±8.97a.b p = 0.024p=0.0057 0.29±0.018b $p=0.0008829.1\pm2.05$ a. p=0.014 2.53±0.21 5. IGT + melatonin 102.0±4.9b p=0.0022 455±28b p=0.013 105.0±5.22b.c p=0.02 p=0.043 0.26±0.015b p=0.0012 20.2±1.72b.c

p=0.0027 2.17±0.09b p=0.013 p=0.0049 Note: 1. a, b, c - changes are reliable ($p \le 0.05$). 2. a - concerning intact rats; b - concerning rats with diabetes mellitus; c - concerning rats with IGT Table 2 Changes of mitochondrial energy function in gums of diabetic rats, (n=6, $x\pm Sx$) Indexes Groups SDH, nmol/min×mg H+-ATP-ase, µmol (iP)/min×mg 1.Control group 10.87±2.860 0.37±0.023 2. DM 3.52±1.435a p=0.047 0.21±0.019a p=0.0027 3. DM + melatonin 9.03±1.81 b 0.29±0.011 a. b p=0.041 p= 0.01 p = 0.00314. IGT 10.75±3.0598 0.38±0.015 5. IGT + melatonin 10.2 ± 2.352 0.41 ± 0.03 Note: 1. a, b, c - changes are reliable ($p \le 0.05$). 2. a - concerning intact rats; b - concerning rats with diabetes mellitus; c - concerning rats with IGT

Conclusion

Melatonin improves gingival mitochondrial func-tion in diabetic rats preventing impairment of mito-chondrial respiration. Melatonin also decreased ROS levels and lipid peroxidation and improved the GSH level as well. These results demonstrate that melatonin supplementation prevents gingival mitochondrial dysfunction induced by diabetes in association with decreased oxidative stress.

References

1. Ceban E, Banov P, Galescu A, Botnari V. Oxidative stress and antioxidant status in patients with complicated urolithiasis. J Med Life. 2016; 9(3): 259–262.

2. Djindjic B, Kostic T, Radovanovic Z, Djindjic N, Lazovic M, Zivic M, Perisic Z, Krstic N. The contributions of fasting and postprandial blood glucose increments to oxidative stress and inflammation in dyslipidemic type 2 diabetic patients with stable ischemic heart disease. Int J Cardiol. 2017;227:611-616. doi: 10.1016/j.ijcard.2016.10.089.

3. Eshchenko ND, Volsky G.G. Prokhorov M.I. Metody by'oxy'my'chesky'x y'ssledovany'j [Methods of biochemical research]. L.: LSU, 1992: 210-212. (Russian)

4. Gabibov MM. Vly'yany'e gy'perbary'cheskoj oksy'genacy'y' na akty'vnost' protonnoj ATF-aziы my'toxondry'j razly'chnыx tkanej krыs [Influence of hyperbaric oxygenation on activity of proton ATP-aza mitochondria of various tissues of rats]. Ukrayins'ky'j bioximichny'j zhurnal. 1986; 5 (58): 81-83. (Russian)

5. Geider K, Hoffmann-Berling H. Proteins controlling the helical structure of DNA. Annual Review of Biochemistry. 1981; 50: 233–60. doi:10.1146/annurev.bi.50.070181.0013

6. Hong JH, Kim MJ, Park MR, Kwag OG, Lee IS, Byun BH, Lee SC, Lee KB, Rhee SJ. Effects of vitamin E on oxidative stress and membrane fluidity in brain of streptozotocin-induced diabetic rats. Clin Chim Acta. 2004; 340(1-2):107-115.

7. Kushnir O, Pantsiuk K. Changes of pyruvate kinase activity in the muscle tissue of rats under conditions of alloxan diabetes and administration of melatonin. 28th European Students' Conference: «Genetic Engineering When Chance Meets Choice» (27th - 30th September 2017, Carite –Universitatsmedizin Berlin, Germany). P. 6.
8. Ortiz-Avila O, Esquivel-Martínez M, Olmos-Orizaba BE, Saavedra-Molina A, Rodriguez-Orozco AR, Cortés-Rojo C. Avocado Oil Improves Mitochondrial Function and Decreases Oxidative Stress in Brain of Diabetic Rats. J Diabetes Res. 2015;2015:485759. doi: 10.1155/2015/485759.

9. Oyedotun KS, Lemire BD (March 2004). "The quaternary structure of the Saccharomyces cerevisiae succinate dehydrogenase. Homology modeling, cofactor docking, and molecular dynamics simulation studies". The Journal of Biological Chemistry. 279 (10): 9424–31. doi:10.1074/jbc.M311876200

10. Peschke E. Melatonin, endocrine pancreas and diabetes. Journal of Pineal Research. 2008; 44:26-40.

11. Qian Guo, Young-Nam Kim, Bog-Hieu Lee. Protective effects of blueberry drink on cognitive impairment induced by chronic mild stress in adult rats. Nutr Res Pract. 2017; 11(1): 25–32.

12. Szpetnar M, Luchowska-Kocot D, Boguszewska-Czubara A, Kurzepa J. The Influence of Manganese and Glutamine Intake on Antioxidants and Neurotransmitter Amino Acids Levels in Rats' Brain. Neurochem Res. 2016; 41(8):2129-2139. doi: 10.1007/s11064-016-1928-7.

13. Vishnoi S, Raisuddin S, Parvez S. Glutamate Excitotoxicity and Oxidative Stress in Epilepsy: Modulatory Role of Melatonin. J Environ Pathol Toxicol Oncol. 2016; 35(4):365-374.

14. Weinbach EC. A procedure for isolating stable mitochondria from rat liver and kidney. Anal Biochem. 1961; 2(4): 335-343.

CONSERVATIVE TREATMENT OF PULPITIS BY USING CITRATE BUFFER

Bublij T.D., Kostyrenko O.P. Kotelevskaya N.V, Moshel T.N.

Key words: citrate buffer, pulpitis, conservative treatment.

The article describes the study of the effect produced by citric acid on hard dental tissues that results in the chemical reaction yielding calcium citrate, which serves as a hard dental tissue protector by forming a sort of root seal and is characterised by biological inertness ensuring its antiallergic properties. The purpose of this work was to investigate the response of the pulp and hard dental tissues in the course of treating pulpitis with citrate buffer. Four patients aged 21 - 35 years passed through clinical and X-ray examinations to confirm their diagnosis of acute focal pulpitis. Following the antiseptic treatment and preparation of the carious cavity, we placed citrate buffer containing white clay onto the bottom of the carious cavity and sealed with temporary sealant. A week later fillings were replaced with permanent ones when there were no problems with teeth. A histochemical study by using Schiff's staining was performed on the longitudinal section of the filled teeth removed for orthodontic reasons. According to the results of clinical and additional studies, positive dynamics was observed in all the patients treated by the proposed method. Histochemical findings showed that after the application of paste with citrate buffer, there was a hardening of areas in hard tissues of the tooth 4.8 around the carious cavity; we also observed positive Schiff (PAS) reaction due to the accumulation of fibrin and mucoproteins in the dentin near the horn of the pulp. The therapeutic lining by citrate buffer causes an anti-inflammatory effect, has no side effects and contraindications. In addition, the accumulation of fibrin and mucoproteins in the areas of predentin and regular dentin near the horn of the pulp indicates the onset of the active phase of the process of delimitation from the source of destruction, which in this region has the maximum Schiff (PAS) positive reaction. We can recommend applying citrate buffer as an alternative to calcium hydroxide layer during conservative treatment of pulpitis.

References

1. Gasyuk AP, Novoselceva TV, Andreeva EV. Regeneraciya pulpy zuba [Regeneration of

tooth pulp] Ukrayinskij stomatologichnij almanah. 2003;5:15-17.(Ukrainian).

2. Yugov VK, Skripnikova TP, Bublij TD. Rentgeno-morfologichni osoblivosti zmin pri pulpitah, yaki suprovodzhuyutsya utvorennyam v pulpi malomineralizovannoyi, metaplastichnoyi kistkovoyi tkanini [X-ray morphologic peculiarities of changes at pulpits that accompanied by formation in the pulp little mineralized metaplastic bone tissue] Mir mediciny i biologii. 2012;3(34):126-128.(Ukrainian).

3. Gasyuk AP, Shepitko VI, Zhdan VN. Morfo- i gistogenez osnovnyh stomatologicheskih zabolevanij [Morpho- and histogenesis of dental diseases]. Poltava; 2008. 93 p. (Russian).

4. Nikolishin AK, Geranin SI. Zastosuvannya antiseptichnih ta gemostatichnih zasobiv pri odnoseansnomu ekstirpatsiynomu metodi likuvannya pulpitu [Application of antiseptic and hemostatic agents in a one-session extirpation method of treatment of pulpitis]. Svit meditsini ta biologiyi. 2011; 1:121-127. (Ukrainian).

5. Ruvinskaya GR, Fazylova YuV. Sovremennyye printsipy konservativnogo lecheniya pulpita [Modern principles of conservative treatment of pulpitis] Sovremennyye problemy nauki i obrazovaniya. 2012. 5:35 – 37. (Russian).

6. Bublij TD, Kostirenko OP. Eksperimentalne doslidzhennya vikoristannya riznih koncentracij limonnoyi kisloti v endodontiyi [Experimental study of different concentrations of citric acid in endodontics] Aktual'ni problemy suchasnoyi medytsyny: Visnyk Ukrayins'koyi medychnoyi stomatolohichnoyi akademiyi. 2015; 4(52):17-20. (Ukrainian).

7. Kostyrenko AP, Bublij TD. Irrigaciya sistemy kornevogo kanala rastvorami limonnoj kisloty v eksperimente [Irrigation of the root canal system with solutions of citric acid in the experiment] Materialy mezhdunarodnoj prakticheskoj konferencii :Stomatologicheskoe zdorove rebenka [Materials of the International Practical Conference: Children's Dental Health]: Omsk; 2016. p. 100 - 102. (Russian).

8. BublIy TD, Kostirenko OP, Parfonova VS. Ukrainian Medical Stomatological Academy. Sposib Impregnatsiyi dentinu korenevogo kanalu. Ukraine patent 107843. 2016 Dec 12. (Ukrainian).

CHARACTERISTICS OF GUM SHAPERS

Zaporozhchenko IV, Toncheva KD, Kasyanova VG, Korol DM

Key words: implant-supported fixed dentures, prosthetic bed, gum shapers, gum gene phenotype. This article pays a particular attention to carrying out the preparatory stage prior the placement of implant-supported fixed dental prostheses. Despite the short term of their useful life, they play an important role in providing qualitative aesthetic tooth replacement with implant-supported appliances by preparing prosthetic bed and keeping gum healthy as well as facilitate good oral hygiene. Gum shapers are made of bio-inert materials and lined with various materials, e.g. fluoroplastics and polyether ketone. The purpose of this study was to compare different shapes of gum shapers depending on the gum gene phenotype. Materials and methods: We carried out a comparative study of gum shapers of various sizes, shape and type of surface. Results: The proper selection of a gum shaper was based on several factors including the width and thickness of the alveolar process, the biotype of the periodontal disease, the maxillary ratio, the interalveolar height, occlusal contact, tooth tilt that limit the dentition defect as well as the biological width of the natural teeth. The materials used to manufacture gum shapers are paid much attention as well as materials can produce considerable impact on the process of tissue regeneration within the peri-implant area. Many factors determine the composition of microbiota and the formation of biofilms with respect to biomaterials such as surface roughness, surface energy and chemical composition. Adhesiveness on the surface of the gum shaper is also provided by the type of the material itself and its property to be well polished. Conclusion: Carrying out the preparatory stage before the replacement with implantsupported fixed dentures is an integral part of the successful treatment outcomes. The use of gum shapers contributes to the good formation of the prosthetic bed by regenerating the peri-implant tissues.

References

1. Andreotti AM, De Sousa CA, Goiato MC, Freitas da Silva EV, Duque C, Moreno A, Dos Santos DM. In vitro evaluation of microbial adhesion on the different surface roughness of acrylic resin specific for ocular prosthesis. Eur J Dent. 2018;12(2):176-183. doi: 10.4103/ejd.ejd 5018.

2. de Barros Lucena GA, de Molon RS, Moretti AJ, Shibli JA, Rêgo DM. Evaluation of Microbial Contamination in the Inner Surface of Titanium Implants Before Healing Abutment Connection: A Prospective Clinical Trial.Int J Oral Maxillofac Implants. 2018;33(4):853-862. doi: 10.11607/jomi.5817.

3. Bürgers R, Morsczeck C, Felthaus O, Gosau M, Beck HC, Reichert TE. Induced surface proteins of Streptococcus epidermidis adhering to titanium implant substrata. Clin Oral Investig. 2018;22(7):2663-2668. doi: 10.1007/s00784-018-2508-9. Epub 2018 Jun 13.

4. Elter C, Heuer W, Demling A, Hannig M, Heidenblut T, Bach FW, Stiesch-Scholz M. Supra- and subgingival biofilm formation on im-plant abutments with different surface characteristics. Int J Oral Maxillofac Implants. 2008;23(2):327-34.

5. Esfahanizadeh N, Mirmalek SP, Bahador A, Daneshparvar H, Akhoundi N, Pourhajibagher M. Formation of biofilm on various implant abutment materials. Gen Dent. 2018;66(5):39-44.

6. Silva TSO, Freitas AR, Pinheiro MLL, do Nascimento C, Watanabe E, Albuquerque RF. Oral Biofilm Formation on Different Materials for Dental Implants. J Vis Exp. 2018;(136). doi: 10.3791/57756.

7. Subramani K, Jung RE, Molenberg A, Hammerle CH. Biofilm on dental implants: a review of the literature. Int J Oral Maxillofac Im-plants. 2009;24(4):616-26.

8. Teughels W, Van Assche N, Sliepen I, Quirynen M. Effect of mate-rial characteristics and/or surface topography on biofilm develop-ment. Clin Oral Implants Res. 2006;17 Suppl 2:68-81.

9. Quirynen M, Bollen CM. The influence of surface roughness and surface-free energy on supra- and subgingival plaque formation in man. A review of the literature. J Clin Periodontol. 1995;22(1):1-14.

10. Korol D.M., Lejbuk V.P., Chertov S.A. Metodicheskoe posobie po primeneniiu vnutrikostnyx implantatov sistemy ImpLife. Zaporozhe. 2011. 68p.

11. Toncheva K. D. Bioplivka v stomatologiyi. Aktualni problemy suchasnoyi medycyny: Visnyk Ukrayinskoyi medychnoyi stomatologichnoyi akademiyi. 2015; 4 (52): 338–343.

ELECTROMYOGRAPHIC RESEARCH OF CHEWING MUSCLES FUNCTIONING IN DYSFUNCTIONAL DISORDERS OF TEMPOROMANDIBULAR JOINT

Kostiuk T.M.

Key words: electromyography, temporomandibular joint, chewing muscles, bioelectric activity, bioelectric rest.

Muscular and articular dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint is one of the most prevalent disorders in dentistry nowadays. This is characterized by complicated polyetiology and varying clinical manifestations, presenting difficulties both for diagnosis and rehabilitation of the patients. The priority study direction is definitely the search for diagnostic methods that will allow clinicians to identify the dysfunctional changes in their early stage. We performed electromyography that contributed to analysis of changes in the masticatory muscles depending on the severity of temporomandibular joint dysfunction. The chewing muscles due to their complex reflex

interdependence are very sensitive and respond to any anatomical and functional changes of the dentofacial apparatus. Functional condition of the dentofacial muscles largely depends on even slight occlusal abnormalities. Neurogenic and myogenic disorders of the dental mandibular region can contribute or exacerbate the development of malocclusion. When the dentist starts therapy of the muscular-articular dysfunction, s/he should have clear vision on functional condition of all muscles of the head and neck region. When no or incomplete remodelling of muscular activity, there is a very high risk of the recurrence of this disorder. Therefore, one of the most important tasks of modern integrated therapy of the temporomandibular joint dysfunctions is its early detection. The electromyographic examination of patients who are suspected to have temporomandibular dysfunction allows clinicians to establish the dependence between the severity of dentofacial neuro-muscular affection and clinical manifestations of this disorder.

References

1. Afrashtehfar KI, Qadeer S. Computerized occlusal analysis as an alternative occlusal indicator. Cranio. 2014; 16: 215.

2. Ault J. Temporomandibular disorders [Electronic resource]. Available from: eMedicine http://www.emedicine.medscape.com/ Mar. 16, 2009.

3. Blanco Aguilera A, Gonzalez Lopez, Blanco Aguilera E, De la Hoz Aizpurua JL, Rodriguez Torronteras A, Segura Saint-Gerons R, Blanco Hungria A. Relationship between self-reported sleep bruxism and pain in patients with temporomandibular disorders. J Oral Rehabil. 2014 Aug; 41(8): 564-72.

4. Calderon P dos S, Hildenberg PB, Rosetti LM, Laurenti JV, Conti PC. Influence of tinnitus on pain severity and quality of life in patients with temporomandibular disorders. J Appl Oral Sci. 2012; 20(2): 170-3.

5. Ferendiuk E, Zajdel K, Pihut M. Incidence of otolaryngological symptoms in patients with temporomandibular joint dysfunctions. Biomed Res Int. 2014; 2014: 824684.

6. Furlan RM, Giovanardi RS, Britto AT, Britto DB. The use of superfi cial heat for treatment of temporomandibular disorders: an integrative review. Codas. 2015, Mar-Apr; 27(2): 207-12.

7. Igić M, Krunić N, Aleksov L, Kostić M. Determination of vertical dimension of occlusion by using the phonetic vowel "O" and "E". Vojnosanit Pregl. 2015; 72(2): 123-31.

8. Karibe H, Goddard G, Okudo M. Comparison of masticatory muscle myofascial pain in patients with and without a chief complaint of headache. Cranio. 2014 Jan; 32(1): 57-62.

9. Kostiuk T, Chrol N. Substantion of relaxing splint used on patient with the para function of chewing musles. Likars'ka sprava. 2017; 5-6: 130-4.

10. Lei J, Liu MQ, Yap AU, Fu KY. Sleep disturbance and psychologic distress: prevalence and risk indicators for temporomandibular disorders in a Chinese population. J Oral Facial Pain Headache. 2015, Winter; 29(1): 24-30.

11. Malanchuk VO, Timoshchenko NM, Kostiuk T.M. Diagnostics of position of the motor and trigger points: of the chewing muscles for zygomatic complex fractures. Likars'ka sprava, 2015; 3-4: 109-15.

12. Manfredini D, Cocilovo F, Favero L, Ferronato G, Tonello S, Guarda-Nardini L. Surface electromyography of jaw muscles and kinesiographic recordings: diagnostic accuracy for myofascial pain. J Oral Rehabil. 2011; 38(11): 791-5.

13. Desai MJ, Saini V, Saini S. Myofascial Pain Syndrome: A Treatment Review Pain Ther. 2013 Jun; 2(1): 21-36.

14. Silveria A, Armijo-Olivo S, Gadotti IC, Magee D. Masticatory and cervical muscle tenderness and pain sensitivity in a remote area in subjects with a temporomandibular disorder and neck disability. J Oral Facial Pain Headache. 2014 Spring; 28(2): 138-46.

CHARACTERISTICS OF MORPHOLOGICAL STRUCTURE OF SCAR TISSUE AFTER SURGICAL TREATMENT OF NECK CYSTS OF EMBRYOLOGICAL ORIGIN AT 6TH, 9TH AND 12TH MONTHS OF POSTOPERATIVE PERIOD

Krinichko L.R.

Key words: neck cyst, normotrophic scar, pathological scar, ceruloplasmin, PRF-clot.

In spite of the huge achievements in modern medicine, the issue on identifying causes of postoperative pathological scarring of the skin is still remaining one of challenge for maxillofacial surgery due to the in-crease in their occurrence rate and the lack of concerned approach regarding the aetiology and pathogene-sis. The aim of this work was to study the characteristics of the morphological structure of postoperative normotrophic and pathological scars during the application of standard methods of their prevention in com-parison with the approach elaborated by the authors. It was found out the morphological picture demon-strates the effectiveness of the prophylaxis including PRF-clot and ceruloplasmin at the 6th month of post-operative period: connective tissue papillae are not visually different from those in intact derma, the epithelial lay between them are characterized by a monomorphic pattern and relatively similar sizes. Bundles of collagen fibres are located predominantly perpendicular to the capillary epithelium and parallel in the middle and basal areas. Protein Ki-67 antibody test has shown the proliferative activity in 20% of the epithelial cells of the basal layer of the epidermis and its total absence in the cells of the cicatrical tissue. The bundles of collagen fibres of postoperative scar are not significantly different from those in the intact derma by their tinctorial characteristics and metric indices in 12h months of follow-up that is the evidence of the effectiveness of the proposed approach of scar prevention.

References

1. Tkachenko PI, Rezvina KY, Shvets AI, Kostrikov AV. Informatyvnist' diahnostychnykh zakhodiv na etapakh obstezhennya khvorykh z bichnymy kistamy shyyi [Informativeness of diagnostic tools at the stages of examination of patients with lateral cysts of the neck] Aktual'ni problemy suchasnoyi medytsyny : Visnyk VDNZU «Ukrayins'ka medychna stomatolohichna akademiya». 2018; 18, 1(61): 240–4.

2. Muller S, Aiken A, Magliocca K, Chen AY. Second Branchial Cleft Cyst. Head Neck Pathol. 2015; 9 (3): 379–83.

3. Adams A, Mankad K, Offiah C, Childs L. Branchial cleft anomalies: a pictorial review of embryological development and spectrum of imaging findings. Insights Imaging. 2016; 7(1): 69–76.

4. Ali AA, Al-Jandan B, Suresh CS, Subae A. The relationship between the location of thyroglossal duct cysts and the epithelial lining. Head Neck Pathol. 2013; 7(1): 50–3.

5. Avetikov DS, Stavyts'kyy SO. Kliniko-morfolohichne obgruntuvannya kompleksnoho likuvannya patolohichnykh rubtsiv, shcho lokalizovani v dilyankakh holovy ta shyyi : monohrafiya [Clinical and morphological basis of complex treatment of pathological scars, located in head and neck areas]. Poltava; 2013. 94p.

6. Ogawa R. Keloid and Hypertrophic Scars Are the Result of Chronic Inflammation in the Reticular Dermis. Int J Mol Sci. 2017; 18(3): 606.

7. Gawronska-Kozak B, Grabowska A, Kopcewicz M, Kur A. Animal models of skin regeneration. Reproductive Biology. 2014; 14: 61–7.

8. Moore AL, Marshall CD, Longaker MT. Minimizing Skin Scarring through Biomaterial Design. J Funct Biomater. 2017; 8(1): 3-11.

9. Bilginaylar K. Uncommon Odontogenic Orocutaneous Fistula of the Jaw Treated with Platelet-Rich Fibrin. Case Rep Dent. 2017; 17: 71-4.

EFFICIENCY OF INTEGRATION TREATMENT OF GENERALIZED CATARRHAL

GINGIVITIS IN ADOLESCENTS WITH CHRONIC GASTRODUODENITIS

Lisetska I.S., Rozhko M.M.

Key words: catarrhal gingivitis, chronic gastroduodenitis, adolescents, complex treatment.

Epidemiological investigations for recent years have indicated the high intensity and prevalence of perio-dontal tissue diseases among oral pathologies in adolescents. Nowadays synthetic medicines are widely used for the treatment of periodontal tissue diseases that leads to pronounced positive effect, but at the same time cause some side effects. That is why it is reasonable to pay attention to the application of herbal medicinal products, which are non-toxic or have low toxicity, thus considered to be relatively safe. Herbal preparations and probiotics have been proven to be quite effective serving as antimicrobials, reducing in-flammatory reactions and increasing local immune properties. The aim of this investigation was to study the efficacy of combined application of medicinal preparations as Stomatophyte and Dentagel supported by probiotic YOGURT in 38 adolescents aged from 12 to 18 with catarrhal gingivitis and chronic gastroduodenitis, who made up the main group. The comparison group included 25 adolescents of the same age with diagnosed generalized catarrhal gingivitis who did not present any complaints. Clinical examination of adolescents was carried out according to the generally accepted methodology using subjective (complaints, medical history) and objective (physical examination, palpation, percussion, probing and additional: assessment of oral hygiene index values and the values of periodontal tissue status). The findings obtained were recorded in medical cards of dental patients and used for mapping of our examination. It has been found that this combination was not inferior to the conventional treatment, but also exceeds it by clinical indices and parameters. The values of the PMA index following the end of the treatment course in adolescents in the I A subgroup of the main group was $3.7 \pm 1.12\%$ and in the I B subgroup was $6.8 \pm 1.14\%$. The adolescents of II A subgroup in the comparison group demonstrated $1.6 \pm 1.08\%$ and the II B subgroup had $2.9 \pm 1.13\%$, respectively. The value of the index after the end of treatment course in the adolescents in the I A subgroup of the in the main group was 0.11 ± 0.02 and 0.17 ± 0.03 in the I B subgroup, respectively. The results obtained in the adolescents of the main group have demonstrated the described integrated treatment of catarrhal gingivitis is of high clinical efficiency and results in more pronounced stable changes in the tissues and positive dynamics of the indices compared to the adolescents of the comparison group.

References

1. Barer GM, Zoryan EV, Agapov VS et al. Racionalnay farmakoterapia v stomatologii [Rational pharmacotherapy in dentistry]. Medicina; 2010. 235-245 p. (Russian).

2. Dychko EN, Kovach IV, Chotimska UV, Fedoriak NV Chastota stomatologichnih zahvorjvan u ditei [Frequency of dental diseases in children]. Medychni perspectyvy. 2012; 17; 2:114-116 (Ukrainian).

3. Godovanets OI, Moroz AV, Popesku DG Zastosuvannia probioticiv v stomatologii [Implementation of probiotics in dentistry]. Clinichna ta experimentalna patologya. 2017; 1(59):164-167 (Ukrainian).

4. Mayo Clin Periodontal disease. More than just gums. 2014; 32 (10): 1-4 (English).

5. Trufanova VP Sposib likuvannia hronichnogo kataralnogo gingivitu v ditei [Method of treatment of chronic catarrhal gingivitis in children]. Svit mediciny ta Biologii. 2017; 2 (60):117-120 (Russian).

6. Volf GF, Rateizchak EM, Rautijkhak K Parodontologia [Paradontology]. Medpress-inform; 2014. 548 p. (Russian).

EFFECTIVENESS OF INITIAL CARIES TREATMENT USING OZONE AND

ENAMEL-HARDENING GEL 'TOOTH MOUSSE'

Oliynyk R.P., Rozhko M. M.

Key words: initial caries, remineralizing therapy, ozonotherapy.

Data of preliminary studies indicate that the isolated use of enamel-hardening jell 'Tooth Mousse' and ozone promotes increased caries resistance and elimination of primary caries foci in children of different age groups. Taking into account the lack of data about the results of combined use of the above-mentioned methods, it is appropriate to study the cumulative effect of ozone and remineralisation approaches in order to improve the parameters of duration and success of treating caries in the spot stage among children. Objective of this study was to provide probation and analysis of the results of integrated treatment of initial caries based on the combined action of ozonotherapy and demineralising agent Tooth Mousse. Materials and methods. The study included 60 children aged 6 - 12 years who were equally divided into two groups. Results. Immediately after the treatment with ozonotherapy and Tooth Mousse, following changes in the indicators of the TER-test were noted in the children of test group the: 22 individuals (73.33%) had 2 ± 0.75 scores, 8 persons (26.67%) had 3 ± 0.29 scores; in the control group 20 persons (66, 67%) had 3 ± 0.55 scores, 8 persons (26,66%) had 4 ± 0.12 scores, and 2 persons (6,67%) had 5 ± 0.19 scores. CRTtest findings in the test group after the treatment were higher by 60 seconds in all studied children (100%), and in the control group such findings were noted in 22 (73.33%) children, while in 8 (26, 67%) of them the results remained less that 60 seconds. Conclusion. The total success rate of caries treatment according to the findings of the TER-test, the CRT-test and the laser-fluorescence analysis in the group of children, who were treated by ozone and the Tooth Mousse agent achieved 100% in a month after the treatment, while in the control group, receiving calcium electrophoresis and fluorine applications, such success criteria ranged within t=56,66-70%.

References

1. Al-Batayneh OB, Jbarat RA, Al-Khateeb SN. Effect of application sequence of fluoride and CPP-ACP on remineralization of white spot lesions in primary teeth: An in-vitro study. Archives of oral biology. 2017; 83: 236-40.

2. Almaz ME, Sönmez IŞ. Ozone therapy in the management and prevention of caries. Journal of the Formosan Medical Association. 2015; 114(1): 3-11.

3. Babu KL, G. et al. Remineralization potential of varnish containing casein phosphopeptidesamorphous calcium phosphate with fluoride and varnish containing only fluoride: A comparative study. Saudi Journal of Oral Sciences. 2018; 5(1): 35.

4. González-Cabezas C, Fernández CE. Recent advances in remineralization therapies for caries lesions. Advances in Dental Research. 2018; 29(1): 55-9.

5. Krishnan Gayathri, et al. Efficacy of Four Remineralizing Agents on Primary Teeth: In Vitro Evaluation Using Microhardness Testing and Quantitative Light-induced Fluorescence. Pediatric dentistry. 2017; 39(3): 233-7.

6. Leila B, et al. The Effect of MIpaste Plus and Reminpro on Incipient Caries Using DIAGNOdent and SEM: An Invitro Study. Journal of the National Medical Association. 2017; 109(3): 192-7.

7. Makeeva IM, et al. Assessment of antibacterial efficacy of ozone therapy in treatment of caries at the white spot stage. Stomatologiia. 2017; 96(4): 7-10.

8. Nhu NVT, et al. The Effect of Casein Phosphopeptide-amorphous Calcium Fluoride Phosphate on the Remineralization of Artificial Caries Lesions: An In Vitro Study. Journal of Dentistry Indonesia. 2017; 24(2): 45-9.

9. Paula ABP, et al. Therapies for white spot lesions—a systematic review. Journal of Evidence-Based Dental Practice. 2017; 17(1): 23-38.

10. Rickard GD, et al. Ozone therapy for the treatment of dental caries. The Cochrane Library. 2004, doi: 10.1002/14651858.CD004153.pub2

11. Soares R, et al. Assessment of Enamel Remineralisation After Treatment with Four Different Remineralising Agents: A Scanning Electron Microscopy (SEM) Study. Journal of clinical and diagnostic research: JCDR. 2017; 11(4): ZC136.

12. Taha AA, et al. The effect of bioactive glasses on enamel remineralization: A systematic review. Journal of dentistry. 2017; 67: 9-17.

13. Oliinyk RP, Rozhko MM, Khabchuk VS. Porivnyal'nyy analiz uspishnosti riznykh pidkhodiv do likuvannya pochatkovoho kariyesu postiynykh zubiv u ditey [Comparative analysis of different approaches success to treatment of initial caries in permanent teeth of children]. Visnyk problem biolohii i medytsyny. 2017; 2: 376-81. [Ukrainian].

BIOPHYSICAL ASPECTS OF DETERMINING THE TRANSMITTANCE OF SOLID TISSUES AND THE SURFACE TENSION OF BIOPHYSICAL ASPECTS IN DETERMINING TRANSMITTANCE COEFFICIENT OF HARD TISSUES AND SURFACE TENSION OF ANTISEPTIC SOLUTIONS IN DENTAL ROOT CANAL SYSTEM

Sidash Yu. V.

Key words: the root canal, transmission coefficient, surface tension coefficient.

In endodontic practice, antiseptic agents of various pharmacological groups are used for medicinal treat-ment of root canals. The structure of the root canal and its branches, which is the main reservoir of a large number of bacteria and due to geometric and physical conditions, on the one hand, is the most difficult to convey the energy of light radiation, and, on the other hand, is characterised by its complicated filling with proper photosensitizer. In this regard, the purpose of this study was to investigate the peculiarities of light transmission by hard dental tissues, as well as the surface tension of photosensitize solutions. The paper described the study of surface tension of antiseptic solutions of 3% sodium hypochlorite, 0.06% chlorhexi-dine begluconate, 1% alcohol chlorophyll, 2% methylene blue, 3% hydrogen peroxide, 0.1% ethacridin lac-tate that are widely used in the medical treatment of root channels and some of them have a photosensitizer effect. Experimental measurement of their surface tension coefficient was carried out to determine the possibility of fluid penetration into a cavity of a small cross-section. The light transmission coefficient with hard dental tissues was assessed. Thus, a 1% alcohol chlorophyllipt solution demonstrates its property to fill in dentin tubules of a small cross-section more easily than the aqueous solutions of photosensitizer, because its surface tension factor is the smallest of all the solutions studied. The possibility of combined use of light radiation with disinfectant solutions for photo-activated therapy and antiseptic treatment of root canals in general has been grounded.

References

1. Barilyak AYa. Optichni vlastivosti dentinu i efektivnist' spektral'nih rezhimiv lazernoï obrobki korenevogo kanalu [Optical properties of dentin and efficiency of spectral modes of laser treatment of the root canal] Fotobiologiya ta fotomedicina. 2007;(3-4):44-9. (Ukrainian).

2. Uil'yams DA, Gejvin PD, Kolls MD Antibakterial'noe dejstvie fotoaktiviruemoj dezinfekcii v otnoshenii ehndodontopatogennyh bakterij v planktonnoj vzvesi, v iskusstvennyh i estestvennyh kornevih kanalah [Antibacterial effect of photoactivatable disinfection against endodontopathogenic bacteria in plankton suspension, in artificial and natural root canals]. Klinicheskaya stomatologiya. 2009;(1):6-11. (Russian).

3. Koval' A. Dezinfekciya kornevyh kanalov. A tak li vse prosto? [Disinfection of root canals. Is it all so simple?]. Sovremennaya stomatologiya. 2006;(4):39-40. (Russian).

4. Kucevlyak VF, Fomenko YuV, Dzyundzyuk BV, Ivanenko VA. Opticheskaya

pronicaemost' tverdyh tkanej zuba dlya sveta fotopolimerizatora v eksperimente [Optical permeability of tooth hard tissues for photopolymerizer light in an experiment]. Sovremennaya stomatologiya. 2006;(2):30-3. (Russian).

5. Nikolishyn AK, Sidash YuV, Fedorchenko VI. Antybakterialna aktyvnist svitlovykh promeniv i fotosensybilizatoriv [Antibacterial activity of light rays and photosensitizers]. Ukrainskyi stomatolohichnyi almanakh. 2010;2(2):35-9. (Ukrainian).

INVESTIGATION OF BIOFILM-FORMING AND ADHESIVE PROPERTIES OF CLINICAL STRAINS KOCURIA SPP

Faustova M.O.

Key words: Kocuria spp., adhesion, biofilm formation, inflammation, mucous membrane

The etiopathogenetic factor of infectious inflammatory diseases of the oral mucous membranes is the formation of bacterial biofilms by opportunistic microorganisms. Therefore studying the course of inflammatory processes taking into account the characteristics of adhesion and biofilm formation by their dominant pathogens contributes to the revision and improvement of the known methods in prevention and treatment of these diseases. The purpose of this study was to investigate the adhesive and biofilm-forming properties of clinical strains of K. kristinae, isolated from the oral cavity of patients with infectious inflammatory diseases of the mucous membranes. Materials and methods. The objects of the study were 18 clinical strains of K. kristinae, isolated from the examined patients. Adhesion of the studied microorganisms was evaluated on the formalized human red blood cells of the blood type O (1) Rh + by the Briliss technique. Adhesive properties were evaluated by adhesion index of microorganisms. The study of bio-film-forming properties of clinical isolates of K. kristinae was performed by using the spectrophotometric method of G.D. Christensen. Properties of microorganisms to form a biofilm were evaluated by the degree of absorption of the dye in units of density. The statistical analysis of the findings obtained was carried out by standard "STATISTICA +" and "Microsoft Excel 2010" software packages. The relationship between adhesiveness and biofilm formation of K. kristinae strains was assessed by the correlation coefficient (r-Pearson). Results. Representatives of the genus Kocuria are found in 70% of patients with infectious-inflammatory diseases of oral mucous membrane. It has been established that these pathogens possess high adhesive and biofilm-forming properties. The coefficient of correlation r-Pearson between these indices of K. kristinae strains indicates direct correlation dependence.

References

1. Ananieva MM, Faustova MO, Basarab IO, Loban G. A. Kocuria rosea, kocuria kristinae, leuconostoc mesenteroides as caries-causing representatives of oral microflora. Wiad Lek. 2017;70(2 pt 2):296-298.

2. Faustova MO, Ananieva MM, Basarab YO, Dobrobolska OV, Vovk IM, Loban GA. Bacterial factors of cariogenicity (literature review). Wiad Lek. 2018;71(2 pt 2):378-382.

3. Szczerba I. Occurrence and number of bacteria from the Micrococcus, Kocuria, Nesterenkonia, Kytococcus and Dermacoccus genera on skin and mucous membranes in humans. Medycyna doswiadczalna i mikrobiologia. 2003; 55(1): 67-74.

4. Aydin Malik, Rainer Ganschow, Martin Jankofsky. Kocuria kristinae-caused sepsis in an infant with congenital tuffing enteropathy. Turk J Pediatr. 2017; 59(1): 93-96.

5. Kilinç Adnan, et al. Maxillary Osteomyelitis Caused by Kocuria Species in a Patient Who Is on Long-Term Uncontrolled Use of Methylprednisolone. Journal of Craniofacial Surgery. 2018; 29(2): 118-120.

6. Gunaseelan Priyadarshini, et al. Native valve endocarditis caused by Kocuria rosea complicated by peripheral mycotic aneurysm in an elderly host. Journal of postgraduate medicine.

2017; 63(2): 135.

7. Oncel Eda Karadag, Meryem Seda Boyraz, Ates Kara. Black tongue associated with Kocuria (Micrococcus) kristinae bacteremia in a 4-month-old infant. European journal of pediatrics. 2012; 171(3): 593-593.

8. Faustova MO, Nazarchuk OA, Ananieva MM. Etiologichna struktura, biologichni vlastyvosti dominuyuchyx zbudnykiv peryimplantatnogo mukozytu [The etiological structure, biological properties of causative agents of peri-implant mucositis]. Zaporozhye medical journal. 2017; 5(104): 652-657. [Ukrainian]

9. Poli Pier Paolo, et al. Peri-implant mucositis and peri-implantitis: A Current understanding of their diagnosis, clinical implications, and a report of treatment using a combined therapy approach. Journal of Oral Implantology. 2017; 43(1): 45-50.

10. Kotsakis Georgios A, et al. Investigation of the association between cement retention and prevalent peri-implant diseases: a cross-sectional study. Journal of periodontology. 2016; 87(3): 212-220.

11. Jepsen Søren, et al. Primary prevention of peri-implantitis: Managing peri-implant mucositis. Journal of clinical periodontology. 2015; 42: 152-157.

12. Kushnareva MV, Khar'kova RM, Abrosimova NA. Metod opredelenyya vlyyanyya grudnogo moloka na adgezyvne svojstva mykroorganyzmov [A method of determining the effect of breast milk on the adhesive properties of microorganisms]. Lab Delo. 1990;(3):69-71. [Russian]

13. Christensen Gordon D, et al. Adherence of coagulase-negative staphylococci to plastic tissue culture plates: a quantitative model for the adherence of staphylococci to medical devices. Journal of clinical microbiology. 1985; 22(6): 996-1006.

14. Nazarchuk O, Faustova M. Mikrobiologichne doslidzhennya vlastyvostej grampozytyvnyh zbudnykiv infekcijno-zapalnyh peryimplantacijnyh uskladnen` [The microbiological investigation of the properties of gram-positive pathogens of infectious and inflammatory periimplantation complications]. Reports of Vinnytsia National Medical University. 2017;21(2):392-6. [Ukrainian]

15. Nazarchuk O, Faustova M. Bioplivkoutvoryuyuchi vlastyvosti klinichnyh shtamiv grampozytyvnyh mikroorganizmiv [Biofilmproducing properties of clinical strains of grampositive microorganisms]. Biomedical and Biosocial Anthropology. 2017; (29):7-10. [Ukrainian]

CLINICAL EFFICACY OF TREATMENT OF INFLAMMATORY AND DYSTROPHIC DISEASES OF PERIODONTITIS OF WOMEN WITH BACTERIAL VAGINOSIS IN THE NEAREST TERMS OF OBSERVATION

Shulzhenko A.D.

Key words: bacterial vaginosis, amino-test, gingivitis, periodontitis.

Introduction. Inflammatory and dystrophic periodontal diseases are usually found along with general somatic pathologies. Urogenital pathologies, especially dysbiotic states of the genital tract, are extremely rarely associated with pathologies of periodontal disease, while periodontitis and bacterial vaginosis combine the commonality of the pathogenic factor (biofilm infections), high prevalence, pathogenesis, chronicity, and recidivism. In addition, there are no protocols for the management of dental patients with genital dysbiosis, including women with bacterial vaginosis. Aim. Clinical and laboratory evaluation of the efficiency of the newly patented complex for the treatment of infectious and immunodeficiency diseases of periodontal tissues in women with bacterial vaginosis. Materials and methods. 54 patients of reproductive age (18-45 years) with bacterial vaginosis were examined. The subjects were divided into 2 groups depending on the prescribed treatment scheme. An index evaluation of the periodontal condition was carried out using the indexes of PMA and KPI by Leus, an amino-test of oral fluid. Also, oral fluid was studied for the sIgA content before treatment, on days 14 and 28 after starting treatment. Results. One of the

criteria for treatment effectiveness is the elimination period of the inflammatory process in the periodontal tissue. On the 14th day, the disappearance of clinical signs of gums inflammation among patients in Group I was diagnosed in 46.2% (12 women), in Group II - 75% (21 women), on the 28th day, a similar result was diagnosed in 84.6% (22 women) and 96.4% (27 women), respectively. It was also noted that the decrease of PMI in patients of Group I was 1.6 times compared with the rates before treatment, whereas in persons of the II group - 3.8 times. The quantitative indices of the amine test of persons of the 1st group on the 14th day decreased by 1.67, and on the 28th day - by 1.68 times. In the representatives of the 2nd group, the intensity of the reaction decreased by 5.9 times on the 14th day and remained constant until the 28th day. On day 28 after treatment, sIgA concentration was normal in both groups of women, but the outcome of patients in Group II was significantly higher by 1.3 times compared to the results of a similar study in women in Group I. Conclusion. The results obtained allow us to state that in patients who were treated according to the proposed protocol, the clinical symptoms of gum inflammation disappeared 14 days earlier than in women who were prescribed a traditional course of treatment.

1. Dubchak AE. Protivorecidivnaja terapija bakterial'nogo baginoza u zenzchin [Anti-relapse therapy for bacterial vaginosis in women]. Zdorov'e zenschiny: vseukrainskiy nauchno-prakticheskiy zurnal. 2013; 23:14-21. (Ukrainian).

2. Galich SR. Bakterial'niy vaginoz [Bacterial vaginosis]. Zdorov'e Ukrainy. 2012; 4(8):40-42. (Ukrainian).

3. Lypova EV, Radzinskiy VE. Bakterial'niy vaginoz: zavzdy v deskusii [Bacterial vaginosis: always a debate]. Status Praesens. 2012; 2 (8): 27-60. (Ukrainian).

4. Kira EF. Bakterial'niy vaginoz [Bacterial vaginosis]. Moscow; 2012. 472 p. (Russian).

5. He XS, Shi WY. Oral microbiology: past, present and future. Int J Oral Sci. 2009. May-Jun; 1(2): 47-58.

6. Petrushanko TA, Chereda VV, Loban' GA. Rol' kolonizacionnoy rezistentnosti rotovoy polosti v razvitii karieca [The role of colonization resistance of the oral cavity in the development of caries]. Stomatologia; 2013; 1(92): 43-45. (Ukrainian).

7. Petrushanko TA, Chereda VV, Loban' GA. Skriningovaya diagnostika mikroekologicheskih narusheniy polosti rta [Screening diagnosis of microecological disorders of the oral cavity]. Klinicheskaja laboratornaya diagnostika. 2014; 6: 48-51.

8. Shulzhenko AD, Petrushanko TA, Krutikova EI. Sostojanie tkanej parodonta u zenschin s bacterial'nym vaginozom [The condition of periodontal tissues in women with bacterial vaginosis]. Georgian Medical News. 2014.; 12:24-28. (Ukrainian).

9. Danilevskij NF, Borisenko AV. Zabolevania parodonta [Periodontal disease]. Kiev; 2000. 464 p. (Ukrainian).

10. Shulzhenko AD, Petrushanko TA, Krutikova EI. Ukrainian Medical Stomatologikal Academy, asseegnee. A method of treatment of periodontitis in women with bacterial vaginosis. Ukrainian patent 99694. 2015 Jun 25. (Ukrainian).

11. Gerasimov AN. Medicinskaja statistika. Echebnoe posobie. Moscow; 2007. 480 p. (Russian).

ІНТЕГРАТИВНІ МЕХАНІЗМИ ПАТОЛОГІЧНИХ ПРОЦЕСІВ: ВІД ЕКСПЕРИМЕНТАЛЬНИХ ДОСЛІДЖЕНЬ ДО КЛІНІЧНОЇ ПРАКТИКИ

PATHOPHYSIOLOGICAL COMPARISON OF BLEEDING IN OBSTETRIC AND

SURGICAL PRACTICE

Vastyanov R. S., Savitsky I. V., Rusnak S. V., Ostapenko I.O., Nagovitsin O.P.

Key words: blood loss, gastrointestinal bleeding, obstetric bleeding, caesarean section, local endoscopic haemostasis.

Bleeding ranks the leading position among the causes of deaths among all age groups. For instance, the number of women died of direct or indirect obstetric causes reaches 128,000 cases per year, i. e. 1.7 per 1 000 of parturitions. Data on gastrointestinal bleeding are far from being less alarming: 423 – 464 cases of bleeding per 100 000 people. The purpose of the study was to compare the pathophysiological parameters of bleedings subjected to surgical and conservative haemostasis that arose in surgical, obstetric and gynaecological practices. A cohort study included 29 pregnant women who gave birth by Caesarean section, and 26 patients with gastrointestinal bleeding who were supported by lo-cal haemostasis. No mortality was registered in the first group, while in the second group mortality made up 7.7%. The total blood loss in the first group reached 579.2 ± 39.6 ml, while in the 2nd group in 38.5% of cases the extensiveness of blood loss was not determined by the methods of assessment, and 7.7% of pa-tients had compensated stage of blood loss, and the rest had sub compensated blood loss. About 69.2% of patients in the first group developed complications resulted from bleeding. At the beginning of the bleeding, the difference between systolic and diastolic blood pressure in the first group was 40 mm Hg, while in the second this was 31.4 mm Hg. Tachycardia was noted in the second group. Following the treatment, the difference between systolic and diastolic blood pressure in the first case made up 36.8 mm Hg, while in the second it was 19.3 mm Hg. Consequently, when comparing the pathophysiological parameters of bleeding, we may state the blood loss indices in obstetric and gynaecological patients are less marked that those in surgical practice. Such a pattern in the selected groups can be explained by age-related features and surgical controllability of blood loss.

References

1. Timerbulatov ShM., Sagitov RB., Timerbulatov VM. Oprudelenie obyoma i stepeni ostroy [Determination of volume and degree of acute blood loss].Klinicheskay i eksperementalnay chiryrgiy. 2012. 2: 69 - 72. (Russia)

2. Order of the Ministry of Health of Ukraine No. 977 "Caesarean section" dated December 27, 2011

3. Order of the Ministry of Health of Ukraine No. 205 "Obstetric bleeding" dated March 24, 2014

4. Order of the Ministry of Health of Ukraine No. 353 "Abnormal uterine bleeding" dated April 26, 2016.

5. Shifman EM, Kulikov OV, Belomestnov R. Intensivnay terapiy i anestesiy pri krovopoteri v akysherstvi. [Intensive therapy and anesthesia in blood loss in obstetrics]. Anestesiologiy i reanimatologiy. 2014.1: 76-78. (Russia)

6. Ostromensky VV, Borisov AV. Sovremennue podchodu k prophilaktike i lechenii poslerodovuph krovotecheniy. [Modern approaches to the prevention and treatment of postpartum hemorrhages]. Rossiiskii Vestnik Akushera-Ginekologa. 2017. 17 (3): 74 - 77. (Russia)

7. Order of the Ministry of Health of Ukraine No. 613 "Peptic ulcer of the stomach and duodenum in adults" dated September 3, 2014

8. Innovative technologies of surgical treatment of acute gastrointestinal bleeding / LY. Kovalchuk, EM. Shepetko, VO. Shaprinsky and others. The submission for the State Prize of Ukraine in the field of surgery - Ternopil, 2013. - 10 p.

9. Timerbulatov VM, Timerbulatov ShV, Sagitov RB. Hemostaz pri ostrich zelydchnokisehnuch krovotecheniy. [Hemostasis in acute gastrointestinal bleeding]. Chiryrgiy. Zyrnal imeni M.I. Purogova. 2010 3: 20-26. (Russia)

10. Rusnak SV. Ephektuvnist' medukamentoznogo gemostazy pru shlynkovich krovotechach

vurazkovogo genezy. [Effectiveness of medicinal hemostasis in gastrointestinal bleeding of gastric ulcer]. Zbirnuch tez dopovidey konph. Z miznarodnoy ychact' "Sychasni praktuchni ta teoretuchni aspektu klinichnoi meducunu" prusvychena 85-richchy z dny zasnuvanny SNT ONMedU . 2015: 183 - 184.(Ukrainian)

INFLUENCE OF EXOGENOUS MELATONIN ON ACUTE KIDNEY INJURY INDUCED BY ACETAMINOPHEN

Dudka Ye. A., Shchudrova T. S., Petriuk A. Ye., Zamorskii I. I.

Key words: acetaminophen-induced acute kidney injury, melatonin, nephroprotection

This study aimed at investigating influence of melatonin (in a dose of 5 mg/kg) on the morphofunctional state of the kidneys in acetaminophen-induced acute kidney injury. The study was performed on 24 laboratory non-linear white rats. It has been found out that a single administration of acetaminophen in a dose of 750 mg/kg causes mainly the damage to proximal nephron tubules and manifests by cell necrosis (12%) and widespread degenerative changes in 50% of the tubular cells according to the histological examination. At the same time, renal dysfunction is observed, which is characterized by a 1.6-fold decrease in diuresis, a 2-fold decrease in the glomerular filtration rate, an increase in creatinine concentration in blood plasma in 1.7 times, an increase in proteinuria and fractional excretion of sodium ions in 3.3 times that confirms the disturbances in a readsorption capacity of nephrons. It was found that a single administration of melatonin produced a cytoprotective effect on the epitheliocytes of renal tubules, significantly limiting the extent and prevalence of the histopathological changes, and, accordingly, preventing the development of toxic nephropathy, which was confirmed by the normalization of the majority of indices: an increase in diuresis in 1.3 times, glomerular filtration rate in 1.6 times, sodium reabsorption by 2%, as well as a decrease in creatininemia and proteinuria compared with the values of untreated animals. The obtained data on the effectiveness of preventive use of melatonin under the conditions of acetaminophen administration in a toxic dose indicate the nephroprotective activity of the pineal hormone resulting from its ability to influence the key links of pathogenesis. The results of the study confirm the prospects for further experimental study of the influence of exogenous melatonin on the course of renal pathology of various geneses.

References

1. Konstantinos M, Loukia S. Acute Kidney Injury: Definition, Pathophysiology and Clinical Phenotypes. Clin Biochem Rev. 2016; 37(2):85-98.

2. Lee S, Cozzi M, Bush E, Rabb H. Distant organ dysfunction in acute kidney injury: a review. American Journal of Kidney Diseases. 2018.

3. Zyoud S, Waring W, Al-Jabi S, Sweileh W, Awang R. The 100 most influential publications in paracetamol poisoning treatment: a bibliometric analysis of human studies. SpringerPlus. 2016; 5(1).

4. Stollings J, Wheeler A, Rice T. Incidence and characterization of acute kidney injury after acetaminophen overdose. Journal of Critical Care. 2016; 35:191-194.

5. O'Riordan A, Brummell Z, Sizer E, Auzinger G, Heaton N, O'Grady J et al. Acute kidney injury in patients admitted to a liver intensive therapy unit with paracetamol-induced hepatotoxicity. Nephrology Dialysis Transplantation. 2011; 26(11):3501-3508.

6. Uysal H, Dagli B, Yilmaz M, Kahyaoglu F. Protective effects of dexpanthenol against acetaminophen-induced hepatorenal damage. Biomedical Research. 2017; 28(2):740-749.

7. Canayakin D, Bayir Y, Kilic Baygutalp N, Sezen Karaoglan E, Atmaca H, Kocak Ozgeris F et al. Paracetamol-induced nephrotoxicity and oxidative stress in rats: the protective role of Nigella sativa. Pharmaceutical Biology. 2016; 54(10):2082-2091.

8. Naguib Y, Azmy R, Samaka R, Salem M. Pleurotus ostreatus opposes mitochondrial dysfunction and oxidative stress in acetaminophen-induced hepato-renal injury. BMC Complementary and Alternative Medicine. 2014; 14(1).

9. Nandi D, Roy S, Pradhan S, Das K, Mandal A, Mandal S et al. Acetaminophen Induced Kidney Failure in Rats: A Dose Response Study. Journal of Biological Sciences. 2015; 15(4):187-193.

10. Bonnefont-Rousselot D, Collin F. Melatonin: Action as antioxidant and potential applications in human disease and aging. Toxicology. 2010; 278(1):55-67.

11. Sharman EH, Bondy SC. Melatonin: A safe nutraceutical and clinical agent. Nutraceuticals. 2016; 501-509.

12. Andersen L, Gögenur I, Rosenberg J, Reiter R. The Safety of Melatonin in Humans. Clinical Drug Investigation. 2015; 36(3):169-175.

13. Reiter R, Tan D, Rosales-Corral S, Galano A, Zhou X, Xu B. Mitochondria: Central Organelles for Melatonin's Antioxidant and Anti-Aging Actions. Molecules. 2018; 23(2):509.

14. Majidinia M, Sadeghpour A, Mehrzadi S, Reiter R, Khatami N, Yousefi B. Melatonin: A pleiotropic molecule that modulates DNA damage response and repair pathways. Journal of Pineal Research. 2017; 63(1):e12416.

15. Esrefoglu M, Cetin A, Taslidere E, Elbe H, Ates B, Tok O et al. Therapeutic effects of melatonin and quercetin in improvement of hepatic steatosis in rats through supression of oxidative damage. Bratislava Medical Journal. 2017;118(06):347-354.

16. Ničković V, Novaković T, Lazarević S, Šulović L, Živković Z, Živković J et al. Pre- vs. post-treatment with melatonin in CCl4-induced liver damage: Oxidative stress inferred from biochemical and pathohistological studies. Life Sciences. 2018; 202:28-34.

17. Fadda L, Mohamed A, Ali H, Hagar H, Aldossari M. Prophylactic administration of carnosine and melatonin abates the incidence of renal toxicity induced by an over dose of titanium dioxide nanoparticles. Journal of Biochemical and Molecular Toxicology. 2018; 32(3):e22040.

18. Singh AP, Junemann A, Muthuraman A, Jaggi AS, Singh N, Grover K et al. Animal models of acute renal failure. Pharmacol. Reports. 2012; 64(1):31-44.

19. Directive 2010/63/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council on the protection of animals used for scientific purposes. Official J of the European Union. 2010; L276(53):33-80. doi:10.3000/17252555.L_2010.276.eng

20. Kamyshnikov VS. Manual on clinical biochemical studies and laboratory diagnostics. 3rd ed. Moscow; 2009. [Russian]

21. Trumper L, Coux G, Monasterolo L, Molinas S, García V, Elías M. Effect of acetaminophen on the membrane anchoring of Na+, K+ATPase of rat renal cortical cells. Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA) - Molecular Basis of Disease. 2005; 1740(3):332-339.

MORPHOLOGICAL CHANGES IN SKIN OF GUINEA PIGS IN ERYTHEMATIC PERIOD AFTER THE EXPOSURE TO LOCAL UV-IRRADIATION IN APPLYING OINTMENT CONTAINING THIOTRIAZOLINE AND SILVER NANOPARTICLES

Zvyagintseva T.V., Myronchenko S.I., Naumova O.V.

Key words: ultraviolet irradiation, skin, morphological changes, thiotriazoline, silver nanoparticles

The aim of this study was to investigate the morphological characteristics of the skin of guinea pigs in erythematic period after the exposure to local ultraviolet irradiation and in correcting skin reaction with thiotriazoline ointment containing silver nanoparticles. The studies were carried out on albino guinea pigs di-vided into 3 groups: the 1 group included animals exposed to local ultraviolet irradiation (control); the 2 group included animals exposed to local ultraviolet radiation

and treated with thiotriazoline ointment 2%; the 3 group was made up of animals exposed to local ultraviolet radiation and treated by ointment containing thiotriazoline and silver nanoparticles. In 2 hours, 4 hours and on the 3rd day, the animals were euthanazied and then their tissue samples were taken for morphological study. The animals of the control group demon-strated dyscirculatory changes in the skin in 2 and 4 hours following the exposure to irradiation. On the third day of the experiment, histopathological changes in the skin reached a maximum in their extent: there were observed numerous apoptosis-altered epidermal cells, loss of intercellular contacts with tissue vacuolization in the area of the dermo-epidermal junction, dermal infiltration with leukocytes, destruction of collagen and elastic fibres in 100% of animals. In the groups of the animals received the correction with the ointment, ap-plying the thiotriosoline ointment containing silver nanoparticles was found out to be the most effective that was confirmed by slightly expressed alterative changes, a decrease in leukocyte infiltration of the dermis, and a smaller share of focal damage of connective tissue fibres compared with the control. Conclusions. 1. Exposure to local ultraviolet irradiation causes inflammatory degenerative changes in the skin of guinea pigs, reaching their highest degree in severity on the 3rd day following the exposure. 2. The effectiveness of the thiotriazoline ointment containing silver nanoparticles exceeds the medicinal healing effect of thiotriazoline ointment without silver that is manifested more significantly on the 3rd day.

References

1. Zhang Wenwen; Chen Qiang; Li Peng; Ling Ling; Lin Xiaochen; Ren Shuping; Liu Yajuan, Li Yun. Effects of ultraviolet irradiation on skin of guinea pig. Journal of Jilin University. Medicine Edition; 2008; 34(1): 46-48.

2. Janovska J, Voicehovska J, Kasparane L. Sun induced skin damage and immunesuppression. Romania journal of clinical and experimental dermatology. 2015 May: 84–90.

3. Wang SQ, Tooley IR. Photoprotection in the era of nanotechnology. Semin. Cutan. Med. Surg. 2011; 30: 210-213.

4. Arora S, Tyagi N, Bhardwaj A, Rusu L, Palanki R, Vig K, Singh SR, Singh AP, Palanki S, Miller ME, Carter JE, Singh S. Silver nanoparticles protect human keratinocytes against UVB radiation-induced DNA damage and apoptosis: potential for prevention of skin carcinogenesis. Nanomedicine. 2015; 11(5): 1265-1275.

5. Lisovyi VM, Zvyagintseva TV, Trutaiev IV, Myronchenko SI, inventors; Trutaiev IV, assignee. A method for increasing the anti-inflammatory activity of drugs in a soft dosage form.Ukraine patent 77777. 2013 Feb 25. (Ukrainian).

6. Movchan BA. Yelektronno-luchevaya gibridnaya nanotehnologiya osazhdeniya neorganicheskikh materialov v vakuume [Electron beam hybrid nanotechnology of deposition of inorganic materials in vacuum]. Aktualnye problemy sovremennogo materialovedeniya. 2008; Vol. 1: 227–247. (Russian).

7. Stefanov AV. Bioskrining. Lekarstvennye sredstva [Bioscreening. Drugs]. Kiev; 1998. 189 p. (Russian).

8. Lilli R. Patogistologicheskaya tekhnika i prakticheskaya histokhimiya [Pathohistological technique and practical histochemistry]. Moskva; 1960. 648 p. (Russian).

9. Pirs Ye. Histokhimiya (teoreticheskaya i prikladnaya) [Histochemistry (theoretical and applied)]. Moskva; 1962. 962 p. (Russian).

CORRECTION OF PROXIMAL NEPHRON DAMAGE DURING IRRITABLE BOWEL SYNDROME

Rohovyi Yu. Ye., Bilooka Yu. V., Bilookiy V. V.

Key words: anaerobic microflora of the colon, kidney, pro-inflammatory cytokines, irritable bowel syndrome, alflorex.

Aim. The article presents the analysis of the protective effect provided by probiotics on the state of the proximal nephron of the kidneys, pro-inflammatory cytokines of blood plasma, anaerobic microflora of the large intestine and the general condition of patients with irritable bowel syndrome, constipation and diarrhoea assessed by the Likert scale Purpose of research. To find out protective effect of the drug "Alflorex" the condition of the proximal nephron of the kidney, pro-inflammatory cytokines in blood plasma, anaerobic microflora of the large intestine and the general condition of patients in the Likert scale for irritable bowel syndrome with constipation and diarrhoea. Materials and methods. 60 patients (18 men and 42 women 42, aged 28 - 62) with irritable bowel syndrome were examined. 28 of all patients with irritable bowel syndrome suffered from constipation and 32 people suffered from diarrhoea. Drug "Alflorex" was prescribed to be taken in a dose of 1 capsule per day in the morning after meal with a glass of water. The duration of the therapy course was 4 weeks. Result. The therapy with "Alflorex" leads to the elimination of dysbacteriosis by the growth of anaerobic microflora, B. Bifidum, B. Lactis, a decrease of pro-inflammatory cytokines in plasma, improved general health condition of the patients according to the scale of Likert. Conclusions. The therapy with the drug "Alflorex" for patients with irritable bowel syndrome has also demostrated the normalization of the functional state of the kidneys with a decrease in the manifestations of tubular proteinuria and an increase in proximal reabsorption of sodium ions.

References

1. Bilookyi VV. Analiz populiatsiinoho rivnia porozhnynnoi mikroflory tovstoi kyshky za umov eksperymental'noho zhovchnoho perytonitu [Analysis of the population level of the cavity microflora of the colon under experimental biliary peritonitis]. Visnyk naukovykh doslidzhen'. 2007;4:69-71. (Ukrainian).

2. Gozhenko AI. Teoriya bolezni [Theory of the disease]: monografiya. Odessa: Feniks; 2017. 236 p. (Russian).

3. Dorofeev AE, Rudenko NN, Shvets NI, Snisarevskaya TP. Lechenie sindroma razdrazhennogo kishechnika. Mesto probiotikov [Treatment of the irritable bowel syndrome: the role of probiotics]. Modern gastroenterology. 2018;2:77-82. (Russian).

4. Nechytailo MYu, Bilookyi VV, Rohovyi YuYe. Zhovchnyi perytonit: patofiziolohiia i likuvannia [Biliary peritonitis: pathophysiology and treatment]: monohrafiia. Chernivtsi: Bukrek; 2011. 296 p. (Ukrainian).

5. Rohovyi YuYe, Kopchuk TH, Filipova LO. Patofiziolohiia nyrok za rozvytku hariachky [Pathophysiology of the kidneys for the development of fever]: monohrafiia. Chernivtsi: Misto; 2015. 183 p. (Ukrainian).

6. Rohovyi YuYe, Zlotar OV, Filipova LO. Patofiziolohiia hepatorenal'noho syndromu na poliurychnii stadii sulemovoi nefropatii [Pathophysiology of hepatorenal syndrome at the polyuric stage of sulmephic nephropathy]: monohrafiia. Chernivtsi: Misto; 2012. 200 p. (Ukrainian).

7. Rohovyi YuYe, Slobodian KV, Filipova LO. Patofiziolohiia vikovykh osoblyvostei funktsii nyrok za umov nadlyshku i defitsytu ioniv natriiu pry sulemovii nefropatii [Pathophysiology of age characteristics of kidney functions in conditions of surplus and deficiency of sodium ions in case of sulphate nephropathy]: monohrafiia. Chernivtsi: BDMU; 2013. 199 p. (Ukrainian).

8. Rohovyi YuYe, Bocharov AV, Kobylianska RM. Rol' al'ternatyvnykh metodiv navchannia pry vykladanni teoretychnykh ta klinichnykh medychnykh dystsyplin [The role of alternative teaching methods in the teaching of theoretical and clinical medical disciplines]. Medychna osvita. 2003;1:22-4. (Ukrainian).

9. Savitskaya KI, Vorob'ev AA, Shvetsova EF. Sovremennye predstavleniya o roli i sostave mikroflory u zdorovykh vzroslykh lyudey [Modern ideas about the role and composition of microflora in healthy adults]. Vestnik Rossiyskoi akademii meditsinskikh nauk. 2002;2:50-3. (Russian).

10. Kharchenko NV, Korulya IA, Kharchenko VV, Chervak IN. Sindrom razdrazhennogo kishechnika. Sovremennye podkhody k diagnostike i lecheniyu [Irritable bowel syndrome: modern approaches to the diagnosis and treatment]. Modern gastroenterology. 2017;2:56-60. (Russian).

ГУМАНІТАРНІ ТА СОЦІАЛЬНІ ПРОБЛЕМИ МЕДИЦИНИ, ПИТАННЯ ВИКЛАДАННЯ У ВИЩІЙ МЕДИЧНІЙ ШКОЛІ

TRANSFORMATION OF THE MENTAL HEALTH CARE SYSTEM

Makarenko O.M., Flaherti M., Demydchuk A.S.,

Key words: social work, health insurance, policy in the field of mental health care, transformation.

As a result of the board discussion on the psychiatric support principles, having occurred in the 1970s in the leading countries of the world, the biological approach in psychiatry had been replaced by the humanistic one against the background of the humanistic psychotherapy, dominating at that time. The new medical policy, aimed at the development of the out-patient care through the expansion of the network of psychiatric policlinics and small profile offices of mental health care in general hospitals was developed and offered. At the same time the psychotherapy and the psychological services in the domain of mental health and in traditional medical settings in Eastern Europe countries were implemented through 1990-2000, that is after the collapse of the Warsaw Pact military alliance. The aim of this work was to study the transformation process of the mental health care system (MHC) in Poland and some countries of Eastern Europe. The mental health care system was based on creation of the network of the large hospitals in the sphere of public care. In the countries of Eastern Europe there was a tendency to changes observed from the middle of the 1970s and these changes were rather slow due to the shortage of financing and the lack of a real demand from the customers (patients and their families). In the late eighties and in the early nineties there were the changes that strengthened the influence on customers; introduction of the systems of health insurance broke the prospects of the outdated policy in the field of health care and especially in mental health and promoted providing of the high level professional help and a possibility of resocialization of patients. The evolution of the mental health care in the countries of Eastern Europe has been greatly influenced by the market ideology as well as by modern technical and professional achievements of the modern system of the MHC in the world.

References

1. Jankowski K. Od psychiatrii biologicznej do humanistycznej. Państwowy Instytut Wydawniczy;1976:1-382.

2. Thornicroft G, Tansella M. Components of a modern mental health service: a pragmatic balance of community and hospital care: overview of systematic evidence. The British journal of psychiatry. 2004;185(4): 283-290.

3. Knapp M, McDaid D, Mossialos E. Mentalhealth policy and practice across Europe. McGraw-Hill Education (UK); 2006:60-99.

4. Bilikiewicz T, Gallus J. Psychoterapia polska natledziejowym. Warszawa:PZWL;1962:20-55.

5. 5.Bryndová L, Pavlokova K, Roubal T, Rokosova M, Gaskins M. CzechRepublic. Health system review. Health systems in transition. 2009; 11(1):1-122.

6. Dlouhý M, Cosoveanu G, Čižmárik P, Hinkov H. Mental health policies in four eastern european countries. Central European Journal of Public Policy. 2010; 4(2):4-17.

7. Puzynski S, Moskalewicz J. Evolution of the mental health care system in Poland. Acta Psychiatrica Scandinavica. 2001; 104(410): 69-73.

8. Atanasova E, Pavlova M., Velickovski R., Nikov B., Moutafova E., Groot W. What have 10 years of health insurance reforms brought about in Bulgaria? Re-appraising the Health Insurance Act of 1998. Health Policy. 2011; 102(2): 263-269.

9. Sitek M. Politics and Institutions in the Reforms of Health Care in the Czech Republic, Hungary and Poland. Polish Sociological Review.2008;161.

10. Gaál P, Szigeti S, Csere M, Gaskins M, Panteli D. Hungary health system review. Health Systems in Transition. 2011; 13(5):1-266.

11. Vlådescu C, Scîntee G, Olsavszky V, Allin S, Mladovsky P. Romania: Health system review. Health Systems in Transition. 2008; 10(3): 1-172.

12. The Psychiatric Society of the Czech Medical Society The Psychiatric Society of the Czech Medical Society: Concept of Psychiatry. Prague; 2000:1-34.

13. Dziennik Ustaw Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej, № 123, item 776. Warszawa.1997:3735-3749.

14. Pużyński S, Langiewicz W, Pietrzykowska B. Aktualne problemy psychiatrycznej opieki zdrowotnej w Polsce (2005 r.). Psychiatria Polska; 2006:177-189.

15. Namyslowska I. Samobójstwa Wśród młodzieży. Medipress Psychiatr Neurol. 1998;2:2-5.

16. Rocznik Statystyczny Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej. Warszawa; GUS; 2000:1-912.

17. Pietrzykowska B, Boguszewska L, Karolak H, Szirkowiec W, Skiba K. Zaklady Psychiatrycznej Oraz Neurologicznej Opieki Zdrowotnej. Rocznik Statystyczny;1999. Warszawa; Ipin, 2000:1-113.

18. Rokosová M, Háva P, Schreyoegg J, Busse R. Healthcare systems in transition: Czech Republic; World Health Organization; 2005:1-109.

19. Höschl C, Winkler P, Peěč O. The state of psychiatry in the Czech Republic. International Review of Psychiatry; 2012; 24(4):278-285.

20. 20.GUS. Podstawowedane z zakresu ochrony zdrowia w 1999r.Informacje i opracowania statystyczne;Warszawa;GUS; 2000:1-195.

21. Bitter I, Kurimay T. State of psychiatry in Hungary. International Review of Psychiatry; 2012; 24(4):307-313.

22. Pfeiffer J, Pec O, Baudis P, Stuchlik J. Politikapece o dusevnizdravi: cesty k jejirealizaci [Mental Health Care Policy in the Czech Republic: Ways to Implementation]; Prague: Centre for Mental HealthCare Development; 2005:1-35.

23. Fernezelyi B, Eröss G, Tamasi P. LostinTranslation: From WHO MentalHealth Policy to non-Reform of Psychiatric Institutions; KNOW and POL: Budapest; 2009:1-91.

24. Balicki M, Leder S, Piotrowski A. Focus on psychiatry in Poland: past and present. The British Journal of Psychiatry; 2000; 177(4):375-381.

25. Hungarian Ministry of National Resources: Resusciated HealthCare, Recovering Hungary – Semmelweis Plan for the Rescue of HealthCare - A Professional Concept; Budapest: Hungarian Ministry of National Resources; 2011:63-68.

26. Program Ochrony Zdrowia Psychicznego. Postepy Psychiatr Neurol; 1995;4:321-332.

27. Mental health atlas 2005; World Health Organization; 2005:1-49.

28. Atlas: country resources for neurological disorders 2004. Results of a collaborative study of the World Health Organization and the World Federation of Neurology; WorldHealthOrganization;2004:1-59.

29. Scheffler RM, Potucek M. Mental healthcare reform in the Czech and Slovak Republics, 1989 to the present. Karolinum Press, Prague; 2008:1-258.

THE APPROACHES TO IMPROVE PRACTICAL SKILLS AT THE DEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICS AND GYNAECOLOGY

Pakharenko L.V.

Key words: practical skill, training, cytological screening, students.

Introduction. An increase in the prevalence of background and precancerous cervical diseases requires the implementation of the latest technologies for early detection and timely differentiation of the pathology. Cytological screening is one of the most effective methods in diagnosis of the cervical pathological and is an obligatory technique to master by general practitioners. The aim of the study was to analyze the experience of using simulation technologies for mastering the practical skills to take smears for cytological investigation. Results. While delivering the discipline "Obstetrics and gynaecology", it is important to pay much attention of medical students to the pathology of cervix through discipline modules 1 and 3. Today cytological screening is not only a conventional technique to master it; it is important and necessary to master the technique of liquid cytology. Students can master this skill not only during the practical classes, but also during independent out-of-class training under the guidance of the qualified professional (staff representative) at the training centres equipped to develop practical skills. For this purpose we have elaborated the algorithm to take and investigate smears supported by demonstration materials, video materials, case tasks. This approach also promotes clinical thinking. Mastering the technique of the skills is carried out on the gynaecological simulators. Students are taught to interpret the results of cytological screening using such classification systems as the Pap test, the American Society of Cytology and the Bethesda system. Students who had passed through the training in such training centres had no problems in demonstrating their skills during the module control and the final exams. Conclusion. The improvement of screening techniques to detect background and precancerous cervical diseases and mastering techniques of cytological research leads to the growth of the doctor's qualification and ability to use the skills acquired in clinical practice.

References

1. Order # 236 of Ministry of Health of Ukraine. 02.04.2014. "About the approval and implementation of medical technology documents on standardization of medical care by dysplasia and cervical cancer". [Electronic resource] – Way of access: URL: http://old.moz.gov.ua/ua/portal/dn 20140402 0236.html. – Title from the screen.

2. Project "The National Cancer Control Program for the period 2017-2021". 2017. [Electronic resource] – Way of access: URL: http://unci.org.ua/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/НАЦІОНАЛЬНА-ПРОГРАМА-БОРОТЬБИ-3-РАКОМ-2017-2021-pp.pdf. – Title from the screen.

3. Volosovets OP, P'iatnytskyi YuS, Vitenko IS, Melnyk IV, Stetsiuk RA. Udoskonalennia zasvoiennia praktychnykh navychok i metodyk studentamy ta likariamy-internamy – vazhlyva skladova kadrovoi perebudovy pervynnoi lanky [Improving the masterinf of practical skills and techniques by students and interns-doctors is an important component of the personnel reconstruction of the primary link]. Medychna osvita. 2012; 3:5–6. (Ukrainian).

4. Hromova AM, Mitiukhina NI, Martynenko YB, Nesterenko LA, Liakhnovska TYu. Rol rolovykh ihor u vyvchenni akusherstva ta hinekolohii [The role of role-playing games in the study of obstetrics and gynecology]. Medychna osvita. 2017; 2:117–9. (Ukrainian).

5. Kalashnykova KA, Starets OO, Nikitina NO. Problemy formuvannia praktychnykh navychok na kafedri propedevtyky pediatrii v umovakh vykorystannia kredytno-modulnoi systemy [Problems of formation of practical skills at the department of propaedeutics of pediatrics in conditions of use of credit-module system]. Medychna osvita. 2017; 4:53–5. (Ukrainian).

STUDENTS' SCIENTIFIC SOCIETY IN FOSTERING AND SECURING HUMAN RESOURCES IN MEDICAL UNIVERSITY

Petryniv V. B.

Key words: student, society, medicine, education, science.

The article highlights the role of students' scientific society in medical university, describes the tasks and goals of students' scientific society, an important organ, which governs and promotes students' research in higher medical educational institutions, coordinates directions of research student scientific groups over all departments of the university. The aim of this study was to evaluate the im-portance of student scientific society in higher medical educational establishment in terms of fostering and securing human resources. The chief goals of higher medical educational establishment is to provide high quality training for competitive medical professionals characterized by responsible attitude to the profession, stable interest in the future profession and intention for further self-development. Student scientific society helps to improve and to keep updated the training of medical specialists through the distribution of the latest scientific ideas, sharing the knowledge and academic experience, through the getting insight into the latest achievements in theoretical disciplines. Students' involvement into scientific society helps them to develop profession-relevant skills such as discipline, responsibility, fundamental research skills, team work skills, etc. The developed skills to work independently and in groups allow students to be more prepared to meet the profession-related demands, to keep up on innovations in medicine and health care, and to adhere to live-long learning education. Thus, students' scientific society is directed towards improving the professional development of future doctors that is based on the achievements obtained by students taking into consideration their capabilities, interests, and the best graduates are recommended to start career as a researcher or lecturer at the medical university.

References

1. Zhdan VM, Bobyryov VM, Sheshukova OV, Bilash SM, Lochmatova NM, Sharbenko TV. Suchasni pidkhody do zabezpechennya yakisnoyi osvity likariv-stomatologiv [The modern approach in providing the quality training for the dentists]. Medical education. 2013; 2: 65-8. [Ukrainian]

2. Korovina IA. Studencheskoe nauchnoe obshchestvo kak prostranstvo samoobrazovatelnoy deyatelnosty [The student scientific society as a space of selfeducational activity]. Intelligence. Innovation. Investments. Orenburg. 2011; 2: 185-8. [Russian]

3. Basista AS, Rozhko VI. Rol studentskogo naukovogo gurtka v profesiynomu rozvytku maybutnogo stomatologa [The role of the student's scientific workshop in professional training of the future dentist]. Topical issues in higher medical and pharmaceutical education: experience, problems, innovations and modern technologies: materials of the educational-methodical conference. (Chernivci, 18 April 2018.). Chernivci, 2018. P 15. [Ukrainian]

4. Ugryn MM, Solonko M, Shtuka OV. Kontseptsyya reformy podgotovky vracheystomatologov Ukrayny [The concept of the reform in the training of the stomatologists Ukraine]. DentArt. 2015; 1: 4-8.

5. Pavlenko OV, Vachnenko OM. Shlyakhy reformuvannya systemy nadannya stomatologichnoyi dopomogy naselennyu Ukrayiny. Dyskusiya [Reformations in providing of dental care to the population of Ukraine. Discussion]. Modern stomatology. 2013; 4: 180-4. [Ukrainian]

6. Studentske naukove tovarystvo IFNMU [The student scientific society of IFNMU]. Access mode: http://www.ifnmu.edu.ua/uk/pro-snt [Ukrainian]

SCIENTIFIC APPROACHES TO STRUCTURING THE CONTENT OF

EDUCATIONAL MATERIAL FOR MEDICINE DISCIPLINES

Tovstiak M. M., Holovanova I. A.

Key words: content structuring, scientific approaches, didactic principles.

Increase in the accessibility to quality, competitive education for the citizens of our country in ac-cordance with the demands providing innovative sustainable development of the social society, economic growth, ensuring the development of persons according to their individual as presentation aspirations, abilities, needs on the basis of lifelong learning has been identified by the National Strategy for the Development of Education in Ukraine up to 2021 as the most important goals for the next decade. Achieving these purposes is impossible without engaging highly qualified, skilled and motivated personnel trained in accordance with the most progressive national and world trends. After all, it is professionalism, professional competencies are considered as the main prerequisites for successful functioning of the health care system at all its levels. Issues on structuring the content of the educational material that ensures the effectiveness of its didactic implementation and, as a consequence, increases the level of learning effectiveness, are considered by didactics through all educational levels and have a long history. Modern approaches to their solution, related primarily to the specifics of the current period, identified by professionals as information era due to the huge streams of affordable information and the ever-increasing opportunities for its transfer are presented in this work. However, the analysis of the educational activities in the educational sphere, scientific research toward the improvement of training and professional activity of the medical professional emphasize today the existence of a number of interrelated contradictions that complicate the problem of the development and further improvement of the profession-related competencies. Relevance of the outlined problem, being insufficiently studied, and the necessity to over-come these outcomes has defined the choice of the theme of the research presented.

1. Androshchuk IV. Freym yak sposib vyzualyzatcyi navchalnoy informacyi [Freedom as a way of visualizing educational information.] Youth and Market. 2011; 6 (77): 78-84. (Ukrainian).

2. Balutina KM. Uzgodjenna zasobiv osvyti z yi cylyamy yk obektyvna neobhidnist [Harmonization of the means of education with its goals as an objective necessity] Image of a modern teacher. 2007; 1-2: 3-5. (Ukrainian).

3. Belyak OM. Strukturuvannia navchalnoi informacii yk skladova pydgotovky studentyv nemovnyh specialnostei [Structuring of educational information as a component of preparation of students of non-native specialties] Science and education. 2014; 3: 12-15. (Ukrainian).

4. Verbitsky V. Tehnologyzacia navchalno-vyhovnogo procesu v pozashkilnomu osvytnomu prostory yk pryncyp vyhovannya osobistosti [Technologization of the educational process in the extracurricular educational space as a principle of education of the individual Native school]. 2010; 10: 12-16. (Ukrainian).

5. Dzyubenko YV, Oliynyk LV. Osoblyvosti tehnologichnogo pidhodu do navchalnogo procesu u vischyi shkoly yk provydnogo zasobu uogo optimizacyi [Features of the technological approach to the educational process in the high school as a leading means of its optimization] [Electronic resource]; 2007. Available from:http://novyn.kpi.ua/2007-3-1/02_Dzubenko.pdf

6. Dolnikova LV, Tsubova OL. Strukturuvanniya zmystu navchalnih dyscyplyn yk vaglyva peredumova dlya pydvischennia yakosty pidgotovky fahivcia [Structuring the content of educational disciplines as an important prerequisite for improving the quality of training specialists] [E-mail] re-source]; 2013. Available from:www.irbisnbuv.gov.ua/cgibin/irbis_nbuv/cgiirbis_64.exe?C21COM=2&I21DBN=UJRN&P2 1DBN=UJRN&IMAGE_FILE_DOWNLOAD=1&Image_file_name=PDF/VNULPM_2013_767_5 6.pdf

7. Chornous OA, Dydaktichni umovy organyzacii samostynoi navchalnoi dialnosti studentiv [Didactic conditions of organization of independent educational activity of students] Theory and methods of teaching and education: Sb. sciences works Kharkov. natsionalniy pedagogychniy unyversytet them G.S. Skovoroda; 2008; 153-159 (Ukrainian).

8. Chornous OA. Metody stimyluvannia ta motivacyi navchanya studentiv [Methods of stimulation and motives of students' learning] Modernization of education: searches, problems, perspectives: materials of sciences. conf., May 22-25 2006 g.; Kyiv - Pereyaslav-Khmelnitsky; 2006. P. 92 – 94. (Ukrainian).

9. Chornous OA. Cylysna systema strukturnyh elementyv navchalnoi dialnosti studentiv [Integral system of structural elements of educational activity of students] Materialy nayk. conferentsii, May 15-17, 2007 g.; Kharkivskiy natsionalniy pedagogychniy unyversytet them G.S. Skovoroda; 2007; P.58 – 60 (Ukrainian).

10. Chornous OA. Vzaemna pidtrimka myg pedagogom y studentom – odna iz umov efektivnosti procesu navchania [Mutual support between the teacher and the student is one of the conditions for the effectiveness of the learning process] Science and social problems of society: education, culture, spirituality: materials science-practice conf., May 20-21, 2008 g.; Kharkiv; 2008. P.140 – 143 (Ukrainian).

ОГЛЯДИ ЛІТЕРАТУРИ

MODERN VIEWS ON IDENTIFYING PRESCRIPTION OF DEATH COMING IN PRACTICE OF FORENSIC MEDICINE (LITERATURE REVIEW)

Bachinsky V.T., Vanchulyak O.Ya., Sarkisova Yu.V., Kolacheva A.Yu.

Key words: prescription of death coming, vitreous body, diagnostic methods, forensic medical examination.

The article presents an analysis of modern literature on the approaches in identifying the duration of the post-mortal interval, in particular, different methods of identifying the prescription of death coming and gen-eralization of their characteristics. The maximum precise identification of the prescription of death coming now is based on the recent scientific achievements, and is one of the most important aspects of the forensic medicine. To date, there have been a large number of diagnostic techniques described in the relevant literature that ultimately allow experts to determine the estimated time limits of death coming. Despite a number of advantages, these techniques require improvement of their accuracy and elimination of shortcomings, such as the procedural complexity, the non-specificity of morphological changes in biological tissues at different pathological conditions and the influence of environmental factors, high costs, time consuming, the impact of "human factor" on the results obtained. According to literary sources, a set of laser polarimetric techniques allows forensic experts to solve a number of the above-mentioned problems, as well as to carry out an express diagnosis; they are more objective, characterized by less task-performance time, independence, higher sufficient accuracy and reproducibility of the results. Having analyzed the literature data, we came to the conclusion that unlike the conventional methods used in forensic medical practice, which may not always be effective and may not be reliable, modern possibilities in investigations of biological tissues and body fluids by laser polarimetry techniques enable to find and implement the latest forensic optical criteria and methods for identifying the prescription of death coming in forensic practice. The use of analytical capabilities of laser polarimetric methods in combination with the characteristics of vitreous body as an object of research seems to be promising and requires scrutinized study.

References

1. Angelsky OV, Bachinskiy VT, Boichuk TM, Ushenko AG. Optical Measurements:

Polarization and Coherence of Light Fields. In the book "Modern Metrology Concerns" edited by Luigi Cocco. 2012. 263-316.

2. Bachynskyi V, Garazdiuk M, Vanchuliak O. Post mortem interval estimation: features of cerebrospinal fluid films autofluorescent laser polarimetry. Folia Societatis Medicinae Legalis Slovacae. 2016; 6(2): 67-72.

3. Bachinskij VT. Perspektivy primenenija lazerno-poljarimetricheskih metodov issledovanija biologicheskih tkanej v sudebnoj medicine. [Perspectives of laser-polarimetric methods of biological tissue investigation in forensic medicine]. Sudebnaja medicina. 2016; 2(3): 4-8. (Russian).

4. Bachinskij VT, Vanchuljak OJ, Garazdjuk MS. Issledovanie likvora v sudebno-medicinskoj praktike opredelenija davnosti nastuplenija smerti. [Investigation of cerebrospinal fluid in the forensic practice to determine the time of death]. Vestnik sudebnoj mediciny. 2015; 4(4): 8-11. (Russian).

5. Bachinskij VT, Vanchuljak OJ. Lazerno poljarimetricheskie metody issledovanija biologicheskih tkanej v sudebnoj medicine–perspektivy, realii i budushhee. [Laser polarimetric methods of investigation of biological tissues in forensic medicine – perspectives, realities and the future]. Vestnik sudebnoj mediciny. 2015; 4(1): 19-24. (Russian).

6. Byval'cev VA, Stepanov IA, Semjonov AV, Perfil'ev DV, Belyh EG, Bardonova LA, Antipina SL. Vozmozhnosti diagnostiki davnosti nastuplenija smerti po izmenenijam v pojasnichnyh mezhpozvonkovyh diskah (sopostavlenie morfologicheskih, immunogistohimicheskih i tomograficheskih rezul'tatov) [Possibilities of diagnosing the prescription of death due to changes in lumbar intervertebral disks (comparison of morphological, immunohistochemical and tomographic results)]. Sudebno-medicinskaja ekspertiza. 2017; 60(4): 4-8. (Russian).

7. Ermakova JV. Opredelenie davnosti nastuplenija smerti v pozdnem postmortal'nom periode metodom spinovyh zondov s ispol'zovaniem steklovidnogo tela [Determination of the prescription of death in the late postmortem period by the method of spin probes with the use of a vitreous] [dissertation]. Moskva; 2012. 20 p. (Russian).

8. Hauther KA, Cobaugh KL, Jantz LM, Sparer TE, DeBruyn, JM. Estimating time since death from postmortem human gut microbial communities. J Forensic Sci. 2015; 60: 1234–1240. doi: 10.1111/1556-4029.12828

9. Javan GT, Finley SJ, Can I, Wilkinson JE, Hanson JD, Tarone AM. Human thanatomicrobiome succession and time since death. Scientific reports. 2016; 6: 29598.

10. Kulikov VA, Vavilov AJ. Vozmozhnosti programmyh i apparatnyh realizacij termometricheskogo sposoba diagnostiki davnosti smerti cheloveka [Possibilities of program and hardware realizations of the thermometric way of diagnostics of prescription of death of the person]. Problemy jekspertizy v medicine. Izhevsk. 2013; 3: 5-8. (Russian).

11. Ledjankina IA. Opredelenie davnosti nastuplenija smerti po izmeneniju opticheskoj plotnosti steklovidnogo tela [Determination of the prescription of death on the change in the optical density of the vitreous body] [dissertation]. Izhevsk; 2006. 137 p. (Russian).

12. Madea B, Henssge C, Reibe S, Tsokos M, Kernbach-Wighton G. Postmortem changes and time since death. Handbook of forensic medicine. 2014; 75-133.

13. Madea B. Immunohistochemical methods as an aid in estimating the time since death. Estimation of the time since death. CRC Press, Boca Raton. 2016; 223-225.

14. Madea B. Methods for determining time of death. Forensic Sci Med Pathol. 2016; 1–35. doi: 10.1007/s12024-016-9776-y

15. Metcalf JL, Parfrey LW, Gonzalez A, Lauber CL, Knights D, Ackermann G, Keepers K. A microbial clock provides an accurate estimate of the postmortem interval in a mouse model system. eLife. 2013; 2: e01104. doi: 10.7554/eLife.01104

16. Onjanov AM. Dinamika impedansometricheskih pokazatelej steklovidnogo tela v pozdnem postmortal'nom periode [Dynamics of the impedanceometric parameters of the vitreous in the late postmortem period] [dissertation]. Moskva; 2008. 24 p. (Russian).

17. Pittner S, Ehrenfellner B, Zissler A, Racher V, Trutschnig W, Bathke AC, Monticelli FC. First application of a protein-based approach for time since death estimation. International journal of legal medicine. 2017; 131(2): 479-483.

18. Sadrtdinov AG, Vavilov AJ, Halikov AA, Najdenova TV. Ustanovlenie davnosti smerti cheloveka fotokolorimetricheskim sposobom pri gnilostnoj biotransformacii trupa. [Determination of time of death by photocolorimetric method in putrid biotransformation corpse] Sovremennye problemy nauki i obrazovanija. 2017; (2): 1-10. (Russian).

19. Ten'kov AA, Plaksin VO. Sudebno-medicinskaja jekspertiza trupa v pozdnie sroki postmortal'nogo perioda: (gnienie, zhirovosk, mumifikacija, ocenka povrezhdenij) [Forensic examination of the corpse late in the postmortal period: (rotting, fattening, mummification, damage assessment)]. Kursk-Moskva. 2005; 419 p. (Russian).

20. Vavilov AJ, Kuzovkov AV. Sposob opredelenija davnosti smerti cheloveka po velichine timpanicheskoj temperatury trupa [Method for determining the time of death by tympanic temperature]. Medicinskaja jekspertiza i pravo. 2017; 3:42-48. (Russian).

21. Vavilov AJ, Najdenova TV, Marteva AV, Halikov AA. Osobennosti termometricheskogo issledovanija trupa na meste ego pervonachal'nogo obnaruzhenija [Features of thermometrical research corpse on the place of its initial detection]. Problemy jekspertizy v medicine. Nauchno-prakticheskij zhurnal. Izhevsk: Jekspertiza. 2005; 2: 15-17. (Russian).

22. Young ST, Wells JD, Hobbs GR, Bishop CP Estimating postmortem interval using RNA degradation and morphological changes in tooth pulp. Forensic Sci Int. 2013; 229: 163-6. doi: 10.1016/j.forsciint.2013.03.035

EVALUATION OF TECHNIQUES AND CONTEMPORARY STATE OF SURGICAL TREATMENT OF CHRONIC DACRYOCYSTITIS

Bezega N.M., Ryadnova V.V.

Key words: lacrimal system, dacryocystitis, dacryocystorinostomy, laser dacryocystorinostomy, endonasal surgery, endoscopic technology.

Chronic dacryocystitis is an infectious inflammatory disease, which in 80-85% of patients was associated with various forms of nasal diseases due to the close relationship between the nasal cavity, perianal sinuses and the lacrimal system. Typically, the therapeutic treatment of this disease that consists of general and local (eye drops) antibiotic therapy, irrigation of lacrimal ducts with sterile solutions, is not effective and requires further surgical intervention. Most often, the choice of dacriocysteine treatment depends on the degree of chronicity of the process. Dacryocystorinostomy is known as the main approach in treating chronic dacriocysts that can be performed either through external or endonasal access. As it is known from the history of surgical treatment of dacriocystis, there is an ever-existing question on what profile this pathology belongs to: ophthalmology or rhinology. External and endonasal access to the lacrimal sac has become the basis for the parallel existing techniques of surgical treatment of dacriocystitis. The success of the operations mainly depends on the close interaction of ophthalmologist and otorhinolaryngologist. Modern ophthalmologists are increasingly mastering endonasal procedures. This review highlights the techniques of performing dacriocystoryostomy retrospectively: from conventional to the latest technologies. The review also covers a large number of reports, discussing combined and separate applying of surgical treatment of chronic dacryocystitis.

References

1. Cherkunov BF. Bolezni sleznyihorganov [Diseases of lacrimal organs]: Monografiya. Samara: GP Perspektiva; 2001. 296 p. (Russian)

2. Valieva GN. Analiz zabolevaemosti, pervichnoy obraschaemosti i sostava

gospitalizirovannyih bolnyih s patologiey sleznyihorganov [Analysis of incidence, primary appealability and composition of hospitalized patients with pathology of lacrimal organs]. Problemyi sovremennoy oftalmologii. Sbornik nauchnyih trudov Ufimskogo NII glaznyih bolezney. Ufa; 2006. P. 88-9. (Russian)

3. Zhaboedov GD, Sergienko MM. Ochni hvorobi [Eye diseases]. Kiyiv; 1999. P. 183-203.

4. Bastrikov NI. Bolezni sleznyih organov i sposobyi ih lecheniya [Lacrimal organ diseases and its treatment]. Rukovodstvo dlya vracha. Rostov n/D: Feniks; 2007. 185 p.

5. Kopaeva VG, redaktor. Glaznyie bolezni [Eye diseases]. Moskva; 2002. P. 168-79.

6. Tihomirov PE. O svyazi mezhdu slezotecheniem i izmeneniyami nosa [About conection between]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 1954;2:28-33. (Ukrainian)

7. Pohisov NYa. Zabolevaniya slezootvodyaschih putey i ih lechenie [Lacrimal organ diseases and its treatment]. Moskva; 1958. 285 p.

8. Beloglazov VG. O roli patologii LOR organov v vozniknovenii i razvitii zabolevaniy slezootvodyaschego apparata [About role of ENT organs in occurrence and development of diseases of lacrimal organs]. V: Trudyi 6-go S'ezda otolaringologov SSSR. Moskva; 1975. 67p. (Russian)

9. Motornyiy VV, Malinovskiy GF. Rol rinopatologii v etiologii slezotecheniya i zabolevaniya slezootvodyaschih putey [The role of rhinopathology in etiology of lacrimation and teardrops]. Zdravoohranenie Belorussii. 1991;8:22-4. (Belarussian)

10. Atkova EL, Yartsev VD, Tomashevskiy IO, Krahovetskiy NN. Vyibor metoda lecheniya patsientov s dakriostenozom na osnove odnofotonnoy emissionnoy kompyuternoy tomografii, sovmeschennoy s rentgenovskoy kompyuternoy tomografiey [Choice of treatment for patients with dacryostenosis based on single photon emission computed tomography combined with X-ray computed tomography]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 2016;132(3):15-20. (Ukrainian)

11. Magomedov MM, Andriyashkin DV, Magomedova MN,Zeynalova DF.Topografoanatomicheskoe raspolozhenie slezootvodyaschih putey v polosti nosa [Topographic anatomical location of the tear ducts in the nasal cavity] Vestnik otorinolaringologii. 2017;82(3):31-3. (Ukrainian)

12. Nasyirov VA, Medvedev MA, Islamov IM, Tazhibaev TD, Bednyakova NN. Sovremennyie tendentsii v hirurgicheskom lechenii hronicheskogo gnoynogo dakriotsistita [Current trends in the surgical treatment of chronic purulent dacryocystitis]. Prakticheskaya meditsina. 2012 Sent 20;06(12):URL:http://pmarchive.ru/sovremennye-tendencii-v-xirurgicheskom-lechenii-xronicheskogo-gnojnogo-dakriocistita/

13. Bezkorovayna IM. Rol mikroflori v rozvitku riznih form dacriocistitiv novonarodgenih [The role of microflora in the development of various forms of dacryocystitis in newborns]. Neonatologiya, hirurgiya ta perinatalna medicina. 2013; 4(10):24-27. (Ukrainian)

14. Cherkunov BF. Hirurgicheskoe lechenie striktur i obliteratsiya slezootvodyaschih putey [discertatsiya]. Moskva: 1975. 137p.

15. Bastrikov NI. Dakriotsistorinodrenazh – sposob lecheniya dakriotsistitov [Dacryocystorinodrainage - a method for the treatment of dacryocystitis]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 2004;5:33-5. (Ukrainian)

16. Toti E. Dacryocystorhinostomia. Clin. Med. Firenze. 1904;10(33):385-9.

17. WestJM. Eime Fensterresection des Ductus naso-lacrimalis in Fallen von Stenosa. Arch. f. Laryngol. 1910;24(1):62-6.

18. Dupuy-Dutemps L, Bourget J. Procede plastique de dacryocystorhinostomie et deses resultants. Ann. d'Occul. 1921;158:241-61. (French)

19. Bokpggeyn FS. Anatomicheskoe obosnovanie endonazalnoy dariotsistorinostomii [Anatomical rationale for endonasal dariocistoristomy]. Zhurn. ushnyih, nosovyih i gorlovyih bolezney. 1925;6-8:438-41. (Ukrainian)

20. Volkov VV, Sultanov MYu. Naruzhnaya dakriotsistorinostomiya. Moskva: Meditsina; 1975. 104 p.

21. Kozlov BC, Bobrov DA, Slezkina IG. Mikroendoskopicheskaya endonazalnaya

dakriotsistorinostomiya [Microendoscopic endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy]. Rossiyskaya rinologiya. 1998;4:63-9.

22. Palchun VT, Magomedov MM. Endoskopicheskaya endonazalnaya mikrodakriotsistorinostomiya [Endoscopic endolazer mikrodacriocystorhinostomy]. Rossiyskaya rinologiya. 2001;2:169-70.

23. RoithmannR, BurmanT, WormaldPJ. Endoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy. BrazJ Otorhinolaryngol. 2012 Dec;78(6):113-21.

24. Yoshida N, Kanazawa H, Shinnabe A, Iino Y. Powered endoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy with radiowave instruments: surgical outcome according to obstruction level. Eur Arch Otorhinolaryngol. 2013;270(2):579-84.

25. Carifi M, Carifi G. Endoscopic endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy. JCraniofacSurg. 2014;25(2):717-8.

26. Voskresenska LK, Kornienko VV, Sobko KG, Maksakova OV. Suchasni metodi lIkuvannya hronichnih dakriotsistitiv [Modern methods of treatment of chronic dacriocystitis]. Svit meditsini ta biologiyi. 2010;4:22-4.

27. Voronovich A, Malinovskiy G. Obosnovanie vyibora metoda hirurgicheskogo lecheniya hronicheskogo dakriotsistita [Justification of the choice of method of surgical treatment of chronic dacryocystitis]. Oftalmologiya. VostochnayaEvropa. 2016;4:117-8. (Ukrainian)

28. Atkova EL.Yartsev VD,Tomashevskiy IO,Krahovetskiy NN. Vyibor metoda lecheniya patsientov s dakriostenozom na osnove odnofotonnoy emissionnoy kompyuternoy tomografii, sovmeschennoy s rentgenovskoy kompyuternoy tomografiey [Choice of treatment for patients with dacryostenosis based on single photon emission computed tomography combined with X-ray computed tomography]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 2016;132(3):15-20. (Ukrainian)

29. Tang L F, Qin G, Yang Y C, Gan L R, Wang Y, Long Z. Therapeutic effect of two kinds of surgical treatment for chronic dacryocystitis: external dacryocystorhinostomy and endoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy. Lin Chung Er Bi Yan HouTou Jing Wai KeZaZhi. 2017 Jul 5; 31(13):1029-31.

30. Daniel R. Lefebvre, Sonya Dhar, Irene Lee, Felicia Allard, Suzanne K. FreitagExternaldacryocystorhinostomy outcomes in patients with a history of dacryocystitis Digit J Ophthalmol. 2015; 21(3):1-22. doi: 10.5693/djo.01.2014.08.001]

31. Guchetl ZA. Hirurgicheskoe lechenie hronicheskih dakriotsistitov v klinike glaznyih bolezney [Surgical treatment of chronic dacryocystitis in the clinic for eye diseases]. Aktualnyie problemyi oftalmologii. 2008. URL: http://www.eyepress.ru/article.aspx?6128

32. Ali MJ, Joshi SD, Naik MN, Honavar SG. Clinical profile and management outcome of acute dacryocystitis: two decades of experience in a tertiary eye care center. Semin Ophthalmol. 2015 Mar; 30(2):118-23. doi: 10.3109/08820538.2013.833269.

33. Poritskiy YuV. Schadyaschie tehnologii v hirurgicheskom lechenii bolnyih hronicheskim dakriotsistitom [Sparing technologies in surgical treatment of patiens with chronic dacriocystitis]. Oftalmologiya. Vostochnaya Evropa. 2014;(4):279-84. (Ukrainian)

34. Zhukova IS. Efektivnist lazernoyi dakrIotsistorinostomiyi v likuvanni hronichnih dakriotsistitiv [Effectiveness of laser dacrocystinostomy in treatment of chronical dacrocystitis] (eksperimentalno-klinichne doslidzhennya)[disertatsiya]. Kiyiv; 2010. 164 p. (Ukrainian)

35. Aksoy Y, Yildirim Y, Topal T, Cesmeci E, Cakir Y. Functional success evaluation of lacrimal drainage system by dacryoscintigraphy after transcanalicular diode laser dacryocystorhinostomy. Indian J Ophthalmol. 2018 Aug;66(8):1161-4.

36. Kaçaniku G, Begolli I. External dacryocystorhinostomy with and without suturing the posterior mucosal flaps. Med Arch. 2014;68(1):54-6.

37. Rahmanov VV, PotYomkin VV, Meshveliani EV, Pirgunova AA, Alchinova AS, Morina KYu, i dr. Otdalyonnyie rezultatyi modifitsirovannoy naruzhnoy dakriotsistorinostomii [Long-term results of modified external dacryocystorhinostomy]. Oftalmologicheskie vedomosti. 2017;10(2):56-61. (Ukrainian)

38. Mishra AK, Nilakantan A, Mishra S, Mallick A. Comparison of balloon dacryocystorhinostomy with conventional endonasal endoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy for relief of acquired distal nasolacrimal drainage obstruction and its impact on quality of life: A prospective, randomized, controlled study. Med J Armed Forces India. 2018 Jul; 74(3):255-63. doi: 10.1016/j.mjafi.2017.08.010.

39. Savino G, Battendieri R, Traina S, Corbo G, D'amico G, Gari M, et al. External vs. endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy: has the current view changed? Acta Otorhinolaryngol Ital. 2014 Feb;34(1):29-35.

40. Waly MA, Shalaby OE, Elbakary MA, Hashish AA. The cosmetic outcome of external dacryocystorhinostomy scar and factors affecting it. Indian J Ophthalmol. 2016 Apr;64(4):261-5. doi: 10.4103/0301-4738.182933

41. Ganguly A, Ramarao K, Mohapatra S, Rath S. Transconjunctival dacryocystorhinostomy: An aesthetic approach. Indian J Ophthalmol. 2016 Dec;64(12):893-7. doi: 10.4103/0301-4738.198855.

42. Smirnova AS, Poritskiy YuV, Voronov AV. Kompleksnoe lechenie hronicheskogo dakriotsistita i soputstvuyuschey patologii polosti nosa i okolonosovyih pazuh [Comprehensive treatment of chronic dacryocystitis and concomitant pathologists of the nasal cavity and paranasal sinuses]. Rossiyskaya rinologiya. 2016;1:34-7.

43. Yusipova ER, Davyidov DV, Atkova EL. Lazernyie metodiki formirovaniya soustya pri razlichnyih variantah dakriotsistorinostomii [Laser techniques for the formation of fistula in various variants of dacryocystorhinostomy]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 2008;124(4):56-8.

44. Jin HR, Yeon JY, Choi MY. Endoscopic Dacryocystorhinostomy: Creationofa Large Marsupialized Lacrimal Sac. JKoreanMedSci. 2006 Aug;21(4):719-23. doi: 10.3346/jkms.2006.21.4.719

45. Obodov VA, Soloschenko AP. Varianti dakriotsistorinostomii s endoskopicheskim kontrolem [Variants of dacryocystorhinostomy with endoscopic control]. Sovremennyie metodyi diagnostiki i lecheniya zabolevaniy sleznyihorganov: Sbornik nauchnyih statey po materialam konferentsii. Moskva; 2005. P. 226-30.

46. Shkolnik SF, Krasnozhen VN. Etapyi vnedreniya endonazalnoy mikroendoskopicheskoy dakriotsistorinostomii v oftalmologicheskoy klinike[Stages of implantation of endonasal microendoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy in the ophthalmologic clinic]. Vestnik otorinolaringologii.2008;6:21-2.

47. Endoskopicheskaya dakrinotsistorinostomiya pri priobretennoy obstruktsii nososleznogo kanala: otdalennyie rezultatyi 91 operatsii: po stranitsam zarubezhnyih zhurnalov [Endoscopic dacrinocystorhinostomy with acquired nasolacrimal duct obstruction: long-term results 91 operations: through the pages of foreign journals]. Vestnik otorinolaringologii. 2015;2:85.

48. Atkova EL, Fedorov AA, Root AO, Krahovetskiy NN, Yartsev VD, Reyn DA, i dr. Morfologicheskiy analiz protsessov reparatsii v oblasti dakriostomyi posleendoskopicheskoy endonazalnoy dakriotsistorinostomii [Morphological analysis of reparation processes in the field of dacryostomy after endoscopic endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 2016;132(6):87-92.(Ukrainian)

49. Beloglazov VG, Hvedelidze EP, Atkova EL, Saad Eldin NM. Ranevoe zazhivlenie posleendonazalnoy dakriotsistorinostomii pri soputstvuyuschih patologicheskih izmeneniyah v slizistoy obolochke polosti nosa [Wound healing of post-endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy with concomitant pathological changes in the nasal mucosa]. Oftalmologiya. 2004;1(1):59-63.(Ukrainian)

50. Baymenov AZh. Rannyaya profilaktika posleoperatsionnogo stenozirovaniya pri modifitsirovannoy endonazalnoy funktsionalnoy dakriotsistorinostomii [Early prophylaxis of postoperative stenosis with modified endonazal functional dacryocystyrinthostomy]. Vestnik otorinolaringologii.2015;2:60-2. (Ukrainian)

51. Root AO, Atkova EL. Modifitsirovannyiy sposob profIlaktiki rubtsevaniya dakriostomyi

posleendoskopicheskoy endonazalnoy dakriotsistorinostomii [Modified method of profilaktizing cicatrization of dacryostomy after endoscopic endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy]. Sovremennyie tehnologii v oftalmologii. 2017;4:173-7. (Russian)

52. Atkova EL, Yartsev VD, Krahovetskiy NN, Reznikova LV, Root AO. Izuchenie osobennostey stroeniya ustya nososleznogo protoka po dannyim mnogosrezovoy kompyuternoy tomografii [The study of the structure of the mouth of the nasal duct according to multi-slice computed tomography]. Vestnik rentgenologii i radiologii. 2018;2:63-70.

53. Yarmohammadi ME, Ghasemi H, Jafari F, Izadi P, Nadoushan MJ, Chin NS. Teamwork Endoscopic Endonasal Surgery in Failed External Dacryocystorhinostomy J Ophthalmic Vis Res. 2016 Jul-Sep;11(3):282-6. doi: 10.4103/2008-322X.188396

54. Baymenov AZh. Modifikatsiya endonazalnoy endoskopicheskoy dakriotsistorinostomii [Modification of endonasal endoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy]. Innovatsionnyiy patent. 2010; 12(3): 14-9.

55. Baymenov AZh. Vedenie bolnyih hronicheskim dakriotsistitom v rannem posleoperatsionnom periode [Maintaining patients with chronic dacryocystitis in the early postoperative period]. Vestnik otorinolaringologii. 2015;2:60-2.

56. Isaev EV, Svistushkin VM, Egorov VI, Isaev VM, Mustafaev DM. Endoskopicheskaya endonazalnaya dakriotsistorinostomiya s primeneniem radiochastotnoy hirurgii [Endoscopic endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy using radiofrequency surgery]. Rossiyskaya otorinolaringologiya. 2016;4:14-21.

57. Filatova IA. Radiovolnovaya hirurgiya v lechenii dakriotsistita [Radiowave surgery in the treatment of dacryocystitis]. Vestnik oftalmologii. 2018;1:70-6.

58. Krasnozhen VN. Primenenie koblatsii v lechenii hronicheskogo dakriotsistita [The use of coblation in the treatment of chronic dacryocystitis]. Rossiyskaya otorinolaringologiya. 2016;2(81):134-6. (Russian)

59. Figueira E, AlAbbadi Z, Malhotra R, Wilcsek G, Selva D. Frequency of simultaneous nasal procedures in endoscopic dacryocystorhinostomy. Ophthalmic Plast Reconstr Surg. 2014 Jan-Feb;30(1):40-3.

60. Murahtanova AV, GutnikovPV. Endoskopicheskaya endonazalnaya dakriotsistorinostomiya: uspeshnyiy ukrainskiy opyit [Endoscopic endonasal dacryocystorhinostomy: successful Ukrainian experience]. Zdorov'ya Ukrayini 21 storichchya. 2017; 21(418): 62-9.

EPIDEMIOLOGICAL AND AETIOLOGICAL FACTORS OF FOOD ALLERGIES

Bubyr L. M.

Key words: children, food allergy, allergen, food, risk factors, epidemiology.

The article highlights key issues on the problem of food allergy in children. Based on numerous research papers and reports published by well-known experts, some examples of the prevalence of food allergy among children and adults are given in the article. There has been an attempt to clarify the role of food al-lergy in the structure of allergic pathology. There is no clearly defined and reliable picture of food allergy epidemiological that is mainly due to the absence of exact diagnostic algorithm and unified classification of food allergy; this, in turn, results in delayed diagnosis and late therapeutic management. The article also focuses on the main risk factors of the development of food allergy and singles out the key causative food allergens. Food products with the most pronounced allergenic properties are milk, eggs, wheat, soy, peanuts, nuts, fish and seafood. Modern molecular diagnostic capabilities make it possible to isolate the main components of food allergens and cross-allergy with pollen of plants and animal proteins. Among the commonest proteins there are simple and complex proteins (glycoproteins, haptens, polypeptides) of food products having different functional characteristics. The article emphasizes on the thorough

approach in differential diagnosis between true food allergy and pseudo-allergic reactions. The role of chronic gastrointestinal diseases in the development of sensitization and allergic inflammation has been analyzed as well. There has been established the necessity to improve diagnostic and therapeutic measures in order to improve the quality of life of children.

References

1. Balabolkin II. Problemy profilaktiki allergicheskih zabolevanij [Problems of prevention of allergic diseases]. Pediatriya. 2003; 6: 4-7. (Russian)

2. Baranov AA, Namazova-Baranova LS, Borovik TEH, Makarova SG, Yacyk GV, Skvorcova VA, Turti TV, Vishneva EA, Alekseeva AA, Roslavceva EA, Zvonkova NG, Lukoyanova OL, Snovskaya MA. In: Baranov AA, editor Pishchevaya allergiya [Food allergy]. M: Pediatr", 2013. Ser Bolezni detskogo vozrasta ot A do YA 160p. (Russian)

3. Borovik TE, Netrebenko OK, Semenova NN, Makarova SG. Innovacionnye podhody k organizacii prikorma detyam s pishchevoj allergiej i iz grupp vysokogo riska po razvitiyu atopii [Innovative approaches towards the recommendation of nutrition supplement introduction for children with food allergy and for children of high-risk groups for the development of atopy]. Pediatriya (ZHurnal imeni GNSperanskogo) 2011; 3: 91-9. (Russian)

4. Botkina AS. Pishchevaya allergiya u detej: sovremennyj vzglyad na problemu [Food allergy in children: a modern view on the problem]. Lechashchij vrach. 2012; 6: 16-20 (Russian)

5. Baranov AA, Balabolkin II, editor. Detskaya allergologiya [Children's allergology: Handbook for doctors] M, 2006. 628 p. (Russian)

6. Kajdashev IP. Monitoring alergenspecifichnih imunoglobuliniv E v poltavs'kij populyacii z simptomami alergii v 2008–2010 rr [Monitoring of allergen-specific immunoglobulins E in Poltava population with allergy symptoms through 2008-2010]. Ukraïns'kij medichnij chasopis. 2011; 2 (82): 94–97. (Ukrainian)

7. Kuznecova LV, Babadzhan VD, Frolov VM, editor. Klinichna ta laboratorna imunologiya [Clinical and laboratory immunology]. Nacional'nij pidruchnik. K: OOO «Poligraf plyus», 2012. 922 p. (Russian)

8. Luss LV. Pishchevaya allergiya i pishchevaya neperenosimost': principy diagnostiki i terapii [Food allergy and food intolerance: principles of diagnosis and therapy]. Lechashchij vrach. 2007; 4: 16-20. (Russian)

9. Luss LV. Pishchevaya allergiya i pishchevaya neperenosimost', terminologiya, klassifikaciya, problemy diagnostiki i terapii [Food allergy and food intolerance, terminology, classification, problems of diagnosis and therapy]. Farmarus print Moskva, 2005 [Elektronnyj resurs: https://mediru/info/12356/ Data obrashcheniya 18092018] (Russian)

10. Luss, LV. Pishchevye allergeny i pishchevye dobavki: rol' v formirovanii pishchevoj allergii i pishchevoj neperenosimosti [Food allergens and food additives: their role in the formation of food allergies and food intolerance] Effektivnaya farmakoterapiya. 2014; 33: 12–19. (Russian)

11. Makarova SG, Namazova-Baranova LS, Vishneva EA, Gevorkyan AK, Alekseeva AA, Petrovskaya MI. Aktual'nye voprosy diagnostiki pishchevoj allergii v pediatricheskoj praktike [Actual questions of the diagnosis of food allergy in pediatric practice]. Vestnik RAMN. 2015; 1: 41–46 (Russian)

12. Malanicheva TG, Ziyatdinova NV, Denisova SN Gastrointestinal'naya allergiya u detej [Gastrointestinal allergy in children]. Lechashchij vrach. 2014; 8: 83-86. (Russian)

13. Namazova-Baranova LS. Allergiya u detej: ot teorii k praktike [Allergy in children: from theory to practice]. M: Soyuz pediatrov Rossii. 2010–2011. 668 p

14. Nogaller AM. Pishchevaya allergiya i neperenosimost' pishchevyh produktov: differencial'naya diagnostika [Food allergy and food intolerance: differential diagnosis]. Ter arhiv. 2006; 78 (2): 66–71. (Russian)

15. Ohotnikova EN. Gastrointestinal'naya pishchevaya allergiya u detej [Gastrointestinal food allergy in children] Klinichna imunologiya Alergologiya Infektologiya. 2013; 2: 5-13. (Ukrainian)

16. Ohotnikova OM, Chernish YUR. Faktori riziku rozvitku i patogenez gastrointestinal'noï harchovoï alergiï u ditej [Risk factors of development and pathogenesis of gastrointestinal food allergy in children]. Zdorov'e rebenka. 2016; 8(76): 87–93. (Ukrainian)

17. Revyakina, VA, Lar'kova VA, Kuvshinova ED, SHavkina MI, Muhortyh VA. Fenopity pishchevoj allergii u detej [Phenopathy of food allergy in children]. Voprosy pitaniya. 2016; 85(1): 75–80. (Russian)

18. Simptomi alergiï na citrusovi [Symptoms of allergy to citrus] [EHlektronnyj resurs: http://medpricecomua/ukr/articles/simptomi-alergiyi-na-tsitrusovi-mandarini-apelsini-129.html. Data obrashcheniya 25092018]

19. Subbotina OA, Geppe EA, Primak NA, Orekhova VP. Allergicheskie reakcii na krupy u detej s atopiej [Allergic reactions to cereals in children with atopy] Voprosy pitaniya. 2013; 82(4): 34–38. (Russian)

20. Titova ND, editor. Pishchevye dobavki kak alimentarnye allergeny [Nutritional supplements as alimentary allergens]. Immunologiya, allergologiya, infektologiya. 2008; 2: 41–16. (Belarusian)

21. Tkachenko OYa. Pishchevaya allergiya u detej kak klyuchevoe zveno v realizacii atopii [Food allergy in children as a key link in the development of atopy]. Neonatologiya, hirurgiya ta perinatal'na medicina. 2014; 1(11): 106-13. (Ukrainian)

22. Fiocchi A, Brozek J, Schünemann H, Bahna SL, von Berg A, Beyer K, Bozzola M, Bradsher J, Compalati E, Ebisawa M, Guzmán MA, Li H, Heine RG, Keith P, Lack G, Landi M, Martelli A, Rancé F, Sampson H, Stein A, Terracciano L, Vieths S; World Allergy Organization (WAO) Special Committee on Food Allergy. World Allergy Organization (WAO) Diagnosis and Rationale for Action against Cow's Milk Allergy (DRACMA) Guidelines. Pediatr Allergy Immunol. 2010;21 (21):1-125. doi: 10.1111/j.1399-3038.2010.01068.x.

23. Bisgaard H. Reduced diversity of the intestinal microbiota during infancy is associated with increased risk of allergic disease at school age. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2011; 128(3): 646-52.

24. Boyce JA, Assa'ad A, Burks AW, Jones SM, Sampson HA, Wood RA, Plaut M, Cooper SF, Fenton MJ, Arshad SH, Bahna SL, Beck LA, Byrd-Bredbenner C, Camargo CA Jr, Eichenfield L, Furuta GT, Hanifin JM, Jones C, Kraft M, Levy BD, Lieberman P, Luccioli S, McCall KM, Schneider LC, Simon RA, Simons FE, Teach SJ, Yawn BP, Schwaninger JM. Guidelines for the Diagnosis and Management of Food Allergy in the United States: Report of the NIAID-Sponsored Expert Panel Nutr Res. 2011;31(1):61-75.

25. Canonica GW, Ansotegui IJ, Pawankar R, Schmid-Grendelmeier P, van Hage M, Baena-Cagnani CE, Melioli G, Nunes C, Passalacqua G, Rosenwasser L, Sampson H, Sastre J, Bousquet J, Zuberbier T; WAO-ARIA-GA2LEN Task Force: Allen K, Asero R, Bohle B, Cox L, Blay F, Ebisawa M, Maximiliano-Gomez R, Gonzalez-Diaz S, Haahtela T, Holgate S, Jakob T, Larche M, Matricardi PM, Oppenheimer J, Poulsen LK, Renz HE, Rosario N, Rothenberg M, Sanchez-Borges M, Scala E, Valenta R A WAO - ARIA - GA²LEN consensus document on molecular-based allergy diagnostics. World Allergy Organ J. 2013; 6 (1):17.

26. Eigenmann PA, Atanaskovic-Markovic M, O'B Hourihane J, Lack G, Lau S, Matricardi PM, Wahn U, Muraro A, Namazova Baranova L, Nieto A, Papadopoulos NG, Réthy LA, Roberts G, Rudzeviciene O, Wickman M, Høst A. Testing children for allergies: why, how, who and when: an updated statement of the European academy of allergy and clinical immunology (EAACI) section on pediatrics and the EAACI Clements von Pirquet Foundation. Pediatr Allergy Immunol. 2013;24(2):195-209.

27. Fiocchi A, Brozek J, Schünemann H, Bahna SL, von Berg A, Beyer K, Bozzola M, Bradsher J, Compalati E, Ebisawa M, Guzman MA, Li H, Heine RG, Keith P, Lack G, Landi M, Martelli A, Rancé F, Sampson H, Stein A, Terracciano L, Vieths S. World Allergy Organization (WAO) Diagnosis and Rationale for Action against Cow's Milk Allergy (DRACMA) Guidelines. World Allergy Organ J. 2010;3(4):57-161.

28. Hong X, Tsai HJ, Wang X. Genetics of Food allergy. Curr Opin Pediatr. 2009; 21(6): 770-776.

29. Kav AL, Ahern PP, Griffin NV, Goodman AL, Gordon JI. Human nutrition the gut microbiome and the immune system. Nature. 2011; 474(7351): 327-336.

30. Koletzko S, Niggemann B, Arato A, Dias JA, Heuschkel R, Husby S, Mearin ML, Papadopoulou A, Ruemmele FM, Staiano A, Schäppi MG, Vandenplas Y Diagnostic approach and management of cow's-milk protein allergy in infants and children: ESPGHAN GI Committee practical guidelines. J Pediatr Gastroenterol Nutr. 2012;55(2):221-9.

31. 31 Koplin JJ, Allen KJ, Gurrin LC et al. The impact of family history of allergy on risk of food allergy: a population-based study of infants. Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2013;10(11): 5364-77.

32. Kryuchko TO, Nesina IM, Tkachenko OY. Diagnostic algorithm and peculiarities of monitoring for infants with disorders of the gastrointestinal tract. Wiad Lek. 2017;70(2 pt 2):275-281.

33. Lisitsyn AB, Chernukha IM, Lunina OI. Food hypersensitivity and products of animal origin resources. Theory and practice of meat processing. 2017;2(2):23-36. https://doi.org/1021323/2414-438X-2017-2-2-23-36

34. Matricardi PM, Kleine-Tebbe J, Hoffmann HJ, Valenta R, Hilger C, Hofmaier S, Aalberse RC, Agache I, Asero R, Ballmer-Weber B, Barber D, Beyer K, Biedermann T, Bilò MB, Blank S, Bohle B, Bosshard PP, Breiteneder H, Brough HA, Caraballo L, Caubet JC, Crameri R, Davies JM, Douladiris N, Ebisawa M, EIgenmann PA, Fernandez-Rivas M, Ferreira F, Gadermaier G, Glatz M, Hamilton RG, Hawranek T, Hellings P, Hoffmann-Sommergruber K, Jakob T, Jappe U, Jutel M, Kamath SD, Knol EF, Korosec P, Kuehn A, Lack G, Lopata AL, Mäkelä M, Morisset M, Niederberger V, Nowak-Węgrzyn AH, Papadopoulos NG, Pastorello EA, Pauli G, Platts-Mills T, Posa D, Poulsen LK, Raulf M, Sastre J, Scala E, Schmid JM, Schmid-Grendelmeier P, van Hage M, van Ree R, Vieths S, Weber R, Wickman M, Muraro A, Ollert M. EAACI Molecular Allergology User's Guide. Pediatr Allergy Immunol. 2016; 27(23):1-250.

35. Meyer RA, Schwarz C, Shah N. Review of the Diagnosis and Management of Food induced Gastrointestinal Allergies. Curr Allergy Clin Immunol. 2012; 25(1): 10-7.

36. Morita H, Nomura I, Matsuda A, Saito H, Matsumoto K. Gastrointestinal Food Allergy in Infants. Allergol Int. 2013; 62(3): 297-307.

37. Muraro A, Roberts G, Worm M, et al. Anaphylaxis: guidelines from the European Academy of Allergy and Clinical Immunology. Allergy. 2014; 69(8): 1026-45.

38. Nwaru BI, Hickstein L, Panesar SS, et al. The epidemiology of food allergy in Europe: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Allergy. 2014; 69(1): 62-75.

39. Pabst O, Mowat AM. Oral tolerance to food protein. Mucosal Immunol. 2012; 5(3): 232-239.

40. Prescott S, Allen KJ. Food allergy: riding the second wave of allergy epidemic. Pediatr Allergy Immunol. 2011; 22(1): 156-160.

41. Kryuchko TO, Golovanova IA, Tkachenko OY, et al. Prevalence of risk factors of allergic diseases among children aged 8-9 years in Poltava region (the results of the first stage of the research). Wiadomosci Lekarskie. 2018. 3(II): 699–704.

42. Round JL, Mazmanian SK. The gut microbiota shapes intestinal immune responses during health and disease. Nat Rev Immunol. 2009; 9(8): 313-323.

43. Sampson H, Aceves S, Bock A, et al. Food allergy: A practice parameter update-2014. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2014; 134(5): 1016-25.

44. Soares-Weiser K, Takwoingi Y, Panesar SS, Muraro A, Werfel T, Hoffmann-Sommergruber K, et al. The diagnosis of food allergy: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Allergy. 2014;69:76–86.

45. Turti TV, Borovik TE, Namazova-Baranova LS, Zimina EP, Lukoyanova OL, Davydova IV, Snovskaya MA. Possibilities of using meat products of industrially manufactured beikost for allergy prevention in children of 0–1 years of age. Pediatric pharmacology. 2013;10(4):106-112. doi.org/1015690/pfv10i4761.

TREATMENT OF CHRONIC PERIODONTITIS IN CASE OF ACQUIRED WIDE-OPEN ROOT APEX (LITERATURE REVIEW)

Han I.V.

Key words: chronic periodontitis, wide tooth root apex, regeneration.

Treatment of patients with chronic periodontitis is still remaining a challenge for both dental therapists and researchers due to its high prevalence, the complexity of diagnosis and often the lack of long-term positive results of treatment. The aim of endodontic treatment of chronic forms of periodontitis is to normalize microflora of macro- and microcanals, to arrest inflammation in the periapical area, to seal root canals and to promote the regeneration of the structure of periapical tissues, both by enhancing the body protective forces (immune reactivity) and by effect of endodontic filling material for accelerating the repair processes in the non-apical area. A problem arising during the treatment of this pathology is the restoration of destructed areas of the periapical tissues. The development of destructive changes in tissues of periodontium and dental cement of the tooth root is accompanied by resorption of tissues that form the apical foramen that leads to the formation of the acquired wide-open root apex and complicates the treatment of patients with chronic periodontitis at certain stages. Wide-open root apex (40-80 by ISO) is diagnosed in cases of incomplete apexogenesis in complicated caries and the destruction of the growth zone of the developing dental root, in cases of anatomically determined changes of the structure of the root apex, in pathological resorption of the apical foramen. Wide-open dental root apex impedes the stage of sealing the root canal with the possibility of a micro-leakage between the root restoration and the root tissue, thus can favour entering bacteria and their by-products into the periapical area and vice versa that contributes into the exacerbation and aggravation of the pathological process. On the other hand, wide tooth root apex causes the free access to periapical tissues and thus promotes the better effect of remedies in order to eliminate the inflammatory process in the periapical area and stimulates the reparative osteogenesis. The analysis of the available literature confirms the topicality of the development of the periapical therapy through transcanal insertion of the material into periapical area to improve the treatment of patients with chronic periodontitis having acquired wide-open root apex.

References

1. Batih VM, Ivanyts'ka OV, Borysenko AV, Lynovyts'ka OV. Efektyvnist' likuvannya khronichnoho periodontytu z vykorystannyam depoforezu [Effectiveness of treatment of chronic periodontitis using depoforesis]. Bukovyns'kyy medychnyy visnyk. 2017; 21(18):16-20. (Ukrainian).

2. Bilous AP, Pilyayev AH, Isakova NO. Vidnovlennya apikal'noho tsimentu v zubakh z eksperymental'nym periodontytom (za danymy skanuyuchoyi elektronnoyi mikroskopiyi [Recovery of apical cement in the teeth with experimental periodontitis (according to scanning electron microscopy)] Pytannya eksperymental'noyi ta klinichnoyi medytsyny. 2013; 1(17):280-283. (Ukrainian).

3. Boytsanyuk SI. Zastosuvannya hidroksydu kal'tsiyu v stomatolohichniy praktytsi pry likuvanni apikal'nykh periodontytiv [Application of calcium hydroxide in dental practice in the treatment of apical periodontitis]. Klinichna stomatolohiya. 2014; 4:34-39. (Ukrainian).

4. Halanova TA, Shcherbakova TE. Viddaleni rezul'taty likuvannya khronichnoho apikal'noho periodontytu [Long-term results of treatment of chronic apical periodontitis]. Endodontiya s'ohodni. 2011; 2:73-77. (Ukrainian).

5. Hrytsenko PI, Petruk NS, Samoylenko AV, Tverdokhleb IV. Klitynna struktura ta ul'trastruktura peryapikal'noyi hranulyatsiynoyi tkanyny pry pervychnomu ta vtorynnomu

khronichnomu periodontyte [Cellular composition and ultrastructure of periapical granulation tissue in primary and secondary chronic periodontitis]. Morfolohiya. 2014; 8(2):14-19. (Ukrainian).

6. Zhdanova NO. Vyvchennya vidnosnoyi optychnoyi shchil'nosti kistkovoyi tkanyny pry likuvanni khronichnoho hranulematoznoho periodontytu [Study of the relative optical density of bone tissue in the treatment of chronic granulomatous periodontitis]. Svit medytsyny ta biolohiyi. 2016; 3(57):32–35. (Ukrainian).

7. Zhdanova NO. Suchasni aspekty likuvannya khronichnykh form periodontytu iz vykorystannyam metodu tymchasovoyi obturatsiyi korenevykh kanaliv [Modern aspects of the treatment of chronic forms of periodontitis using the method of temporary obturation of root canals] Visnyk problem biolohiyi ta medytsyny. 2015; 2(4):16–19. (Ukrainian).

8. Zubachyk VM, Han IV. Morfolohichna kharakterystyka reheneratsiyi kistkovoyi tkanyny pry zastosuvanni osteotropnykh preparativ u eksperymenti [Morphological characteristic of bone tissue regeneration in the application of osteotropic drugs in the experiment] Eksperymental'na ta klinichna fiziolohiya i biokhimiya. 2017;2:44–48. (Ukrainian).

9. Zubachyk VM, Han IV. Porivnyal'na otsinka osteotropnoyi diyi endodontychnykh plombuval'nykh materialiv na modeli eksperymental'noyi destruktsiyi kistkovoyi tkanyny shchelepy shchuriv [Comparative estimation of osteotropic action of endodontic filling materials on the model of experimental destruction of bone tissue of rat jaw]. Ukrayins'kyy stomatolohichnyy al'manakh. 2016; 2(1):12–16. (Ukrainian).

10. Yordanyshvyly AK, Salmanov YB, Starchenko VY. Otsenka éffektyvnosty éndodontycheskoy pomoshchy pry patolohyy peryodonta [Evaluation of the effectiveness of endodontic care for periodontal disease] Kubanskyy nauchnyy medytsynskyy vestnyk. 2016;1(156):57–62. (Russian).

11. Isakova NO. Klinichne obgruntuvannya apikal'noyi mezhi instrumental'noyi obrobky korenevoho kanalu [Clinical substantiation of the apical limit of root canal tool treatment] [dissertation]. Kiev Kiev National Medical University; 2009. 20 p. (Ukrainian).

12. Kostyuk IR. Vplyv patolohiyi periodonta na zahal'nyy stan orhanizmu. Suchasni metody medykamentoznoho likuvannya periodontytu postiynykh zubiv: perevahy ta nedoliky (ohlyad literatury) [Influence of periodontal pathology on the general state of the organism. Modern methods of medical treatment of periodontitis of permanent teeth: advantages and disadvantages (review of literature)]. Bukovyns'kyy medychnyy visnyk. 2014; 18(3):199–205. (Ukrainian).

13. Luchyns'kyy MA, Chorniy NV, Manashchuk NV. Stomatolohichnyy status ditey iz vykorystannyam yevropeys'kykh indykatoriv [Dental status of children using European indicators]. // Klinichna stomatolohiya. 2014; 3:48-49. (Ukrainian).

14. Mytchenok OV, Lazar AD, Zhytaryuk LV. Suchasnyy pohlyad na konservatyvnyy khirurhichnyy metod likuvannya khronichnykh periodontytiv [Modern view on the conservative surgical method of treating chronic periodontitis]. Ukrayins'kyy stomatolohichnyy al'manakh. 2013; 2:94–96. (Ukrainian).

15. Oreshkyn YV. Klynyko-morfolohycheskoe obosnovanye lechenyya destruktyvnykh form peryodontyta s prymenenyem khytozana [Clinico-morphological substantiation of the treatment of destructive forms of periodontitis using chitosan] [dissertation]. Krasnoyarsk. Krasnoyarsk Medical University; 2003. 16 p. (Russian).

16. Palamarchuk SI. Stymulyatsiya protsesiv reheneratsiyi kistkovoyi tkanyny pereapikal'noyi dilyanky v likuvanni khronichnykh form periodontytu [Stimulation of the processes of regeneration of bone tissue of the re-epithelial site in the treatment of chronic forms of periodontitis] [dissertation]. Kiev. Kiev National Medical University; 2015. 11 p. (Ukrainian).

17. Zubachyk VM, Han IV; Higher State Educational Institution "Ukrainian Medical Stomatological Academy." Composition for the treatment of complicated caries of permanent teeth with a broad foramen apex and at the stage of formation of the root. Ukraine patent 95974. 2015. Jan 12. (Ukrainian).

18. Pedorets' AP. Hystolohycheskoe y élektronno-mykroskopycheskoe yzuchenye naruzhnoy

rezorbtsyy kornya zuba pry éksperymental'nom peryodontyte [Histological and electron microscopic study of external resorption of the root of the tooth with experimental periodontitis] Arkhiv klinichnoyi ta eksperymental'noyi medytsyny. 2012; 21(1):92–96. (Ukrainian).

19. Polozok DM. Obhruntuvannya vyboru endodontychnoho plombuval'noho materialu dlya pidvyshchennya efektyvnosti likuvannya khronichnykh periodontytiv [Justification of the choice of endodontic filling material to improve the effectiveness of treatment of chronic periodontitis] [dissertation]. Kiev. Kiev National Medical University; 2007. 18 p. (Ukrainian).

20. Synytsya VV, Hrynovets' VS, Dovhanyk VV. Al'ternatyvnyy metod likuvannya patsiyentiv z uskladnenym endodontychnym statusom iz zastosuvannyam depoforezu hidroksydu midi-kal'tsiyu [An alternative method of treating patients with complicated endodontic status using depoforesis of copper-calcium hydroxide] Zhurnal NAMN Ukrayiny". 2018; Spetsial'nyy vypusk p.219–222. (Ukrainian).

21. Skotarenko AV. Udoskonalennya metodiv likuvannya destruktyvnykh form periodontytu iz zastosuvannyam tsyklofosfanu [Improvement of methods of treatment of destructive forms of periodontitis with the use of cyclophosphamide]. [dissertation]. Odessa. Odessa National Medical University 2005.18 p. (Ukrainian).

22. Tayrov VV. Éffektyvnost' kombynyrovannoy terapyy destruktyvnykh form peryodontyta (éksperymental'no-klynycheskoe yssledovanye) [Effectiveness of combined therapy of destructive forms of periodontitis (experimental and clinical study)] [dissertation]. Krasnodar. Krasnodar Medical University; 2010. 14 p. (Russian).

23. Fedorenko AA. Lechenye khronycheskoho peryodontyta s prymenenyem novoy kompozytsyy "Kollapan-hel' L" y ymmozymazy [Treatment of chronic periodontitis with the application of the new composition "Collapan-gel L" and immozimazy] [dissertation]. Moscow. Moscow medical academy 2010. 23 p. (Russian).

24. Chala TA. Byolohycheskye svoystva étyolohycheskykh ahentov khronycheskoho peryodontyta [Biological properties of etiological agents of chronic periodontitis]. Ukrayins'kyy zhurnal klinichna ta laboratorna medytsyna. 2008;3:117–120.

25. Chala TA. Patohenetychne obgruntuvannya novoho pidkhodu do likuvannya ta profilaktyky zahostren' khronichnoho periodontytu [Pathogenetic substantiation of the new approach to the treatment and prevention of exacerbations of chronic periodontitis] [disserta-tion]. Luhansk. Luhansk National Medical University; 2008. 16 p. (Ukrainian).

26. Yurovs'ka IO. Kliniko-morfolohichni osoblyvosti perebihu ta likuvannya khronichnoho periodontytu u zubakh z riznym stanom apikal'noyi konstryktsiyi [Clinical and morphological features of the course and treatment of chronic periodontitis in the teeth with different states of apical constriction]. Kiev. Kiev National Medical University; 2011. 18 p. (Ukrainian).

27. Anamika T, Sathyanarayanan R. Endodontic Management of Tooth with Open Apex using MTA as Apical Barrier and Platelet Rich Fibrin Membrane as Internal Matrix: A Case Report. Journal of Scientific Dentistry. 2014;4(1):11-51.

28. Bartols A, Roussa E, Waltber W. First Evidence for Regeneration of the Periodontium to Mineral Trioxide Aggregate in Human Teeth. JOE. 2017; 43:715-722. doi: 10.1016/j.joen.2016.12.027

29. Bronnets F. Biodentyn - zaminnyk pryrodnoho dentynu dlya plombuvannya perforatsiy dna puľpovoyi kamery, apeksyfikatsiyi i retrohradnoho zashchemlennya korenevykh kanaliv [Biodentine - a natural dentin substitute for sealing perforations of the bottom of the pulp chamber, apexification and retrograde root canal filling] Novyny stomatolohiyi. 2013;1:45-49. (Ukrainian).

30. Cutts G. Zakryttya perforatsiyi dna pul'parnoyi kamery z vykorystannyam Biodentyn [Closure of the perforation of the bottom of the pulp chamber using Biodentine]. Sovremennaya stomatolohyya. 2013; 3:13-15. (Russian).

31. Furusava M, Hayakawa H, Ida A. Effectiveness of calvital, a calcium hydroxide formulation, on persistent apical periodontitis caused by over- enlargement of apical foramen. Bull Tokyo Dent Coll. 2011; 52(4):209-213. PMID:22293591

32. Huseyin S, Oznur T, Ertugrul K, Hakan A, Kubra In vitro fracture Resistance of Roots Obturated with Epoxy Resin-based Mineral Trioxide Aggregate-based and Bioceramic Root Canal. JOE. 2013; 39(12):1630-1633. doi:10.1016/j.joen.2013.07.034

33. Ricucci D, Bergenholtz G. Histologic features of apical periodontitis in human biopsies. Endodontic Topics. 2004; 8:68–87. doi:10.1111/j.1601-1546.2004.00097

34. Sculean A, Chapple IL, Giannobile WV. Wound models for periodontal and bone regeneration: the role of biologic research. Periodontology 2000. 2015;68:7–20. doi:10.1111/prd.12091

35. Sculean A, Ivanovic A, Nikolidakis D, Nikou G, Chapple IL, Stavropoulos A. Biomaterials for promoting periodontal regeneration in human intrabony defects: a systematic review. Periodontology 2000. 2015; 68:182–216. doi:10.1111/prd.12086

36. Slots J. Periodontitis: facts, fallacies and the future. Periodontology 2000. 2017; 75:7-23. doi:10.1111/prd.12221

37. Sunitha VR, Emmadi P, Namasivayam A, Thyegarajan R, Rajaraman V. The periodontal – endodontic continuum: a review. J. Conserv. Dent. 2008; 2:54–62. doi:10.4103/0972-0707.44046

38. Synytsya W,. Dowhanyk W, Shybinski W, Hrynovets W. Elementy leczenia endodontycznego chorych na przewlekle zapalenie tkanek okolowiercholkowych w fazie zaostrzenia [Elements of endodontic treatment of patients with periapical endophthalmitis during the exacerbation phase] Miedzynarodowy Kongres Stomatologiczny Dental Group Academy. 4–6 grudnia 2015; Katowice. s. 26. (Po-land).

39. Tirone F , Salzano S, Piattelli A, Perrotti V, Iezzi G. Response of periodontium to mineral trioxide aggregate and Biodentine: a pilot histological study on humans. Aust Dent J. 2018; 63(2):231-241. doi:10.1111/adj.12605

40. Vier FV, Figueiredo JA. Prevalence of different periapical lesions associated with human teeth and their correlation with the presence and extension of apical external root resorption International Endodontic Journal. 2002; 35:710–719. PMID:12196225

41. Wang X, Thibodeau B, Trope M, Lin LM, Huang GT.. Histologic characterization of regenerated tissues in canal space after the revitalization/revascularization procedure of immature dog teeth with apical periodontitis. J. Endod. 2010; 36:56-63. doi:10.1016/j.joen.2009.09.039

42. Wang ZH, Zhang MM, Wang J, Lan Jiang, Jiang L, Liang YH. Outcomes of Endodontic Microsurgery Using a Microscope and Mineral Trioxide Aggregate: A Prospective Cohort Study. JOE. 2017;43:667-856. doi:10.1016/j.joen.2016.12.015

43. Weiger R, Manucke B, Werner H, Lost C. Microflora of sinus tracts and root canals of nonvital teeth. Endod. Dent. Traumatol. 1995;11:9-15. PMID:7641609

44. Zbou HM, Du TF, Shen Y, Wang ZJ, Zheng YF, Haapasalo M. In vitro cytotoxicity of calcium silicate – containing endodontic sealers. JOE. 2015;41(1):12–19.doi:10.1016/j.joen.2014.09.012

ETIOLOGICAL AND PATHOGENETIC ASPECTS OF INTRAUTERINE GROWTH RETARDATION

Gromova A. M., Berezhna V. A.

Key words: foetus, intrauterine growth retardation, macrophages, transforming growth factor (TGF- β), soluble endoglin (s-Eng).

Nowadays intrauterine growth retardation is considered as both a medical and a social problem. Compli-cated pregnancy increases the overall health care costs and hospital burden due to high risks of neonatal complications. The health of the nation depends first and foremost on the health of future generations. IUGR occurs in 7-10% of all pregnancies and affects the further percentage of perinatal morbidity and mortality. The delay in foetal development of the foetus is associated with a
number of adverse short-term effects and long-term disorders of the nervous, endocrine and cardiovascular systems. Thus, from now on, IUGR children born are at high risk to have to develop disability. Placental insufficiency is the most common IUGR cause. Despite numerous reports on this problem, searching for new approaches in early diagnosis of foetal delayed growth, the prediction of the occurrence of this complication, adequate methods of delivery and treatment is still continuing. Recently, the in-depth investigation of immunological processes of many pathological conditions has being carried and conditions, which might occur during pregnancy, are not an exception. Macrophages that are present at all the stages of normal gestation play an important role in the implantation, placentaltion and the progression of pregnancy. Scrutinizing study of the functioning macrophages and their polarization can contribute in prognosis of pregnancy outcomes. Macrophage polarization is induced by various signals and produces various cytokines, which, in turn, participate in the formation of pathological pregnancy, and, namely, IUGR. Cytokine transforming growth factor beta (TGF - β), which participates in the formation of pathological pregnancy, is little known and considered as the most enigmatic. Soluble endoglin (s-Eng) plays an important role in the development of endothelial dysfunction and in the pathogenesis of placental insufficiency, as well as in the IUGR development. Therefore, further detailed study of immunological aspects in the delayed foetal growth provides the possibility to predict and diagnose this of this pathology of pregnancy and therefore is of significant therapeutic value.

References

1. Winterhager E, Gellhaus A. Transplacental nutrient transport mechanisms of intrauterine growth restriction in rodent models and humans. FrontiersinPhysiology. 2017; nov 8: 1–13.

2. Veropotvelyan N P, Veropotvelyan P M, Zhuravleva S A, Glamazda A I. Zaderzhka vnutriutrobnogo rosta ploda, psikhicheskoye i fizicheskoye razvitiye detey [Intrauterine growth retardation, mental and physical development of children]. Zdorov'ye zhenshchiny. 2016; 3 : 141-148. (Russian).

3. Yegorova Y A, Zabolotnov V A, Rybalka A N. Zaderzhka vnutriutrobnogo razvitiya ploda v perinatal'noy meditsine (obzor) [Delay in intrauterine fetal development in perinatal medicine (review)]. Zdorov'ye zhenshchiny. 2015; 4 : 48-51. (Russian).

4. Levine TA, Grunau R E, McAuliffe F M [et al.] Early childhood neuro development after intrauterine growth restriction: a systematic review . Pediatrics. 2015; 135(1): 126–141.

5. Kehl S, Dötsch J, Hecher K, Schlembach D, Schmitz D, Stepan H, Gembruch U. Intrauterine growth restriction. Guideline of the german society of gynecology and obstetrics. Geburtshilfe Frauenheilkd. 2017; 015: 1157–1173.

6. Sharma D, Shastri S, Sharma P. Intrauterine growth restriction: antenatal and postnatal aspects. [internet] 2016; P. 67–83.

7. Easter S R, Eckert L O, Boghossian N [et al.]. Fetal growth restriction: case definition & guidelines for data collection, analysis, and presentation of immunization safety data. Vaccine. 2017; 35(48): 6546–6554.

8. Unterscheider J, O'Donoghue K. Guidelines on fetal growth restriction: a comparison of recent national publications. Am J Perinatol. 2015; 32(04): 307–316.

9. Flamant G G. Short-term outcome and small for gestational age newborn management. Journal de Gynécologie Obstétrique et Biologie de la Reproduction. 2013; 42 (8): 985–995.

10. Gascoin F C. Long-term outcome in context of intra uterine growth restriction and/or small for gestational age newborns. Journal de Gynécologie Obstétrique et Biologie de la Reproduction (Paris). 2013; 42(8): 911–920.

11. Sherin U. Devaskar and Alison Chu Intrauterine growth restriction: hungry for an answer. American Physiological Society. 2016; 31(2): 131–146.

12. Garite TJ, Clark R T. Intrauterine growth restriction increases morbidity and mortality among premature neonates. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2004; 191(2): 481–487.

13. Sichinava L G. Mnogoplodiye. sovremennyye podkhody k taktike vedeniya beremennosti

[Multiparty. Modern approaches to the tactics of pregnancy management]. Obstetrics. gynecology. reproduction. 2014; 14(2):131–138. (Russian).

14. Radoń-Pokracka M, Huras H. Intrauterine growth restriction-diagnosis and treatment. Przegl Lek. 2015; 72(7): 376–382.

15. Groom K M, McCowan L M, Mackay L K. [et al.] Enoxaparin for the prevention of preeclampsia and intrauterine growth restriction in women with a history: a randomized trial. American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2017; 216 (3): 296.e1-296.e14.

16. DeFelice C, Tassi R, De Capua B. [et al.] A new phenotypical variant of intrauterine growth restriction? Pediatrics. 2007; 119(4): 983–990.

17. Vomhof-DeKrey E, Darland D, Ghribi O, Bundy A, Roemmich J. Maternal low protein diet leads to placental angiogenic compensation via dysregulated m1/m2 macrophages and tnfa expression in sprague-dawley rats. Journal of Reproductive Immunology. 2016; 118: 9–17.

18. Reddy U M, Davis J M, Ren Z, Greene M F. Opioid use in pregnancy, neonatal abstinence syndrome, and childhood outcomes. Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2017; 130 (1): 10–28.

19. Zedler B K, Mann A L, Kim M M. [et al.] Buprenorphine compared with methadone to treat pregnant women with opioid use disorder: a systematic review and meta-analysis of safety in the mother, fetus and child. Addiction. 2016; 111 (12): 2115–2128.

20. Carter R C, Jacobson J L, Molteno C D. [et al.] Fetal alcohol growth restriction and cognitive impairment . Pediatrics. 2016; 138 (2): e20160775–e20160775.

21. Huang Q-T, Hang L-L, Zhong M. [et al.] Maternal hcv infection is associated with intrauterine fetal growth disturbance: a meta-analysis of observational studies. Medicine. 2016; 95 (35): e4777.

22. Hayward C E, Lean S, Sibley C P. [et al.] Placental adaptation: what can we learn from birth weight: placental weight ratio? Frontiers in Physiology. 2016 feb; 7: P. 1–13.

23. Likhachov V K, Taranovska O O, Semenyuk L M. Dynamika zmin oksydu azotu ta rozvytku hestatsiynoyi endoteliopatiyi pry preeklampsiyi [Dynamics Nitric Oxide Changes and Development Gestacional Endothelial Dysfunction in Preeclampsia]. Klinichna ta eksperymentalna medytsyna. 2014; 3(112): 146–149.(Ukrainian).

24. Grati F. Chromosomal mosaicism in human feto-placental development: implications for prenatal diagnosis. Journal of Clinical Medicine. 2014; 3 (3): 809–837.

25. Eggermann T, Oehl-Jaschkowitz B, Dicks S. [et al.] The maternal uniparental disomy of chromosome 6 (upd(6)mat) "phenotype": result of placental trisomy 6 mosaicism? Molecular Genetics and Genomic Medicine. 2017; 5 (6): 668–677.

26. Pijnenborg R, Vercruysse L. The uterine spiral arteries in human pregnancy: facts and controversies. 2006; 27 (9–10): 939–958.

27. Ball E, Bulmer JN, Ayis S, Lyall F. Late sporadic miscarriage is associated with abnormalities in spiral artery transformation and trophoblast invasion. The journal of Pathology. 2006; 208 (4): 535–542.

28. Chen A. Placental pathologic lesions with a significant recurrence risk - what not to miss! Journal of pathology, microbiology and immunology. 2017.

29. Slyepov O K, Hrasyukova N I, Veselskyy V L. [ta dr.] Rozvytku ploda ta yiyi vplyv na perebih i prohnoz pry hastroshyzysi [The frequency of intrauterine growth retardation and its impact on the course and prognosis of gastroschisis]. Actual problems of perinatology and neonatology. 2014; 17(58): 16–20. (Ukrainian).

30. Chaiworapongsa T, Romero R, Korzeniewski S J. [et al.] Plasma concentrations of angiogenic/anti-angiogenic factors have prognostic value in women presenting with suspected preeclampsia to the obstetrical triage area: a prospective study. Journal of Maternal-Fetal and Neonatal Medicine. 2014; 27 (2): 132–144.

31. Hromadnikova I, Kotlabova K, Ondrackova M. [et al.] Expression profile of c19mc micrornas in placental tissue in pregnancy-related complications. DNA and Cell Biology. 2015; 34 (6): 437–457.

32. Alvarez-Nava F, Lanes R. GH/igf-1 signaling and current knowledge of epigenetics; a review and considerations on possible therapeutic options. International Journal of Molecular Sciences. 2017; 18(10): 1–13.

33. PrabhuDas M, Bonney E, Caron K. [et al.] Immune mechanisms at the maternal-fetal interface: perspectives and challenges. Nature immunology. 2002; 16 (4): 237–243.

34. Fu B, Wei H. Decidual natural killer cells and the immune microenvironment at the maternal-fetal interface. Science China Life Sciences. 2016; 59 (12): 1224–1231.

35. Faas M M, de Vos P. Uterine nk cells and macrophages in pregnancy . Placenta. 2017; 56: P. 44–52.

36. Shapouri-Moghaddam A, Mohammadian S, Vazini H, Taghadosi M, Esmaeili SA, Mardani F, Seifi B, Mohammadi A, Afshari J. Macrophage plasticity, polarization, and function in healthand disease. Journal of Cellular Physiology. 2018.

37. Ning F, Liu H, Lash G E. The role of decidual macrophages during normal and pathological pregnancy. American Journal of Reproductive Immunology. 2016; 75 (3): 298–309.

38. Vesnina L E, Shlykova O A, Kaydashev I P, Izmaylova O V, Mykytyuk M V, Mamontova T V. Eksperymentalna model doslidzhennya polyaryzatsiyi makrofahiv [Experimental model of the polarization of macrophages]. Imunolohiya ta alerholohiya: nauka i praktyka. 2017; 1: 8–9. (Ukrainian).

39. Brown M B, von Chamier M, Allam A B, Reyes L. M1/m2 macrophage polarity in normal and complicated pregnancy. Frontiers in Immunology. 2014 nov ; 5: 1–10.

40. Zhang Y H, He M, Wang Y, Liao A H. Modulators of the balance between m1 and m2 macrophages during pregnancy. Frontiers in Immunology. 2017 feb; 8: 1–12.

41. Hromova A M, Hromova O L, Mityunina N I, Talash V V, Nesterenko L A. Patomorfolohichni osoblyvosti platsenty ta obolonok pry peredchasnomu vylytti navkoloplidnykh vod [Pathomorphological peculiarities of placenta and membranes during early discharge of amniotic fluid]. Morfolohiya. 2016; 2(129): 78–81. (Ukrainian).

42. Kaydashev I P. Rol' NFkB v funktsionirovanii otdel'nykh tkaney, razvitii i sintropii zabolevaniy osnovnykh sistem organizma [The role of NFκB in the function of various tissues, development and syntropy of diseases of organism's main systems]. Klíníchna Meditsina. 2012; 18(2): 186–198. (Russian).

43. Wang N, Liang H, Zen K. Molecular mechanisms that influence the macrophage m1-m2 polarization balance. Frontiers in Immunology. 2014 nov; 5: 1–9.

44. Huang Z, Li S, Fan W. [et al.]. Transforming growth factor βamp; x3b2;1 promotes invasion of human jeg-3 trophoblast cells via tgf-βamp; x3b2;/smad3 signaling pathway. Oncotarget. 2017; 8 (20): 33560–33570.

45. Li X, Shen L, Tan H. Polymorphisms and plasma level of transforming growth factor-beta 1 and risk for preeclampsia: a systematic review. PLoS ONE. 2014; 9 (5).

46. Romero-Valdovinos M , Galván-Montaño A, Olivo-Díaz A. [et al.] The amniotic band syndrome in the rat is associated with the activation of transforming growth factor- β . American Journal of Pathology. 2015; 185 (8): 2076–2082.

47. Ilekis J, Tsilou E, Fisher S. [et al.] V HHS public access. 2017; 215: 1–93.

48. Kienast C, Moya W, Rodriguez O, Jijón A. Predictive value of angiogenic factors, clinical risk factors and uterine artery doppler for preeclampsia and fetal growth restriction in second and third trimester pregnancies in an ecuadorian population. J Matern Fetal Neonatal Med. 2016; 29 (4): 537–543.

49. Tuchkina I O. Zatrymka rostu vnutrishnoutrobnoho ploda [Intrauterine growth retardation]. Metodychni vkazivky. Kharkiv; 2014; P- 43. (Ukrainian).

50. Makarenko M V. Sravnitel'nyy analiz prichin zaderzhki vnutriutrobnogo razvitiya ploda [Comparative analysis of the causes of intrauterine growth retardation]. Zdorov'ye zhenshchiny. 2014; 6(92): 103–105. (Russian).

51. Stirnemann J, Villar J, Salomon L J. [et al.] International estimated fetal weight standards of

the intergrowth-21 st project . Ultrasound in Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2017; 49 (4): 478-486.

52. DeVore G R. The importance of the cerebroplacental ratio in the evaluation of fetal wellbeing in sga and aga fetuses. American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2015; 213 (1): 5–15.

53. Aditya I, Tat V, Sawana A, Mohamed A, Tuffner R. Use of doppler velocimetry in diagnosis and prognosis of intrauterine growth restriction (iugr): a review. Journal of Neonatal-Perinatal Medicine. 2016; 9(2): 117–126.

54. Khalil A, Morales-Rosello J, Khan N. [et al.] Is cerebroplacental ratio a marker of impaired fetal growth velocity and adverse pregnancy outcome?. American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2017; 216(6): 606.e1-606.e10.

55. Zhu M Y, Milligan N, Keating S. [et al.] The hemodynamics of late-onset intrauterine growth restriction by mri. American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2016; 214(3): 367.e1-367.e17.

IMPAIRMENT OF REPRODUCTIVE FUNCTION IN BENIGN UTERINE PATHOLOGIES

Huseynova Z. S.

Key words: reproductive dysfunction, benign uterine pathology, adenomyosis, myoma, endometrial hyperplasia.

Benign pathology of uterine endo- and myometrium in women of child-bearing age are among the most common pathological processes in gynaecological practice. Uterine fibroids are among the most prevalent benign tumours of the female genital organs and occupy a significant share among the causes of reproduc-tive dysfunction. There is a noticeable increase in the incidence of uterine myoma, especially among women of child-bearing age. The main factors of reproductive functional disorders in uterine myoma are hormonal changes that occur due to changes in various parts of the unified functional system of the hypothalamus - pituitary gland - ovaries-uterus. The prevalence rate of the condition combining fibroids and pregnancy among all pregnant women reaches 2-5%. At the same time, the course of pregnancy, obstetric tactics, and methods of delivery in this case have their own characteristics. The peculiarities of pregnancy when it is complicated with uterine fibroids include threatened abortion at different terms of pregnancy, fetoplacental insufficiency (FPI) and the syndrome of intrauterine growth retardation (IUGR), rapid tumour growth, malnutrition and necrosis of myoma nodes, placenta detachment, foetal malposition and presentation. It is shown that 56-60% of patients with uterine myoma have anovulatory cycles with different degrees of estrogen saturation or two-phase menstrual cycles with luteal phase insufficiency. Various intrauterine interventions (multiple scraping, manual examination of the uterine cavity, etc.), which lead to the destruction of the histological barrier between the basal layer of the endometrium and myometrium, are considered to be provoking factors in the development of adenomyosis. New imaging techniques (ultrasound, magnetic resonance imaging) allow to clinicians to diagnose adenomyosis in its early stages that makes it possible to carry out individual timely correction of reproductive function. In adenomyosis, diagnosis by MRI determines the presence of pathological inclusions localized in the uterine wall. In a number of doubtful cases, computed tomography is prescribed for differential diagnosis. Endometrial hyperplasia is a pathological process that results in the growth of the uterine mucosa and a failure in the reproductive functions. As a result, fertility is significantly impaired that is detected in more than 50% of women of fertile age. It has been revealed that 38.6% of women have infertility, and 11.9 % of women have habitual miscarriage. Impaired reproductive functioning in benign uterine pathologies (endometrial hyperplasia, fibroids and adenomyosis), despite the long history of their study, is still remaining to be in the focus of attention of national and foreign researchers. The

results of the studies show that benign uterine diseases are the cause of reproductive dysfunction in women. The established pathogenetic features indicate the need for a more in-depth study of this problem to develop an effective algorithm of diagnostic and therapeutic and preventive measures.

References

1. Asaturova AV. Sovremennye podkhody k diagnostike giperplasticheskikh protsessov endometriya na osnove molekulyarno-biologicheskikh issledovaniya [Modern approaches to diagnostics of hyperplastic processes of an endometria on the basis of molecular and biological researches] [dissertation]. M; 2011. 25 p. (Russian)

2. Babunashvili EL. Reproduktivnyy prognoz pri miome matki [The genesial forecast at a hysteromyoma] [dissertation]. M; 2004. 24 p. (Russian)

3. Besplodnyy brak. Sovremennye podkhody k diagnostike i lecheniyu: Rukovodstvo [Sterile marriage. Modern approaches to diagnostics and treatment: Management]. Pod red GT Sukhikh, TA Nazarenko. 2e izd. M: GEOTAR-Media; 2010. 784 p. (Russian)

4. Zhigalenko AR, Karakhalis LYu, Papova NS. Kliniko-diagnosticheskie paralleli pri adenomioz-assotsiirovannom besplodii [Clinicodiagnostic parallels at an adenomyosis - the associated sterility]. Kubanskiy nauchnyy meditsinskiy vestnik. 2017; 24(4): 65–73. (Russian)

5. Kulagina NV, Semenova EA, Popova SS. Kompleksnoe lechenie giperplasticheskikh protsessov v endometrii u zhenshchin s miomoy matki [Complex treatment of hyperplastic processes in an endometria at women with a hysteromyoma]. Rossiyskiy vestnik akushera-ginekologa. 2006; 6 (1): 41. (Russian)

6. Mustafaeva AS. Optimizatsiya taktiki vedeniya giperplasticheskikh protsessov endometriya u zhenshchin reproduktivnogo vozrasta [Optimization of tactics of conducting hyperplastic processes of an endometria at women of genesial age] [dissertation]. Almata, 2010. 19 p. (Russian)

7. Protopopova NV, Safanova OM, Portnyagina TV, Kravchuk NV. Taktika vedeniya beremennykh s miomoy matki [Tactics of maintaining pregnant women with a hysteromyoma]. Byulleten Vostochno-Sibirskogo nauchnogo tsentra SO RAMN. 2002; 2 (5): 149-50. (Russian)

8. Serova OF, Milovanov AP, Lipovenko LN, i dr. Rol endometrialnykh faktorov v geneze nerazvivayushcheysya beremennosti [Role of endometrial factors in a genesis of not developing pregnancy]. Voprosy ginekologii, akusherstva i perinatologii. 2004; 3 (1): 16-9. (Russian)

9. Smirnova TA, Pavshuk LI. Sovremennye podkhody k lecheniyu miomy matki u molodykh zhenshchin s tselyu sokhraneniya reproduktivnoy funktsii [Modern approaches to treatment of a hysteromyoma at young women for the purpose of conservation of genesial function]. Byulleten sibirskoy meditsiny. 2014; 13 (1): 145-52. (Russian)

10. Tomilova MV. Prognosticheskie faktory i patogeneticheskie mekhanizmy razvitiya giperplasticheskikh protsessov endometriya u zhenshchin s khronicheskoy anovulyatsiey [Prognostic factors and pathogenetic mechanisms of development of hyperplastic processes of an endometria in women with a chronic anovulation] [dissertation]. Moskva; 2006. 18 p. (Russian)

11. Fedina EV. Znachenie issledovaniya sistemy gemostaza dlya vybora taktiki vedeniya bolnykh reproduktivnogo perioda s giperplasticheskimi protsessami endometriya [Value of a research of system of a hemostasis for the choice of tactics of maintaining patients of the genesial period with hyperplastic processes of an endometria] [dissertation]. M; 2007. 19 p. (Russian)

12. Afifi K, Anand S, Nallapeta S, Gelbaya TA. Management of endometrial polyps in subfertile women: a systematic review. European Journal of Obstetrics & Gynecology and Reproductive Biology. 2010; 151(2): 117–21. doi: 10.1016/j.ejogrb.2010.04.005.

13. Bergeron C, Amant F, Ferenczy A. Pathology and physiopathology of adenomyosis. Best Pract Res Clin Obstet Gynaecol. 2006; 20:511–21.

14. Benson CB, Chow JS, Chang-Lee W, et.al. Outcome of prequancy in women with uterine leyomyomas identified by sonography in the first trimester. J Clin Ultrasound. 2001; 29(5): 261-4.

15. Borja de Mozota D, Kadhel P, Janky E. Fertility, pregnancy outcomes and deliveries following myomectomy: experience of a French Caribbean University Hospital. Arch Gynecol

Obstet. 2014 Mar; 289(3): 681-6.

16. Ciavattini A, Di Giuseppe J, Stortoni P, Montik N, et al. Uterine Fibroids: patogenesis and Interactions with Endometrium and Endometrial Junction. Obstet Gynecol Int. 2013; 173: 184.

17. Coronado GD, Marshall LM, Schwartz SM. Complications in pregnancy, labor, delivery with uterine leiomyomas: a population-based study. Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2000; 95(5): 764–9.

18. Curtis KM, Hillis SD, Marchbanks PA, Peterson HB. Disruption of the endometrialmyometrial border during pregnancy as a risk factor for adenomyosis. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2002; 187: 543–4.

19. Exacoustos C, Brienza L, Digiovanni A, et al. Adenomiyosis three- dimensional sonographic findings of the junctional zone and correlaion with histology. Ultrasound Obstet Gynecol. 2011; 37(4): 471-9.

20. Ezaki K, Motoyama H, Sasaki H. Immunohistologic localization of estrone sulfatase in uterine endometrium and adenomyosis. Obstet Gynecol 2001; 98: 815–9.

21. Graziano A, Lo Monte G, Piva I, et al. Diagnostic findings in adenomyosis a pictorial review on the major concerns. Eur Rev Pharmac Sci. 2015; 19(7): 1146-54.

22. Hannemann MM, Alexander HM, Cope N, Acheson NJ, Phillips A. Endometrial hyperplasia: a clinician's review. Obstetrics, Gynaecology & Reproductive Medicine. 2010; 20(4): 116-20.

23. Inagaki N, Ung L, Otani T, Wilkinson D, Lopata A. Uterine cavity matrix metalloproteinases and cytokines in patients with leiomyoma, adenomyosis or endometrial polyp. European Journal of Obstetrics Gynecology and Reproductive Biology. 2003; 111(2): 197–203.

24. Kissler S, Zangos S, Wiegratz I, et al. Utero-tubal sperm transport and its impairment in endometriosis and adenomyosis. Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences. 2007; 1101: 38–48.

25. Kunz G, Herbertz M, Beil D, Huppert P, Leyendecker G. Adenomyosis as a disorder of the early and late human reproductive period. Reprod Biomed Online 2007; 15: 681–5.

26. Li T, Li YG, Pu DM. Matrix metalloproteinase-2 and -9 expression correlated with angiogenesis in human adenomyosis. Gynecol Obstet Invest. 2006; 62: 229–35.

27. Luciano DE, Exacoustos C, Albrecht L, et al. Three-dimensional ultrasound in diagnosis of adenomyosis: histologic correlation with ultrasound targeted biopsies of the uterus. J Minim Invasive Gynecol. 2013; 20: 803–10.

28. Markis N, Kalmanits K, Srartados N, et al. Tree-dimensional hysterosonography versus hysteroscopy for the detection of intracavitary uterine abnormalities. Int J Obstet Gynecol. 2007; 97: 6-9.

29. Metwally M, Cheong YC, Horne AW. Surgical treatment of fibroids for subfertility. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2012 Nov 14; 11: CD003857.

30. Montgomery BE, Daum GS, Dunton CJ. Endometrial hyperplasia: a review. Obstetrical & Gynecological Survey. 2004; 59(5): 368-78.

31. Ng Maubon A, Faury A, Kapella M, Pouquet M, Piver P. Uterine junctional zone at magnetic resonance imaging: a predictor of in vitro fertilization implantation failure. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Research, 2010; 36(3): 611–8.

32. Ng TH, Chan CC, Tang OS, Yeuhg WS, Ho PC. Changes in endometrial and subendometrial blood flow in IVF. Reprod Biomed. 2009; 18: 269-75.

33. Pritts EA, Parker WH, Olive DL. Fibroids and infertility: an updated systematic review of the evidence. Fertil Steril. 2009 Apr; 91(4): 1215-23.

34. Rabinovici J, David M, Fukunishi H, et al. Pregnancy outcome after magnetic resonanceguided focused ultrasound surgery (MRgFUS) for conservative treatment of uterine fibroids. Fertil Steril. 2010; 93(1): 199–209.

35. Sanders B. Uterine factors and infertility. J Reprod Med. 2006; 51(3): 169-76.

36. Salim R, Riris S, Saab W, et al. Adenomyosis reduces pregnancy rates in infertile women

undergoing IVF. Reprod BioMed Online. 2012; 25: 273-7.

37. Saremi A, Bahrami H, Salehian P, et al. Treatment of adenomyomectomy in women with severe uterine adenomyosis using a novel technique. Reprod Biomed Online. 2014; 28: 753–60.

38. Somigliana E, Vercellini P, Daguati R, et al. Fibroids and female reproduction: a critical analysis of the evidence. Hum Reprod Update. 2007; 13: 465-76.

39. Yanaihara A, Yorimitsu T, Motoyama H, Iwasaki S, Kawamura T. Location of endometrial polyp and pregnancy rate in infertility patients. Fertility and Sterility. 2008; 90(1): 180-2.

40. Yen CF, Basar M, Kizilay G, Lee CL, Kayisli UA, Arici A. Implantation markers are decreased in endometrium of women with adenomyosis during the implantation windows. Fertility and Sterility, 2006; 86 (Suppl 1): 550.

41. Yoshino O, Hayashi T, Osuga Y, Orisaka M, et al. Decreased pregnancy rate is linked to abnormal uterine peristalsis caused by intramural fibroids. Hum Reprod. 2010 Oct; 25(10): 2475-9.

42. Yoshida S, Ohara N, Xu Q, et al. Cell-type specific actions of progesteron receptor modulators in the regulation of uterine leiomyoma growth. Semin Reprod Med. 2010; 28(3): 260-73.

OBESITY AS A COMORBID STATE UNDER PSORIASIS

Yemchenko Ya.

Key words: psoriasis, obesity, comorbidity, systemic inflammation.

Psoriasis is a chronic, genetically determined autoimmune polyetiological inflammatory disease with a disorder of epidermal proliferation, provoked by exogenous and endogenous factors, and is characterized by erythema, scaly elements, papules and plaques. According to the results of clinical and epidemiological studies, about 3-4% of the population of our planet suffer from psoriasis, regardless of gender, age and ethnic group, while the proportion of this pathology in the general structure of skin diseases reaches, according to different authors, from 1% to 40%. However, despite the widespread of psoriasis and the research on this problem, there is still no unified view of the pathogenesis of this dermatosis. For an objective understanding of the pathogenesis of psoriasis, it is necessary to take into account the insufficiently studied comorbidity of this pathology and emotional disorders, which manifest themselves in almost all patients with psoriasis. Psychoemotional disorders are found in almost all patients with psoriasis. Thus, the depression and anxiety that are typical for patients with psoriasis are accompanied by the same central and peripheral signs as prolonged stress. Stress reactions are provoked by psychosocial and economic problems, depression, anxiety, alcohol consumption and smoking. Thus, during physical and mental stress, the concentration of neuropeptide Y increases, which leads to increased food intake, weight gain and further development of obesity with a number of metabolic disorders, which undoubtedly affects the course of psoriasis. Therefore, in research of the pathogenesis of psoriasis in recent years more attention is paid to disorder of metabolic processes. The causes of psoriasis and abdominal obesity are immunological disorders and genetic defects. Peculiarity of pathogenesis in patients suffering from psoriasis with obesity, in contrast to patients without excess body weight, is statistically significant progression of hyperleptinemia and increase of systemic cytokine proinflammatory potential. Therefore, a more in-depth study of the comorbidity of psoriatic disease will reveal new targets for the treatment of this dermatosis.

References

1. Valdimarsson H, Thorleifsdottir RH, Sigurdardottir SL et al. Psoriasis - as an autoimmune disease caused by molecular mimicry. Trends Immunol 2009; 30 (10): 494-501.

2. Yemchenko Ya, Ischeykin K, Kaydashev I. Analiz zahvoryuvanosti ta poshirenosti na psoriaz v Ukraïni ta v Poltavs'kiy oblasti [Analysis of the incidence and prevalence of psoriasis in

Ukraine and in the Poltava region]. Aktual'ni problemi suchasnoï medicini: Visnik ukraïns'koï medichnoï stomatologichnoï akademiï. 2014; 3 (47):72-76. (Ukrainian).

3. Yemchenko Ya. Osobennosti klinicheskogo techeniya psoriaza u bol'nyh s soputstvuyuschim metabolicheskim sindromom v zavisimosti ot urovnya sistemnogo vospaleniya [Peculiarities of the clinical course of psoriasis in patients with concomitant metabolic syndrome depending on the level of systemic inflammation]. Georgian Medical News. 2014; 11 (236):43-47. (Ukrainian).

4. Yemchenko Ya. Stan sistemnogo zapalennya u hvorih psoriatichnoyu hvoroboyu seredn'ogo stupenya tyazhkosti iz suputnim metabolichnim sindromom [Condition of systemic inflammation in patients with psoriatic disease of moderate severity with concomitant metabolic syndrome]. Simeyna medicina. 2016; 2: 148-150. (Ukrainian).

5. Yemchenko Ya, Ishcheikin K. Deiaki spilni aspekty patohenezu psoriazu ta metabolichnoho syndromu. Svit medytsyny ta biolohi [Some common aspects of the pathogenesis of psoriasis and metabolic syndrome]. 2013; № 1:176-180. (Ukrainian).

6. Yemchenko Ya, Ischeykin K, Kaydashev I. Zalezhnist' kliniko-laboratornih pokaznikiv vid rivnya sistemnogo zapalennya u hvorih psoriatichnoyu hvoroboyu [Dependence of clinical and laboratory parameters on the level of systemic inflammation in patients with psoriatic disease]. Mir mediciny i biologii. 2014; 3 (45):40-43. (Ukrainian).

7. Atkinson RL. Could viruses contribute to the worldwide epidemic of obesity? Int J Pediat Obes. 2008; 3: Suppl 1: 37-43.

8. Babak OYa, Yarmish NV, Shkol'nik VV. Ozhirinnya yak puskoviy mehanizm adipocitokinovogo kaskadu [Obesity as a trigger mechanism of the adipocytokine cascade]. Medicina transportu Ukrainy. 2012; 2: 94-99. (Ukrainian).

9. Yemchenko Ya. Riven pokaznykiv systemnoho zapalennia u khvorykh na psoriaz obtiazhenyi metabolichnym syndromom [The level of indicators of systemic inflammation in patients with psoriasis burdened with metabolic syndrome]. Zhurnal dermatovenerolohii ta kosmetolohii imeni M.O.Torsueva. 2018; № 1 (38):31-35. (Ukrainian).

10. Hayrutdinov VR. Rol immunnoy sistemyi kozhi v patogeneze psoriaza. Immunopatol, allergol, infektol [The role of the skin's immune system in the pathogenesis of psoriasis]. 2012; 2:54-62. (Russian).

11. Jung SL, Baek JH, Lee JH. Efficacy and Safety of Radiofrequency Ablation for Benign Thyroid Nodules: A Prospective Multicenter Study. Radiol. 2018;19(1):167-174.

12. Kaydashev IP. NF-kB-signalizaciya kak osnova razvitiya sistemnogo vospaleniya, insulinorezistentnosti, lipotoksichnosti, saharnogo diabeta 2-go tipa i ateroskleroza [NF-kB-signalization as a basis for development of systemic inflammation, insulin resistance, lipotoxicity, type 2 diabetes and atherosclerosis]. Mezhdunarodnyy endokrinologicheskiy zhurnal 2011; 3(35): 35-40. (Ukrainian).

13. Kaydashev IP. Izmenenie obraza zhizni, narushenie energeticheskogo metabolizma i sistemnoe vospalenie kak faktory razvitiya bolezney civilizacii [Lifestyle changes, impaired energy metabolism and systemic inflammation as factors for the development of civilization diseases]. Ukraïns'kiy medichniy chasopis. 2013; 5: 103-108. (Ukrainian).

14. Jae Ho Han, Chang-Hee Suh, Ju-Yang Jung. Serum Levels of Interleukin 33 and Soluble ST2 Are Associated with the Extent of Disease Activity and Cutaneous Manifestations in Patients with Active Adult-onset Still's Disease. Rheumatology. 2017; 5(8):121-127.

15. Sebastian Drube, Florian Kraft, Jan Dudeck. MK2/3 Are Pivotal for IL-33–Induced and Mast Cell–Dependent Leukocyte Recruitment and the Resulting Skin Inflammation. J Immunol. 2016; 2(10):35-42.

16. Chong SZ, Wong KL, Lin G et al. Human CD8. T cells drive Th1 responses through the differentiation of TNF/iNOS-producing dendritic cells. Eur J Immunol 2011; 41 (6): 1639-51.

17. Monastyrskaia E, Liamyna S, Malushev Y. M1 y M2 fenotyp aktyvyrovanukh makrofahov y ykh rol v ymmunnom otvete y patolohyy [M1 and M2 phenotypes of activated macrophages and

their role in immune response and pathology]. Patohenez. 2008; 4: 31-39. (Ukrainian).

18. Liamyna S, Malushev Y. Poliaryzatsyia makrofahov v sovremennoi kontseptsyy formyrovanyia ymmunnoho otveta. Fundamentalnые yssledovanyia [Polarization of macrofags in the contemporary concept of formation of immune answer]. 2014; 10 (5):930-935. (Ukrainian).

19. Boyman O, Conrad C, Tonel G. The pathogenic role of tissue-resident immune cells in psoriasis. Trends Immunol 2007; 28: 51-7.

20. Naik HB, Cowen EW. Autoinflammatory pustular neutrophilic diseases. Dermatol. Clin. 2013; 3: 405-425.

21. Martinez F, Sica A, Mantovani A, Locati M. Macrophage activation and polarization. Front Biosci. 2008 Jan; 1(13):453-61.

22. Kamylov FKh, Mufazalova NA, Kapuler OM. Tsytokinovyi dysbalans v ymmunopatoheneze psoriaza. Fundamentalni doslidzhennia [Cytokine disbalance in the immunopathogenesis of psoriasis]. 2015; 1 (5):1065-1071. (Russian).

23. Clark RA. Resident memory T cells in human health and disease. Sci Transl Med 2015; 7 (269):269-274.

24. Harden JL, Krueger JG, Bowcock AM. The immunogenetics of Psoriasis: A comprehensive review. J Autoimmun. 2015 Nov; 64:66-73.

25. Harman-Boehm I, Bluher M, Redel H, Sion-Vardy N, Ovadia S, Avinoach E, Shai I, Kloting N, Stumvoll M, Bashan N, Rudich A. Macrophage infiltration into omental versus subcutaneous fat across different populations: effect of regional adiposity and the comorbidities of obesity. J. Clin. Metab. 2007; 92(3): 2240-7.

26. Brikos C, O'Neill LA. Signaling of toll-like receptors. Handb Exp Pharmacol. 2008; 183: 21-50.

27. Cosmi L, Liotta F, Maggi E. Th17 and non-classic Th1 cells in chronic inflammatory disorders: two sides of the same coin. Int Arch Allergy Immunol 2014; 164 (3): 171-177.

28. Bertheloot D, Latz E. HMGB1, IL-1a, IL-33 and S100 proteins: dual-function alarmins. Cell Mol Immunol. 2017; 14(1):43-64.

29. Suganami T, Tanimoto-Koyama K, Nishida J et al. Role of the Toll-like receptor 4/NF-kappaB pathway in saturated fatty acid-induced inflammatory changes in the interaction between adipocytes and macrophages. Arterioscler Thromb Vasc Biol 2007; 27: 84—91.

30. Gratchev A, Kzhyshkowska J, Köthe K, Muller-Molinet I, Kannookadan S, Utikal J, Goerdt S. Mphi1 and Mphi2 can be re-polarized by Th2 or Th1 cytokines, respectively, and respond to exogenous danger signals. Immunobiology. 2006; 211(6-8):473-86.

31. Cassol E, Cassetta L, Rizzi C, Alfano M, Poli G. M1 and M2a polarization of human monocyte-derived macrophages inhibits HIV-1 replication by distinct mechanisms. J Immunol. 2009 May 15; 182(10):37-46.

32. Martinez FO, Gordon S. The M1 and M2 paradigm of macrophage activation: time for reassessment. F1000Prime Rep. 2014; Mar 3(6):13-18.

33. Zhou X, Krueger JG, Kao MC et al. Novel mechanisms of T-cell and dendritic cell activation revealed by profiling of psoriasis on the 63,100-element oligonucleotide array. Physiol Genomics 2003; 13(1): 69-78.

PATHOGENETIC FEATURES OF ENDOTHELIAL DYSFUNCTION UNDER HEMOSTASIS IMBALANCE

Kotiuzhynska S. G., Umanskiy D.O., Pogulych Yu. V., Lyhodid O. M.

Key words: endothelial dysfunction, hemostasis, nitric oxide, heparin.

This article presents current data on the mechanisms of the onset and development of various pathologi-cal conditions maintained by the hemostasis system. To date, thromboses are considered

as the main cause of death and disability in developed countries, despite the numerous techniques available for their prevention and treatment. Vascular endothelium by producing various biologically active substances plays an extremely important role in providing hemostatic reactions. Defect of the vascular wall is an important starting point of the cardiovascular continuum and to the point determines the development of ongoing pathology, from risk factors to the occurrence of the pathological condition and even death. There is no doubt that there is a relationship between the processes of development of endothelial dysfunction and the disruption of blood clotting. Hypercoagulation is not only a consequence of the functional inconsistency of the endothelium, but is actively involved into its development and progression. Vascular endothelium is not only a target organ in the development of thrombosis, but also an effector in the pathogenesis of its complications. The articles describes the role of heparin deficiency in the pathogenesis of hypercoagulation that is caused by increased heparin consumption in endothelial functioning aimed at neutralization of activated clotting factors, which are produced directly by the damaged vascular endothelium. The development of persistent hypoheparinemia is caused directly by death or injury of mast cells against the background of progressive endothelial dysfunction. In this case it is important to point out that more active correction of the rheological properties of blood in endothelial dysfunction, in turn, leads to depletion of the functional capacity of mast cells and as a consequence to a decrease in the concentration of heparin in the blood with subsequent disturbances in the hemostasis system.

References

1. Bebyakova NA, Hromova AV, Feliksova OM. Vzaimosvyaz' perifericheskoj vazokonstrikcii s polimorfizmom T-786S gena ehndotelial'noj sintazy oksida azota [Interrelation of peripheral vasoconstriction with T-786C polymorphism of the endothelial nitric ox-ide synthase gene]. Fundamental'nye issledovaniya. 2013;12(2):176-179 (Russian).

2. Gozhenko AI, Kotyuzhinskaya SG, Reutov VP. Rol' oksida azota v fiziologii i patologii sistemy gemostaza [The role of nitric oxide in the physiology and pathology of the haemostatic system]. Odessa; 2005. 139 p. (Russian).

3. Kalinin RE, Suchkov IA, Pshennikov AS.Endotelial'naya disfunkciya i sposoby eyo korrekcii pri obliteriruyushchem ateroskleroze [Endothelial dysfunction and methods of its correction with obliterating atherosclerosis]. M: GEOTAR-Media, 2014. 152 p. (Russian).

4. Kovaleva ON, Ambrosova TN. Patogenez i lechenie trombocitarnyh narushenij v kardiologii [Pathogenesis and treatment of platelet ab-normalities in cardiology]. Har'kov: Tornado, 2013. 80 p. (Russian).

5. Kondashevskaya MV. Sovremennye predstavleniya o roli geparina v gemostaze i regulyacii fermentativnoj i gormonal'noj aktivnosti [Modern concepts of the role of heparin in hemostasis and the regulation of enzymatic and hormonal activity]. Vestnik Rossijskoj Akademii medicinskih nauk. 2010;7:35-43. (Russian).

6. Kotiuzhinskaya SG, Umanskij DA. Rol' geparina v patologii lipidtransportnoj sistemy [The role of heparin in the pathology of the lipid transport system]. Klinichna ta eksperymental'na medycyna. 2016;2:112-118. (Russian).

7. Kotyuzhinskaya SG. Umanskij DA. Endotelial'naya disfunkciya v patogeneze sosudistyh katastrof pri serdechno-sosudistyh zabolevaniyah [Endothelial dysfunction in the pathogenesis of vas-cular accidents in cardiovascular diseases]. Zaporozhskij medicinskij zhurnal. 2017;16(4):525-530. doi: 10.14739/2310-1210.2017.4.105305 (Russian).

8. Kuznik BI. Kletochnye i molekulyarnye mekhanizmy regulyacii sistemy gemostaza v norme i patologii [Cellular and molecular mechanisms of hemostasis regulation in norm and pathology]. Chi-ta: Ekspress-izdatel'stvo, 2010. 217 p. (Russian).

9. Maksimenko AV, Turashev AD. Funkcii i sostoyanie ehndotelial'nogo glikokaliksa v norme i patologii [Functions and condition of endothelial glycocalyx in norm and pathology]. Ateroskleroz i dislipidemii. 2011;2:4-17. (Russian).

10. Mel'nikova YuS. Endotelial'naya disfunkciya kak central'noe zveno patogeneza hronicheskih boleznej [Endothelial dysfunction as the central link of the pathogenesis of chronic diseases]. Kazanskij medicinskij zhurnal. 2015;96(4):659-666. (Russian).

11. Momot AP. Patologiya gemostaza. Principy i algoritmy kliniko-laboratornoj diagnostiki [Pathology of hemostasis. Principles and algorithms of clinico-laboratory diagnostics]. SPb.: Format, 2006. p. 208. (Russian).

12. Panchenko EP. Antikoagulyantnaya terapiya v kardiologii: vchera, segodnya zavtra [Anticoagulant therapy in cardiology: yesterday, today, tomorrow]. Kardiologiya. 2010;7:4-7. (Russian).

13. Shevchenko YuL, Stojko YuM, Gudymovich VG. Disfunkciya i povrezhdenie ehndoteliya (patofiologiya, ehtiologiya, diagnostika, klinicheskie proyavleniya i lechenie) [Dysfunction and damage to the endothelium (pathophilia, etiology, diagnosis, clinical manifesta-tions and treatment)]. M: Lika, 2015. p. 166. (Russian).

14. Aronow HD, Beckman JA. Parsing Atherosclerosis The Unnatural History of Peripheral Artery Disease. Circulation. 2016;134:438-440.

15. Liu D, Jiang Z, Dai L, Zhang X, Yan C & Han Y. Association be-tween the -786T>C1 polymorphism in the promoter region of endo-thelial nitric oxide synthese (eNOS) and risk of coronary artery dis-ease: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Gene. 2014;545(1):175-183. doi:10.1016/j.gene.2013.09.099

16. Gozhenko A, Kovalevskaya L, Kotiuzhynskaya S, Zhukov V. Atherosclerosis: new achievements and failures. J. of Health Sciences. 2014;4(4):101-114.

17. Dellinger PR, Mitchell M, Andrew R. The role of iNOS and ecNOS in the in vivo reduction of gut glutamine consumption after endotoxin treatment in mice. FASEB J. 2013;41(2):232-239.

18. Gungor ZB, Sipahioglu N, Sonmez H, Ekmekci H, Toprak S, Ayaz G, Gurel CB, Mutlu T, Ulutin T & Sipahioglu F. Endothelial dysfunc-tion markers in low cardiovascular risk individuals: comparison of males and females. J. Med. Biochem. 2017;36:62-72. doi: 10.1515/jomb-2016-0030

19. Flaumenhaft R. Protein disulfide isomerase as an antithrombotic target. Trends Cardiovasc. Med. 2013;23:264-8. doi: 10.1016/j.tcm.2013.03.001

20. Förstermann U, Sessa W. Nitric oxide synthases: regulation and function. Eur. Heart J. 2012;33:829-837. doi: 10.1093/eurheartj/ehr304.

21. Furie B, Furie BC. Mechanisms of thrombus formation. N. Engl. J. Med. 2008;359:938-49. doi: 10.1056/NEJMra0801082

22. Goberdhan S, Chiew SK, Syed J. Tender endothelium syndrome: combination of hypotension, bradycardia, contrast induced chest pain, and microvascular angina. Case Reports in Cardiology. 2016;2016:101-104.

23. Habib S, Ali A. Biochemistry of nitric oxide. Ind. J. Clin. Biochem. 2011;26:3-17. doi:10.1007/s12291-011-0108-4.

24. Jasuja R, Furie B, Furie BC. Endothelium-derived but not platelet-derived protein disulfide isomerase is required for thrombus formation in vivo. Blood. 2010;116:4665-74. doi: 10.1182/blood-2010-04-278184

25. Kazmi RS, Boyce S, Lwaleed BA. Homeostasis of hemostasis: the role of endothelium. Semin. Thromb. Hemost. 2015;41(6):549-555.

26. Lei J. Nitric oxide a protective molecule in the cardiovascular system. Nitric Oxide . 2013;35:175-185.

27. Michael T, Gewaltig M, Kojda G. Vasoprotection by nitric oxide: mechanisms and therapeutic potential. Cardiovascular research. 2012;55:250-260.

28. Niu W, Qi Y. An updated meta-analysis of endothelial nitric oxide synthase gene: three well-characterized polymorphisms with hypertension. Plos. One. 2011;6(9):24266. doi:10.1371/journal.pone. 0024266.

29. Rubanyi GM. The role of endothelium in cardiovascular homeostasis and diseases. J. Cardiovasc. Pharmacol. 2013;22(4):S1-S4.

30. Snyder SH, Bredt DS. Biological roles of nitric oxide. Sci. Amer. 2012;266:68-71.

31. Li J, Wu X, Li X, Feng G, He L & Shi Y. The endothelial nitric oxide synthase gene is associated with coronary artery disease: A meta-analysis. Cardiology. 2010;116:271–278. doi: 10.1159/000316063.

32. Verma S, Anderson TJ. Fundamentals of endothelial function for the clinical cardiologist. Circulation. 2012;115 (5):546-549.

33. Violi F, Ferro D. Clotting activation and hyperfibrinolysis in cirrhosis: implication for bleeding and thrombosis. Semin. Thromb. Hemost. 2013; 39(4):426-33. doi: 10.1055/s-0033-1334144.

SOME ASPECTS OF THYROID IMPACT ON THE BODY STATE IN NORMAL AND PATHOLOGY CONDITIONS

Ryabukha O.I.

Key words: thyroid gland, thyroid hormones, effects on the body.

Endocrine system is a stage of general control over the processes of life activity in the endothermic or-ganism, regulating many of its functions. An important component of this system is the thyroid gland. Various effects of thyroid hormones are produced due to the presence of their receptors in the cell nucleus and mitochondria of almost all tissues and organs. By increasing the rate of RNA transcription, thyroid hormones effect the synthesis of proteins, activate the synthesis of enzymes involved in lipid metabolism, enhance the synthesis and absorption of carbohydrates and their assimilation and use, effect the permeability of cytoplasmic membranes for mineral ions. Thyroid hormones increase the consumption of oxygen by tissues, energy release, enhance heat production. The thyroid activity is closely related to the functions of other organs in the endocrine system. Particularly close functional link can be traced between thyroid, the hypothalamus and pituitary gland; thyroid dysfunctions can adversely affect the state of the gonads, pancreas and adrenal glands. Thyroid hormones are essential for the normal functioning of the central nervous system, particularly for the brain: changes in their blood contents are accompanied by mental, cognitive, behavioural and motor disorders. By defining the properties of myofibril proteins, thyroid hormones influence the muscles, thus indirectly affecting the state of the cardiovascular system and hemodynamics. The effect of the thyroid hormones on the respiratory system is implemented through their influence on the development of foetal and newborn lungs, formation and development of alveolar epithelium and alveoli, surfactant production. Functional links between thyroid and liver have been established as well: the gland affects the biliary system, gastrointestinal tract and urinary system. Thus, disorders in thyroid functioning trigger a chain reaction of various organs dysfunctions, which may vary in severity, but affect the functioning of the human body as an integral biological system.

References

1. Bodnar PM, editor. Endokrynolohiya : pidruchnyk [Endocrinology]: a textbook. 4th ed. Vinnitsa: Nona Knyha; 2017. 456 p. (Ukrainian).

2. Villanueva I, Alva-Sánchez C, Pacheco-Rosado J. The role of thyroid hormones as inductors of oxidative stress and neurodegeneration. Oxid Med Cell Longev. 2013; ID 218145: 15. Available from: http://dx.doi.org/10.1155/2013/218145

3. Kubasov RV. Gormonal'nyye izmeneniya v otvet na ekstremal'nyye faktory vneshney sredy [Hormonal Changes in Response to Extreme Environment Factors]. Vestn Ross Acad Med Nauk. 2014;9-10:102-9. (Russian).

4. Kubarko AI, Yamashita S, editors. Shchitovidnaya zheleza. Fundamental'nyye aspekty [Thyroid. Fundamental Aspects]. Minsk; Nagasaki; 1998. 368 p. (Russian).

5. Dauncey MJ. Thyroid hormones and thermogenesis. Proc Nutr Soc. 1990;49(2):203-5.

6. Balabolkin MI, Klebanova EM, Kreminskaya VM. Fundamental'naya i klinicheskaya tiroidologiya : rukovodstvo [Fundamental and Clinical Thyroidology: a guide]. Moscow: Meditsina; 2007. 816 p. (Russian).

7. Dedov II, Melnichenko GA, Fadeyev VV. Endokrinologiya [Internet] : uchebnik dlya studentov med. vuzov [Endocrinology]: a textbook for students of higher medical education institutions. 2nd ed. Moscow: GEOTAR-Media; 2013. Available from: http://www.studmedlib.ru/book/ISBN9785970425351.html (Russian).

8. Kettayl VM, Arki RA. Patofiziologiya endokrinnoy sistemy [Endocrine Pathophysiology]. (Trans. from English). Moscow: Publishing house BINOM; 2016. 336 p. (Russian).

9. Müller B, Tsakiris DA, Roth CB, Guglielmetti M, Staub JJ, Marbet GA. Haemostatic profile in hypothyroidism as potential risk factor for vascular or thrombotic disease. Eur J Clin Invest. 2001;31(2):131-7.

10. Squizzato A, Romualdi E, Buller HR, Gerdes VE. Thyroid dysfunction and effects on coagulation and fibrinolysis: a systematic review. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2007;92(7):2415-20.

11. Teppermen Dzh, Teppermen Kh. Fiziologiya obmena veshchestv i endokrinnoy sistemy [Metabolic and Endocrine Physiology]. (Trans from English). Moscow: Mir; 1989. 656 p. (Russian).

12. Maenhaut C, Christophe D, Vassart G, Dumont J, Roger PP, Opitz R. Ontogeny, anatomy, metabolism and physiology of the thyroid [Internet]. Endotext [Last Update: 2015, Jul. 15]. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK285554/

13. WHO, UNICEF, ICCIDD. Assessment of the Iodine Deficiency Disorders and monitoring their elimination : a guide for programme managers. 3rd ed. Geneva: WHO; 2007. 97 p.

14. Stathatos N. Anatomy and Physiology of the Thyroid Gland: Clinical Correlates to Thyroid Cancer. In: Wartofsky L, Van Nostrand D, editors. Thyroid Cancer. New York, NY: Springer; 2016. p. 3-8.

15. Didushko OM. Vikovi osoblyvosti lipidnoho obminu u khvorykh z manifestnym hipotyreozom [Age features of lipid metabolism in patients with clinical hypothyroidism]. Arkhiv klinichnoi medytsyny. 2014;1:21-3. (Ukrainian).

16. Bakker SJ, ter Maaten JC, Popp-Snijders C, Slaets JP, Heine RJ, Gans RO. The relationship between thyrotropin and low density lipoprotein cholesterol is modified by insulin sensitivity in healthy euthyroid subjects. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2001;86(3):1206-11.

17. Meier C, Staub JJ, Roth CB, Guglielmetti M, Kunz M, Miserez AR, et al. TSH-controlled Lthyroxine therapy reduces cholesterol levels and clinical symptoms in subclinical hypothyroidism. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2001;86(10):4860-6.

18. Voronych-Semchenko NM. Korelyatsiya tyreoyidnoho statusu z pokaznykamy lipidnoho obminu ta rivnem psykhofiziolohichnoho rozvytku ditey z latentnym hipotyreozom [Correlation of thyroid status with indicators of lipid metabolism and level of psychophysiological development of children with latent hypothyroidism]. Fiziolohichnyi zhurnal. 2008;54(3):57-64. (Ukrainian).

19. Shreyber V. Patofiziologiya zhelez vnutrenney sekretsii [Patophysiology of endocrine glands]. (Trans from Czech). Praha: Avicenum; 1987. 493 p. (Russian).

20. Khaustov SO. Patofiziolohiya teplovoho balansu shchytopodibnoyi zalozy pry syndromi hiper-, hipo-, eutyreozu [Pathophysiology of the thermal balance of the thyroid gland in hyper-, hypo-, euthyroid syndrome]. [dissertation]. Odessa, Odessa National Medical University; 2004. 19 p. (Ukrainian).

21. Lyashuk PM. Klinichna endokrynolohiya : navchal'nyi posibnyk [Clinical Endocrinology]: a tutorial: . 4th ed. Chernovtsy: Meduniversytet; 2006. 119 p. (Ukrainian).

22. Manole D, Schildknecht B, Gosnell B, Adams E, Derwahl M. Estrogen promotes growth of human thyroid tumor cells by different molecular mechanisms. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2001;86(3):1072-7.

23. Sheridan PJ, McGill HC Jr, Lissitzky JC, Martin PM. The primate thyroid gland contains

receptors for androgens. Endocrinology. 1984;115(6):2154-9.

24. Dubossarskaya YuA, Dubossarskaya ZM. Fiziologiya gipotalamo-gipofizarno-tireoidnoy sistemy i eye svyaz' s drugimi endokrinnymi zhelezami [Physiology of hypothalamo-pituitary-thyroid system and its connection with other endocrinal glands]. Reproduktyvna endokrynolohiya. 2014;1:7-12. (Russian).

25. Moeller LC, Alonso M, Liao X, Broach V, Dumitrescu A, Van Sande J, et al. Pituitarythyroid setpoint and thyrotropin receptor expression in consomic rats. Endocrinology. 2007;148(10):4727-33.

26. Santisteban P. Development and anatomy of the hypothalamic-pituitary-thyroid axis. In: Braverman LE, Utiger RD, editors. Werner and Ingbar's the thyroid a fundamental and clinical text. Philadelphia, PA: Lippincott Williams & Wilkins; 2005. p. 8-25.

27. Babichev VN. Neyroendokrinologiya reproduktivnoy sistemy [Neuroendocrinology of the reproductive system]. Problemy endokrinologii. 1998;1:3-12. (Russian).

28. Barrou DN. Shchitovidnaya zheleza i reproduktsiya [Thyroid and reproduction]. In: Reproduktivnaya endokrinologiya [Yen & Jaffe's Reproductive Endocrinology]. (Trans from English). Moscow: Meditsina; 1998. p. 587-616. (Russian).

29. Buzzard JJ, Wreford NG, Morrison JR. Thyroid hormone, retinoic acid, and testosterone suppress proliferation and induce markers of differentiation in cultured rat sertoli cells. Endocrinology. 2003;144(9):3722-31.

30. Day D, Ambegaonkar A, Harriot K, McDaniel A. A new tool for predicting erectile dysfunction. Adv Ther. 2001;18(3):131-9.

31. Holsberger DR, Cooke PS. Understanding the role of thyroid hormone in Sertoli cell development: a mechanistic hypothesis. Cell Tissue Res. 2005;322(1):133-40.

32. Vorokhobina NV, Sil'nitskiy PA, Ivanov NV. Narusheniye polovoy funktsii u muzhchin s zabolevaniyami shchitovidnoy zhelezy [Disorders of sexual function in men with thyroid disease]. In: Shustov SB, editor. Endokrinologiya : rukovodstvo dlya vrachey [Endocrinology]: a guide for doctors. Saint Petersburg: SpetsLit; 2011. p. 383-385. (Russian).

33. Kashirova TV, Fadeyev VV, Perminova SG, Nazarenko TA, Korneyeva IYe, Lesnikova SV, et al. Osobennosti reproduktivnoy funktsii u zhenshchin s bolezn'yu Greyvsa [Features of reproductive function in women with Graves' disease]. Klinicheskaya i eksperimental'naya tireoidologiya. 2009;5(2):51-7. (Russian).

34. Tatarchuk TF, Oleynik VA, Mamonova TO. Reproduktivnaya sistema zhenshchin i narusheniya funktsii shchitovidnoy zhelezy [Reproductive system in women and thyroid dysfunction]. Vestnik assotsiatsii akusherov i ginekologov Ukrainy. 2000;4:16-23. (Russian).

35. Fadeyev VV, Lesnikova SV, Mel'nichenko GA. Gipotireoz i reproduktivnaya funktsiya zhenshchiny [Hypothyroidism and reproductive function in woman]. Vrach. 2003;6:29-31. (Russian).

36. Krassas GE. Thyroid disease and female reproduction. Fertil Steril. 2000 Dec;74(6):1063-70.

37. Silant'yeva VD. Vliyaniye yoda i kompleksa mikroelementov (kobal't, med', tsink) na nekotoryye biokhimicheskiye pokazateli i produktivnost' molodnyaka krupnogo rogatogo skota [Influence of iodine and the complex of trace elements (cobalt, copper, zinc) on some biochemical indicators and productivity of young cattle]. [dissertation]. Saratov, Saratov State Medical Institute; 1975. 20 p. (Russian).

38. Smirnova EI. Znacheniye yodnoy podkormki dlya vosproizvoditel'noy funktsii korov [The importance of iodine supplementation for the reproductive function of cows]. Zhivotnovodstvo. 1965;1:64-6. (Russian).

39. Valdina YeA. Zabolevaniya shchitovidnoy zhelezy: rukovodstvo [Thyroid disease]: a guide. 3th ed. Saint Petersburg: Piter; 2005. 368 p. (Russian).

40. Young JB, Burgi-Saville ME, Burgi U, Landsberg L. Sympathetic nervous system activity in rat thyroid: potential role in goitrogenesis. Am J Physiol Endocrinol Metab. 2005;288(5):E861-7.

41. Alyoshin BV, Gubskiy VI. Gipotalamus i shchitovidnaya zheleza [Hypothalamus and thyroid gland]. Moscow: Meditsina; 1983. 184 p. (Russian).

42. Leykok DzhF, Vays PG. Osnovy endokrinologii [Laycock JF, Wise PH. Essential Endorinology]. (Trans from English). Moscow: Meditsina; 2000. 516 p. (Russian).

43. Ametov AS. Izbrannyye lektsii po endokrinologii : uchebnoye posobiye [Selected lectures on endocrinology]: a tutorial. 3rd ed. Moscow: Meditsinskoye informatsionnoye agentstvo; 2016. 732 p. (Russian).

44. Paul DT, Mollah FH, Alam MK, Fariduddin M, Azad K, Arslan MI. Glycemic status in hyperthyroid subjects. Mymensingh Med J. 2004;13(1):71-5.

45. Perros P, McCrimmon RJ, Shaw G, Frier BM. Frequency of thyroid dysfunction in diabetic patients: value of annual screening. Diabet Med. 1995;12(7):622-7.

46. Roos A, Bakker SJ, Links TP, Gans RO, Wolffenbuttel BH. Thyroid function is associated with components of the metabolic syndrome in euthyroid subjects. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2007;92(2):491-6.

47. Rosenbaum M, Hirsch J, Murphy E, Leibel RL. Effects of changes in body weight on carbohydrate metabolism, catecholamine excretion, and thyroid function. Am J Clin Nutr. 2000;71(6):1421-32.

48. Demidova TYu, Galiyeva OR. Rol' gipofunktsii shchitovidnoy zhelezy v razvitii metabolicheskogo sindroma [The role of hypothyroidism in the development of metabolic syndrome]. Terapevticheskiy arkhiv. 2009;81(4):69-72. (Russian).

49. Ruyatkina LA, Ruyatkin DS. Integral'nyy serdechno-sosudistyy risk: metabolicheskiy sindrom i disfunktsiya shchitovidnoy zhelezy [Integral cardiovascular risk: metabolic syndrome and thyroid dysfunction]. Sibirskoye meditsinskoye obozreniye. 2010;4:11-6. (Russian).

50. Gilbert ME, Hedge JM, Valentín-Blasini L, Blount BC, Kannan K, Tietge J, et al. An animal model of marginal iodine deficiency during development: the thyroid axis and neurodevelopmental outcome. Toxicol Sci. 2013;132(1):177-95.

51. Almazan G, Honegger P, Matthieu JM. Triiodothyronine stimulation of oligodendroglial differentiation and myelination. A developmental study. Dev Neurosci. 1985;7(1):45-54.

52. Fernandez M, Giuliani A, Pirondi S, D'Intino G, Giardino L, Aloe L, et al. Thyroid hormone administration enhances remyelination in chronic demyelinating inflammatory disease. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A. 2004;101(46):16363-8.

53. Mariotti S. Normal'naya fiziologiya gipotalamo-gipofizarno-tireoidnoy sistemy i yeyo svyaz' s drugimi endokrinnymi zhelezami i nervnoy sistemoy [The normal physiology of the hypothalamic-pituitary-thyroid system and its relationship with other endocrine glands and the nervous system]. Klinicheskaya tireoidologiya. 2003;1(4):10-7. (Russian).

54. Shidlovs'kyy VO, Deikalo IM, Shidlovs'kyy OV. Yododefitsytni zakhvoryuvannya: diahnostyka, likuvannya, profilaktyka [Iodine deficiency diseases: diagnosis, treatment, prevention]. Ternopil': Ukrmedknyha; 2006. 84 p. (Ukrainian).

55. Jagannathan NR, Tandon N, Raghunathan P, Kochupillai N. Reversal of abnormalities of myelination by thyroxine therapy in congenital hypothyroidism: localized in vivo proton magnetic resonance spectroscopy (MRS) study. Brain Res Dev Brain Res. 1998;109(2):179-86.

56. Kasatkina EP. Snizheniye intellektual'nogo potentsiala naseleniya v yoddefitsitnykh regionakh [Reducing the intellectual potential of the population in iodine-deficient regions]. Lechashchiy vrach. 2006;2:6-10. (Russian).

57. Artis AS, Bitiktas S, Taşkın E, Dolu N, Liman N, Suer C. Experimental hypothyroidism delays field excitatory post-synaptic potentials and disrupts hippocampal long-term potentiation in the dentate gyrus of hippocampal formation and Y-maze performance in adult rats. J Neuroendocrinol. 2012;24(3):422-33.

58. Samuels MH, Schuff KG, Carlson NE, Carello P, Janowsky JS. Health status, mood, and cognition in experimentally induced subclinical hypothyroidism. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2007;92(7):2545-51.

59. Kapoor R, Desouza LA, Nanavaty IN, Kernie SG, Vaidya VA. Thyroid hormone accelerates the differentiation of adult hippocampal progenitors. J Neuroendocrinol. 2012;24(9):1259-71.

60. Sala-Roca J, Estebanez-Perpina E, Balada F, Garau A, Martí-Carbonell MA. Effects of adult dysthyroidism on the morphology of hippocampal neurons. Behav Brain Res. 2008;188(2):348-54.

61. Goldyreva TP, Tereshchenko IV, Uryupina MD, Sedinina NS. Osobennosti psikhicheskogo statusa u bol'nykh yoddefitsitnym zobom [Features of mental status in patients with iodine deficiency goiter]. Klinicheskaya meditsina. 2000;3:32-5. (Russian).

62. Fadeyev VV. Zabolevaniya shchitovidnoy zhelezy v regione legkogo yodnogo defitsita: epidemiologiya, diagnostika, lecheniye [Thyroid gland diseases in the region of mild iodine deficiency: epidemiology, diagnosis, treatment]. Moscow: Publishing House Vidar-M; 2005. 240 p. (Russian).

63. Zelins'ka NB, Reznikova AL, Mamenko MYe, Yerokhina OI. Zob u ditey: klinika, dyferentsiyna diahnostyka, likuvannya (Metodychni rekomendatsii) [Goiter in children: clinic, differential diagnosis, treatment (A methodical recommendations)]. Suchasna pediatriya. 2006;1:57-66. (Ukrainian).

64. Kasatkina EP. Aktual'nyye problemy tireoidologii: profilaktika yoddefitsitnykh zabolevaniy [Topical problems of thyroidology: prevention of iodine deficiency disorders]. Problemy endokrinologii. 2006;52(6):30-3. (Russian).

65. Voronych-Semchenko NM, Botsyurko VI, Yemel'yanenko IV. Analiz rozumovoho rozvytku shkolyariv vysokohir'ya Prykarpattya ta intaktnoho za vmistom yodu v navkolyshn'omu seredovyshchi rehionu [Analysis of mental development of schoolchildren of high mountain region and of intact one according to iodine content in neighbouring environment]. Halyts'kyy likars'kyy visnyk. 2007;14(4):33-7. (Ukrainian).

66. Muratova ShT, Ismailov SI. Vliyaniye bolezni Greyvsa na psikhokognitivnoye sostoyaniye detey i vzroslykh [Influence of Graves' disease on psychocognitive state of children and adults]. Mezhdunar. nevrol. zhurn. 2016;5:167-71. (Russian).

67. Brandt F, Thvilum M, Almind D, Christensen K, Green A, Hegedüs L, Brix TH, et al. Hyperthyroidism and psychiatric morbidity: evidence from a Danish nationwide register study. Eur J Endocrinol. 2013;170(2):341-8.

68. Benseñor IM, Nunes MA, Sander Diniz MF, Santos IS, Brunoni AR, Lotufo PA. Subclinical thyroid dysfunction and psychiatric disorders: cross-sectional results from the Brazilian Study of Adult Health (ELSA-Brasil). Clin Endocrinol (Oxf). 2016;84(2):250-6. doi: 10.1111/cen.12719.

69. Kotova SM, Ovchinnikov BV, Khetagurova FK. Individual'no-psikhologicheskoye proyavleniye u bol'nykh s diffuznym toksicheskim zobom [Individual psychological manifestations in patients with diffuse toxic goiter]. Problemy endokrinologii. 1997;43(2):16-9. (Russian).

70. Balabolkin MI. Sostoyaniye i perspektivy izucheniya problemy fiziologii i patologii shchitovidnoy zhelezy [The problem of physiology and pathology of the thyroid. Status and prospects for studies]. Terapevticheskiy arkhiv. 1997;69(10):5-11. (Russian).

71. Fedortsiv OYe, Buhera OP, Sapelyak OYa. Vplyv patolohiyi travnoyi ta kistkovoyi system na funktsional'nyy stan shchytopodibnoyi zalozy u ditey iz dyfuznym endemichnym zobom 1 stupenya [The influence of pathology of bone and digestive systems on functional state of the thyroid gland in children with diffuse endemic goiter of the 1-st degree]. Aktual'ni pytannya pediatriyi, akusherstva ta hinekolohiyi. 2011;2:133-6. (Ukrainian).

72. Kosmynina NS, Hnateyko OZ, Luk'yanenko NS, Kech NP. Otsinka funktsional'noho stanu hipofizarno-tyreoyidnoyi systemy pry yododefitsytnykh stanakh u ditey, shcho prozhyvayut' v ekolohichno zabrudnenomu rehioni [Evaluation of the functional state of the hypophysial-thyroid system in children, living in an ecologically contaminated region]. Bukovyns'kyy medychnyy visnyk (Buk. Med. Herald). 2013;17(1):52-5. (Ukrainian).

73. Dzhanashiya PKh. Arterial'naya gipertenziya pri gipotireoze i tireotoksikoze: vozrastnaya i etiologicheskaya struktura, analiz stepeni tyazhesti [Arterial hypertension in hypothyroidism and thyrotoxicosis: age and etiological structure, severity analysis]. Vestnik novykh meditsinskikh

tekhnologiy. 2004;11(3):65-7. (Russian).

74. Rhee SS, Pearce EN. The endocrine system and the heart: a review. Rev Esp Cardiol. 2011;64(3):220-31.

75. Vargas-Uricoechea H, Sierra-Torres CH. Thyroid hormones and the heart. Horm Mol Biol Clin Investig. 2014;18(1):15-26.

76. Osman F, Gammage MD, Sheppard MC, Franklyn JA. Clinical review 142: cardiac dysrhythmias and thyroid dysfunction: the hidden menace? J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2002;87(3):963-7.

77. Bizunok TA, Bizunok NA. Rol' neyromediatorov v regulyatsii funktsii shchitovidnoy zhelezy [The role of neurotransmitters in the regulation of thyroid function]. Meditsinskiy zhurnal. 2006;2:10-2. (Russian).

78. Singhal RL, Rastogi RB, Hrdina PD. Brain biogenic amines and al-tered thyroid function. Life Sci. 1975;17(11):1617-26.

79. Napoli R, Biondi B, Guardasole V, Matarazzo M, Pardo F, Angelini V, et al. Impact of hyperthyroidism and its correction on vascular reactivity in humans. Circulation. 2001;104(25):3076-80.

80. Selivanova GB. Kharakter aktivnosti renin-al'dosteronovoy sistemy pri arterial'noy gipertenzii vsledstviye gipotireoza i tireotoksikoza [The nature of the activity of the reninaldosterone system in arterial hypertension due to hypothyroidism and thyrotoxicosis]. Vestnik novykh meditsinskikh tekhnologiy. 2004;11(3):64-5. (Russian).

81. Herasymenko OM. Psykhoemotsiynyy stan ta vmist hormoniv shchytopodibnoyi zalozy ta kortyzolu v krovi khvorykh z funktsional'nymy rozladamy travnoho kanalu [Psychoemotional status and the content of hormones of the thyroid gland and cortisol in the blood of patients with functional disorders of the digestive canal]. Suchasna hastroenterolohiya. 2011;4:40-4. (Ukrainian).

82. Mel'nikova SL, Mel'nikov VV, Subocheva ES. Izmeneniye prodolzhitel'nosti individual'noy minuty pri raznom urovne gormonov shchitovidnoy zhelezy [Change in the duration of an individual minute at different levels of thyroid hormones]. Vestnik novykh meditsinskikh tekhnologiy. 2004;11(3):16-8. (Russian).

THE ROLE OF CELL CYCLE REGULATORY GENES IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF STOMACH CANCER

Chernobay A. V., Chernobay M. A.

Kay words: stomach cancer, carcinogenesis markers, TGF-β1 gene

Among the most important challenges in oncology, the task of studying diagnostic and prognostic significance of some carcinogenesis markers is absolutely relevant, and namely the frequency of detection and identification of levels of EGFR, Ki-67, TGF- β 1 receptors detected by immunohistochemical and immunosorbent methods, and mutations in some oncogenes through the progression of cancer stomach in humans. The latter, along with other oncogenes, suppressor genes and secretory proteins, are considered as perspective markers that characterize the biological behaviour of the tumour and allow clinicians to adhere the patient-centred approaches in choosing proper therapy for patients with stomach cancer. However, the molecular genetic factors underlying the carcinogenesis of stomach cancer of the intestinal and diffuse types are different. Thus, the loss of heterozygosity and the mutation of p53, reduction of p27 expression, cyclin E expression and 6.0-kb transcripts of the 3-met gene are involved in the process of malignancy from precancerous changes to the development of the intestinal type of RH. Loss of the DCC gene, mutations in the APC gene, loss of heterozygosity (LOH) 1q, loss of p27, tumour growth factor (TGF) - β receptor type I (I) and the amplification of the HER2 gene are often associated with the late stage of intestinal carcinoma. On the other hand, the loss of heterozygosity in chromosome 17b, the

mutation or loss of heterozygosity of p53, and the mutation or loss of E-cadherins are mainly involved in the development of low-differentiated diffuse forms of stomach cancer. The gene EGFR (HER1) and TGF- β 1 encode an epidermal growth factor receptor, which is a membrane tyrosine kinase, and is involved in the regulation of many cellular processes. Hyperexpression of these genes is observed in virtually all tumours of epithelial origin. Gastric carcinoma expresses EGFR in almost half of cases. The involvement of TGF- β 1 in the pathogenesis of stomach cancer indicates the potential use of inhibitors of this receptor for the treatment of malignant tumours of the stomach.

References

1. Imai K, Yamamoto H. Carcinogenesis and microsatellite instability: the interrelationship between genetics and epigenetics. Carcinogenesis. 2008; 29: 673–80

2. Zaridze D.G. Kartsinogenes.[Carcinogenesis] - M. "Medicine"; 2004: 575 p. (Russian)

3. Petrosyan AM, Kharchenko V.Z. Yzmenenyya proteynaz yngybytornoj systemy u bol`nyh rakom zheludka. [Changes in proteinases of the inhibitory system in patients with gastric cancer]. Onkologya. 2007; 4: 303-5. (Russian)

4. Cletus A. Ki-67 proliferation index and gastric cancer: Answers or more questions J. Surg. Oncology. 2010; 102 (3): 199–0.

5. Y`myanytov EN. Epydemyologyya i byologyya raka zheludka. [Epidemiology and biology of stomach cancer]. Praktycteskaya onkologyya 2009; 1: 1-6. (Russian)

6. Grygor'eva ES, Bukurova YuA, Cherdyntseva NV. 2D proteomyka raka zheludka: ydentyfykatsyya belkov s povyshennym syntezom v opuholy. [2D proteomics of gastric cancer: identification of proteins with increased synthesis in the tumor]. Sybyrsky'j onkologychesky'j zhurnal 2009; 5 (35): 37-2. (Russian)

7. Stepanov YV, Zav'yalova MV, Grygor'eva ES. Klynyko-morfologycteskye i molekulyarnogenetycteskye osobennosty' yntestynal'nogo i' dyffuznogo typov karcynom zheludka. [Clinicalmorphological and molecular-genetic features of the intestinal and diffuse types of carcinoma of the stomach]. Sybyrsky'j onkologychesky'j zhurnal 2010; 4 (40): 55-66. (Russian)

8. Grygor'eva ES, Bukurova YA, Krasnov GS. Ydentyfy'kacyya belkov s povyshennym urovnem synteza v zlokachestvennыx opuxolyax zheludka: sravnenye rezul'tatov dvumernogo olektroforeza u byoynformatycheskogo poyska. [Identification of proteins with an increased level of synthesis in malignant tumors of the stomach: a comparison of the results of two-dimensional electrophoresis and bioinformatic search. Molekulyarnaya byologyya. 2011; 4: 738-3. (Russian).

9. Belyavskaya VA, Vardosanidze VK, Smirnova OU. Geneticheskiy status p53 pri rake zheludka: somaticheskie mutacii I polimorfism kodona 72. [Genetic status of p53 in stomach cancer: somatic mutations and codon polymorphism 72. Buleten' eksperymentalnoy biologii I medytsyny. Bulletin of Experimental Biology and Medicine. 2006; 2: 202-4. (Russian)

10. Lee HK, Lee HS, Yang HK. Prognostic significance of Bcl-2 and p53 expression in gastric cancer. Int. J. Colorectal. Dis. 2003; 18: 518–25.

11. Liu XP, Tsushimi K, Tsushimi M, Tsushimi M. Expression of p53 protein as a prognostic indicator of reduced survival time in diffuse-type gastric carcinoma. Pathol. Int. 2001; 51: 440–5

12. Sanz-Ortega J, Steinberg SM, Moro E, Saez M, Sanz-Esponera J, Merino MJ. Comparative study of tumor angiogenesis and im-munohistochemistry for p53, c-ErbB2, c-myc and EGFr as prognostic factors in gastric cancer. Histol. Histopathol. 2000; 15: 455–62.

13. Shi H, Xu JM, Hu NZ, Xie HJ. Prognostic significance of expression of cyclooxygenase-2 and vascular endothelial growth factor in human gastric carcinoma. World J. Gastroenterol. 2003; 9: 1421–6.

14. Barros R, da Costa IT, Pinto-de-Sousa J et al. CDX2 autoregulation in human intestinal metaplasia of the stomach: impact on the stability of the phenotype. Gut. 2011; 60 (3): 290–8.

15. Barros R, Camilo V, Pereira B et al. Pathophysiology of intestinal metaplasia of the stomach: emphasis on CDX2 regulation. Biochem. Soc. Trans. 2010; 38 (2): 358–3.

16. Alves MK, Ferrasi AC, lima VP et al. Inactivation of COX-2, HMLH1 and CDKN2A gene by promoter methylation in gastric cancer: relationship with histological subtype, tumor location and Helicobacter pylori genotype. Pathobiology. 2011; 78 (5): 266–276.

17. Ferrasi AC, Pinheiro NA, Rabenhorst SH et al. Helicobacter pylori and EBV in gastric carcinomas: methylation status and microsatellite instability// World J. Gastroenterol. 2010; 16 (3) : 312–5

18. Kang JM, Lee BH, Kim N, Lee HS. CDX1 and CDX2 expression in intestinal metaplasia, dysplasia and gastric cancer. J. Korean Med. Sci. 2011; 26 (5): 647–53.

19. Kouraklis G, Katsoulis IE, Theocharis S, Tsourouflis G, Xipolitas N, Glinavou A, Sioka C, Kostakis A. Does the expression of cyclin E, pRb, and p21 correlate with prognosis in gastric adenocarcinoma? Dig. Dis. Sci. 2009; 54: 1015–20.

20. Lazar D, Taban S, Ardeleanu C, Simionescu C, Sporea I, Cornianu M, Vernic C. Immunohistochemical expression of the cyclooxygenase-2 (CDX-2) in gastric cancer. The correlations with the tumor angiogenesis and patients' survival. Rom. J. Morphol. Embryol. 2008; 49:371–9.

21. Leung WK, To KF, Chu ES, Chan MW, Bai AH, Ng EK, Chan FK, Sung JJ. Potential diagnostic and prognostic values of detecting promoter hypermethylation in the serum of patients with gastric cancer. Br. J. Cancer. 2005; 92: 2190–4.

22. Liu F, Pan K, Zhang X, Zhang Y, Zhang L. Genetic variants in cyclooxygenase-2, expression and risk of gastric cancer and its precursors in a Chinese population. Gastroenterology. 2006; 130: 1975–84.

23. Otsubo T, Akiyama Y, Yanagihara K, Yuasa Y. SOX2 is frequently downregulated in gastric cancers and inhibits cell growth through cellcycle arrest and apoptosis. Br. J. Cancer. 2008; 98: 824–31.

24. Scartozzi M, Galizia E, Freddari F, Berardi R. Molecular biology of sporadic gastric cancer: prognostic indicators and novel therapeutic approaches. Cancer Treat. Rev. 2004; 30: 451–9.

TYPES OF DYSFUNCTIONAL CONDITIONS OF TEMPOROMANDIBULAR JOINT BY ETIOLOGY AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THEIR PATHOGENESIS

Yatsenko P.I.

Key words: temporomandibular joint (TMJ), dysfunctions, aetiology, pathogenesis.

Numerous publications in professional dental and general medical publications in recent years have re-flected the growing interest in the problem of temporomandibular joint (TMJ) dysfunctional conditions that is explained by the large number of patients suffering from this problem, by the polymorphism of clinical manifestations due to different aetiology of these conditions, special characteristics of pathogenesis. All this can impede in making correct diagnosis and prescribing proper treatment. It has been determined that the leading factors in the development of TMJ dysfunctional conditions include occlusive articulation, neuromuscular disorders, chronic joint injury. The key points in the development of occlusal-articulatory dysfunction are dentition enddefects, impaired inter-alveolar distances due to excess abrasion of the chewing dental surfaces, decreasing bite, etc. It is considered that muscle spasm is a leading element in the development of neuromuscular dysfunction. The neurogenic factor in the development of the neuromuscular type of TMJ dysfunction is characteristic of persons with a labile nervous system. The causes for the development of traumatic TMJ dysfunction include inadequately long-term dental procedures, when a patient has to sit in the dental arm-chair with an open mouth for hours for teeth restoration, impression taking, and difficult removal of lower molars. There are postural and multifactorial concepts of the development of TMJ dysfunction. Therefore, the search for the leading mechanisms of the development of certain types of TMJ disorders with their systematic analysis is a constant

process that motivates the specialists and opens up new prospects and options for using the latest techniques of patient examination to make diagnosis more precise and to carry out adequate and effective treatment.

References

1. Ivasenko PI, Savchenko RK, Miskevich MI, Fel'ker VV. Zabolevanija visochnonizhnecheljustnogo sustava[Diseases of the temporomandibular joint] M.: Meditsinskaja kniga, 2009. 116 p. (Ukrainian).

2. Brega IN, Doronin BM, Adon'eva AV. Kompleksnyj podhod v lechenii i reabilitatsii bol'nyh s miofactsial'nym bolevym sindromom litsa. [An integrated approach in the treatment and rehabilitation of patients with myofacial pain of the face] Bjulleten' sibirskoj meditsiny. 2010;4:28-34. (Russian).

3. Makeev VF, Olijnik MJu. Suchasni pogljadi na etiologichni chinniki rozvitku skronevonizhn'oschelepnih rozladiv (ogljad literatur). [Modern views on the etiological factors of the development of temporomandibular disorder (review of literature)] Ukraïns'kij stomatologichnij al'manah. 2018;2:49-53. (Ukrainian).

4. Egorov PM, Karapetjan IS. Bolevaja disfunktsija visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava [Pain dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] M.: Meditsina. 1986. 130 p. (Russian).

5. Shijan VP. O rasprostranennosti funktsional'nyh narushenij visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava u lits raznogo vozrasta. Mater. Vseukr. n.-prakt. konf. z mizhnar. uchastju «Suchasni dosjagnennja ta perspektivi rozvitku hirurgichnoï stomatologiï ta schelepno-litsevoï hirurgiï». [About the prevalence of functional dis-orders of the temporomandibular joint in people of different ages] Kharkiv. 2010. 104-106. (Ukrainian).

6. Volovar OS, Kopchak AV. Mezhdunarodnaja konferentsija «TMJ biolodgy, diagnostics and surgical management» 2012 g. Groninger, Niderlandy. Mater. III z'ïzdu Ukraïns'koï asotsiatsiï cherepno-schelepno-litsevih hirurgiv.- Kiev. 2013.45-52. (Ukrainian).

7. Urakov AL, Sojher MI, Sojher MG, Reshetnikov AP. Hronicheskaja litsevaja bol',svjazannaja s gipertonusom zhevatel'nyh myshts. [Chronic facial pain associated with masticatory muscle hypertonia] Rossijskij zhurnal boli. 2014;2:22 – 26. (Russian).

8. Michalak M. Incidence of abnormalities in temporomandibular joints in a population of 1,100 urban and rural patients lacking teeth and other parafunctions in 2003-2008. An international problem. Ann Agric Environ Med. 2013; 20:86-90.

9. Kucuk V, Ebeoglu B, Dincer S. Etiology of temporomandibular disorder pain. Oral Rehabil. Agri. 2009; 21:89-94.

10. Schiffman EL, Truelove EL, Ohrbach R et al. The research diagnostic criteria for temporomandibular disorders. I: overview and methodology for assessment of validity. J. Orofac. Pain. 2010;24:7–24.

11. Gajvoronskij IV, Vojtjatskaja IV, Iordanishvili AK, Gajvoronskaja MG. Anatomicheskie predposylki sindroma Kostena. [Anatomical background of Kosten syndrome] Kurskij nauchnoprakticheskij vestnik "Chelovek i ego zdorov'e". 2014;1:24-28. (Russian).

12. Vitanova LS, Goncalves TM, Meirellts L, Garcia RC. Hormonal fluctuations intensify temporomandibular disorder pain without impaining masticative function. Int. J. Prosthodont. 2015; 28:72-74.

13. Oborin LF, Patlusova ES. Vzaimodejstvie biomehanicheskih i gemodinamicheskih faktorov disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava vrozhdjonnogo i priobretjonnogo proishozhdenija. [The interaction of biomechanical and hemody-namic factors of dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint of con-genital and acquired origin] Rossijskij zhurnal biomehaniki. 2009; 13(4):94–107. (Russian).

14. Piskun DV, Tokarevich IV. Rasprostranennost' visochno-nizhnecheljustnyh rasstrojstv u lits v vozraste 17 - 30let. [Preva-lence of temporomandibular disorders in persons aged 17-30 years] Medicine science and education scientific and informational journal, January. Yerevan. 2017;22:

134-135. (Russian).

15. Gui MS, Pimentel MJ, Rizzatti-Barbosa CM. Temporomandibular disorders in fibromyalgia syndrome: a short-communication. Revista Brasileira de Reumatologia. 2015; 55(2): 189-194.

16. Papazjan AT, Mazmanjan GA, Barsegjan TA. Sostojanie visochno-nizhnecheljustnyh sustavov u patsientov s mezial'noj okkljuziej [The state of the temporomandibular joints in patients with mesial occlu-sion]. Meditsinskij Vestnik `Erebuni. 2011; 1: 32-35. (Russian)

17. Luciano AF, Grossman E, Januzzi E. Diagnosis of temporomandibular joint disorders: indication of imagine exams. Otorhinolaryngol. 2016; 82(3): 342.

18. Hirsch C, John MT, Stang A. Association between generalized joint hypermobility and signs and diagnoses of temporomandibular disorders. Eur J. Oral Sci. 2008;116:525.

19. Soldatova LN. Vozrastnye osobennosti patologii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava i zhevatel'nyh myshts i ih lechenie :avtoref. dis. kand. med. Nauk. SPb., [Age features of the pathology of the temporomandibular joint and masticatory muscles and their treatment] [dissertation]; 2011. 26 p. (Russian).

20. Ishmurzin PV, Danilova MA. Lechenie distal'noj okkljuzii zubnyh rjadov, sochetannoj s disfunktsiej visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Treatment of distal occlusion of the dentition, combined with dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Problemy stomatologii Actual Problems of Stomatology. 2012; 1:70-5. (Russian).

21. Makeev V.F., Ribert Ju.O., Magera N.S. Suchasni pogljadi na etiologiju i patogenez disfunktsij skronevo-nizhn'o-schelepnih suglobiv. [Modern views on the etiology and pathogenesis of dys-functions of the temporomandibular joints. Literature review.] Ogljad literaturi. Novini stomatologii. 2014; 1: 14-8. (Ukrainian).

22. Jose G. Temporomandibular Dysfunction and Headache Disoder. Jose G., Fabiola Dach. Journal of Oral Pathology and Medicine. 2015; 55(1): 72-83.

23. Shilenko DR. Likuvannja kombinovanoï disfunktsiï skronevo-nizhn'oschelepnogo sugloba iz zastosuvannjam nakusnoï plastinki za Asselmeyer.[Treatment of combined dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint using the asselmeyer tincture plate] Svit meditsini ta biologiï. 2012; 3: 115-9. (Ukrainian).

24. Korobkeev AA. Izmenenija strukturnyh `elementov visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava pri distal'noj okkljuzii. [Changes in the structural elements of the temporomandibular joint in distal occlusion] Meditsinskij vestnik Severnogo Kavkaza. 2017; 12(1):72-76. (Russian).

25. Novikov VM, Lun'kova JuS. Koreljatsijni zv'jazki mizh m'jazovo-suglobovoju disfunktsicju SNSchS ta okljuzij nimi porushennjami pri riznih vidah prikusiv. [Correlation between musculoskeletal dysfunction of the CNS and occlusion disorders in various types of bites] Problemi ekologii ta meditsini. 2011;15(3–4):120-2. (Ukrainian).

26. Ratevosjan MK. Disfunktsija visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava pri hlystovoj travme. [Dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint with whip injury] Medicine science and education scientific and informational journaln, - January-no.22, Yerevan, 2017. P.231 – 233. (Russian)

27. Gandyljan KS, Puzin MN. Sovremennye podhody k diagnostike i lecheniju hronicheskih neparoksizmal'nyh prozopalgij. [Modern ap-proaches to the diagnosis and treatment of chronic non-paroxysmal prozopalgy] Rossijskij stomatologicheskij zhurnal. 2009; 3: 26-9. (Russian).

28. Peck CC, Goulet JP, Lobbezoo F et al. Expanding the taxonomy of the diagnostic criteria for temporomandibular disorders. Journal of Oral Rehabilitation. 2014; 41(1): 2-23.

29. Orlova OR, Sojher MI, Sojher MG, Mingazova RO. Gipertonus zhevatel'nyh myshts i botulinicheskij toksin tipa A (Lantoks) v stomatologicheskoj praktike. [Chewing muscle hypertonus and botulinum toxin type A (Lantox) in the dental practice] zh.VRACh, 2009; 9: 13–9. (Russian).

30. Martins-Junior RL et al. Temporomandibular disorders:a report of 124 patients. J. Contemp. Dent. Pract. 2010; 11: 71-8. [PubMed:.20978727].

31. Zaschihin E.N. Otsenka `effektivnosti ortopedicheskogo lechenija patsientov pri sindrome zhzhenija jazyka, obuslovlennom disfunktsiej visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Evaluation of the effectiveness of orthopedic treatment of patients with tongue burning syndrome caused by

dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Rossijskij stomatologicheskij zhurnal. 2012; 2: 32 - 35. (Russian).

32. Orlova OR, Konovalova ZN, Alekseeva AJu. Vzaimosvjaz' bruksizma i bolevoj disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [The relationship of bruxism and pain dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] RMZh. 2017; 24: 1760-1763. (Russian).

33. Ronkin K. Vzaimosvjaz' zvona v ushah i disfunktsii visochnonizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Interconnection of calls to the ears and func-tions of the mandibular joint] Dental Market. 2011; 2: 77–81. (Russian).

34. Manfredini D. Visochno-nizhnecheljustnye. [Temporomandibular disorders] Moskva : Azbuka, 2013; 500 p. (Russian).

35. Tlustenko VP. Diagnostika i kompleksnoe lechenie sindroma bolevoj disfunktsii visochnonizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Diagnosis and complex treatment of the syndrome of pain dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Saratovskij nauchno-meditsinskij zhurnal. 2013; 9(3): 480-4. (Russian).

36. Novikov VM, Rybalov OV, Jatsenko OI, Jatsenko PI. Asimmetrija razmerov i form sustavnyh golovok odna iz prichin kompressionno-dislokatsionnoj disfunktsii visochnonizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Asymmetry of the size and shape of the articular heads is one of the causes of compression-dislocation dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Aktual'ni problemi suchasnoï meditsini. 2017; 2(58): 251-5. (Ukrainian).

37. Semenov PP, Gandyljan KS, Karakov KG. Otsenka sostojanija mozgovoj gemodinamiki u patsientov s sindromom bolevoj disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Assessment of cerebral hemodynamics in patients with temporomandibular joint pain dysfunction syndrome] Fundamental'nye issledovanija. 2012; 7: 390-3. (Russian).

38. Bron C, Dommerholt JD. Etiology of Myofascial Trigger Points. Curr Pain Headache Rep. 2012; 16: 439-44.

39. Oborin LF, Patlusova ES. Vzaimodejstvie biomehanicheskih i gemodinamicheskih faktorov disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava vrozhdjonnogo i priobretjonnogo proishozhdenija. [The interaction of biomechanical and hemody-namic factors of dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint of con-genital and acquired origin] Rossijskij zhurnal biomehaniki. 2009; 13(4): 94-107. (Russian).

40. Rybalov OV, Yatsenko PI, Yatsenko OI, Ivanitskaja ES. Miofastsial'naja simptomatika u bol'nyh myshechno-sustavnoj kompressionno-dislokatsionnoj disfunktsiej visochnonizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Myofascial symptoms in patients with musculo-articular compressiondislocation dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Svit meditsini ta biologiï. 2016; 2(56): 77-80. (Ukrainian).

41. Jonathon R, Kirsch DO. C-NMM/OMM Associate an Osteopathic Manipulative Approachto: Temporomandibular Joint Dysfunction Associate Physician Neuromuscul oskeletal. Medicine/OMM Marshfield Clinic Stevens Point, Wisconsin Presentingat WAOPS Fall Seminar. 2015; 25-26.

42. Podvjaznikov SO. Kratkij vzgljad na problemu kserostomii. [A brief look at the problem of xerostomia] Opuholi golovy i shei. 2015; 1: 42-44. (Russian).

43. Rybalov OV, Ivanitskaja ES, Yatsenko PI, Yatsenko OI. Funktsional'noe sostojanie okoloushnyh sljunnyh zhelez u patsikntov s kompressionno-dislokatsionnoj disfunktsiej visochnonizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Functional state of the parotid salivary glands in patients with compression-dislocation dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Sbornik trudov Natsional'nogo kongressa s mezhdunarodnym uchastiem «Parinskie chtenija». Minsk. 2016; 141–3. (Ukrainian).

44. Novikov VM, Yatsenko PI, Rybalov OV. Miofatsial'naja simptomatika v klinike kompressionno-dislokatsionnoj disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Myofacial symptoms in the clinic of compression-dislocation dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Ukraïns'kij stomatologichnij al'manah. 2017; 1: 32-36. (Ukrainian).

45. Iordanishvili AK, Serikov AA, Ryzhak GA. Znachenie individual'nyh osobennostej anatomicheskogo stroenija visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava v vozniknovenii ego disfunktsional'nyh zabolevanij u vzroslyh ljudej razlichnogo vozrasta. [The value of the individual characteristics of the anatomical structure of the temporomandibular joint in the occurrence of its dysfunctional dis-eases in adults of different ages] Medline. 2012; 13: 608 – 619. (Russian).

46. Volovar OS. Diagnostika ta likuvannja zahvorjuvan' skronevo-nizhn'oschelepnogo sugloba na foni somatichnih zahvorjuvan'. [Di-agnosis and treatment of diseases of the temporomandibular joint on the background of somatic diseases] Avtoref. dis. doktora med. nauk: 14.01.22-stomatologija.- K.- 2013. 40 p. (Ukrainian).

47. Jakovlev VM, Karpov RS, Bakulina EG. Soedinitel'notkannye displazii skeleta cheloveka (Prenatal'naja i postnatal'naja diagnostika i prognozirovanie). [Connective tissue dysplasia of the human skeleton (Prenatal and postnatal diagnosis and prognosis)] M.: UITs HHI vek. 2009; 192 p. (Russian).

48. Gui MS, Pimentel MJ, Rizzatti-Barbosa CM. Temporomandibular disorders in fibromyalgia syndrome: a short-communication. Revista Brasileirade Reumatologia. 2015; 55(2): 189-194.

49. Dolgalev AA, Umanskaja JuN. Vlijanie displazii soedinitel'noj tkani na vozniknovenie disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [The effect of connective tissue dysplasia on the occurrence of dysfunction of the temporomandibular joint] Meditsinskij vestnik Severnogo Kavkaza. 2013; 8(4): 65-68. (Russian).

50. Björne A. Assessment of temporomandibular and cervical spine disorders in tinnitus patients. Prog. Bra. 2013; 45: 135.

51. Iordanishvili AK, Samsonov VV, Serikov AA, Polens AA. Lechebno-profilakticheskie meroprijatija i ih 'effektivnost' pri zabolevanijah visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava u lits pozhilogo i starcheskogo vozrasta. [Therapeutic and prophylactic measures and their effectiveness in diseases of the temporomandibular joint in the elderly] Parodontologija. 2011; 4(61): 46-51. (Russian).

52. Ivanov VV, Markov NM. Vlijanie zubocheljustnoj sistemy na postural'nyj status patsienta. [Influence of the dental-maxillary system on the apostatic patient] Manual'naja terapija. 2013; 3(51): 83–89. (Russian).

53. Silaev AM, Novosel'tsev SV. Sindrom disfunktsii visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava v praktike vracha osteopata. Kliniko-diagnosticheskie aspekty. [The temporomandibular joint dysfunc-tion syndrome in the practice of an osteopath. Clinical and diagnostic aspects] Manual'naja terapija. 2014; 3(55): 40-52. (Russian).

54. Njashin JuI. Vzaimodejstvie zubocheljustnoj sistemy s drugimi sistemami chelovecheskogo organizma v ramkah kontseptsii virtual'nogo fiziologicheskogo cheloveka. [The interaction of the dental system with other systems of the human body in the frame-work of the concept of a virtual physiological person] Rossijskij zhurnal biomehaniki. 2011; 3(53): 8–26. (Russian).

55. Maksimova EA. Razrabotka algoritma kontrolja ortopedicheskogo stomatologicheskogo lechenija patsientov s disfunktsiej visochno-nizhnecheljustnogo sustava i postural'nymi narushenijami: avtoref. dis. ... kand. med. nauk. [Development of an algorithm for control-ling orthopedic dental treatment of patients with temporomandibular joint dysfunction and postural disorders] M. 2014. 18 p. (Russian).

56. Bugrovetskaja EA. Postural'noeravnovesie i okkljuzijazubov. Rol' narushenij okkljuzii v vozniknovenii postupal'nogo disbalansa pri nejro stomatologicheskih zabolevanijah. [Postural equilibrium and occlusion of the teeth. The role of occlusion disorders in the occur-rence of a progressive imbalance in neuro-dental diseases] Manual'naja terapija. 2008; 2(30). 40-48. (Russian).

57. Rubleva IA. Otsenka vlijanija ortodonticheskih apparatov dlja vydvizhenija nizhnejcheljusti na postural'noe ravnovesie. [Evalua-tion of the influence of orthodontic appliances for the extension of the lower jaw on postural balance] Ortodontija. 2011; 4:18–21. (Russian).

58. Fomichjov EV, Jarygin EN. Diagnostika i lechenie sindroma bolevoj disfunktsii visochno-

nizhnecheljustnogo sustava. [Diagnosis and treatment of temporomandibular joint pain dysfunction syndrome] Vestnik VolgGMU. 2015; 3(55):133-135. (Russian).

ПОГЛЯД НА ПРОБЛЕМУ

УДК 616.31:546.82

SOME ASPECTS OF TITANIUM APPLICATION IN DENTAL TREATMENT

Bachanek Teresa, Zimenkovsky Andrzej, Szybinsky Volodimir, Pitura Karolina, Hendzel Barbara, Wolańska Ewa, Samborski Dariusz, Borowicz Janusz, Tymczyna-Borowicz Barbara

Medical University in Lublin, Poland

Lviv National Medical University named Danylo Galician, Ukraine

University of Life Sciences in Lublin, Poland

Titanium is a light grey metal found in such minerals as ilmenite, rutile and titanite. Nanoparticles are becoming more widely used in medicine, dentistry, pharmacy and as food additives. The aim of this work was to highlight some aspects in applying titanium and its alloys in dental restorations. Both medical and dental implant surgeons despite of huge efforts in using biocompatible materials face some challenging issues on complications which might appear even when using as inert metals as titanium. These problems may develop due to the penetration of aluminium and vanadium ions, found in negligible quantities in the implant alloys, into the body tissues. Failures in placing titanium implant can be caused by galvanic or electrochemical corrosion in the oral cavity due to release of titanium ions into the neighbouring tissues. Other possible failures in implant placement may develop due to bacterial contamination, and the development of implant inflammatory reaction supported by presence of macrophages may lead to implant rejection and loss. Released titanium ions inhibit the growth of hydroxyapatites. During corroding process metal ions or corrosion products penetrate body tissues and enter the body cells. Their local activity is known as 'metallosis'. From the biological point of view this results in tissue damage. Another possible adverse effect that might be caused by metal implants and their corrosion is allergic reactions. Side effects are rare as physical and chemical properties of titanium, first and foremost, its biocompatibility, define it as s recommended material to use in oral surgery, endodontics, prosthetics and orthodontics.

Key words: titanium, alloy, implant placement, adverse reaction.

The aim of this work was to highlight some as-pects in applying titanium and its alloys in dental restorations based of available literature recourses.

Titanium is a widespread element makes up 0,61% of the Earth crust. It is a light, grey metal found in such minerals as ilmenite, rutile and titanite [1].

Titanium whites have been widely used for years in the building construction, dyeing and car industries. Fragmentation of metal particles to the nanoparticle scale has made it possible to broaden the spectrum of its application. Nanoparticles are used in medicine, dentistry, pharmacy and as food additives [2]. Due to extensive application of tita-nium, its permanent presence in the environment (water, soil) is increasing. There have been numer-ous studies done over the past few years on the in-fluence of titanium white nanoparticles on plants. The results of the studies vary. Titanium is a bio-stimulator that affects the growth and yielding of vegetables, orchard and ornamental plants [3]. Ac-cording to Michałowski, titanium provides a positive effect on the increase of iron ions activity, intake of nutrients, as well as plant health [4]. Other aspects of wide use of titanium include its polluting effect on the environment and its toxicity for living organisms [5]. The mean dose of titanium intake is 0,8 mg. The tests show that most of the dose is not

absorbed but has the potential of accumulating in plant tissues (from 1 ppm to 80 ppm). Titanium dioxide nanoparticles may reach lungs, liver, spleen and brain via respiratory or digestive tract. They cause imbalance of biochemical parameters and changes in gene expression and consequently the damage of internal organs [6].

The acceptable level of titanium dioxide nanoparticles concentration is 0,3 mg/m3.

Titanium takes the form of two allotropes: low-temperature alpha and high-temperature beta. In the ambient temperature, there is alpha phase with dopants like oxygen, hydrogen, iron, nitrogen, and all they can influence properties of titanium alloy to various degrees (e.g. oxygen increases titanium hardness, while hydrogen increases its brittleness) [7].

The use of titanium in medicine is possible due to its biocompatibility with living tissues and resis-tance to corrosion [8,9,10]. Moreover, titanium is resistant to diluted acids i.e. hydrochloric and sul-phuric acids, organic acids, sulphides, chlorides, hydrogen sulphide, hydrogen peroxide when it is dissolves in concentrated acids.

There is a marked affinity between titanium and oxygen, and titanium creates a tight and durable layer of oxides, mainly titanium dioxide on the metal surface. The layer of titanium dioxide is not dissolved in the oral cavity and titanium ions, which might react with the living body tissues, are not re-leased. Biological inertness of the oxides layer has a positive influence on the healing process and bone tissue re-modelling [11].

An important parameter of titanium is its low Young's elasticity modulus similar to the cortical bone elasticity modulus, which when properly cho-sen can prevent bone resorption, overstraining and implant destruction.

Titanium alloys have higher material fatigue re-sistance than pure titanium [12,13,14,15]. In prac-tice, the most common alloys are titanium and va-nadium or titanium and aluminium (Ti6Al4V) [13].

Resistance to corrosion that decreases along with decreasing material homogeneity, is the obvious advantage of titanium alloys. It has been proven that titanium alloys of decreased homogeneity can release increased number of titanium ions to the environment [13]. Implants can be made from pure titanium and their surfaces modified in the process of sandblasting or other preparation techniques, e.g. machine processing. The use of pure titanium or its alloy processed by sandblasting does not significantly influence the surface structure or chemical composition. The rough implant surface obtained by preparation has good contact with bone tissues [11,12,16].

Titanium was mostly found on the surfaces of implants prepared by machine working; no oxygen was detected. In the samples prepared by sand-blasting method, the contents of titanium and oxy-gen were similar and aluminium and sodium were also present. The presence of these elements in the pure titanium samples could be the consequence of using abrasive. Thus, the implant surface composition depends both on the chemical composition of the material used for machine working and on the preparation method. Metalworking of titanium and its alloys, hence dental restorations made from them, present a serious challenge [12,17].

Based on the results of tests, Tani has proved that titanium an alloy sandblasting requires more time than sandblasting other alloys, e.g. Au-Ag-Pb and Ni-Cr. Some patients with titanium restorations complained of oversensitivity (Muller, 2006) and slight metallic flavour [18].

Dental plaque build-up on titanium crowns is similar to the plaque formed on the crowns made up of other metal alloys [19]. Probste et.al (1991) showed that titanium restorations: 'have the tendency to develop plaque on the surface' [20].

The process of osteointegration that according to Branemark: 'is a direct structural and functional connection of live bone with the surface of a loaded implant', is vital in the dental treatment [21]. The procedure of implant placement is influenced by the bone condition, the technique applied, biocompatibility of the material, physical and chemical properties of the implant surface.

Studies have shown that activity of body cells, which are in direct contact with an implant is susceptible to implant properties such as chemical composition of the surface, roughness, thickness of

the oxides layer. Medium-rough implants intensify the osteointegration process [11, 16, 22, 23,].

Due to its physical and chemical properties and excellent biocompatibility titanium and its alloys are used in oral surgery, endodontics, prosthetics and orthodontics [24].

Titanium casting is a real problem as dental restoration casts exhibit empty spaces which, if big, produce some quality problems. Empty spaces can be detected by X-ray, and can not during clinical evaluation [13]. Despite of many advantages of dental implant placement, there are some contraindications for this type of restoration, they include:

- cardiovascular diseases e.g. valvular heart diseases

- kidney diseases
- -osteoporosis
- diabetes
- radiotherapy
- drug addiction, smoking, alcoholism

Among relative contraindications there is preg-nancy, systemic diseases, immune suppressed conditions, mental disorders, some anatomical conditions, for example, atrophy of bone surface. Age is not as a contraindication for implant place-ment although age-related diseases may be regarded a limitation [8, 24].

Both medical and dental implant surgeons de-spite of huge efforts in using biocompatible materials face some challenging issues on complications which might appear even when using as inert met-als as titanium.

These problems may develop due to the pene-tration of aluminium and vanadium ions, found in negligible quantities in the implant alloys, into the body tissues.

Morphology of oral cavity mucous membranes, especially lamina propria is designed to provide protection. Ions released from implants are ab-sorbed by the mucous membrane and their spread-ing within the body is limited [25,26]. Failures in placing titanium implant can be caused by galvanic or electrochemical corrosion in the oral cavity due to release of titanium ions into the neighbouring tis-sues. Such corroding activity of titanium-containing materials differs depending on the environmental pH and chemical composition [27].

Other possible failures in implant placement may develop due to bacterial contamination, and the development of implant inflammatory reaction supported by presence of macrophages may lead to implant rejection and loss. Released titanium ions inhibit the growth of hydroxyapatites [10, 16, 22]. Therefore, it seems quite appropriate to apply pure, class IV titanium, which has physical parameters similar to titanium alloys and is characterised by good strength and corrosion resistance. Ele-ments made of titanium alloys are covered by a thin layer of titanium oxide forming so- called passive layer in the oxidizing atmosphere.

During corroding process metal ions or corro-sion products penetrate body tissues and enter the body cells. Their local activity is known as 'metallo-sis' by Nicole [30,31,32]. From the biological point of view this results in tissue damage [33].

Another possible adverse effect that might be caused by metal implants and their corrosion is allergic reactions. Most often they are reactions to trace quantities of chromium, nickel, cobalt [34].

Another unfavourable reaction caused by the presence of metal implants and their corrosion are allergic reactions. There are available studies that suggest unfavourable reactions after pure titanium implant surgeries with complications involving fistu-las, matallosis or allergic reactions [35,36,37].

Some of these reactions may be delayed and appear as bone or bone marrow inflammations and are described during orthopaedic treatment [38]. Patients after dental procedures may experience skin allergic reactions that disappear once the im-plants are removed [39].

Valentine-Thon et al. suggest that allergic reac-tions are reactions to trace quantities of nickel, co-balt and palladium, although the implants are re-ported as the pure titanium ones [40].

There is no scientifically confirmed evidence that titanium causes allergic reactions [35].

There are also no titanium specific skin tests that should be administered to supersensitive patients whose implants might be rejected [41]. Side effects are rare as physical and chemical properties of titanium, first and foremost, its biocompatibility, define it as s recommended material to use in oral surgery, endodontics, prosthetics and orthodontics.

The research conducted by Makuch has proven that the content of titanium in oral mucosa membrane covering endogenous dental implants varied and most probably depended on the type of implant placement method used. Titanium content is estimated at 0.00 μ g/g to 122.5 μ g/g [42] while the implant location, age and sex of the patient has no impact on the titanium content in the mucous membrane tissues.

Conclusion

Despite objections of some scientists, titanium has been proven as a material worth recommending and using in medical implant surgery.

References

1. Emsley J. Nature's Building Blocks: An A-Z Guide to the Elements. Oxford: Oxford University Press. 2001. P. 451–455.

2. Krebs RE. The History and Use of Our Earth's Chemical Elements: A Reference Guide. Wyd. 2. Westport, CT: Greenwood Press. 2006. 396p.

3. Markiewicz B, Kleiber T. Influence of tytanit application on the chemical composition of root zone of tomato growing in rockwool. Nauka Przyroda Technologie. 2014; 8(3): 2-4.

4. Michalski P. The effect of Tytanit on the yield structure and the fruit size of strawberry 'Senga Sengana' and 'Elsanta'. Ann. Univ. Mariae Curie-Skłodowska, Sect. E. 2008; 63(3): 109-118.

5. Matej M et al. Titanium dioxide in our everyday life; is it safe?, "Radiology and Oncology". 2011; 45(4): 227–247.

6. Świdniwska-Gajewska AM, Czerczak S. Titanium dioxide nanoparticles: Occupational exposure limits.Med Pr. 2014; 65(3): 407-18.

7. Jokstad A, Braegger U, Brunski J, Rochester A, Naert I, Wenner-berg A. Quality of dental implants. Internat. Dent. J. 2003: 53: 409–43.

8. Makuch K, Koczorowski R. Biokompatybilność tytanu oraz jego stopów wykorzystywanych w stomatologii. Dent. Med. Probl. 2010; 7 (1): 81–8.

9. Smith WF. Structure and properties of engineering alloys, McGraw-Hill, Inc., USA; 1993. 298p.

10. Watanabe I, Wataha JC, Lockwood PE et al. Cytotoxicity of com-mercial and novel binary titanium alloys with and without a surface-reaction Iayer. J Oral Rehab. 2004; 31(7):185–189.

11. Albrektssonit L, Bränemark P-I, Hansson H-A, Kasemo B, Larsson K, Lundström I, Douglas H, Mc Queen R. The interface zone of inorganic implants. In vivo: Titano implants in bone, Annals of Biomed Engine. 1983; 11(1): 1-27.

12. Jedynak B, Mierzwińska-Nastalska E. Tytan – właściwości i zastosowanie w protetyce stomatologicznej, Dental Forum 2013; 41: 76-8.

13. Jedynak B, Mierzwińska-Nastalska E. Metody przetwarzania tytany stosowane w praktyce stomatologicznej. Protet. Stomatol. 2013. 62(3): 224-33.

14. Larson C, Thomsen P, Aronsson B-O, Rodah M, Kasemo B, Ericson LE. Bone response to surface-modified titanium implants: studies on the early tissue response to machined and electropolished implants with different oxide thicknesses. Bio-materials. 1996 Mar;17(6):605-16.

15. Majewski P, Gronkiewicz K, Majewski S. Practical aspects of dental implants tissue integration. Implantoprotetyka. 2011; 12(3–4): 44–47.

16. Wennerberg A, Albrektson T. Effects of titanium surface topography on bone integration: a systematic review. Clin. Oral Implants Res. 2009; 20: 172–84.

17. Łukaszewska-Kuska M, Dorocka-Bobkowska B, Majchrowski R. Analiza właściwości fizycznych i biologicznych powierzchni maszynowej i modyfikowanej stopu tytanu Ti6Al4V. Część 1. Badania struktury i składu chemicznego powierzchni, Dent. Med. Probl. 2014; 51(2): 205–11.

18. Müller K, Valentine-Thon E. Hypersensitivity to titanium: Clinical and laboratory evidence. Neuro Endocrinol Lett. 2006; 27: 31–5.

19. Toru Okabe, Hakon Hero. The Use of Titanium in Dentistry. Cells and Materials. 1995; 2(5): 9-13.

20. Probst P, Baumgartner Ch, Gottsauner-Wolf M. The influence of the presence of collaterals on restenosis after PTCA. Clincal Cardiology. 1991; 14(10): 35-8.

21. Brånemark PI, Zarb GA, Albrektsson T. Tissue – Integrated Pros-theses. Osseointegration in Clinical Dentistry. Quintessence Publishing Co., Chicago 1985. 350p.

22. Blumenthal NC, Cosma V. Inhibition of apatite for mation by titanium and vanadium ions. J Biomed Mater Res. 1989; April, (A1 Suppl): 13-22.

23. Schwartz Z, Martin IY, Dean DB, Simpson J, Cohran DL, Boyan BD. Effect of titanium surface roughness on chonorocyte proliferation, matrix production and differentiation depends on the state of cell maturation. J Biomed Mater Res. 1996; 30(2): 145-155.

24. Koczorowski RW. Geroprotetyka. Rekonstrukcje narządu żucia u osób starszych". Med Tour Press International. Otwock 2010. 287p.

25. Kmieć Z. Histologia i cytofizjologia zęba i jamy ustnej. Dziąsło. Elsevier Urban&Partner. Wrocław. 2006. P.82–92.

26. Welander M, Abrahamsson I, Linder E, Liljenberg B, Berglundh T. Soft tissue healing at titanium implants coated with type I collagen. An experimental study in dogs. J. Clin. Periodontol. 2007; 34 (5): 452-58.

27. Krupa D, Baszkiewicz J, Kozubowski JA, Lewandowska-Szumieł M, Barcz A, Sobczak JW, Biliński A, Rajchel A. Effect of calcium and phosphorus ion mplantation on the corrosion resistance and biocompatibility of titanium. Biomed Mater. Eng. 2004; 14 (4): 525–36.

28. Ferreira SB, Figueiredo CM, Almeida AL, Assis GF, Dionísio TJ, Santos CF. Clinical, Histological, and Microbiological Findings in Peri-Implant Disease: A Pilot Study. Implant Dent. 2009;18 (4): 334-44.

29. Koczorowski R, Hemerling M, Szponar E, Wiśniewska–Spychała B. A study of bacterial flora of intrabony pockets after the loss of implants caused by periimplantitis. Polish J. Environ. Stud. 2007; 16 (6C):124–9.

30. Jańczuk Z, Banach J. Local argyrosis of oral mucosa or amalgam tattoo. A problem in diagnosis and treatment. Adv. Med. Sci. 2006; 51(1): 62-5.

31. Shan-Hui H, Bai-Shuan L, Wen-Hung L, Heng-Chieh CH, Shih-Ching H, Shih-Shyong CH. Characterization and biocompatibility of a titanium dental implant with a laser irradiated and ual-acid etched surface. Biomed. Mater. Eng. 2007; 17: 53–68.

32. Olmedo DG, Duffo G, Cabrini RL, Guglielmotti MB. Local effect of titanium implant corrosion: an experimental study in rats. Int. J. Oral Maxillofac. Surg. 2008; 37 (11): 1032–8.

33. Marciniak J, Paszenda Z. Biotolerancja biomateriałów metalicznych. Spondyloimplantologia zaawansowanego leczenia kręgosłupa systemem DERO. Polska Grupa DERO, Stowarzyszenie Studiów i Leczenia Kręgosłupa. Zielona Góra, 2005. P.133-142

34. Stangricka-Mazurek A, Szponar E. Występowanie liszaja płaskiego jamy ustnej a obecność wypełnień amalgamatowych. Dent. Forum. 2006; 2: 39-42.

35. Rusinek B, Stobiecka A, Obtułowicz K. Alergia na tytan i implanty. Alergologia. Immunologia. 2008; 5 (1): 5–7.

36. Tomizawa Y, Hanawa T. Corrosion of Pure Titanium Sternal Wire. Ann. Thorac. Surg. 2007; 84 (3): 1012–4.

37. Olmedo DG, Michanié E, Olvi L, Santini-Araujo E, Cabrini RL. Malignant Fibrous Histiocytoma Associated With Coxofemoralarthrodesis, Tumori. 2007; 93(5): 504-7.

38. Brunetce DM, Tengvall P, Textor M, Thomsen P. Titanium in medi-cine, Springer. Germany; 2001. 1019p.

39. Špiewak R. Alergia kontaktowa – diagnostyka i postępowanie. Alergia, Astma, Immunologia. 2007; 12 (3): 109–27.

40. Valentine-Thon E, Müller K, Guzzi G, Kreisel S, Ohnsorge P, Sandkamp M. LTT-MELISA is clinically relevant for detecting and monitoring metal sensitivity. Neuro Endocrinol. Lett. 2006; 27 (Suppl 1): 17–24.

41. Sicilia A, Cuesta S, Coma G, Arregui I, Guisasola C, Ruiz E, Maestro A. Titanium allergy in dental implant patients: a clinical study on 1500 consecutive patients. Clin Oral Implants Res. 2008; 19 (8): 823-835.

42. Makuch K. Analiza zawartości tytanu w błonie śluzowej pokrywającej dwuetapowe tytanowe wszczepy śródkostne w okresie ich wgajania. Rozprawa doktorska, Poznań. 2011. 92p.

КЛІНІЧНИЙ ВИПАДОК

HEART VALVE ABNORMALITIES IN NOONAN SYNDROME: LITERARY REVIEW AND CASE STUDY

Zhdan V.M., Katerenchuk O.I.

Key words: Noonan syndrome, congenital heart defects, combined heart valve abnormalities, diagnosis, cardiac surgery.

The article presents the literary review of already described heart valve abnormalities in Noonan syn-drome as well as describes a case in authors' own practice. Noonan syndrome belongs to the group of RAS-pathies, based on the genetic defect coding intracellular messenger of signal transduction. Noonan syndrome is characterized by a clinical picture of congenital malformations of various organs and systems and by high inclination to cancer. The most important determinant of life expectancy for patients with this disease is the nature and severity of congenital heart valve abnormalities. The most common congenital heart defect in Noonan syndrome is stenosis of the pulmonary artery, which is detected in more than half of the patients. Hypertrophic cardiomyopathy ranks the second place (is diagnosed in about one out of three patients) and mitral valve pathology ranks the third place. The article describes a clinical case of Noonan syndrome in an adult woman who had planned consultation visit. The hereditary nature of the disease in this case was not proven. The patient has stigmas characteristic of the Terner phenotype with the preserved fertility. The combined heart valve abnormality was found: a bicuspid aortic valve and a mitral valve prolapse. It was impossible to evaluate the functional incapability level as patient has severe muscular dystrophy. The degree of compensation for hemodynamic disturbances was not so significant (confirmed by physical examination test and echocardiography) that refrained us from referring the patient to pass through the cardiac surgical treatment. Thus, it can be concluded that the patientcentred approach toward the choice of clinical tactics in managing patients with Noonan syndrome, characterized by a variety of congenital heart defects should always be taken into account.

References

1. Zhdan VM, Kitura EM, Babanina MYu, Kitura OE, Volchenko GV, Tkachenko MV, Shilkina LM. Aktualni pitannya kardiologiyi v praktitsi simeynogo likarya [Actual problems of cardiology in practice of family doctor]. Poltava; 2017. 248 p. (Ukrainian).

2. Noonan JA, Ehmke DA. Associated noncardiac malformations in children with congenital heart disease. Midwest Soc Pediatr Res. 1963;63:468-70.

3. Faassen MV. RAS-patii: sindrom Nunan i drugie rodstvennyie zabolevaniya. Obzor literatury. Problemy endokrinologii. 2014;60(6):45-52.

4. Kruszka P, Porras AR, Addissie YA, Moresco A, Medrano S, Mok G et al. Noonan syndrome in diverse populations. Am J Med Genet A. 2017 Sep;173(9):2323-34.

5. Jamieson CR, van der Burgt I, Brady AF, van Reen M, Elsawi MM, Hol F et al. Mapping a

gene for Noonan syndrome to the long arm of chromosome 12. Nat Genet. 1994 Dec;8(4):357-60.

6. Altmüller F, Pothula S, Annamneedi A, Nakhaei-Rad S, Montenegro-Venegas C, Pina-Fernández E et al. Aberrant neuronal activity-induced signaling and gene expression in a mouse model of RASopathy. PLoS Genet. 2017 Mar 27;13(3):e1006684. doi: 10.1371/journal. pgen.1006684.

7. Ezquieta B, Santomé JL, Carcavilla A, Guillén-Navarro E, Pérez-Aytés A, Sánchez del Pozo J et al. Alterations in RAS-MAPK genes in 200 Spanish patients with Noonan and other neurocardio-facio-cutaneous syndromes. Genotype and cardiopathy. Rev Esp Cardiol (Engl Ed). 2012 May;65(5):447-55. doi: 10.1016/j.recesp.2011.12.016.

8. Prendiville TW, Gauvreau K, Tworog-Dube E, Patkin L, Kucherlapati RS, Roberts AE et al. Cardiovascular disease in Noonan syndrome. Arch Dis Child. 2014 Jul;99(7):629-34.

9. Colquitt JL, Noonan JA. Cardiac findings in Noonan syndrome on long-term follow-up. Congenit Heart Dis. 2014 Mar-Apr;9(2):144-50. doi: 10.1111/chd.12102.

10. Hickey EJ, Mehta R, Elmi M, Asoh K, McCrindle BW, Williams WG, et al. Survival implications: hypertrophic cardiomyopathy in Noonan syndrome. Congenit Heart Dis. 2011 Jan-Feb;6(1):41-7. doi: 10.1111/j.1747-0803.2010.00465.

11. Calcagni G, Limongelli G, D'Ambrosio A, Gesualdo F, Digilio MC, Baban A et al. Data on cardiac defects, morbidity and mortality in patients affected by RASopathies. CARNETstudy results. Data Brief. 2017 Dec 2;16:649-654. doi: 10.1016/j.dib.2017.11.085.

12. Calcagni G, Baban A, De Luca E, Leonardi B, Pongiglione G, Digilio MC. Am J Med Genet. Coronary artery ectasia in Noonan syndrome: Report of an individual with SOS1 mutation and literature review. 2016 Mar;170(3):665-9. doi: 10.1002/ajmg.a.37505.

13. Mauro DM, Flors L, Hoyer AW, Norton PT, Hagspiel KD. Pediatr Radiol. Development of bilateral coronary artery aneurysms in a child with Noonan syndrome. 2016 Mar;46(3):422-5. doi: 10.1007/s00247-015-3472-z.

14. Ringle A, Rousse N, Toledano M, Lemahieu JM, Domanski O, Godart F et al. Surgical management of giant coronary aneurysms in Noonan syndrome Int J Cardiol. 2016 Oct 15;221:107-9. doi: 10.1016/j.ijcard.2016.06.279.

15. Arnott C, Wilcox I, Patel S. A case of ST elevation myocardial infarction secondary to heparin-induced thrombocytopaenia with thrombosis. Heart Lung Circ. 2012 Dec;21(12):841-3. doi: 10.1016/j.hlc.2012.04.023.

16. Ramond F, Duband S, Croisille P, Cavé H, Teyssier G, Adouard V et al. Expanding the cardiac spectrum of Noonan syndrome with RIT1 variant: Left main coronary artery atresia causing sudden death. Eur J Med Genet. 2017 Jun;60(6):299-302. doi: 10.1016/j.ejmg.2017.03.009.

17. Pradhan AK, Pandey S, Usman K, Kumar M, Mishra R. Noonan syndrome with complete atrioventricular canal defect with pulmonary stenosis. J Am Coll Cardiol. 2013 Nov 12;62(20):1905. doi: 10.1016/j.jacc.2013.06.062.

18. Cornwall JW, Green RS, Nielsen JC, Gelb BD. Frequency of aortic dilation in Noonan syndrome. Am J Cardiol. 2014 Jan 15;113(2):368-71. doi: 10.1016/j.amjcard.2013.09.034.

19. Zmolikova M, Puchmajerova A, Hecht P, Lebl J, Trkova M, Krepelova A. Coarctation of the aorta in Noonan-like syndrome with loose anagen hair. Am J Med Genet A. 2014 May;164A(5):1218-21. doi: 10.1002/ajmg.a.36404.

20. Sublett JA, Prada CE, Jefferies JL. Case report: Left ventricular noncompaction cardiomyopathy and RASopathies Eur J Med Genet. 2017 Dec;60(12):680-684. doi: 10.1016/j.ejmg.2017.09.002.

TYPE B1 THYMOMA ASSOCIATED WITH MYASTHENIA: A CASE REPORT

Filenko B.N., Starchenko I.I., Roiko N.V., Cherniak V.V., Novoseltseva T.V.

Key words: thymoma, myasthenia, myocardial infarction, correlation pathomorphology.

Thymomas are the most common tumours of the mediastinum in adults. Patients with thymoma are diag-nosed to have myasthenia gravis in 24-40% of cases. The correlation between these two diseases has not been studied sufficiently and requires a detailed investigation, including not only the clinical and morphological manifestations of their combination, but also the prognosis with regard of the concomitant pathology in patients. The paper presents a lethal case of the patient with pathomorphologically confirmed type B1thymoma associated with myasthenia. No inconsistency between the clinical and post-mortem diagnoses was found and diagnosis of underlying disease was made easily. However, the patient's medical history included the acute and recurrent myocardial infarction, which was not confirmed by the pathomorphological study. Apparently, the clinical signs of myocardial infarction occurred as a manifestation of myasthenia or its specific treatment. Notwithstanding the fact that the greatest probability of occurrence of myasthenia is noted in the presence of organ-specific type B thymomas, it is still not possible to predict the development and course of myasthenia, including the one concomitant with cardiovascular pathology. Clinicians should be alert in treatment of myasthenia patients who can potentially develop myocardial infarction. Early recognition of clinical signs of myocardial infarction, except for electrocardiography, should be confirmed by laboratory parameters and is vital for immediate treatment, as well as for the prevention of cardiovascular complications in the future.

References

1. Kosachev VD, Zhulev NM, Nezghovorova VV. Osobennosty nachala myastenyy u lyts pozhyloho y starcheskoho vozrasta [Particularities of the beginning of myasthenia gravis in elderly]. Rossyiskyi semeinyi vrach. 2010;3:35-37. (Russian)

2. Polotskyi BE, Machaladze ZO, Davydov MY. Novoobrazovanyia vylochkovoi zhelezy (obzor lyteratury) [Thymus gland neoplasms (literature review)]. Sybyrskyi onkolohycheskyi zhurnal. 2008;1(25):75-84. (Russian)

3. Sachenko VV, Metelskyi SM, Borysov VM. Heneralyzovannaia myastenyia, assotsyyrovannaia s novoobrazovanyem tymusa: opysanye klynycheskoho sluchaia y lyteraturnye svedenyia [Myasthenia gravis associated with neoplasm of the thymus: case report and literature data]. Voennaia medytsyna. 2016;1:148-152. (Russian)

4. Sushko AA, Prokopchyk NY, Mozheiko MA. Dyahnostyka y lechenye opukholei y opukholevydnykh obrazovanyi sredostenyia [Diagnosis and treatment of mediastinal tumors and tumor-like masses]. Zhurnal Hrodnenskoho hosudarstvennoho medytsynskoho unyversyteta. 2015; 3:51-55. (Russian)

5. Fylenko BM. Struktura zakhvoriuvanosti vylochkovoi zalozy u kharkivskomu rehioni za period 1989-2011 rr [Structure of thymus pathology in kharkov region for the period 1989-2011 years]. Aktualni pytannia klinichnoi medytsyny [Topical issues of clinical medicine] : Materialy naukovo-praktychnykh konferentsii studentiv, molodykh vchenykh, likariv ta vykladachiv prysviachenykh 20-richchiu zasnuvannia medychnoho instytutu; 2012; Sumy. s.52. (Ukrainian).

6. Fylenko BM. Struktura pukhlynnoi patolohii tymusa u kharkivskomu rehioni za period 1989-2011 roky [Structure of tumor pathology of thymus gland in kharkov and kharkov region for the period 1989-2011 years]. Visnyk problem biolohii i medytsyny. 2012;2,2(93):224-227. (Ukrainian).

7. Shnaider NA, Dykhno YuA, Ezhykova VV. Struktura y chastota vstrechaemosty paraneoplastycheskoho nevrolohycheskoho syndroma pry onkopatolohyy orhanov hrudnoi kletky [Structure and incidence of paraneoplastic syndrome in thoracic cancer]. Sybyrskyi onkolohycheskyi zhurnal. 2012; 1(49):63-70. (Russian)

8. Bansal V, Kansal MM, Rowin J. Broken heart syndrome in myasthenia gravis. Muscle

Nerve. 2011;44:990-93.

9. Beydoun SR, Wang J, Levine RL. Emotional stress as a trigger of myasthenic crisis and concomitant takotsubo cardiomyopathy: a case report J Med Case Rep. 2010;4:393-95.

10. Comerci G, Buffon A, Biondi-Zoccai G. Coronary vasospasm secondary to hypercholinergic crisis: an iatrogenic cause of acute myocardial infarction in myasthenia gravis. International journal of cardiology. 2005; 103(3):335-7.

11. Engels EA. Epidemiology of Thymoma and Associated Malignancies. Journal of Thoracic Oncology. 2010; 5(10):260-65.

12. Marx A, Chan JKC, Coindre JM. The 2015 WHO Classification of Tumors of the Thymus: Continuity and Changes. J. Thorac Oncol. 2015;10(10):1383-95.

13. Parodi G, Bellandi B, Del Pace S. Natural History of Tako-Tsubo Cardiomyopathy. Chest. 2011;139(4):887-92.

14. Suzuki S, Baba A, Kaida K. Cardiac involvements in myasthenia gravis associated with anti-Kv1.4 antibodies. European journal of neurology. 2014; 21(2): 223-30.

15. Zis P, Dimopoulos S, Markaki V. Non-coronary myocardial infarction in myasthenia gravis: Case report and review of the literature. World J Cardiol. 2013;5(7):265-69.